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Paris, January 4th, 2005— The French defence procurement agency, the DGA (Délégation Générale
pour I’Armement}, has contracted SAGEM to do a feasibility study and design a next generation
cryptophony system. This new product will replace the ministries’ and armies’ current equipment as of

2007.

This new success reinforces SAGEM'’s position as a major player in the field of information and
telecommunications security. (The group developed the first ciphering mobile phone in 1997.) Not only
is the company the army’s sole supplier for highly secure voice-ciphering terminals, it also provides wire
and satellite networks for interdepartmental and strategic communications (e.g. digital cryptophony,
ciphering fax, key management system).

SAGEM intends to reinforce its leadership in the fields of civil and military cryptography and information
security systems.

SAGEM is a major partner in other large-scale European programmes, especially in the realm of air
transport security. For example, the ADP (Aéroports de Paris) selected the group to install a biometric
access control system in Paris airports. Moreover, it has drawn on its renowned know-how in electronic
certification to become one of the founding shareholders of KEYNECTIS. In the field of highly secure
smart cards, the French government recently chose SAGEM to develop the operating system (Mask) of
its new Vitale™ health insurance card.

These successes, along with its renowned expertise in new technologies used to secure information
systems, demonstrate the company’s strong commitment to developing products that meet the
requirements of civil and military markets.

Groupe SAGEM is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the world, and
number one of the French mobile telephones market, SAGEM is Europe’s first actor in fax machines
and provider of global solutions and multi-service networks. Third largest European group in the
defence and security electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biometrics as well as major actor in
avionics and on-board information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in more than 20

countries world-wide.

Hervé PHILIPPE | Exacutive VP, Chisf Financial Gfficer | Tel +33 1407082 57 | Fax. +33 15323 2047 | hes
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Press release

SAGEM: 12.3 % increase in 2004 revenue

Paris, January 10", 2005 — The provisional consolidated revenue of Groupe SAGEM amounted to
.€m 3,570 which represents a 12.3 % increase compared to the financial year 2003.

Breakdown by branch:

€m Financial year 2004 Financial year 2003 Difference
Communications branch 2,409 2,097 +14.9 %
Defense and Security branch 1,161 1,083 +7.2%

The results of the financial year 2004 will be published on February 16", after closing of the Stock
Exchange.

Groupe SAGEM is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the world, and number
one of the French mobile telephones market, SAGEM is Europe’s first actor in fax machines and provider
of global solutions and multi-service networks. Third largest European group in the defence and security
electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biometrics as well as major actor in avionics and on-board
information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in more than 20 countries world-wide.

For more information, please visit the SAGEM web site: www.sagem.com

Press Information:

Hervé PHILIPPE PR N°05/02
Executive VP, Chief Financial Officer

Tel. +33 140 70 62 57

Fax. +33 153232047

E-mail: herve.philippe@sagem.com




identification system

Paris, January 25th, 2005— SAGEM just signed an eight-year contract with Northrop Grumman
Information Technology to provide advanced biometric identification technology which will be used to
upgrade a computer system linking more than fifty police forces and agencies in the United Kingdom.

SAGEM will deliver this advanced biometric technology to help Northrop Grumman IT integrate and
enhance the current Automated Fingerprint identification System (AFIS) of England and Wales as well
as the AFIS used by Scotland’s police forces. Current services have allowed police forces to search
their local fingerprints and crime scene marks against their own national databases. The new system,
called IDENT1, will enable these fingerprints and marks to be searched against a combined database
of more than six million ten-print records and more than one million marks (latents) in minutes.

One of the first new developments under IDENT1 and a major contribution of SAGEM will be the
establishment of a national paim-print searching service. This service will enable forces, which already
routinely collect palm prints from people that they arrest, to run national searches similar to fingerprint
searches. National palm-print searching can have a considerable impact on crime investigation and
detection as nearly twenty percent of all marks obtained from crime scenes in the United Kingdom are
from palms.

Further developments will include mobile fingerprint checking, facial imaging and video identification.

"The U.K. has set the standard for identification technology in the police service, enabling the fingerprint
bureau to complete complex national searches and comparisons. This contract award will enable us to
continue the good work and to provide the police service with further national identification services
they need to help fight the modern, sophisticated and mobile criminal”, said Dr. Fred Preston, director
of Identification for the U.K. Police information Technology Organization (PITO), after awarding the
contract to Northrop Grumman.

Jean-Paul Jainsky, Managing Director of the Security Division of Sagem commented "We see this
agreement as an excellent relationship for both companies and we are convinced that the unique and
well established expertise of Sagem in the design and deployment of very large biometric identification
systems will provide a dramatic acceleration to the upgrading of the United Kingdom’s police forces.
With this additional success, SAGEM reinforces its position as the world leader in the provision of large
scale biometric solutions, a rapidly growing market.”

Groupe SAGEM is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the world, and
number one of the French mobile telephones market, SAGEM is Europe’s first actor in fax machines
and provider of global solutions and muliti-service networks. Third largest European group in the
defence and security electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biometrics as well as major actor in
avionics and on-board information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in more than 20
countries world-wide.

Herve PHILIPPE | Exacutive VP Chief Financial Officer | Tell #3323 140 70 62 87 | Fax. +33 1 83 23 20 47 | he

http://www safran-group.com/article.php3?id_article=242&lang=en 4/21/2006




SAGEM unveils its new Bluetooth audio-adapter for mobile phones.

Cannes, February 14th, 2004 — SAGEM, today announced the launch of its first Plug-and-Play
Bluetooth audio-adapter for its GSM handsets.

In addition to its expanding range of mobile phones, SAGEM is also developing its accessory offer. lts
new and innovative Bluetooth audio-adapter is an example of this new strategy. The simple to use
SAGEM Bluetooth audio-adapter is a very compact device that can be plugged to most products of the
myX range, from the high to the entry-range devices. In association to a Bluetooth ear-set or hands-free
kit, the SAGEM Bluetooth audio-adapter offers the end-user the capacity to communicate wirelessly
with the maximum level of comfort.

"This ergonomic and light-weight Bluetooth audio-adapter gives a true added-value to our product line
since most of our handsets can now be easily transformed into Bluetooth-enabled devices.” declared
Thierry Buffenoir, Managing Director of SAGEM’s Mobile Phones Division.

This increase of the accessories offer, illustrates the willingness of SAGEM to provide the end-user with
a wide range of possibilities for mobile communication.

About SAGEM Groupe SAGEM is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the
world, and number one of the French mobile telephones market, SAGEM is Europe’s first actor in fax
machines and provider of global solutions and multi-service networks. Third largest European group in
the defence and security electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biometrics as well as major
actor in avionics and on-board information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in more
than 20 countries world-wide.

Herve PHILIPPE | Executive VP, Chief Financial Officer | Tall +33 1407082 57 | Fax, #33 153 23 20 47 L he

http://www safran-group.com/article.php3?id_article=241&lang=en 4/21/2006




Cannes, February 14th, 2005— SAGEM unveils two new entry range products: the myX1-2 and myX2-2
targeting mainly the voice centric segment.

As SAGEM's coverage and presence continues to grow throughout the world and many users stili look
for accessible and easy to use products, SAGEM continues to enrich its range with products such as

these two innovative and attractive handsets.

The SAGEM myX1-2 offers the essential set of features for the end-user: covers customisation, HiFi
ring tones but also phone book and built-in hands-free mode. Furthermare, the traditional black and
white screen is completely revolutionised thanks to an astonishing colour wall paper embedded in the
display. The SAGEM myX1-2 is available with different designs and its pendant the myX1-2w embeds

WAP browsing features.

As for the SAGEM myX2-2, based on a 4,096-colour screen, it includes all the necessary and user-
friendly features amongst which full customisation of covers, HiFi ring tones, colour wall paper, etc.
Ease of WAP browsing is enhanced by its large and comfortable keypad. The SAGEM myX2-2m

version also integrates Multimedia Messaging Services (MMS) over GPRS.

"In the scope of its collection, SAGEM is as implicated with integrating new multimedia technologies
into its high-range handsets as to renewing its entry-range offering. The farge range of products meets
not only the diversity driven by the different markets concerned but also the mobile phones usage
themselves.” declared Thierry Buffenoir, Managing Director of SAGEM’s Mobile Phones Division.

These products are available in 900/1800Mhz and 850/1900MHz versions in order to answer the
emerging markets needs, such as Latin America, Asia or Africa but also for replacement offers of more

mature markets.

About SAGEM Groupe SAGEM is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the
world, and number one of the French maobile telephones market, SAGEM is Europe’s first actor in fax
machines and provider of global solutions and multi-service networks. Third largest European group in
the defence and security electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biometrics as well as major
actor in avionics and on-board information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in more

than 20 countries world-wide.

Exegutive VP, Chief Financisl Offficer | Tell +33 1 40 70 88 87 | Fax, +33 1 83 23 20 47 | hey
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The new myC3-2 to enrich SAGEM’s Clamshell collection

Cannes, February 15th, 2005 SAGEM today presents its myC3-2: a large colour screen clamshell with
Multimedia Messaging (MMS) capabilities over GPRS support.

SAGEM'’s very compact myC3-2 is an attractive clamshell handset with a global volume of around
70cm3. As it opens, the handset unveils not only an ergonomic and user-friendly keypad, but also a
mirror-like window. Its elegant design and blue back-light make it a sophisticated and attractive object.
When closed, the myC3-2 outer LCD screen displays numerous and useful information such as a clock
or caller identification.

Its large amount of embedded features, comfortable keypad and large 65,536-colour screen allow a
pleasant browsing experience through the menus and via its WAP services. This new SAGEM
clamshell incorporates all the necessary and user-friendly features including Hi-Fi and/or polyphonic
ring tone melodies as well as colour wallpapers also downloadable via a data cable or through WAP.

"SAGEM’s myC3-2 is a compact handset that should appeal to a variety of end-users in search for
customisable mobile communication tools to meet their needs” declared Thierry Buffenoir, Managing
Director of SAGEM’s Mobile Phones Division.

SAGEM is also launching the myC3-2j which supports the latest and more powerful version of JAVA™:
the MIDP2.0, allowing the end-user to access a large choice of downloadable applications and games.

About SAGEM Groupe SAGEM is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the
world, and number one of the French mobile telephones market, SAGEM is Europe’s first actor in fax
machines and provider of global solutions and multi-service networks. Third largest European group in
the defence and security electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biometrics as well as major
actor in avionics and on-board information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in more
than 20 countries world-wide.

LIPPE | Executive VP, Chisf Financial Gfficer Tal #3833 1407082 57 | Fax, +33 1 83 23 20 47 | hey
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accounts, which were presented by Grégoire OLIVIER, CEQ and Chairman of SAGEM's Executive Board.

The 2004 accounts showing again a strong increase, both revenue and results surpassed the cbjective announced in July 2004.
Revenue amounted to €3,570 M and progressed by 12.3% as compared to 2003. Operating incoms was up 22% and amounted to €205.7 M. Consolidated

net income totalled €134.2 M, an increase of 27%" with respect to 2003.

Main figures:

[(1): Excluding esceptional capital gainé (€14 M after taxes) following salas of GEMPLUS shares

At the end of Y 2004, Groups SAGEM smployed 15,833 people.

[BREARBUWNAIBY:ACTHUITIES S
COMMUNIERTIONS
Mohile Phanes

Mohile phones revenue was up +18.2% as com-
pared to year 2003 and reached €1,277.1 M.
Nearly 21 million products were sotd throughout
the year, of which 15 million terminals and B mil-
fion madules. SAGEM confirmed its position as a
teader in Franee throughout 2004 in tarms of
telephones sales and hauted itself up to the world's
7th rank by wirning importent market shares in
an economic climate of strong price competition.
The pperating income was €68.4 M or 5.4% of
reverue.

Residential termirals _and. Broadband

Revenue's increase in Residential terminats and
Broadband commurication was 11.3% in 2004,
up to €1.131.5 M. This growth is particularly
due to Broadband communication's success. The
Group scid more than 3 miflion ADSL residential
gateways in 2004 and keeps a leading position in
Euvrope. The strong upturn of digital television
sat-top-hoxes lover 700,080 products sold! and
the very encouraging launch of HD televisions and
photo printers also explain the sales increase
Tre operating income was €45.5 M. or 4% of
revenLe.

BEFEMEE RND SECUSITY

Deferse and  Security's revenue resched
€1,181.86 M, anincrease of +7.2% in 2004 as
compared to 2003. The activity has been parti-
cularly sustained it the Defense and Aeronautics
busiress. which progressed by 18.9% in 2004,
Characteristic of the year were the signature of

rew important contracts, in particular FELIN
{equipment of the soldier of the future! and the
development of the Airbus A380 information sys-
tems. Moreover, several contracts have reached
delivery stage: MICA infrared seekers for the
MBDA, sighting systems for the TIGRE helicopter,
equipments for the NH30.

in the Security business, SAGEM consalidated its
leading position in multibiometric through several
significant contracts with the United Kingdom
(identification systems based or fingerprints for
the police, iris identification for British Airports
paszengers, with Australia {face recognition},
the Netherlends (multibiometric passports! and
Paris Airports (access controt for employessi..

SAGEM enjoyed a strong growth in 2004 in
Payment terminals with as much as twice
volumes sold. SAGEM aiso performed in the
smart cards business (over 20 millien cards have
heer meanufactured in France) and has acquired
significant. interest in the Chinese company
named Tian Yu, which produced 30 million cards.
SAGEM alsn acquired E-Software, 8 company
specialised in virtual aceesss controb.

The operating income of the Defense and Security
Activity was 7.9% of revenue, up to €918 M

The Group's financial structure as at 31
December 2004 is  particulerly  solid.
Consclideted shareholder's equity is over €1.2
biliion and covers three times the nret fixed
sgsets. Net cash after deduction of financial debt.
amounts g €406.8 M.

SEAALMEEINEE DIVIBEN DL

The Shareholder's General Meeting shall be held
in May. A dividend of €0.22 per share will be
proposed to shereholders, which represents &
17% increase. For reminder, SAGEM SAs
Sharehntder's Genersl Meeting, which met on 20
December 2004, decided to carry out & five to ane
share split. SAGEM SA's capital today is composed
of 177,500,000 shares of €0.20 par value.

Also for reminder, an interim dividend of €3.10
per share will be paid after the settlement-deli-
very of SAGEM shares issued to remunerste
SNECMA shares, which contributed to the
exchange offer currently in progress. The existing
SAGEM shares and the shares tendered within
the scope of the exchange offer, will benefit from
this interim dividend along with the complement
dividend, which will be npaid after the
Shareholder's General Meeting date.

Within the scope of SAGEM and SNECMAS mer-
ger next May, new sheres issued afterwards,
with due date on 1 January 2004, ard for which
no interim dividend would have beer paid, will
consequently benefit from the €0.22 dividend
per share,

Grégoire  OLIVIER  declared  during  the
Supervisory Board Meeting, that "growth should
continue as well in the Defense and Security as in
the Communications businesses in year 2005.
As far as the offer on Snecms is concerned,
SAGEM expects a success, which will conduct to
propose at the Shareholders General Megetings in
May, the merger of both Groups. The merger is
designed to create a global high-technology group”.

Irvestor 1

Infemnet: ww

5: Horyé PHILIPPE: Tel +33 1 40 70 62 57
vsagam.com
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Communiqué de presse / Press release

Sagem-Snecma merger

Successful public share offer

Paris, March 9, 2005 — The planned merger between Sagem and Snecma has just taken a
decisive step with the official publication of the results of Sagem’s public offer for Snecma
shares. This offer was a major success, since the number of Snecma shares involved
represents more than 83% of the capital and 94.4% of the shares which could be
tendered (given the shares retained by the French government to satisfy its commitments,
and the shares retained by French employees in their company investment plans).

The Sagem Executive Board met today, expressing its satisfaction with the success of the
offer. In application of the decision by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders last
December 20, the Board proceeded to issue 187,774,170 new shares in payment for the
Snecma shares tendered to the offer.

The share capital of Sagem SA now comprises 365,274,170 shares and 73,054,834 euros.
The new shares will be delivered on March 17, and the advance dividend payment of 0.10
euro per share will be paid on March 18.

The corporate managem'ent teams of Sagem and Snecma are both delighted with the
success of this public share offer, a critical step in the merger of these two high-tech groups,
leading to the legal merger in several weeks.

Sagem contact: , Snecma contact:

Hervé Philippe Jocelyne Terrien

Tel: 33140706257 Tel: 3314060 80 28

herve philippe@sagem.com jocelyne.terrien@snecma.fr




Leisure, style and innovation have inspired this new music player camera-phone signed : SAGEM

Hanover, March 11th, 2005 — SAGEM continues to innovate and unveils today in Hanover its brand-
new camera-phone handset equipped with the latest functionalities in terms of music, photo, video and
games : the myX6-2.

For those who are looking for more than just a phone, the SAGEM myX6-2 is the ideal Multimedia
mobility companion. Tri-band, the myX6-2 will be able to follow its owner all around the world.

The SAGEM myX6-2 allows an easy download of full music-tracks. As per its 10MB. of internal
memory, this model also integrates a micro SD card player in order to extend its storage capacity
potentially reaching up to 256MB. Therefore allowing the user to manage his music collection that
constantly follows him directly on his handset. Other than its great ergonomics, its digital player renders
a high-quality sound and its compatibility with a stereo kit gives an cutstanding rendering, truthful to the
original soundtrack.

As per its photo capabilities, the myX6-2 matches those of a digital camera thanks to its embedded 1.3
Mega-pixel sensor and its 8 position progressive digital zoom. The SAGEM myX6-2 also offers the
possibility to record video sequences allowing the user to capture uniqgue moments to remember with
high emotional rendering.

Its large 256k-colour screen places it at the top of its category, with a remarkable comfort of use: it is
therefore possible to watch not only photos but also videos in full screen format, as well as staying
informed in real time. Its access to Multimedia Services becomes even more satisfactory: Multimedia
Messaging Services (MMS), photo or video download, game and application download compatible with
the JAVA™ standard, WAP 2.0, etc...

“This new mobile phone has found its place very naturally in our product range and illustrates our
desire to provide products equipped with the most requested functionnalities by our customers in terms
of highly advanced products with very attractive prices. The design and capabilities of the myX6-2 take
into account this positioning: it is important to be able not only to seduce and re-assure but also to
underline the high technology level offered by the product” declared Thierry Buffenoir, Managmg
Director of SAGEM'’s Mobile Phones Division.

In short, this new model by SAGEM allows a complete freedom to call, communicate, remain informed
and entertain. This freedom is furthermore reinforced by its Bluetooth connectivity which ensures
hands-free comfort use as well as a large choice of accessories in option : stereo ear-kit, car kit, USB
data cable, car charger, pedestrian Bluetooth kit and interchangeable covers.

Compact (110x47x19mm) and light-weight (104g), the SAGEM myX6-2 was designed to adapt itself to
the users’ lifestyle. lts fluid lines answer our needs in terms of beauty and simplicity: sophisticates
whilst remaining sober in its forms, the myX6-2 should seduced even the most demanding users.

About SAGEM Groupe SAGEM is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the
world, and number one of the French mobile telephones market, SAGEM is Europe’s first actor in fax
machines and provider of global solutions and multi-service networks. Third largest European group in
the defence and security electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biometrics as well as major
actor in avionics and on-board information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in more
than 20 countries world-wide.

Hoerve PHILIPPE | Execul

http://www safran-group.com/article.php3?id_article=237&lang=en 4/21/2006




SAGEM joins Smart Payment Alliance

Paris, 16 March, 2005—~ SAGEM announces that it has joined Smart Payment Alliance, a new industry-
wide association gathering the leading smart card manufacturers in the world, Axalto, Gemplus
International S.A., Giesecke & Devrient, and Oberthur Card Systems.

Created in January 2005, this non-profit association is dedicated to promote and facilitate the usage of
chip-based cards to make payments. Its main objective is to accelerate the transition from traditional
magnetic stripe cards to chip-based cards by:

* Promoting the benefits of smart cards for financial institutions * Ensuring optimal interoperability
between all system components, for both payment and value-added applications * Establishing
representation on standardization committees and within payment associations * Describing use cases
for value-added applications and, whenever necessary, establishing joint industry specifications for
them

The strategy of the Alliance is to position itself as a partner of EMVCo and to bolster Visa and
MasterCard actions on EMV specifications and their implementation.

Aiming to establish consistent specifications, the Alliance members will be involved in very focused
workgroups. Meeting regularly, they will carry out projects to advance interoperability as well as
develop additional smart payment solutions, which would be difficult to achieve without the
concentration of such industrial knowledge.

“Joining Smart Payment Alliance will enable us to participate to promoting chip-based payment cards,
but also to establish international specifications, thus improving both quality and security” declares
Jean-Paul Jainsky, Managing Director of SAGEM's Security Division.

Marc Birkner, chairman of the board of Smart Payment Alliance, adds: “the success of the Smart
Payment Alliance relies on a large base of experience in the chip card field. Therefore we welcome new
entrants willing to contribute to the objectives”.

Groupe SAGEM is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the world, and
number one of the French mobile telephones market, SAGEM is Europe’s first actor in fax machines
and provider of global solutions and multi-service networks. Third largest European group in the
defence and security electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biometrics as well as major actor in
avionics and on-board information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in more than 20
countries world-wide.

Hervd PHILIPPE | Executive VP, Chig
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Press release

Snecma and Sagem merge, changing name to SAFRAN

Paris, March 18 2005 — SAGEM SA Supervisory Board met today under the Chairmanship of Mario
COLAJACOVO and noted the success of the public offer initiated by SAGEM over SNECMA shares.

he number of SNECMA shares involved represents more than 83% of the capital and 94.4% of the shares which
could be tendered.

SAFRAN is the new name proposed by the Supervisory Board to the General Meeting of shareholders,
which will be convened on 11 May 2005 to approve the merger between Sagem and Snecma.

The name SAFRAN has been chosen following a process of reflection, creation and validation.
The employees of both Snecma and Sagem played an active role in the entire process. The new name was selected
from among a total of 4,250 names submitted, including 1,750 proposed by employees.

The new name SAFRAN was chosen for the broad range of meanings it evokes for the new group. First, it's the
French word for the rudder blade on a boat, thus encompassing the ideas of direction, goal, heading, movement and
strategy. These connotations seem particularly apt for a holding company whose mission is to guide the group. At
the same time, the subsidiaries in the group will retain their names, to ensure continued support for the marketing
of their respective product lines.

SAFRAN is also of course the name of one of the spices ("saffron") that inspired the beginning of international
trade, opening channels between East and West.

Furthermore, it is remarkably compatible with international usage, since it has the same root in virtually all
countries, with just the spelling changing slightly.

SAFRAN will have a workforce of nearly 55,000 people and a high growth potential in all its activities. The new
management along with all employees are eager to create a large international high technology group. Everybody is
already working to develop it.

During the meeting, the Chairman has welcomed the new Supervisory Board members, who had been appointed
after the General Meeting of shareholders last December 20, and who took up their duties after the success of
SAGEM’s public offer over SNECMA shares.

As from today, the Supervisory Board members are:

- Mr Mario COLAIACOVO, Chairman

- Mrs Anne LAUVERGEON, Deputy Chairman, and Mr Frangois de COMBRET, Mr Armand DUPUY,
Mr Jean-Marc FORNERI, Mr Yves GUENA, Mr Philippe JOST (French State’s official), Mr Xavier
LAGARDE, Mr Jean-Yves LECLERQ (French State’s official), Mr Shemaya LEVY, Mr Michel LUCAS, Mr
Pierre MORAILLON (French State’s official), Mr Dominique PARIS, Mr Jean-Bernard PENE (French State’s
official), Mr Jean RANNOU, Mr Michel TOUSSAN, Mr Bernard VATIER, Mr Michel WACHENHEIM
(French State’s official).

Mr Georges CHODRON de COURCEL and Mr Patrice DURAND are the censors.




The Supervisory Board has confirmed the appointment of the Executive Board’s new members:

- Mr Jean-Paul BECHAT, Chairman,
- Mr Grégoire OLIVIER,
- MrYves IMBERT.

In order to implement as soon as possible the merger between both Groups, the General Meeting of Shareholders
will be convened on 11 May 2005 at 9.00 a.m at the following address : “la Maison de la Chimie (75007 Paris)” to
approve this friendly transaction.

Items on the agenda are:

- To authorize the contribution-split of SAGEM operational activities in order to build the new Group’s
organisation  around  four  branches:  Defense-Security,  Aerospace  Equipment,  Propulsion
and Communications,

To ratify the Headquarters transfer to the following address: 2 boulevard Martial Valin — 75015 Paris,
To approve the Corporate name’s change into SAFRAN.

Press Information:

Sagem Snecma
Hervé PHILIPPE Jocelyne TERRIEN
Tel. +33 140 70 62 57 Tel : +33 1 40 60 80 28
E-mail : herve.philippe@sagem.com E-mail : jocelyne.terrien@snecma.fr




SAGEM provides Europe-wide multi-biometric visas in pilot test

Paris, May 4th, 2005

Following a consultation {made public in August 2004) of an ad hoc group of member states, SAGEM
was chosen to integrate a pilot test of Europe-wide multi-biometric visas. Known as Biodev, the trial is
scheduled to begin in the first half of 2005 and will last one year. SAGEM will equip several consulates
abroad as well as European border posts.

SAGEM is supplying the enrolment stations and the multi-biometric technology (facial and fingerprint
recognition) necessary to create and personalize the travel decuments. The personalization of the
contactless chips complies with ICAO (International Civil Aviation Organisation) standards, which will

soon be applied to future secure passports. In particular, the technology protects against identity theft
and fraud.

In addition, SAGEM is installing a temporary database for visa applicants and a search engine, both
indispensable for fighting identity fraud and preventing multiple requests. The test is a precursor to the
biometric visa information system, which may well be installed throughout the EU’s Schengen area.
Furthermore, the pilot system will help determine the impact of new control and work procedures on
travelers, consular staff and border police.

The pilot test will also allow authorities to verify whether or not documents issued and personalized with
different equipment by clients and suppliers in five European countries are interoperable.

This new success confirms SAGEM's expertise in multi-biometric technology, contactless smart cards
and securing computer systems. Biodev also shows that the group can bring together numerous
partners to experiment with and commercialize solutions that are innovative and interoperable on a
large scale.

About SAGEM

SAGEM Group is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the world, and number
one of the French mobile telephones market, SAGEM is Europe’s first actor in fax machines and
provider of global solutions and multi-service networks. Third largest European group in the defence
and security electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biomelrics as well as major actor in avionics
and on-board information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in more than 20 countries
world-wide. '

Initiated in October 2004, SAGEM's friendly exchange offer for the aeronautics equipment
manufacturer SNECMA was announced a success on March 9, 2005.

The coming together of these two corporate heavyweights is expected to lead to the creation of a
worldwide leader in high technology named SAFRAN. A shareholders’ vote at the May 11, 2005,
General Assembly will finalize the merger.

http://www .safran-group.com/article.php3?id_article=745&lang=en 4/21/2006




Sagem Monetel to participate in the launch of Thailand’s e-purse

Paris, May 9th 2005

Sagem Monete! will participate in the launch of Thailand’s electronic purse, scheduled for the beginning
of September 2005. Based on the latest technological innovations in electronic payment, the system
will use contact or contactiess smart cards that will interface with the Sagem Monetel EFT Smart
payment terminal.

This new payment terminal processes electronic transactions in less than four seconds when in
contactless mode. Payments will be made in “Touch and Pay” mode. The e-purse — known as Smart
Purse — will be used by at least five million card holders on 40 000 terminals in 2 or 3 years. Fast food
outlets, bookshops, theatres, concert halls and train stations are the first in line to be equipped with this
new payment mode.

For Thai Smart Card — the company developing the overall solution — Smart Purse is more than just a
simple e-purse. A lot of value-added services can be integrated, such as loyalty programmes, analysis
of consumer behaviour for promotional campaigns, e-vouchers, e-ticketing and MTAs (Money Transfer
Applications, to be launched in May 2005).

“Smart Purse is an innovative solution that brings new services and conveniences to the retailers and
consumers. This is why we are so optimistic for the development of such a solution. We are very
confident in our choice of a partner like Sagem Monetel, with their powerful and secure terminals,” said
Mr. Chalermchai Chatchaiganan of Thai Smart Card.

Jean-Paul Jainsky, Managing Director of Sagem’s Security Division, added: “We are very happy to
provide Thai Smart Card with powerful and secure terminals that will ensure an efficient payment
process. They support multiple applications and can offer a large range of services. Based on Telium
technology, they are open-ended, and as such can process magnetic, contact and contactless smart
cards.”

About Sagem

Groupe Sagem is an international high-technology group. Major league player in the world, and number
one of the French mobile telephones market, Sagem is Europe’s first actor in fax machines and
provider of global solutions and multi-service networks. Third largest European group in the defence
and security electronics market, world leader in fingerprint biometrics as well as major actor in avionics
and on-board information systems for aircraft, SAGEM maintains a presence in mare than 20 countries
world-wide.

Initiated in October 2004, Sagem's friendly exchange offer for the aeronautics equipment manufacturer
Snecma was announced a success on March 8, 2005.

The coming together of these two corporate heavyweights is expected to lead to the creation of a
worldwide leader in high technology named SAFRAN. A shareholders’ vote at the May 11, 2005,
General Assembly will finalize the merger.

About Sagem Monetel

A subsidiary of Sagem Group, Sagem Monetel is specialised in electronic payment solutions that
integrate cutting-edge technologies such as GSM, GPRS, biometrics, secured transmission, etc.

http://www .safran-group.com/article.php3?id_article=961&lang=en 4/21/2006
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Paris, May 11", 2005 - The Safran group posted sales of 2,380 million euros for tﬁleﬂt‘hﬁelé;ﬁlbnthjs‘:f
ended March 31, 2005, based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and 2,480
millions euros based on French accounting standards. These are pro forma figures, calculated by
adding the sales of Snecma and Sagem.

On the basis of identical accounting standards, sales rose 4.5 percent over the first quarter of
2004.

Application of the IAS 39 standard to sales in foreign currencies had an impact of 100 million euros
on the Aerospace Propulsion and Aerospace Equipment branches.

The following table compares results by branch for the first quarter 2004 and first quarter 2005.

French accounting standards IFRS
millions of euros Q1 2004 Q1 2005
Pro forma Pro forma Change Q12005
Propulsion 1,007 1,082 +7.4% 1,015
Communications 581 551 -5.2% 551
Equipment B05 663 +9.6% 630
Defense and Security 247 263 +6.5% 263
Elimination of inter-branch (87) (79) (79)
sales
CONSOLIDATED TOTAL 2,373 2,480 +45% 2,380

Higher sales by the Aerospace Propulsion branch reflected a growth in service business and
increased deliveries of helicopter engines.

Results at the Communications branch were contrasted, with strong growth in the broadband
segment (ADSL modems, digital TV set-top boxes), but a decrease in mobile phone sales
compared with the first quarter of 2004, when sales were especially strong.

The Aerospace Equipment branch also saw higher sales, mainly due to its wiring, wheels, brakes
and nacelle businesses.

The Defense and Security branch posted steady growth in sales of aeronautical systems and

security products.

* New name of the Group, pending approval by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, taking place on
May 11", 2005.

SAFRAN
Direction de la Communication

Press Contact
Jocelyne TERRIEN

Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
Fax +33 (0}1406080 26

2, bd du Général Martial Valin
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France

Www.snecma.com jocelyne.terien@snecma.fr
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SAFRAN LISTED

Paris, May 13, 2005 -

Effective today, the SAFRAN share is listed on the Eurolist market of Euronext Paris, as
“SAFRAN" (code SAF).

SAFRAN's capital comprises 417,029,585 shares.
The coupon date has been set at May 20, 2005.

The name of the group formed by the merger of Sagem and Snecma, SAFRAN, was
approved on May 11, 2005 by the general meeting of shareholders of Sagem SA.

About SAFRAN

SAFRAN is an international high-technology group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion, defense
and security, aerospace equipment and communications. It has 56,000 employees in over 30 countries, and
annual revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with
prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of

its markets.

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 4060 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne terrien@safran.fr



&“\33

il

e
el
i

SAFRAN plans to sell Sagem Communication’s

Power and Telecom cables business

Paris, October 10, 2005 — SAFRAN announced today that it has received a firm offer from
General Cable concerning the acquisition by General Cable Europe of Sagem Communication's
power and telecom cables business.

This transaction should be finalized in the coming months, following consultation with all labor -
organizations and approval by the appropriate authorities.

Sagem Communication’s cables business primarily makes electrical power. Its areas of expertise
include not only high-voltage and extra-high-voltage power cables, but also engineered and
industrial cables, standard electrical cables for the general market and cables for
telecommunications applications. The company's cables business generates sales of about 200
5 : million euros a year, and totals about 1,000 employees at its plant in Montereau-Fault-Yonne, near
¢ Paris, six regional offices in France, and corporate headquarters in Malakoff, also near Paris.

Sagem Communication’s cables business will thus join one of the industry's major players, which
plans fo expand its business in Europe and especially in France, where it has very limited
operations for the moment.

This project is a genuine opportunity for the cables business, which was not a core business at
Sagem Communication. It will ensure the business's growth as part of a major international
corporation that is specialized in this sector. For Sagem Communication, it will allow us to focus on
our current growth markets in the telecom sector, which all depend on extensive expertise in
electronics.

SAFRAN s an international high-technology group with four core businesses: propuision,
communications, equipment, defense security. It has 56,000 employees in over 30 countries, and
annual revenues exceeding 10 billion eurcs. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of
companies with prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European
leadership positions in all of its markets

Sagem Communication (SAFRAN Group) is a major player in the Mobile and Broadband
Communication industries, who has acquired a strong world-wide position thanks to renewed
innovation. SAGEM products stand-out particularly in the following activities: mobile phones,
printing terminals, residential terminals, digital TV, networks, electronic metering, efc.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33(0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne terrien@safran.fr
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Consolidated sales at September 30, 2005 (pro forma)

Paris, October 12, 2005

The SAFRAN Group reported consolidated pro forma sales for the nine months ended September
30, 2005 of 7,473 million euros, an increase of 4.5% over the same period in 2004. Given a
constant U.S. dollar, the increase would have been 6.5%.

Millions of euros 2004 2005 Change (%)

Propulsion

> Q3 970 1,092 +12.6%

» 9 months ended Sept. 30 3,053 3,162 + 3.6%
Communication

> Q3 568 537 -5.8%

» 9 months ended Sept. 30 1,702 1,648 -3.2%
Equipment

> Q3 531 631 +18.8%

> 9 months ended Sept. 30 1,617 1,818 +12.4%
Defense Security

> Q3 252 270 +7.1%

> 9 months ended Sept. 30 779 845 + 8.5%

Consolidated sales
> Q3 2,321 2,530 + 9%
> 9 months ended Sept. 30 7,151 7,473 +4.5%

The Propulsion branch had consolidated sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 of
3,162 million euros, an increase of 3.6% over the same period in 2004. This increase reflects the
expected growth in commercial engine sales, in line with higher aircraft production rates. Given a
constant dollar, sales would have increased 6.4%.

The Communication branch had consolidated sales for the nine months ended September 30,
2005 of 1,648 million euros, a decrease of 3.2% over the same period in 2004. Despite the
significant increase in the number of mobile phones sold, the sharp drop in prices, especially for
entry-level models, continues to weigh against sales.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 4060 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 — France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr
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sales would have increased 15.7%.

security markets.

About SAFRAN

feadership positions in all of its markets.

SAFRAN
Direction de la Communication

2, bd du Général Martial Valin
75724 Paris Cedex 15 ~ France

www.safran-group.com

The Equipment branch had consclidated sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 of
1,818 million euros, an increase of 12.4% over the same period in 2004, All sectors in this branch
(nacelles, wheels & brakes, wiring, landing gear, etc.) logged growth. Given the constant dollar,

The Defense Security branch posted sales of 845 million euros, an increase of 8.5% over the same
period in 2004, reflecting the solid growth in sales volumes, especially in the civil avionics and

SAFRAN is an international high-technology group with four core businesses: propulsion,
communications, equipment, defense security. It has 56,000 employees in over 30 countries, and
annual revenues exceeding 10 billion eurcs. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of
companies with prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European

Press Contact
Jocelyne TERRIEN

Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
Fax +33 (0)1 40 50 80 26

jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr
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Operating income on the rise

For the first half of 2005, Safran posted adjusted pro forma operating income of 347 million euros, a 6.7% rise
over the year-earlier figure of 325 million euros. This result includes a provision covering our entire net risk for
Northwest Airlines, which entered Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection on September 14, 2005.

The operating margin stood at 7% despite this event, as well as a first half of the year that proved difficult for
the communications business, due to very high pressure on mobile phone prices.

The overall increase in productivity and business volumes at the Propulsion and Equipment branches,
especially for spare parts, more than offset these negative factors, as well as the unfavorable impact of the
euro-dollar exchange rate.

Net income also on the rise

The Group’s share of adjusted pro forma net income for the first half of 2005 was 209 million euros, an
increase of 8.8% over net income of 192 million euros in the first half of 2004.

Healthy financial position

The Safran group’s debt stood at 1,123 million euros at June 30, after providing 1,250 million euros in
financing for the share purchase offer.

With shareholders’ equity of 4,821 million euros at June 30, 2005, the group’s debt ratio stood at 23%.

Outlook

Safran confirms its original forecast for 2005: growth in sales, sustained operating margin, and increase in net
income.

(1) Reported sales stood at 3,375 million euros, with an operating loss of 6 million euros and net loss, Group
share, of 23 million euros, given current state of work related to IFRS 3.

Financial and Operating Highlights*

millions of euros H1 2004 H1 2005 Change
Orders 4,800 7,200 +50%
Sales 4,830 4,943 +2.3 %
Operating income 325 347 +6.7%
as % of sales 6.7% 7%

Net income — Group share 192 209 +8.8%
Net financial position 432 (1,123)

Net income per share (euros) 0.46 0.51

(*)Adjusted pro forma data

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne terrien@safran.fr




ugh

) A

About SAFRAN

SAFRAN is an intemational high-technology group with four core businesses: propulsion, communications,
equipment, defense security. It has 56,000 employees in over 30 countries, and annual revenues exceeding
10 billion eurcs. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious brand names, and

holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France . Fax +33 (0)1 4060 80 26

www safran-group.com jocelyne terrien@safran.fr




Safran reports consolidated first-half results

e Sharp rise in orders
o Growth in operating income (adjusted pro forma figures)
s Growth in net income (adjusted pro forma figures)

Paris, October 12, 2005 - Sagem and Snecma merged on May 11, 2005 following the successful share
purchase-exchange offer initiated by Sagem and concluded on March 17, 2005. The reported consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2005 therefore include six months of operations for the
former Sagem group and only three months for the former Snecma group. Furthermore, in compliance with
the standard IFRS 3 concerning mergers, Snecma's assets and liabilities are now consolidated in these
reported financial statements not at their bock value, but automatically revalued at their fair value.

To enable a comparison of results for 2004 and 2005, and to reflect the group's actual financial performance,
the audited pro forma accounts were drawn up as if the merger had taken place on January 1, 2004.

Furthermore, these pro forma statements were then adjusted so as to exclude the impact of IFRS 3, and
enable tracking the group’s actual financial performance during the six-month period.

Given these conditions, the key figures for the first half of 2005 are as follows(1):

> adjusted pro forma sales: 4,943 million euros, an increase of 2.3% over the first half of 2004;
> adjusted pro forma operating income: 347 million euros, an increase of 6.7%;

> adjusted pro forma net income, Group share: 209 million euros, an increase of 8.8%.

Sharp rise in orders

Order intake rose sharply during the first half of 2005, reaching 7,200 million euros, a 50% jump over the first
half of 2004 (4,800 million euros).

At June 30, orders had already been booked for more than 1,000 CFM56 engines, an all-time record, 652
helicopter engines and a wide variety of systems and equipment (wheels and brakes for 295 aircraft, cockpit
wiring and inertial navigation system for the A400M, etc.).

Sales growth

' Sales for the first six months of the year stood at 4,943 million euros, an increase of 2.3% over the year-earlier
e : period (4,830 million euros). At a constant exchange rate, the increase would have been 4.8%.

The Propulsion branch posted sales of 2,070 million euros during the first half of 2005. An increase in
business volumes offset both the impact of the weak U.S. dollar and flat military and space sales. Given a
constant doliar exchange rate, the increase would have been 2.9%.

The Communication branch posted first-half sales of 1,111 million euros, a slight decrease over the first haif of
2004. The mobile phone business was not in line with expected results, despite an increase in deliveries,
because of a general steep drop in prices. However, broadband business volumes showed strong growth.

The Equipment branch posted sales of 1,187 million euros for the first half of the year, a 9.3% increase over
the year-earlier period. This increase reflects strong positions won in the nacelles, wiring and braking systems
markets. Given a constant dollar, the increase would have been 13%.

Sales by the Defense Security branch continued to grow, rising 9.1% over the first half of 2004 to 575 million
euros. This increase was driven by the sale of both aircraft systems and security equipment, in particular
electronic money transfer and radar systems.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 ~ France Fax +33 (0)1 406080 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr



Paris, November 2"

Labinal, a company of the SAFRAN Group, has been selected by Dassault Falcon Jet
Corp. for the manufacture, production, installation and customer support of the Falcon 7X
completion electrical harnesses. The electrical systems will be delivered and instalied
directly at Dassault Falcon’s facility (Little Rock, Arkansas USA).

The first installation is planned for Spring 2006. The Europe Wiring Division of Labinal will
support the North America Wiring Division by bringing technical and training assistance on
the Falcon technical specific products and installation activities.

This contract is the first occasion for Labinal to provide installation activities in the United
States.

One of the SAFRAN Group’s high tech companies, Labinal is a world leader in the field of
electrical wiring systems — and studies in their engineering and associated technology — for the
aviation, space and defense markets. The company’s unmatched expertise is founded on
decades of design, development and manufacturing success with long-term partnerships with
the leading aercspace companies. Labinal’s industrial activities, market segment oriented and
customer-driven, are organized in three Divisions: Wiring Europe, Wiring North America and
Engineering & Technology. ' '

SAFRAN s an international high-technology group with four core businesses: propulsion,
communications, equipment, defense security. It has 56,500 employees in over 30 countries,
and annual revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of
companies with prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or
European leadership positions in all of its markets.
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SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de ta Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
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Press Contact Manager, Public Relations and Communications
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...............................................................................................................................................................................................



;ﬂulﬂw
\ um!;;;

il

inauguration of SAFRAN media library at Civil Aviation University of China

Paris, November 15, 2005 — The SAFRAN Group of France, represented by Frangois Courtot,
Vice President International Affairs, and the Civil Aviation University of China (CAUC), represented
by its President Wu Tongshui, recently inaugurated the new SAFRAN media library at the CAUC in
Tianjin. The ceremony was also attended by Chu Yang, Deputy Director of the CAAC (Civil
Aviation Administration of China) administration office, Alexis May, advisor to the French
ambassador to China, Marie-Pierre Van Hoecke, head of the CNRS (French scientific research
agency) office in China, Marc Ventre, Chairman of Snecma, and Jean-Lin Fournereaux, Chairman
of Snecma Services.

The inauguration of this media library marks the first step in the collaboration agreement signed in
September by SAFRAN, an international technology leader, and CAUC, the main aeronautical
engineering school for civil aviation in China.

The media library, for which SAFRAN supplied 20 computer stations, has a two-pronged goal: it
reflects the aerospace expertise and products of the SAFRAN Group, and above all it will be a
important resource for CAUC students, giving them access, for instance, to extensive information
on group products (especially technical documents on CFM56 engines).

The collaboration with CAUC should continue with the opening of an exhibition space for SAFRAN
products, including a CFM56 engine used for hands-on training.

About SAFRAN

SAFRAN is an international high-technology group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion, aircraft
equipment, defense and security, communications. It has 56,500 employees in over 30 countries, and annual
revenues exceeding 10 billion eurcs. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious

brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 4060 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 25

www.safran-group.com : jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr
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Spotlight on “SPEC” at first symposium on more electric
aircraft technologies

Paris, November 15, 2005 - The first symposium on “more electric” aircraft technologies,
organized by the Research & Technology division of the SAFRAN Group, took place on November
8 and 9 at the Génocentre in Evry. Attracting some 150 participants, the symposium spotlighted the
work of the SAFRAN Power Electronics Center (SPEC), led by Group company Hispano-Suiza.
SPEC is the Group’s center of expertise in power electronics, bringing together ten companies —
Aircelle, Hispano-Suiza, Labinal, Messier-Bugatti, Messier-Dowty, Sagem Défense Sécurité,
Snecma, Technofan, Techspace Aero and Turbomeca - in research efforts designed to meet the
technological challenges inherent in developing tomorrow’s more electric aircraft.

The symposium, coordinated by Hispano-Suiza, brought together aircraft manufacturers,
authorities, the companies belonging to SPEC, and their industrial and research partners. Various
workshops presented the initial results of work carried out within the scope of SPEC over the last
two years, as well as their likely impact on equipment and systems in tomorrow’s more electric
aircraft.

Nearly 30 speakers gave presentations on the six main research subjects: thermal management,
electromagnetic compatibility (EMC), electrical distribution networks, electrical drive architecture,
electric motors and power electronics.

The first symposium spotlighted the high degree of synergies between the different SAFRAN
companies involved in SPEC, and the need to continue to pool efforts to bring more electric aircraft
technologies to maturity. At the same time, this symposium also showed the necessity of working
as far “upstream” as possible with customers.

SAFRAN is an intemational high-technology group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion, aircraft
equipment, defense and security, communications. It has §6,500 employees in over 30 countries, and annual
revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious
brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

Hispano-Suiza, part of SAFRAN Group, is a world leader in the design, manufacture and support of
commercial and military engine control systems, power transmissions, power electronics and actuators.
The company is also actively involved in R&D for advanced systems and equipment on fomorrow's "more
electric” aircraft.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr
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Agreement on the sale of Sagem Communication’s cable business

Paris, November 21, 2005 — SAFRAN announced today that it has signed an agreement
to sell Sagem Communication’s cables business to General Cable, as first indicated in a

press release on October 10, 2005.

The transaction will involve the sale of Silec Cables, a subsidiary of Sagem
Communication, to Grupo General Cable Sistemas SA, a subsidiary of General Cable,

after transferring all of Sagem Communication’s cables activities to Silec Cables.

The sale should be finalized by the end of the year, following approval by all regulatory

authorities,

SAFRAN is an intemational high-technology group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion, aircraft
equipment, defense and security, communications. If has 56,500 employees in over 30 countries, and annual
revenues exceeding 10 billion eurcs. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious
brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

Sagem Communication (SAFRAN Group) is a major player in the Mobile and Broadband Communication
industries, who has acquired a strong world-wide position thanks to renewed innovation. SAGEM products
stand-out particularly in the following activities: mobile phones, printing terminals, residential terminals, digital
TV, networks, electronic metering, efc.

For more information, please visit our Web sites: www.sagern.com and www.safran-group.com.

.............................................................................................................................................................................................

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 4060 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 — France Fax +33 (0)1 4060 80 26

www safran-group.com jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr
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SAFRAN'’s objectives in the mobile phone market

Paris, December 1, 2005 - Jean-Paul Béchat, Chief Executive Officer of
SAFRAN, reviewed the Group’s objectives in the mobile phone market at the
“‘Premium Review” investors symposium.

As he had announced to the press and on the Boursorama financial website
earlier in the week, Jean-Paul Béchat confirmed the Group’s plan to consolidate
SAFRAN'’s mobile phone business with that of the Chinese company BIRD, a
partner to Sagem Communication for several years already. The plan was
conceived by the SAFRAN Executive Board and approved by the Supervisory
Board.

The objective is to reach critical mass by pooling development work for new
products and component procurement, and by harmonizing product ranges. -

About SAFRAN
SAFRAN is an intemational high-technology group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion, aircraft
equipment, defense and security, communications. It has 56,500 employees in over 30 countries, and annual

revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious

brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin ‘ Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne terrien@safran.fr
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SAFRAN and AVIC Il sign framework agreement.--. .

to collaborate on helicopter engines

Paris, December 6, 2005 — Jean-Paul Béchat, Chairman of SAFRAN, and Zhang Hongbiao,
Chairman of AVIC Il (China Aviation Industry Corporation Il), signed a framework agreement on
December 5 concerning the detlivery of 200 Arriel 2 helicopter turboshaft engines to China, along
with a partial production license. The signing ceremony at the Hotel Matignon in Paris was
attended by French Prime Minister Dominique de Villepin, and Wen Jiabao, Prime Minister of the
People's Republic of China.

This contract marks a major step forward in relations between Turbomeca, part of the SAFRAN

Group, and AVIC II. The two companies started warking together in the 1980s, with a license for
the Arriel 1 engine, initiated by China National South Aero Engine Corporation (SAEC).

The contract for the Arriel 2 engine signals the advent of a new era. In particular, this engine is
intended for the H 425 helicopter designed and procduced by Harbin Aviation Industry, one of the
two helicopter manufacturers belonging to AVIC Il

A large part of the engine components and modules will be produced under license in the SAEC
plant in Zhuzhou, Hunan Province. SAEC, aisc part of AVIC ll, is a leader in the design,
manufacture and support of small and medium-power helicopter turbine engines for the Chinese
market.

Furthermore, the agreement marks a major advance in the development of Turbomeca's helicopter

business in China, as well as for SAFRAN'’s expanding range of partnerships in the country.

There are already 28 different versions of the Arriel engine, powering nine different helicopter types

developed by the world's leading manufacturers.

Turbomeca has produced over 6,000 Arriel engines to date, logging some 19 million hours in flight

for 1,300 customers in 100 countries.

About SAFRAN

SAFRAN is an international high-technology group with four core businesses: aesrospace propulsion, aircraft equipment,
defense and security, communications. It has 56,500 employees in over 30 countries, and annual revenues exceeding 10
billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in

partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 4060 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 4060 80 26

www safran-group.com jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr




SAFRAN WINS EXCLUSIVE 20-YEAR
ENGINE MRO CONTRACT FROM AIR CHINA

Paris, December 6, 2005 — Air China Company Ltd. and Sichuan Snecma Aero-engine
Maintenance Company (SSAMC, a joint venture controlled by Snecma Services, a SAFRAN
Group company, in partnership with Air China and Willis Lease Finance Corporation) signed
an exclusive service contract for a period of 20 years. The contract covers the maintenance,
repair and overhaul (MRO) of all CFM56-5B and CFM56-7B engines powering Air China’s
fleet of jetliners. This is one of the most extensive engine MRO contracts ever signed with a
Chinese airline. Air China already operates more than 200 CFM56 engines, and its fleet is
growing quickly.

The project was initiated . back in October 2004, during a state visit by French President
Jacques Chirac to Chengdu, China. Today, the agreement has been finalized, thanks to the
long-term vision and solid commitment by both parties.

“The contract with Air China is a critical step in our company’s development in China,” noted
Jean-Lin Fournereaux, Chairman and CEO of Snecma Services. “In 1999 we created the first
CFM56 repair shop in China along with China Southwest Airlines, which subsequently merged
with Air China. Our aim was to develop ‘best in class’ MRO service along with our customers.
We won this long-term contract from Air China due to our local commitment, top-flight
expertise, close relationship with the CFMS56 engine manufacturer and the technical
excellence of the SSAMC workshops.”

Along with the agreement, Snecma Services will make major capital investments in the
SSAMC site, as well as creating jobs in Chengdu, Sichuan Province. The maintenance and
repair facility, already specialized in CFM56-3 engines, will extend its expertise to encompass
the CFM56-5B and CFM56-7B models. Snecma Services will provide the technical support
needed by local teams, as well as the necessary technology and skill transfers.

Air China Company Ltd., also expressed its satisfaction with the agreement: “This contract
provides solid foundations for a long-term, effective collaboration between Air China and
SSAMC. Our top priority is of course flight safety, which has been largely recognized by a
number of awards. We will be able to even further enhance flight safety by using proven MRO
techniques, and optimizing engine returns to the shop for servicing. We are very satisfied with
our partnership with SSAMC, which will help drive the success of our company.”

Air China is one of the largest airlines in China, with a fleet of aver 160 aircraft and the widest choice of destinations, both
domestic and international. It is also known for its exceptional service. Based on forecasts of air traffic growth in its market,
Air China enjoys an excellent development outlook.

SAFRAN is an international high-technology group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion, aircraft equipment,
defense and security, communications. It has 56,500 empioyees in over 30 countries, and annual revenues exceeding 10
biflion eures. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in
partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of fts markets.

all of its markets.
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Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
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75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France ‘ Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26
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Aeroflot orders 30 Sukhoi RRJ95 regional jets with
SaM146 engines by Snecma and NPO Saturn.

Paris, December 8, 2005

Russian airline Aeroflot has placed an order with Sukhoi for 30 Russian Regional Jets (RRJ).The
RRJ is powered by the SaM146 engine developed and produced by Snecma (SAFRAN Group) and
NPO Saturn, through their equal joint venture, PowerJet.

This contract concerns the 95-seat version of the RRJ. To date, a total of 134 RRJs have been
ordered, including firm orders, options, and letters of intent.

The SaM146 core, under Snecma's responsibility, made its first test run on November 30, in line
with the development timetable. The first complete engine, known as the First Engine To Test
(FETT), will make its first ground test in April 2008.

The first RRJ deliveries to Aeroflot are scheduled for November 2008.

The RRJ is the first aircraft to be developed by Russian industry in partnership with the West, for
certification by European, American and Russian aviation authorities. It is designed to win a
significant share of the global regional aviation market. Sukhoi estimates the market potential at a
minimum of 800 aircraft over a period of 15 years.

About SAFRAN

SAFRAN is an intemational high-technology group with four core businesses. aerospace propulsion, aircraft

equipment, defense and security, communications. It has 56,500 employees in over 30 countries, and annual
revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious

brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 4060 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www safran-group.com : jocelyne terrien@safran.fr
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Aeroflot orders 30 Sukhoi RRJ95 regional jets with
SaM146 engines by Snecma and NPO Saturn.

In the second paragraph, please read “134 RRJs” instead of "114 RRJ”
Paris, December 9, 2005

Russian airline Aeroflot has placed an order with Sukhoi for 30 Russian Regional Jets (RRJ).The
RRJ is powered by the SaM146 engine developed and produced by Snecma (SAFRAN Group) and
NPO Saturn, through their equal joint venture, PowerJet.

This contract concerns the 95-seat version of the RRJ. To date, a total of 134 RRJs have been
ordered, including firm orders, options, and letters of intent.

The SaM146 core, under Snecma’s responsibility, made its first test run on November 30, in line
with the development timetable. The first complete engine, known as the First Engine To Test
(FETT), will make its first ground test in April 2006.

The first RRJ deliveries to Aéroﬂot are scheduled for November 2008.

The RRJ is the first aircraft to be developed by Russian industry in partnership with the West, for
certification by European, American and Russian aviation authorities. It is designed to win a
significant share of the global regional aviation market. Sukhoi estimates the market potential at a
minimum of 800 aircraft over a period of 15 years.

About SAFRAN

SAFRAN is an international high-technology group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion, aircraft
equipment, defense and security, communications. It has 56,5600 employees in over 30 countries, and annual
revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious
brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne ferrien@safran.fr
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SAFRAN ORGANIZES FIRST INVESTORS’ MEETING

Paris, December 14, 2005

The SAFRAN Group of France is organizing its first “Investors’ Meeting” today for both financial
analysts and investors. Corporate Management (including the chairman, the heads of the four
branches, the executive vice president, strategy and development and the CFO) will review the
Group’s business and strategy, as well as synergies generated by the merger of Snecma and
Sagem on May 11, 2005 that created the SAFRAN Group.

The outlook for the Group,. as announced at the time of the merger and confirmed by half-year
results, will not be modified.

The presentations at the meeting will be available online this morning at:

www.safran-group.com Finance/Analysts and Investors

About SAFRAN
SAFRAN is an intemational high-technology group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion, aircraft

equipment, defense security, communications. It has 56,500 employees in over 30 countries, and annual

revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious

brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.
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SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France : Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne terrien@safran.fr
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SAFRAN and Supélec engineering school bolster
R&D collaboration

Paris, December 15, 2005 — Armand Dupuy, the Executive Vice President, Research &
Technology of SAFRAN, and Alain Bravo, Managing Director of the Supélec (Ecole
Supérieure d'Electricité) electrical engineering school, signed a framework R&D agreement
on December 12 concerning the terms and conditions for collaboration between SAFRAN
and Supélec.

“This agreement extends the tight bonds formed by Supélec and Sagem over the years, a
relationship that is now expanding further within the scope of the newly formed SAFRAN
Group and its companies,” said Armand Dupuy. "At the same time, it also reflects the
Group's proactive commitment to investing in power electronics for aircraft systems.”

Alain Bravo added, "Our partnership with SAFRAN, a group where a number of Supélec
graduates now work, is exemplary. It is based on mutual trust between the teams, enabling
them to tackle new challenges together. One example is our joint participation in the
System@tic center of competitiveness for the Paris region.”

SAFRAN sits on a number of consultative committees at Supélec, including the Industrial
Cooperation Council, Scientific Council, Admissions and Degrees. In addition, SAFRAN
contributes to the school’s operation by paying the apprenticeship tax.

Supélec works with SAFRAN companies in a number of areas of research, including

T : electrical power systems, power electronics, automation, measurements, signal processing,

. telecommunications,  microelectronics, optronics and  photonics, electromagnetic
© i compatibility and information processing.

SAFRAN is an intemalional high-technology group with four core businesses. aerospace propuision,
aircraft equipment, defense security, communications. It has 56,500 employees in over 30 countries,
and annual revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of
companies with prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European
leadership positions in all of its markets.

Supélec (Ecole Supérieure d'Electricité) is a leading French engineering school, specializing in
information technology, electricity and systems. It has more than 1,500 engineering students, about a
thousand intemns taking in-service training, and nearly 400 researchers, including 190 doctoral
candidates. The school has three campuses, at Gif-sur-Yvette, Metz and Rennes.

Press contacts :

SAFRAN : Jocelyne Terrien Supélec : Marie-Joséphe Conchon
Tel: +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28 Tel: +33(0)1 69851266
jocelyne.terrien@safran fr marie-josephe.conchon@supelec.fr

http:/imww.safran-group.com hitp:/fwww.supelec.fr
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SAFRAN GROUP

SAFRAN reports consolidated sales for 2005
(provisional, pro forma)

Paris, January 11, 2006
The SAFRAN Group posted pro forma consolidated sales of 10,560 million euros for 2005.

At a constant doliar exchange rate, sales increased by 6.1%; at 2005 exchange rates, the increase
was 4.6%.

Compared with 2004 sales (*), adjusted on a pro forma {FRS basis, and with actual exchange rates
for each year, the Group’s branches made the following contributions to total sales:

(millions of euros) Dec. 31, 2004 Dec. 31, 2005 Change (%)
Aerospace Propulsion 4315 4,491 4.1%
Aircraft Equipment . 2,219 2,495 12.4%
Defense Security ‘ 1,159 1,232 6.3%
Communications 2,405 2,342 -2.6%
Consolidated sales ‘ 10,098 10,560 4.6%

With a constant dollar, sales by the Aerospace Propulsion branch increased 6.4%, reflecting the
growth in sales of commercial aircraft engines, helicopter engines and spare parts. The military
engine business recorded a drop in deliveries of new engines and spare parts, partly due to the
market situation.

Several records were set last year, most notably orders for 1,640 CFM56 engines and 1,251
helicopter engines.

With a constant dollar, sales by the Aircraft Equipment branch grew 14.6%. All sectors showed
growth, in particular confirming strong positions in the nacelle, wiring, landing gear and wheels and
brakes sectors.

o The 6.3% rise in Defense Security branch sales reflects sustained business in commercial avionics
i and security.

(*) As if SAFRAN had been formed on January 1, 2004

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 4060 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 4060 80 26
www.safran-group.com , jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr
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The Communications branch experienced a 2.6% decrease in sales over 2004. Despite the growth
in mobile phone sales volumes and in broadband products, results for 2005 reflected very strong

pressure on prices.

The SAFRAN Group’s net financial position showed significant.improvement, from net debt of
1,123 million euros at June 30, 2005 to net debt of 490 million euros at December 31, 2005.

Consolidated results for 2005 will be pubiished on March 1st. SAFRAN still expects a sustained
operating margin and increase in net income.

This year should see a continued increase in sales, operating income and net income.

About SAFRAN

SAFRAN is an intemational high-technology group with four core businesses. aerospace propulsion, aircraft
equipment, defense securty, communications. It has 58,000 employees in over 30 countries, and annual
revenues exceeding 10 bilfion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious

brand names, and holds, aione or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

SAFRAN ‘ Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr



&) QA

it

.

Notice to Snecma shareholder

Paris, January 16, 2006 — Following Sagem’s public exchange offer for Snecma shares on March
17, 2005, then the merger of Snecma and Sagem that created SAFRAN on May 11, 2005,
SAFRAN hereby provides notice that, since the listed company Snecma no longer exists, Snecma
sharehoiders can exchange their shares for SAFRAN shares, at 13 Snecma shares for 15
SAFRAN shares, by contacting their banker.

As from February 16, 2006, Snecma shares will be definitively withdrawn from delisted securities
trading.

In application of the provisions of articie L 228-8 of the Code of Commerce, and articles 205-1 and
205-2 of the Decree of March 23, 1967 concerning commercial companies, the Executive Board of
SAFRAN, meeting on May 25, 2005, decided to carry out, at the end of a period of two years as
from the publication of this notice, the sale of SAFRAN shares — at a par value of €0.20, including
dividend rights — which have not been claimed by eligible persons. Foliowing this sale, the former
Snecma shares will be cancelled, and their holders will only be entitled to a share in cash of the net
income from the sale.

Therefore, Snecma sharehoider who were unable or did not want to tender their Snecma shares to
the public exchange offer are hereby informed of the following:

- until February 15, 2006, prior to the withdrawal of Snecma share from delisted securities trading,
Snecma shareholders with a number of shares equal to or greater than 13 are invited to contact
their banker to exercise their right to exchange Snecma shares for SAFRAN shares. Shareholders
with less than 13 Snecma shares are invited to either purchase balance of shares needed to have
13 shares to exchange for 15 SAFRAN shares, or to sell their Snecma shares. SAFRAN hereby
reminds shareholders that it will assume the cost of trading these fractional shares (Euronext notice
No. 2005-2050, May 20, 2005).

- as from February 16, 2006, Snecma shareholders with 13 or more shares are invited to exercise
their right to exchange Snecma shares for SAFRAN shares with their banker. Shareholders with
fewer than 13 shares will be paid in cash, but for the payment they must wait for the sale of non-
claimed SAFRAN shares at the end of the two-year period mentioned beiow.

- at the end of the period of 2 years as from the publication of this notice, SAFRAN shares not
claimed for exchange will be sold as explained above. The net income from this sale will be at the
disposal of eligible persons, for a period of ten years, on a frozen account at BNP Paribas
Securities Services — GCT Service aux Emetteurs.

At the end of this 10-year period, the sums owed {o eligible persons will be deposited with the
Caisse des Dépots et Consignation, and will remain there at their disposal for a period of 20 years,
following which they will become the property of the State.

Shareholders contact:
33141333333
www.safran-group.com

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martiat Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 -~ France Fax +33(0)1 40608028

www.safran-group.com jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr
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SAFRAN Group chosen by Boeing to help provide
wheels and carbon brakes for Next-Generation 737

Paris, January 30, 2006 - Boeing, having decided to fit its Next-Generation 737 airplanes with
carbon brakes, has chosen wheels and carbon brakes from Messier-Bugatti, a subsidiary of the
SAFRAN Group. The contract, signed on January 10, covers all versions of the Next-Generation
737 family, and concerns both original equipment for hew aircraft and retrofits for aircraft already in
service.

Until now, the 737 was fitted with steel brakes.

Messier-Bugatti's Sepcarb®Ill OR (Oxidation Resistant) brake, the world's best-seller, will be
available for deliveries on the Next-Generation 737 in early 2008.

This new technology for the Next-Generation 737 will help airlines lower their maintenance costs
due to the economic competitiveness of Messier-Bugatti’s carbon brakes that is based on lighter
weight, better endurance (average of 2,200 landings per overhaul) and commonality spanning the
entire Next-Generation 737 fleet.

“‘We are extremely proud;of this latest mark of confidence from Boeing,” said Yves Leclére,
Chairman of Messier-Bugatti. Since its first selection by Boeing in October 1997 for the 767-
200/300, Messier-Bugatti has seen its wheels and carbon brakes chosen by Boeing for its longer
range 777 models, the 777-300ER (Extended Range) and the 777-200LR (Longer Range), as well
as the 787 Dreamliner. At the same time, Messier-Bugatti quickly became a major supplier to the
U.S. Air Force, with an exclusive global contract to provide wheels and carbon brakes for the
Boeing C-17 Globemaster: il airlifter and KC-135 Stratotanker. In 1998, Messier-Bugatti set up a
U.S. subsidiary, A-Carb, with a plant in Walton, Kentucky (near Cincinnati), to support the growth
of its business in the Americas and provide local support to a growing roster of customers,
including Boeing, the U.S. Air Force and airlines.

Messier-Bugatti set a new record in 2005, as it booked orders for wheels and carbon brakes on
528 aircraft. :

SAFRAN is an international high-technology gqroup with four core businesses: aerospace
propulsion, aircraft equipment, defense security, communications. It has 58,000 employees in over
30 countries, and annual revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a
number of companies with prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or
European leadership positions in all of its markets.

Messier-Bugatti, SAFRAN Group, is a world actor in the field of aeronautical braking and carbon
brakes. Messier-Bugatti wheels and carbon brakes equips more than 2,500 commercial aircraft
across the world, including near 250 airline companies and 20 airforces amongst its customers and
providing them with support throughout the entire world. A system integrator, Messier-Bugatti also
provides excellence and innovation in functions such as braking, steering and monitoring systems.
Besides being a Boeing partner, Messier-Bugatti also has been an Airbus partner for nearly 30

years. :
SAFRAN Press contacts
Direction de la Communication SAFRAN MESSIER-BUGATT!I

; Jocelyne Terrien Frédérique Decourselle
2, bd du Général Martial Valin : Tel +33(0)1406080 28 Tel +33(0)1 46 29 82 71
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26 Fax +33(0)1 46 29 83 29

www.safran-group.com jocelyne.terrien@safran fr frederique.decourselie@messier-bugatti.fr
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SAFRAN WINS NEW ENGINE CONTRACTS IN INDIA

Paris, February 22, 2006 — During the visit to India by French President Jacques Chirac, Indian
(formerly known as Indian Airlines} announced its selection of the CFM56-5B engine to power its
new fleet of 43 Airbus A320 family aircraft. This was not the first CFM engine order for the airline,
since it recently began operating A319 twinjets powered by CFM56-5B engines.

The delivery of the CFM56-5B engines for the A320s will stretch from the end of this year to 2010.

The contract is worth more than $500 million at list price.

Moreover, the new low-cost indién airline, Spicedet, signed a firm order for ten Boeing 737-800 and
-900 twinjets, along with ten options, at the Singapore Airshow yesterday. Boeing 737s are
powered exclusively by CFM56-7 engines.

The CFM56 engine is produced by CFM International, a 50/50 partnership of General Electric and
Snecma, part of the SAFRAN group.

About SAFRAN ‘

SAFRAN is an intemational high-téchno/ogy group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion, aircraft
equipment, defense security, comﬁvunioaﬁons. It has 58,000 employees in over 30 countries, and annual
revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of companies with prestigious

brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European leadership positions in all of its markets.

SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 4060 80 26

www.safran-group.com jocelyne.terrien@safran fr
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SAFRAN Group reports growth in 2005 results P e
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¢ Sales: 10,577 million euros, up 4.7 percent
+ EBIT: 762 million euros, up 9 percent
¢ Net income, Group share: 501 miilion euros, up 23.1 percent

Paris, March 1, 2006 — Sagem and Snecma merged on May 11, 2005 afier the successful
public share exchange/purchase offer of March 17, 2005. Snecma’s accounts were
consolidated by Sagem on March 31, 2005. The reported consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2005' therefore comprise 12 months of business of the former
Sagem group and only nine months of business of the former Snecma group. Furthermore, in
compliance with IFRS 3 rules concerning mergers, the assets and liabilities of Snecma were
consolidated at their fair value.

To facilitate comparison of the 2004 and 2005 results, and 1o accurately reflect the Group’s
financial performance, the audited pro-forma financial statements were prepared as if the
Sagem/Snecma merger operation had been carried out on January 1, 2004,

Furthermore, the pro-forma financial statements have been adjusted to exciude the impact of
IFRS 3, and enable monitoring of the Group’s financial performance.

Under these conditions, the adjusted pro-forma figures for 2005 are as follows:

+ Sales: 10,577 million euros, a rise of 4.7 percent over 2004
¢ EBIT: 762 million euros, a rise of 9 percent
+ Netincome, Group share: 501 million euros, a rise of 23.1 percent.

Strong increase in orders

Orders rose sharply in 2005, totaling 12,600 million euros, an increase of 12 percent over
2004. :

The Group booked orders for 1,640 CFM56 engines in 2005, an all-time record, along with
1,250 helicopter engines and a large number of systems and equipment (wheels and brakes
selected for 295 aircraft, cockpit wiring and inertial navigation system for the A400M).

Growth in sales

SAFRAN posted sales of 10,577 million euros in 2005, an increase of 4.7 percent over 2004,
With a constant exchange rate, this increase would have been 6.2 percent.

income, Group share under IFRS 3 at -308 million euros and -248 million euros,

respectively.
SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Genérai Martial Valin ‘ Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France Fax +33 (0)1 4060 80 26

www safran-group.com jocelyne terrien@safran.fr
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The Aerospace Propulsion branch posted sales of 4,433 million euros, an increase of 4.1
percent. With a constant dollar, the increase would have been 6.5 percent. This branch
accounted for 43 percent of the Group’s consolidated sales.

The Aircraft Equipfnent branch posted sales of 2,510 millicn euros in 2005, an increase of
13.1 percent over 2004, With a constant dollar, this increase would have been 15.2 percent.
This branch accounted for 24 percent of the Group’s consolidated sales.

The Defense & Security branch posted sales of 1,232 million euros, an increase of 6.3
percent, and accounted for 11 percent of the Group’s consolidated sales.

The Communications branch, posted sales of 2,342 million euros, a decrease of 2.6 percent

over 2004, and accounted for:22 percent of the Group’s consolidated sales.

Increase in EBIT

Adjusted pro-forma EBIT (earnings before interest and taxes) for 2005 stood at 762 million
euros, an increase of 9 percent over the 2004 figure of 699 million euros.

The overall improvement in productivity and growth in volumes, especially for spare parts,
more than offset difficulties experienced by the communications business.

Operating income for the Communications branch stood at break-even. The Group's other
branches showed marked growth.

The Group's operating margin was 7.2 percent, compared with 6.9 percent in 2004,
Increase in net income

!

The adjusted pro-forma netjincome, Group share, was 501 million euros in 2005, a 23.1
percent increase over 2004 net income of 407 million euros.

General savings plan

The general savings plan, with a target of 700 million euros by 2008 (including synergies), is
_proceeding on schedule. ‘

Dividend

As proposed by the Executive Board, the Supervisory Board will submit to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders on May 18, 2006 a proposed dividend of 0.36 euro per share, an
increase of 63.6 percent over the previous year’s dividend. Once approved, the dividend wil!
be paid on May 22, 2006.

Financial position

SAFRAN considerably reduced its net debt, from 1,123 miliion euros at June 30, 2005 to 473
million euros at December 31, 2005. Shareholders’ equity was 4,736 million euros at the same

date.

SAFRAN ' Press Contact
Direction de la Communication Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France : Fax +33 (0)1 40 60 80 26

www.safran-group.com ; jocelyne terrien@safran.fr
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Outiook for 2006

The Group expects to grow its aviation business in terms of production, as well as spare parts
and services. The actions undertaken to restore the performance of the Communications
branch should achieve resuits.

Under these circumstances, sales should continue to increase in 2006.

EBIT is also expected to rise.

Given the projections of stable financial results and tax expenses in line with 2005 figures, the
SAFRAN Group expects net income to increase again in 2006.

Key figures (adjusted pro-forma)

Millions of euros 2004 2005 . Change (%)
. Orders 11300 12800 +12%
 Sales 10088 10577  +47%
Aerospace Propulsion 5 4,315 = 4493 4.1%
Aircraft Equipment ! z 2219 . 2510 13.1%
Defense & Security 1,159 . 1232 6.3%
Communications | 2,405 : 2,342 | -2.6%
CEBIT - e% 782 +9%
 As % of sales 6.9%  72% |
© Netincome - Group share a7 501 +234%
o B
- Net profit per share (euros) : 0.99 1 1.22 : +23.1% »
 Dividend(euros) | 022 . 036 . +636%

(*) Before 1,250 million edros allocated to the purchase of Snecma shares for the merger

operation.
SAFRAN Press Contact
Direction de la Communication - Jocelyne TERRIEN
2, bd du Général Martial Valin ‘ Tel +33 (0)1 40 60 80 28
75724 Paris Cedex 15 - France ! Fax +33 (0)1 40608026

www.safran-group.com i jocelyne terrien@safran fr
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SAFRAN reports consolidated first quarter sales [adjusted pro-forma
results (1)] ‘

Paris, April 12, 2006

The SAFRAN Group reported adjusted pro-forma first quarter sales of 2,707 million euros, an increase
of 13.7% over the first quarter in 2005, which was relatively weak, however. At constant size and
exchange rates, the increase would have been 13.8%.

(Millions of euros)  March 31,2005 March 31, 2006 Change (%)
- Aerospace Propulsion 1,0'1 1,‘ 1,85 17.2%
 Aircraft Equipment 556 648 16.5%

: Defense Security 263 . 345 31.2%
_Communications 551 529 -4.0%
Consolidated sales 2,381 12,707 13.7%

Aerospace Propulsion

The growth in sales is due to higheﬁ sales of original equipment engines for commercial aircraft a'fn:d‘»?’
helicopters, and the high level of spare parts sales. Both military and space sales decreased in ==
comparison to the first quarter of 2005.

Aircraft Equipment
The growth in sales reflects the higher delivery rates for most programs.
Defense Security -

The sales growth includes the consblidation of ORGA in the branch, as from January 1, 2006. At
constant size and exchange rates, the increase would have been 18.6%.

Communications

This branch’s sales no longer consolidate the cables business, which was divested in December 2005.
At constant size and exchange rates, sales by the Communications branch would have increased 4%,
reflecting two contrasting factors: strong increase in sales volumes in most sectors, and sustained
downward pressure on prices.

(1) Sales are shown as if Sagem and Snecma had merged on January 1, 2005.

About SAFRAN SAFRAN is an international high-technology group with four core businesses:
aerospace propulsion, aircraft equipment, defense security, communications. It has 58,000 employees
in over 30 countries, and annual revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. SAFRAN comprises a number of
companies with prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European
leadership positions in all of its markets.

www .safran-group.com
SAFRAN | Communication Dpt} 2, bd du Général Martial Valin 75015 Paris, France |

Press Contact | Jocelyne Terrien | Tél: 33 1 4060 8028 | Fax: 33 1 4060 8026 | jocelyne.terrien@safran.fr
Print this release & ‘
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Latest order from Southwest brings CFM56 engine orders in'2006 to 3}
nearly 900

Paris, April 21, 2006

Southwest Airlines has placed a $1 billion dollar order for CFM56-7B engines to power 79 Boeing Next-
Generation 737-700 (NG) aircraft. The airline is scheduled to take delivery of the new aircraft between
2007 and 2012. ‘

CFM56-7B engines are produced énd marketed by CFM International, a 50/50 joint company between
Snecma, SAFRAN Group (France) and General Electric (United States).

More than 1,900 Boeing 737 NG aircraft deployed by 159 customers and operators worldwide are
powered by the CFM56-7B engine.

After booking a record total of 1,640 engine orders in 2005, CFM International has already received
orders for nearly 900 engines so far in 2008, confirming the sustained pace set over the last 18 months.

The order by Southwest further consolidates CFM International’s market success, based on reliable
products that offer very low cost of ownership, along with technical assistance and support services
recognized throughout the air transport industry.

About SAFRAN ‘

SAFRAN is an international high-technology group with four core businesses: aerospace propulsion,
aircraft equipment, defense security, communications. It has 58,000 employees in over 30 countries,
and annual revenues exceeding 10 billion euros. The SAFRAN group comprises a number of
companies with prestigious brand names, and holds, alone or in partnership, global or European
leadership positions in all of its markets.
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BULLETIN DES ANNONCES LEGALES OBLIGATOIRES
(French Legal Gazette)

MIS CELLANE OUS NOTICES

SAGEM S.A.

A French société anonyme with a manager}]ent board and supervisory beard and a share capital of €35,500,000.
Registered office: Le Ponant de Paris, 27, rue Leblanc, Paris (15¢).
Commercial Registry of Paris: 562 082 909

Voting Rights
Pursuant to the provisions of Article L.233-8 of the French Commercial Code, Sagem S.A.,
whose shares are listed on the Premier marché of the Paris stock exchange, informs its
shareholders that a change of greater than 5% in the total number of voting rights existed as
of December 22, 2004 in comparison to the total number of voting rights that existed as of
November 12, 2004. This change is a result of the division of the par value of the shares by
five, which was decided by the shareholders’ meeting of December 20, 2004.

As aresult, as of December 22, 2004:

- the share capital amounted to €35,500,000, consisting of shares with a par value of
€0.20 each;

- the total number of voting rights attached to such shares was 238,164,391.

The Management Board

PADOCS01/322231.1 1




SAGEM sA

A French limited company with an Executive Board and a Supervisory Board,
and share capital of 35,500,000 euros

Registered office: 27 rue Leblanc, 75015 Paris

REFERENCE DOCUMENT
2004

LaurTomiré
D OES MARCHES FINANGIERS

This reference document was filed with the Autforité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) on
28 February 2005, in accordance with Chapter 1, Title 1, Book Il of the AMF General
Regulations. It may be used in support of a financial transaction only if accompanied by a

transaction notice approved by the AMF.

This document is a free transiation into English prepared for the convenience of English speaking readers only
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1. Person responsible for the reference document and person responsible
for auditing the financial statements

1.1 Name and position of person résponsible for the reference document

Grégoire Olivier |

Chairman of the Executive Board of Sagem S.A..

1.2 Statement of the person responsible for the reference document

"To our knowledge, the information contained in the present reference document is exact and contains all the
information necessary for investors to evaluate the assets, activity, financial situation, results and outlook of
Sagem S.A.; no information likely to alter the interpretation of this document has been omitted."

The Chairman of the Executive Board,

Grégoire Olivier

1.3 Statement of the auditors

Statutory auditors:

Deloitte & Associés (Groupe Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu)
Represented by Messrs Jean-Paul Picard and Philippe Battisti
185, avenue Charles de Gaulle ‘

92200 Neuilly sur Seine

Constantin Associés

Represented by Mr Jean-Paul Seguret
26 rue de Marignan

75008 Paris

Date of first appointment: (six-year term) !

Ordinary and Extraordinary General Meeting of 21 April 2004
Expiry date: ‘
General Meeting called to approve the 2009 financial statements.

Alternative auditors:

Cabinet BEAS Mr Jean-Frangois Serval
Represented by Mr Alain Pons ; 26 rue de Marignan

7-9 Villa Houssaye 75008 Paris

92200 Neuilly sur Seine




Dates ofﬁrst appointment:

Ordinary General Meeting of 24 April 2001 1 Ordinary General Meeting of 21 April 2004

Expiry date:
General Meeting called to approve the 2009 financial statements.

Auditors’ Report on the reference document (“document de référence”)

As statutory auditors of SAGEM SA (thej“Company”) and as required under Article 211-5-2 of Book II of the
AMF’s General Regulations (AMF, the French Securities Regulator), we have performed procedures on the
information contained in the “document de référence” relating to the historical financial statements of the
Company, in accordance with professional standards applicable in France.

The Company’s Chairman of the Executive Board is responsible for the preparation of the “document de
référence”. Our responsibility is to report on the fairness of the information presented in the “document de
référence” with respect to the financial statements.

Our work has been performed in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. Those standards
require that we assess the faimess of the information presented relating to the financial statements and its
consistency with the financial statements on which we have issued a report. Qur work also includes reading the
other information contained in the “document de référence”, in order to identify material inconsistencies with the
information presented with respect to the financial statements and to report any apparent misstatement of facts
that we may have uncovered in reading the other information based on our general knowledge of the Company
obtained during the course of our engagement, specifying that this document does not include any selected
prospective data. ‘

The individual financial statements and' the consolidated financial statements for each of the years ended

December 31, 2002 and 2003, prepared in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in France

and approved by the Executive Board, have been audited by Calan Ramolino & Associés and Alain Lainé in

accordance with professional standards applicable in France. They expressed an unqualified opinion on these
financial statements but their reports for the year ended December 31, 2003 included an emphasis of matter
paragraph relating to:

- the change in the accounting policy resulting from application in advance, as of January 1, 2003, of CNC
regulation no. 2003-R.01 dated April 1, 2003 relating to accounting and valuation rules for pension
obligations and similar benefits (individual and consolidated financial statements);

- the change of presentation in the consolidated income statement of joint advertising expenses paid to mobile
telephone operators, which are now charged against consolidated sales (consolidated financial statements
only).

We have audited in accordance with professional standards applicable in France the individual financial
statements and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, prepared in
accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in France and approved by the Executive Board. We
expressed an unqualified opinion on such financial statements and our report did not include any emphasis of
matter paragraph. :

The condensed combined pro forma financial statements presented in section 7.1.5.2 of the “document de
référence” include the pro forma June 30, 2004 balance sheet and the pro forma income statements for fiscal year
2003 and the first half of 2004, which were prepared under the responsibility of the Chairman of the Executive
Board in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. Our procedures consisted in assessing
whether (i) the practices adopted were consistent and form a reasonable basis for presenting the impacts of the
Main Offer (public exchange offer for the shares of Snecma), initiated by Sagem SA and in connection with the
Subsidiary Offer (subsidiary public offer for tender) and (ii) to verify whether the resulting figures of the
companies comply with the accounting methods used to prepare the most recent historical consolidated financial
statements of the Sagem and Snecma groups for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the first half of 2004. It
should be understood, as specified in section 7.1.5.2 of the “document de référence”, that these pro forma

! Alternative auditor appointed for the residual 1erm of his predecessor's (Mr de Longeaux} term of office.




financial statements have not been restated to harmonize the different accounting rules and methods used by the
two groups.

Nevertheless, we draw your attention to section 7.1.5.1 of the “document de référence” which specifies that these
condensed unaudited pro forma financial statements are intended to reflect, solely for information purposes, the
financial position, the assets and the results from the operations of the combined Sagem/Snecma entity, without
any difference (goodwill) on initial consolidation being allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities. These pro
forma financial statements are not representative of the results and financial position of the combined activities
of Sagem and Snecma which could have resulted from the completion of the offers at dates respectively taken
into consideration for their preparation and do not provide any indication of the future results and financial
position of the combined activities. Finally, it should be noted that these forma financial statements do not take
into account the changes resulting from the transition to IFRS as the primary basis of accounting starting from
January 1, 2005. |

With respect to the additional information'presented in section 7.2 "Qutlook for the future” of the “document de
référence”, which includes unaudited consolidated income statements for fiscal years 2003 and 2004 and an
unaudited consolidated balance sheet for fiscal year 2004 comprised of key figures added together (hereafter
“additional information”), our procedures consisted in reading this information in order to identify, where
necessary, material misstatements involving the information on the financial position and the accounts.

We also draw your attention to section 7.2 of the “document de référence” which specifies that in respect to both
the unaudited consolidated income statement and balance sheet, the figures are comprised of key figures added
together. These amounts are presented without being restated to harmonize the accounting rules and methods of
the two groups, and without any difference (goodwill) on initial consolidation being allocated to identifiable
assets and liabilities. Moreover, the unaudited consolidated results have been presented before amortization of
goodwill and exclude the theoretical interest expense corresponding to the debt generated in 2005 by the
Subsidiary Offer. The unaudited consolidated shareholders’ equity includes the unallocated goodwill determined
based on the acquisition price calculated on the basis of Snecma’s June 30, 2004 consolidated financial
statements and the stock market price of Sagem’s shares used in the prospectus on the Main Offer and the
financial debt intended to finance the Main Offer. This additional information is not representative of the results
and financial position of the combined activities of Sagem and Snecma and is not an indicator of the future
results and financial position of the activities of the new group. Finally, the amounts presented do not include the
changes relating to the transition to IFRS as the primary basis of accounting starting from January 1, 2005.

Based on the procedures performed, we have no matters to report regarding the fairness of the information
relating to the financial statements presented in the “document de référence”.

Paris and Neuilly-sur-Seine, February 28, 2005
The Statutory Auditors

Constantin Associés Deloitte & Associés

Jean-Paul SEGURET Philippe BATTISTI Jean-Paul PICARD

Supplementary information:

The “document de référence” includes the following reports:

- the statutory auditors’ reports on the individual financial statements and the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2004 (respectively pages 80-81 and 71-72 of the “document de référence”) including the
justification of auditors’ assessments in accordance with the requirements of article L.225-235 of the French
Commercial Code

- the statutory auditors’ report (pages 102-103 of the “document de référence”), prepared in accordance with article
L.225-235 of the Commercial Code, on the report prepared by the Chairman of the Supervisory Board of SAGEM SA,
on the internal control procedures relating to the preparation and processing of financial and accounting information

This is a free translation of a French language original for convenience purposes only. Accounting principles and auditing standards and their application in practice vary among nations.
The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in countries other than France. In addition, the procedures and practices utilized by the statutory auditors in France with respect to such financial statements included in a
"document de référence” may differ from those generally accepted and applied by auditors in other countries. Accordingly, the French financial statements and the auditors’ report of which
a translation for convenience purposes only is presented in this document are for use by those knowledgeable about French accounting procedures, auditing standards and their application
in practice.




1.4 Government Commissioner

Mr Etienne Bosquillon de Jenlis

Comptroller General of the Army ‘

Appointed as Government Commissioner to Sagem by order of the Defence Minister dated 15 December 2002,
under the legal and regulatory provisions that apply to companies that are official suppliers of war material, or
which manufacture or trade in such materials.

1.5 Information policy
Mr Hervé Philippe

Chief Financial Officer

Tel: +33 (0)1 58 12 46 30

Web site: www.sagem.com




2. Characteristics of the transaction

Not applicable
3. General information on Shgem S.A. and its capital

3.1 General information on Sagem SA

3.1.0 Corporate name and registered office

Corporate name: Sagem SA ‘

Registered office: Le Ponant de Paris, 27 r:ue Leblanc, 75512 Paris Cedex 15.
|

3.1.1 Legal form !

A French limited company (société anonyme) with an Executive Board and a Supervisory Board, which is
governed by the French Commercial Code and decree No. 67-236 of 23 March 1967.

3.1.2. Law

French law

3.1.3. Date of incorporation and term of incorporation

The Company was incorporated on 17 September 1924 for a term of 99 years expiring on 28 August 2023,
unless the Company is dissolved in advance of said term or its term is extended as provided for in the Articles of
Association.

3.1.4 Company’s objects - summary

The Company’s objects are:

. to carry out in France and abroad, on its own behalf or, where applicable, on behalf of third parties, all
financial, commercial or industrial transactions in moveable or real property and, especially, the operation
of all companies related to the general applications of electricity, radio-electricity, electronics, optics,
mechanics and civil engineering;

e all activities, products and services connected with industries involving engines and mechanical equipment,
namely for aircraft and spacecraft, and the use of all processes, equipment and systems of any kind
pertaining to propulsion, and any machines that produce or use energy in any form, or any equipment
designed to be used with said machines or the user vehicles,

e in general, to carry out all types of transactions that may be directly or indirectly related to the
aforementioned objects.

3.1.5. Company registration

Registered with the Paris Trade and Companies Registry under number 562 082 909




3.1.6. Consultation of legal documents

The Articles of Association, minutes of General Meetings and other company documents may be consulted at the
Company’s registered office at 27 rue Leblanc, 75015 Paris.

3.1.7. Financial year

The financial year begins on 1 January and ends on 31 December of the same year.

3.1.8. Appropriation of net income

An amount at least equal to the statutory percentage is transferred from net income for the year, less any retained
losses, where applicable, to the legal reserve. Said transfer ceases to be compulsory in the conditions defined by
law. |

The balance, increased where applicable iby retained earnings and by transfers from reserves decided by the

General Meeting of Shareholders, is allocated as follows:

- the amount needed to provide the shares with five per cent (5%) of the paid up and unredeemed amount
thereof, as a first dividend. However, if this payment cannot be made from net income for the year after the
transfers described above, it cannot be claimed against the income of subsequent years;

- then, any amounts that the General Meeting may decide to carry forward to the next financial year or to allocate
o one or more reserve accounts;

- lastly, the surplus shall be allocated to thé shares as a super-dividend.
The payment of interest and dividends is made at the times set by the Executive Board.
Any interest or dividends not claimed within the legal time limit shall expire in accordance with the law.

The General Meeting may decide to distribute amounts drawn from reserves at its disposal, expressly specifying
the reserve accounts from which the amounts are drawn.

Dividends are paid in priority out of the distributable income for the year.

When a balance sheet, drawn up during or at the end of the financial year and certified by a statutory auditor,
shows that the Company, since the closing of the previous financial year, after the necessary depreciation
allowance and provisions have been booked, and after deduction, where applicable, of earlier losses and amounts
to be allocated to reserve accounts, in accordance with the law and the Articles of Association, made a profit,
interim dividends may be distributed prior to the approval of the financial statements for the year. The amount of
said interim dividends may not exceed the amount of the profit thus defined.

The General Meeting may grant each shafeholder, for all or part of the dividend distributed, an option between
payment of the dividend in shares in accordance with the law or in cash.

The General Meeting or, failing that, the Executive Board, shall define the terms and conditions of payment of
dividends.

Dividends in cash must be paid within nine months at most after the closing of the financial year, unless said
period is extended by court decision.

A request for payment of the dividend in shares must be made within a time limit set by the General Meeting,
but which may not exceed three months after the date of the Meeting.




3.1.9. General meetings

3.1.9.1 Convening of General Meetings

General Meetings shall be convened in accordance with the law.

The right to attend General Meetings is conditional upon:

- registration, for holders of registered éhares, in the shareholders' register,

- deposit, for the holders of bearer shares, at the places specified in the notice of meeting, of the bearer shares
or of a certificate of deposit issued by the bank, financial institution or stockbroker that holds said shares, or
of a certificate from the authorised intermediary stating that the shares registered in the account are
unavailable until the date of the Meeting.

Said formalities must be completed at least five days prior to the date of the Meeting.
A shareholder may always be represented at General Meetings by his/her spouse or by another shareholder.

The proxy granted by a shareholder in order to be represented at a General Meeting must be signed by the
shareholder and specify his name, usual first name and address.

The proxy statement may designate a representative by name, in which case he may not be replaced by another
person.

3.1.9.2 Voting rights

Each participant at a General Meeting shall have as many votes as the ordinary shares he owns or represents.
However, fully paid up ordinary shares that have been registered in the name of the same shareholder for at least
two years, of which evidence must be provided at least five days prior to the Meeting, are granted double voting
rights. The Extraordinary General Meeting of 21 June 1974 decided to allocate a double voting right to shares
that have been registered for at least two years. The Extraordinary General Meeting of 26 September 1983
increased the minimum period of ownership to five years. The Extraordinary General Meeting of 18 December
2003 reduced this period to two years.

In the event of an increase in capital through capitalisation of reserves, income, issue premiums and, in general,
of all available amounts that may be capitalised, the said double voting right shall also be granted, as from the
issue thereof, to the bonus registered sharés allocated to shareholder for old shares for which they had said rights.
However, for bonus new registered shares allocated for old shares not entitled to double voting rights at the time
of said capital increase, evidence that they have been registered in the name of the same shareholder for two
years as from the allocation date must be provided in order to avail of this double voting right.

The merger of the Company shall have no impact on the double voting right, which may be exercised within the
acquiring company, if its Articles of Association so provide.

The double voting right ceases to exist for any share that is converted to a bearer share or transferred.
Nevertheless, the two-year period set above shall not be suspended and the vested right shall be retained in the
case of transfer between registered shareholders following an intestate succession or a succession by will or
liquidation of joint estate between husband and wife. The same shall apply in the event of a donation inter vivos
in favour of a spouse or a relative entitled to inherit.

The officers of the Meeting shall draw up the list of registered shares entitled to double voting rights.

The Extraordinary General Meeting may cancel the double voting right only with the authorisation of a special
meeting of the holders of said rights.
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3.1.9.3 Voting at Meetings

All shareholders may vote by post in accordance with existing law and regulations. However, any vote by post or
by proxy shall be precluded if the shareholder attends the Meeting.

3.2 General information on the capital

3.2.0 Change in the capital and ownership rights

The share capital shall be increased or decreased by all means and in accordance with terms and conditions
provided for by law. Only the Extraordinary General Meeting shall be empowered to decide on a capital
increase.

3.2.1 Share capital

3.2.1.1 Amount

The share capital amounted to €35,500,000 at 31 December 2004, represented by 177,500,000 fully paid up
shares of €0.20 each. |

3.2.1.2 Shares

Shares shall be in registered form until fully paid up. Once they have been paid up in full, they may be in
registered or bearer form, as the shareholder wishes.

They shall be registered in accounts kept by the Company or by an authorised intermediary in accordance with
the terms and conditions provided for under existing laws and regulations.

3.1.2.3 Identification of bearer shares .

The Company may at any time, in accordance with current laws and regulations, request the main depository
which keeps the registers relating to issues of its securities, at its expense, to provide the name, nationality and
address of holders of securities that, immediately or at a later date, grant a right to vote, together with the
quantity of securities held by each holder.

3.2.1.4. Share transfer

Shares registered in accounts shall be transferred from account to account upon presentation of a transfer order
signed by the transferor or, if the transferred shares have not been paid up in full, by the transferor and the
transferee.

The transferee shall bear all costs arising from a transfer.

Only securities in respect of which all oufstanding payments have been made shall be transferable.

The shares are indivisible and the Company shall acknowledge only one owner for each share, subject to the
cases provided for by law.
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3.2.1.5 Declaration of exceeding thresholds

Under the Articles of Association, all shareholders, acting alone or with others, who hold a fraction of the capital
and voting rights corresponding to 2.5% or more of the Company’s capital or to any whole multiple of 2.5%
must inform the Company of this. This obligation was established by the Combined Ordinary and Extraordinary
General Meeting of 15 June 1988, and modified by the Combined Ordinary and Extraordinary General Meeting
of 20 December 2004 — adding the reference to voting rights. This obligation is incumbent on shareholders as
from a threshold of 5% ownership of the Company’s capital and up to 32.5%.

The shareholders concerned must notify the Company, by registered letter with acknowledgement of receipt,
within five trading days of crossing the ownership threshold, of the total number of shares and voting rights that
they own and the number of securities granting access to the capital at a later date. In the same way, the
Company must be notified when a shareholding drops below one of the whole multiples of 2.5% provided for
above.

If the obligation to provide information as provided for under the Articles of Association is not complied with,
the shares or voting rights that exceed the fraction that should have been declared shall, at the request recorded in
the minutes of the General Meeting of one or more shareholders holding at least 5% of the capital of the
Company, lose the right to vote as long as the situation has not been rectified and for a two year period after the
date of such rectification. 1

3.2.1.6 Other rights attached to sharesi

Each share shall grant its owner a fraction of the Company’s assets, income and liquidation surplus, in
proportion to the share of capital it represents.

All shares forming or that may form the share capital shall always be regarded as identical for the purpose of all
tax charges. Accordingly, any tax or duties that may be charged on certain shares for any reason whatsoever as a
result of the redemption of the corresponding capital, during the Company’s life or at the time of its liquidation,
shall be divided between all the shares comprising the share capital at the time of said redemption(s), in such a
way that all existing or future shares entitle their holders to receive the same net amount and the same actual
benefits, subject however to the different par values of unredeemed shares and the rights attached to shares of
different classes.

Whenever several shares need to be owned to exercise a particular right, the holder of single shares or of fewer
shares than the required number shall have no right against the company. In such a case, shareholders shall make
it their business to group together the required number of shares.

3.2.1.7 Agreement relating to strategic subsidiaries and assets

With a view to protecting national interests and preserving national independence, the State has informed
SNECMA and Sagem of its intention, in view of the merger of Sagem and SNECMA (cf.§7), to exercise its right
to take special measures with regard to SNECMA of the kind defined in Article 10 of Act 86-912 of 6 August
1986. In exchange for the waiver of said right to take special measures, the State wished to be granted sufficient
contractual rights to ensure the national interests are protected.

In view of this, a tripartite agreement was entered into by Sagem, SNECMA and the State instead of the
aforesaid special measures. The agreement, dated 21 December 2004, provides inter alia:

e In addition to the applicable legal provisions, the State shall be entitled to appoint a non-voting
representative to the boards of directors or supervisory boards of Sagem, SNECMA and subsequently
the entity created as a result of the merger, of SNECMA Propulsion Solide (SPS), Microturbo (SPS and
Microturbo are defined as strategic subsidiaries) and of all subsidiaries that possess assets having a
connection with French military aircraft engines;




e The State shall have a prior right-to approve or refuse the sale of certain military and aerospace assets
identified as strategic, sensitive or defence’, by entities in the Sagem group and SNECMA, the transfer
of securities in SPS, Microturbo, Europropulsion, Arianespace and G2P, the acquisition of more than
33.33% or 50% of the capital of companies in the Sagem group and SNECMA holding strategic
military and aerospace assets, and any projects granting special management rights or rights to
information over the strategic military or aerospace assets or rights to be represented on the
management bodies of SPS and Microturbo; in which case, if the State does not make known its
decision within thirty business days it shall be deemed to approve the transaction;

¢ In the event a third party acquires more than a multiple of 10% of the capital or voting rights of Sagem,
SNECMA, or subsequently the entity created as a result of the merger, and failing an agreement on
other ways of protecting national interests in connection with the strategic military and aerospace
assets, the State shall be entitled to purchase the securities and assets of SPS and Microturbo at a price
to be set by a panel of experts, in which case the parties shall enter into an agreement for the provision
of services and the transfer of technology relating to the assets sold.

3.2.2 Capital authorised but not iésued, commitments to increase capital

3.2.2.1 Authorisations given by the Combined Ordinary and Extraordinary General Meeting of 21 April
2004 ‘

Under the resolutions adopted by the Combined Ordinary and Extraordinary General Meeting of 21 April 2004,
the Executive Board was granted an authorisation, for a one-year period, to increase the share capital, if deemed
appropriate, by capitalising reserves, profits or issue premiums for a maximum amount of €15,000,000, and to
issue transferable securities giving, immediately or at a later date, access to a portion of the share capital:

- acapital increase with preferential subscription rights of a maximum amount of €15,000,000,

- an increase of the Company’s debt in the event of issue, with preferential subscription rights, of securities
that may provide access to the share capital, up to a total maximum amount of €800,000,000,

- acapital increase without preferential subscription rights of up to a total maximum amount of €15,000,000,

- an increase of the Company’s debt in the event of issue, without preferential subscription right, of securities
that may provide access to the share capital, up to a total maximum amount of €800,000,000.

On the understanding that:
- the aggregate total of all the capital increases is limited to €100,000,000,
- the increase of the Company’s debt through the issue of debt securities that may or may not provide access

to the share capital is limited to €1,000,000,000.

Said authorisations have not been used.

? Strategic assets are assets that exist on the date the agreement comes into force, or that may be developed during the term of that agreement in the context of French defence contracts,
and which concern capabilitics of prime contractorship, design, manufacture, integration and operational maintenance with regard to French ballistic and tactical missile propulsion and
solid propellant based space propulsion.
Sensitive assets are assets governing capabilities of prime contractorship and integration with regard to aircraft engines used by the French military, liquid propulsion of space launch
vehicles, high-performance inertia and mission planning systems.
Defence assets are tangible or intangible assets possessed by, or which may come into the possession of, SNECMA or Sagem (or the entity formed by their merger) or the entities in their
respective groups, which are used in the context of French defence contacts and fall into one of the following categories:

§ Jfor assets which currently exist in the SNECMA Group: (i) design, architecture, integration and operational maintenance of military aircraft engines (combat aeroplanes 2nd

helicopters) and missiles, and fii) components, cquipment and software for military aircraft (combat acroplancs and helicopters) and missiles:

§ for assets which currently exist in the Sugem Group: (i} high-performance inertia for strategic missiles and their carriers, and (#i) mission planning systems.
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3.2.2.2 Authorisations given by the Coﬁlbined Ordinary and Extraordinary General Meeting of 20
December 2004 ‘

With a view to completion of the public offer made by Sagem for SNECMA's shares, the Combined Ordinary
and Extraordinary General Meeting of 20 December 2004 approved the following resolution:

"The General Meeting, ruling in accordance with the quorum and majority requirements for extraordinary
general meetings, and after having acquainted itself with:

1) the terms of the public share exchange offer and, subsidiarily, the share purchase offer for SNECMA
securities to be filed with the Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF)® by the Company, providing for the
allocation of:
a) 15 Sagem shares for 13 SNECMA shares under the public share exchange offer,
b) and/or €20 for one (1) SNECMA share under the share purchase offer, capped at a maximum of
€1,250,000,000, corresponding to 62,500,000 SNECMA shares,

2) the report by the Executive Board;

and noting that the Company's capital has been fully paid in, resolves, in accordance with the Commercial Code
and in particular with its Article L. 225-129 and Article L. 225-148, provided the public share exchange offer
and the share purchase offer are authorised:

¢ to increase the Company's capital by issuing the number of shares to be allocated to SNECMA
shareholders who have agreed to exchange their shares for Sagem shares under the share exchange
offer;

e to limit the maximum number of shares that can be issued under this capital increase to 311,644,975
shares each with a nominal value of €0.20, corresponding to a maximum capital increase of
€62,328,995, in view of the terms of the exchange offered to SNECMA shareholders;

o that the Executive Board (which may delegate said powers to its Chairman) shall set the final amount of
the capital increase on the basis of the notice of the outcome of the aforementioned offer as published
by the Autorité des Marchés Financiers, and shall carry out all formalities needed for its effective
completion, including amending the Articles of Association;

o that the new shares issued shall be treated identically to existing shares, and shall entitle their holders to
the dividend paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2004 and any other dividend
distributed after their issue date; :

+ to authorise the Executive Committee to charge all costs incurred as a direct result of the capital
increase, such as advisory fees, bank charges, the cost of legal formalities and other expenses, net of
tax, against the issue premium, and also to draw funds from the issue premium for payment into the
statutory reserve, so that said reserve equals one-tenth of the amount of the share capital after the
increase."

3.2.3. Securities that do not represent capital

None

3.2.4. Other securities giving access to the capital

None. The exercise of purchase options granted to the employees (cf. § 6.2.1) would not have a significant
impact on the breakdown of the capital.

* Translator’s note : The Autorité des marchés financiers (AMF) was established by the Financial Security Act of | August 2003. It was formed from the merger of the Commission des
opérations de bourse {COBY), the Conseil des marchés financiers {CMF) and the Conseil de discipline de la gestion financi¢re (CDGF).
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3.2.5. Table of changes in the capital

Year | Transactio | Nominal | Amountof | Number of Number of Issue premium

' Ctps (euros) | . the-capital » ordinary preference shares | atthe end of the
. (euros) shares: period

: ' (thousands of
S [ R S ; euros)
2004 (6) 0.20 35,500,000 177,500,000 None 163,366
2004 (5) 1 35,500,000 35,500,000 None 163,366
2003 (4 1 36,405,229 36,405,229 None 163,366
2002 3) 1 36,044,360 27,071,000 8,973,360 136,851
2001 (2) 1 36,235,876 27,262,516 8,973,360 136,851
2000 ) 1 137,890,522 28,917,162 8,973,360 156,817

(1) The General Meeting of Shareholders of 10 May 2000 decided to convert the capital into euros. The
following transactions were voted: capital increase by the capitalisation of reserves, a bonus share issue of one
new share for five old shares, conversion into euros then multiplication of the number of shares by three by
dividing the nominal value of the shares (from €3 to €1)

(2) Cancellation of the 1,654,646 ordinary shares held by the Company and reduction of the capital (30 October
2001) !

(3) Cancellation of 191,516 ordinary shares in 2002.

(4) The capital was brought to €34,762,448 after the conversion of preference shares into ordinary shares
approved by the General Meetings of 7 March 2003 (appendix to the report of the Executive Board registered
under No. E.03-014 on 7 February 2003). The Executive Board Meeting of 23 April 2003 decided the
cancellation of 1,462,448 shares bought under the share buyout programme. Upon completion of said
transaction, the capital stood at €33,300,000. The Extraordinary General Meeting of 18 December 2003
approved, inter alia, a bonus issue of one free share for six old shares and the takeover of the holding company,
Coficem, by Sagem and share cancellations as a consequence (appendix to the report of the Executive Board
registered under No. E.03-230 on 18 November 2003). Upon completion of said transactions, Sagem’s capital
stood at €36,405,229, divided into as many shares with a nominal value of 1 euro.

(5) Cancellation of 905,229 shares with a nominal value of €1 in October 2004.

(6) The General Meeting of Shareholders of 20 December 2004 decided to divide the nominal value of the shares
by five.
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3.3 Breakdown of the capital and voting rights

3.3.1. Position at 31 December 2004

Shareholders Number of % Capital Nl_lmbe.r of % Yoting
shares voting rights rights
CLUB SAGEM (1) 28,290,930 15.94%( 32,387,770 13.59%
FCPE (Company Mutual Fund) 110,874,060 6.13% 15,153,160 6.36%
Employee shareholders . 18,963,883 10.68% 36,772,961 15.42%
AREVA (1) (2) 30,875,680 17.39% 55,620,760 23.33%
BNP PARIBAS (1) . 7,181,180 4.05% 14,362,060 6.02%
SAGEM SA 5,203,405 2.93% 0 0.00%
CDC 7,351,760 4.14% 10,699,760 4.49%
Public 68,759,102 38.74%] 73,409,886 30.79%
TOTAL 177,500,000 100.00%| 238,406,297 100.00%

(1) members of the Shareholders’ Agreement mentioned under §3.3.1.4.

(2) Via Cogema and Cogerap

Club Sagem’s capital breaks down as follows: Sagem’s employees, via a Company mutual fund (FCPE) own

76.1%, employees own 11.2%, and CM-CIC owns 12.7%.

\
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3.3.1.1 Interest owned by members of the Company’s Supervisory Board and Executive Board

To the Company’s knowledge, the members of the Supervisory Board and of the Executive Board did not own a
significant number of shares representing the Company’s capital at 31 December 2004 (cf. §6.1.0.).

3.3.1.2 Crossing of legal thresholds: summary of statements published by the CMF*/AMF?® in 2004

CDC declared that it had crossed the 5% threshold on 31 December 2003 (AMF notice No. 204C0073 of
14 January 2004) and that it owned 4.67% of the capital and 5.30% of the voting rights.

CDC declared that it had dropped below the 5% threshold on 1 June 2004 (AMF notice No. 204C0711 of 8
June 2004) and that it owned, directly and indirectly, 1,470,352 shares, corresponding to 4.03% of the share
capital (consisting of 36,405,229 shares) and 4.73% of the voting rights.

Declaration published by Areva that it had crossed the threshold and declaration of intent (AMF notice No.
203C1392 of 22 November 2004).

1) in a letter dated 19 November 2004 and received on the same day, as a result of the acquisition of double
voting rights attached to certain Sagem shares held through the intermediary of its subsidiary Cogema, Areva
(27-29 Rue Le Peletier, 75433 Paris Cedex 09) declared that it had indirectly crossed the threshold of 20% of
the voting rights in Sagem through its subsidiaries Cogema and Cogerap, and that it indirectly held 6,175,136
shares and 11,124,152 voting rights in Sagem, representing 17.40% of the share capital (consisting of
35,500,000 shares) and 23.32% of the 47,703,674 voting rights (cf. BALO official gazette of 19 November
2004), which can be broken down as follows:

Shares % capital Voting rights % voting rights
Cogema V 6,154,589 17.34% 11,103,605 23.28%
Cogerap ¥ 20,547 0.06% 20,547 0.04%
Total indirect Areva 6,175,136 17.40% 11,124,152 23.32%
interest

(1) The shares held by Cogema fall under the Shareholders’ Agreement signed on 12 December 2003 by Ciub Sagem, BNP Paribas and
Cogema, and registered on 15 December 2003 (cf. "Decision and Information” 203C2129)
(2) Shares held for cash management purposes as investment equities.

2) Areva completed its declaration by the following declaration of intent:

“Areva has involuntarily crossed the threshold of 20% of voting rights following the acquisition of double
voting rights, without making any material change to its 17% interest, and represents for the next twelve months:
- that it has no intention at present of taking over the control of Sagem and that it has no intention of acquiring
more of the capital of Sagem than it has at the moment. It specifies that its subsidiary Cogerap (asset
management company) might continue to trade in marginal amounts of Sagem’s securities;

- that it is not acting with third parties;

- that it has not requested that additional members be appointed to Sagem’s Supervisory Board. Mrs Lauvergeon,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Cogema is the Vice Chairman of Sagem’s Supervisory Board.”

3.3.1.3 Crossing of thresholds set under the Articles of Association

Apart from the shareholders mentioned above, no other shareholder has declared to the Company that it has
crossed the 2.5% threshold set under the Articles of Association.

3.3.1.4 Shareholders’ Agreement

Notice No. 203C2129 published by the AMF on 15 December 2003

“Translator’s notc : Conseil des Marchés Financiers’ Autorité des Marchés Financiers

*Translator's note : COR + CMF + CDGE = AMF
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“An agreement between Sagem’s shareholders, signed by Club Sagem, Cogema and BNP Paribas on 12
December 2003, which shall enter into force after the merger of Coficem into Sagem, was forwarded to the
Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF).

The development of the Sagem group and the size it has reached, the changes in its business area and economic
and industrial environment since the incorporation of Coficem, the holding company of the MBO of Sagem,
together with the present situation in the financial markets, lead us to adapt Sagem’s shareholding structure so as,
in particular, to favour the perception of Sagem shares in its market by increasing the free float and the liquidity,
thereby enhancing the outlook for market value and growth.

Against this background, the purpose of the Agreement is:

- to curtail, for a limited period of time,; the free transfer of Sagem securities owned by BNP Paribas and
Cogema, so as not to interfere with the proper operation of the market for the security;

- to organise with Club Sagem, in the event of the transfer of securities, a pre-emptive right in accordance with
the rules of reciprocity defined hereinafter.

The parties declare that they are not acting with others as there is no agreement between them to implement a
policy with regard to the Company.

Commitments

BNP Paribas and Cogema undertake, for a period of 20 months from the date on which this agreement enters
into force, not to transfer the securities issued to them in exchange for Coficem securities in the context of the
merger. At the end of this lock-up period, BNP and Paribas may freely transfer said securities, subject to the
terms applicable to the pre-emptive right. -

With regard to their appreciation of the co]mpany’s interests based on the specific nature of its corporate culture,
marked by the importance of its employee shareholding, which has historically been an essential factor in the
development and industrial success of the Sagem group, BNP Paribas and Cogema have each declared that they
will not contribute their securities in the scope of a public offer that has not been approved by the Company’s
Supervisory Board. Correspondingly, BNP Paribas and Cogema undertake not to transfer securities on the
market throughout the entire term of such offer. Said commitments shall be fulfilled in accordance with current
stock exchange regulations. !

Pre-emptive rights
The parties grant one another a pre-emptive right (with right of substitution) in the event of the transfer of
securities representing at least 0.1% of the Company’s voting rights after the merger to one or more third

parties®. However, said pre-emptive right shall not be applicable in the scope of a takeover bid or a public share
exchange offer.

To assess the 0.1% threshold, an aggregate shall be made of the transferor’s transfers during the 12 month period
preceding the last transfer which caused it to reach the threshold in question.

Authorised transfers

The commitment not to transfer and/or the pre-emptive right shall not apply in the event of transfer by the parties
of all or part of their securities to one of their affiliates, i.e. BNP Paribas and Cogema, or the Sagem Group
mutual fund, i.e. Sagem Club, provided that the affiliate or the mutual fund in question has first unreservedly
accepted the terms of the Agreement.

© The beneficiarics, if they decide to exercisc their pre-emptive right in connection with said transfer, shall notify the transferor within a period that ends at close of the thirticth trading day
following receipt of notice of the transfer, provided that the transfer does not retate to more than 1% of the Company’s capital and, beyond this threshold, within a period that ends at closc
of the fifth trading day following receipt of said notice. Special time limits are provided for in the case of preferential subscription rights.
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Entry into force, term, expiry

The Agreement shall enter into force for a period of five years on the date on which Sagem takes over Coficem
and it shall not be automatically renewed after this term.

However, the Agreement shall end in advance in the following situations:

- in the event of non payment of the prices of securities bought pursuant to exercise of the pre-emptive right
within the time limits provided for in the Agreement; the party who proposed the transfer may notify the other
parties of its decision to terminate the Agreement for its part;

- if the percentage of voting rights held by Club Sagem and the company mutual funds set up in the scope of
employee profit sharing falls below 10% of the capital for a period of six consecutive months.

Note that the percentages of capital and voting rights in Sagem upon completion of the takeover of Coficem shall
respectively be as follows: ‘

SAGEM securities Percentage of Number of voting Percentage of

held after merger capital owned rights voting rights held
BNP Paribas 1,436,176 3.94% 2,872,352 6.43%
Cogema 6,154,589* 16.91% 8,312,339 18.61%
Club SAGEM 4,732,508 13.00% 4,732,508 10.60%

* including Sagem securities owned prior to the takeover of Coficem.

3.3.1.5 Undertaking to keep securities

A collective undertaking to keep Sagem securities was given by 3,386 Sagem employees and former employees
(and their beneficiaries) and Club Sagem on 29 March 2004. The natural persons and legal entities that signed
the undertaking considered that it was in their interests to give a collective undertaking to keep their Sagem
shares. This does not constitute a concerted action vis-a-vis Sagem. These shareholders hold 20.2% of Sagem's
capital and 21.5% of the voting rights. They include the following corporate officers: Mario Colaiacovo,
Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Grégoire Olivier, Chairman of the Executive Board, Messrs Dupuy,
Lagarde, Rouanne, Sevian and Toussan, members of the Supervisory Board, and Messrs Buffenoir, Paccard,
Penalver and Philippe, members of the Executive Board. This undertaking is given for six years, and does not
contain any provision for its renewal. It is a way of preserving employee independence and group culture, and of
reinforcing Sagem's entrepreneurial spirit and team spirit.

3.3.1.6 Concerted actions
To the Company’s knowledge, there is no concerted action.
3.3.1.7 Number of shareholders

3,293 shareholders attended or were represented at the Combined Ordinary and Extraordinary General Meeting
of 21 April 2004. ‘
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3.3.1.8 Pledging of Sagem’s shares or assets

To Sagem's knowledge, as at the end of December 2004 7,065,204 Sagem shares had been pledged by various
shareholders, of which 6,885,560 had been pledged by Club Sagem (i.e., 3.88% of the capital) to secure 2-3 year
loans repayable in 2006 (for the most part) and 2007.

No assets have been pledged. ‘

3.3.1.9 Share buyback programme

From the beginning of April to the end of December 2004, under the share buyback programme authorised by
the General Meetings of 23 April 2003 and 21 April 2004 (prospectus approved by the AMF under number 04-
237 on 1 April 2004), 885,791 shares were purchased (before 13 October 2004) at an average unit price of
€82.05 (4,428,955 at an average price of €16.41 following the decision to divide the nominal value of the shares
by five approved by the General Meeting of 20 December 2004 and effective on 22 December 2004).

During this period, 24,762 shares (i.e., the equivalent of 123,810 shares after the division of the nominal value
by five) were sold on the market (before 13 October 2004), and 1,642,305 shares were sold to holders of share
purchase options at an average price of €11.46.

After the restatement of 800,000 shares as fixed assets, 905,229 shares (i.e., the equivalent of 4,526,145 shares
after the division of the nominal value by five) were cancelled on 21 October 2004 (bringing the total number of
shares cancelled over the past 24 months to 11,838,385 shares).

As at 31 December 2004, Sagem held 5,203,405 of its own shares, representing 2.93% of the share capital, of
which 5,062,355 were allocated to share purchase option plans previously granted. The book value of the
portfolio was €63,843,087 and the market value was €81,589,390.

3.3.2. Changes in the breakdown of ordinary shares and voting rights over the last three years
(in percentages)

| Main shareholders | . [ 31/12/2002 | 31/12/2003 | 31/12/2004
Shares . }.-.-_‘../ ....... }.--13;_1_3_% ....... 15.94%
CLUB Sagem | Voting t 10.71% 13.59%
Rights ‘
Shares 1 48.84% | L] A
COFICEM * Voting 63.64% / /
Rights
Shares | . 6.83% ... 16.97% ... 17.39% __.
AREVA Voting 8.99% 18.66% 23.32%
Rights ‘
Shares 177 1 395% | 405%
BNP PARIBAS | Voting / 6.43% 6.02%
Rights
Shares | . 5.59% ... 4.67% | . 414%
CDC Voting 5.31% 531% 4.49%
Rights
Shares | . 573% ... 437% | . 2.93% ..
Own shares Voting 0% 0% 0%
Rights

* The Extraordinary General Meeting of 18 December 2003 approved, in particular, the merger of Coftcem into Sagem
3.3.3. Legal entity that controls Sagem SA
None

3.3.4. Role of Sagem S.A. within the Sagem group
See chapter 4 (§ 4.1.0)
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3.4. Market in Sagem S.A. securities
3.4.1. Stock market listing

The Sagem S.A. ordinary share (code ISIN FR 0000073272, code ticker SAG) is listed on segment A of the
Eurolist by Euronext™ market and is eligible for the French deferred settlement system (SRD).

The Sagem share is listed on the SBF 120, Euronext 100, IT CAC 50, CAC IT 20, CAC Next 20 and various DJ
STOXX and Standard & Poor's indices.

3.4.2. Financial instruments not traded on a regulated market
None

3.4.3 Stock market data

Month Transactions | Relevant capital | Average Highest Lowest
(million euros) closing |price (euros)| price

price (euros) (euros)
August 2003 671,688 54.74 13.97 14.40 13.41
September 2003 1,239,633 102.49 14.17 14.57 13.71
October 2003 1,119,579 94.09 14.41 15.09 13.70
November 2003 904,156 83.56 15.84 16.29 15.04
December 2003 1,175,327 113.21 16.88 17.73 15.87
January 2004 1,555,681 148.54 19.10 20.12 17.02
February 2004| 2,194,541 198.56 18.10 18.79 17.30
March 2004 1,840,215 169.43 18.41 19.90 17.10
April 2004 1,492,005 137.58 18.44 19.00 17.78
May 2004 1,608,389 142.31 17.70 18.40 16.41
June 2004 967,638 86.66 17.91 18.40 17.31
July 2004 1,704,778 142.60 16.73 18.34 15.69
August 2004 1,831,378 141.84 15.49 16.28 14.71
September 2004 1,314,318 103.44 15.74 16.33 15.20
October 2004| 2,154,619 168.38 15.63 16.26 14.16
November 2004 2,630,134 184.19 14.01 14.70 13.57
December 2004] 4,079,464 151.57 14.92 15.85 13.82
January 2005 8,702,284 133.49 15.34 15.89 14.80

Source: Natexis Bleichroeder
The price was adjusted to take account of the division of the nominal value of the Sagem share by five, approved

by the Combined Ordinary and Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on 20 December 2004.
The transactions and the relevant capital correspond to the historical values.
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3.5. Dividends

an FY L ';Niirnb‘;r of ‘\,Grl”z:aslhe’;rel,lz;?gfh (;‘Ta('}i"nc“:?:i)ts,)ﬂ e Nztndelrr((lyesr)‘d e _ Total alf!outff}df the ‘1
; ! shares ‘o euros) i Ml o L e e . distribution (ineu

.Y Historical, ) | Historical | Historical. | Adjusted.data v* | el

2000 oS 28,917,162 0.90 0.30 0.60 0.10 17,350,297
APS | semaeo|  es|  ess| o] o2 6,281,352

[eN] 27,262,516 0.90 0.30 0.60 0.10 16,357,510
200 APs | gm0 tos| Toss| 00| 2| 6281352
2002 oS 34,762,448 1.35 0.45 0.90 0.15 31,286,203
2003 oS 36,405,229 1.41 0.47 0.94 0.19 34,220,915
2004 * oS 417,029,585 0.22 / 0.22 022 91,746,509

* dividend proposed at the Ordinary General Meeting in May 2005

Amounts shown above were calculated on.the basis of 417,029,585 shares, which will be the maximum possible
number of shares comprising Sagem's capital if the takeover bid for SNECMA is successful and after the merger
of SNECMA into Sagem S.A.

Reminder: it was announced in connection with the merger of Sagem and SNECMA (cf.§7.1) that an interim
dividend of €0.10 per share would be paid on the profit for the 2004 financial year to all shareholders, including
SNECMA shareholders who accept the public share exchange offer. The shares issued for the public share
exchange offer and the shares issued following the Sagem/SNECMA merger will have dividend rights attached
as from 1 January 2004.

As a result, all the shares shall be entitled to the same dividend (€0.22 per share), and the shares that receive the
interim dividend in March 2005 will receive a final dividend less said interim dividend, which will be paid after
the General Meeting to be held in May 2005.

**[n accordance with the provisions of the 2004 Finance Act, no special dividend tax credit will be allocated to

dividends received after 1 January 2005. When calculating income tax, please note that:

- atotal annual amount of €2,440 will be deducted from the dividends per married couple filing a joint tax
return or domestic partners filing a joint tax return who have registered their domestic partnership pursuant
to article 515-1 of the French Civil Code (Code Civil), and of €1,220 for the single, widowed or divorced, or
married persons who file separate tax returns;

- 50% of the amount distributed will be deducted. This deduction is not capped, and will be made before
deduction of the €1,220 or €2,440 discussed above. Furthermore, the dividends will be entitled to a normal
tax credit of 50% of the amount of the dividends received, before the above deductions, capped at €115 per
annum for the single, widowed, divorced or married filing separate tax returns and €230 for married couples
filing a joint tax return or domestic partners filing a joint tax return who have registered their domestic
partnership pursuant to article 515-1'of the French Civil Code. This tax credit can be charged against the
total income tax due for the year in which the dividend was paid, and will be refunded by the Treasury if it
exceeds the amount of tax due.

*** Adjusted to take into account the allocation of bonus shares on the basis of one new share for six existing

shares in December 2003, and the division of the nominal value by five voted by the Extraordinary General

Meeting of the Shareholders on 20 December 2004.

Reminder: the conversion of preference shares into ordinary shares, approved by the General Meetings held on 7
March 2003, was effected on 3 April 2003.

Dividends are time barred, in accordance with the legal procedure and time limit, five years after the date of
payment, in favour of the State. Dividends that have not been collected shall be subject to the procedures
provided for by law.
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4 Information on the activity of Sagem S.A.

4.1. Presentation of the company and the group

4.1.0 History and structure

The company was founded in 1924. It was active first in mechanics and electricity and later extended its scope of
business to include optronics for the French Navy.

Key developments in the last few years were:

1985
1996
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

2003

2004

Buyout by the employees

Takeover of Silec by Sat

Takeover of Sat by Sagem

Acquisition of SFIM (defence electronics) and merger in December

Takeover of SFIM's French industrial subsidiaries

Sale of the automobile electronics activities

Acquisition of Philips’ fax division

Acquisition of the Monete! electronic transactions activity

Acquisition of the Vectronix defence optronics division

Start up of Ningbo Bird Sagem Electronics Co Ltd in partnership with the Chinese
company Bird (mobile telephones)

Merger of the holding company, Coficem, and of Sagem International (wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sagem)

Acquisition of shareholdings in Wuhan Tianyu Information Industry Co, Ltd (34%) and
Wuhan Sagem Tianyu Electronics Co, Ltd (73.34%)

Sagem S.A. plays a preponderant role in the group. The parent company is simultaneously the group's central
body, the owner of the principal intangible assets and the main business unit. Sagem S.A. represented 96.7% of
consolidated turnover and 92% of total consolidated assets at the end of 2004.

Its subsidiaries, mostly based abroad, form a distribution network. Some are also R&D and/or manufacturing
units. Most have been set up recently as the result of the acquisitions made in 2002 and 2003. The Chairmen of
the subsidiaries are the heads of divisions or business units at Sagem S.A. Central services are rebilled to the
subsidiaries under a service contract.
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Legal structure of Sagefn at 31 December 2004 (consolidated subsidiaries)
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Organisatioﬁ by business activity (December 2004)
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4.1.1. to 4.1.3. Activity Report

The presentation of and the valuation methods used for the preparation of the financial statements comply
with the existing regulations and are identical to those used the previous year, with the exception of the
following changes in valuation rules:

e As from 1 January 2004, Sagem decided to extend the amortisation period for software from one year to
three or five years depending on the case. This change in the amortisation period better reflects the actual
useful life of software. Its useful life has lengthened as the result of increasing complexity, which has led to
a more progressive rollout, particularly in the case of integrated software. The change in the amortisation
period applied to software is considered a change in valuation estimates with a prospective impact on
earnings under the provisions of CNC 97-06. The impact of extending the amortisation period from one year
to three to five years depending on each case added €3.9 million to operating income in 2004.

e Concerning the determination of the cost price of inventories and work in progress, these no longer include
certain costs as from 2004. The impact was a decrease in operating income of €3.4 million.

e  These two changes in valuation methods had a positive impact of €0.5 million on operating income.

2004 results

2004 was a good year for Sagem with strong growth in both turnover and profitability, achieved mainly
through organic growth.

2004 consolidated turnover came to €3,570.2 million versus €3,180.4 million in 2003. This corresponds to
growth of 12.3% on a reported basis and of 12% at comparable scope. International sales, mainly in Europe,
accounted for 53.5% of total turnover.

Gross operating income increased by 21.4% to €369.3 million versus €304.3 million in 2003. Consolidated
operating income grew by 22.1% to €205.7 million compared with €168.5 million the previous year, and
represented 5.8% of group turnover.

Financial income came to €5.7 million.

Net exceptional charges came to €11.5 million in 2004. In 2003, exceptional items had included a
€21.8 million capital gain before tax on the sale of shares in Gemplus.

Consolidated net income came to €134.2 million versus €119.7 million in 2003, up by 12.1%.
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Operating cash flow amounted to €225.3 million compared with €162.6 million in 2003. Capital
expenditure and investment came to €120 million in 2004, up 30% compared with 2003, as the result of growth
in activity. Working capital requirements came to € 671.3 million in 2004, corresponding to growth of 6.4% less
than the growth in turnover.

The consolidated balance sheet was sound at 31 December 2004 with shareholders’ equity of €1.2 billion
and a low level of intangibles reflecting a policy of acquisitions at conservative prices. Net cash came to
€406.6 million. 1

SECTOR DATA

Breakdown of consolidated turnover by division

€ million ‘ 2004 2003 2002

Communications ‘ 2,408.6 2,097.0 1,764.9
Mobile Telephones 1,2771 1,080.7 678.6
Residential Terminals and Broadband 1,131.5 1,016.3 1,086.3
¢ Internet terminals 616.1 606.9 615.2
*  Networks 5154 409.4 471.1
Defence and Security 1,161.6 1,083.4 998.4
e Defence 878.9 7394 655.0
e Security 282.7 344.0 343.4
Total turnover : 3,570.2 3,180.4 2,763.3

In terms of seasonal impact, the fourth quarter is the strongest quarter and accounted for roughly one third of
consolidated turnover in 2004 for the Defence and Security division.

Consolidated turnover by geographic area:

Emillion. o 2004 e e . Lt 20020 L
‘France .o 1,658 1,458 1,271
‘International: 1,912 1,722 1,492
Total i 3,570 3,180 2,763
Consolidated operating income by division:

€million,, ..o 0T CE2004 o 2003 ] T 2002

Mobile Phones 7 S 684 595 1.0

ﬁRb'sidéntial Terminals and Broadband - 455 30.2 30.8
Communications 3 113.9 89.7 51.8

Defence and Security 91.8 78.8 78.3
Operating income’* .~~~ 205.7 168.5 130.1

COMMUNICATIONS

Turnover came to €2,408.6 million for the Communications division in 2004 compared with €2,097 million
in 2003, corresponding to an increase of 14.9%. International sales accounted for 54.2% of turnover.
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Operating income came to €113.9 million, or 4.7% of turnover, compared with €89.7 million in 2003.

MOBILE PHONES DIVISION

Turnover grew by 18.2% for the Mobile Phones division in 2004, up to €1,277.1 million from €1,080.7
million in 2003. International sales accounted for 66.9% of turnover.

Operating income came to €68.4 million, or 5.4% of turnover.

20.9 million units were sold in 2004, including 6 million modules. This exceeded the target of 18 million
set for the year. As in 2003, growth was achieved by extending the product range, with more than 20 new
products launched in 2004, and through growth in the customer base.

Sagem managed to increase its market share significantly and has taken the lead in the French market with
a market share of around 24% in the first nine months of 2004. In France, these results were achieved thanks to
the group's strong position with the three operators and in retail, particularly in entry-level phones with colour
display (myX3-2) and camera-phones, as well as to the increase in the number of "clamshell" mobile phones
(myC2-2, myC-3, myCS5-2) and personalised models supplied to the various operators (myV-55 Vodafone live !,
SG 341i for Bouygues Telecom i-mode and the myX5-2 Talk Now for Orange).

2004 also featured the launches of the first Sagem smartphone and the myX-8 model, a top-range camera-
phone that can compete with a digital camera, and is Bluetooth enabled and equipped with an MP3 music
function.

Sagem's share of the world market doubled from 1.2% to 2.5% (source: Gartner) over the twelve months to

the third quarter of 2004. Sagem is now world number seven in mobile telephony (all technologies taken
together).

The group's market share increased significantly in Western Europe, up from 4.4% in the third quarter of
2003 to 6.1% in the third quarter of 2004. This makes Sagem one of the leading mobile phone suppliers in the
region. In Germany and the Benelux countries, Sagem supplies all the operators in each country. In Central
Europe, Sagem continues to expand, winning new customers in Slovakia, Austria and Hungary. TIM is its
leading partner in Italy, and Sagem generated significant sales volumes in Spain thanks to a customised product
for Telefonica. In the UK, Sagem is a leading partner of Vodafone UK and several of its products are included in
the various packages offered by the main operators.

The joint venture set up with Bird in China markets six Sagem products, with 1.88 million units sold in
2004, and supplies more than 50% of the products marketed by Bird. Numerous mobile phones are in the process
of being fine-tuned in Ningbo and will be added to Bird and Sagem's product ranges in 2005.

In South and Central America (excluding Brazil), turnover generated in collaboration with Brightstar
recorded strong growth in 2004. The three main operators in the zone, TIM, Telefonica and American Movil) all
include Sagem products in their catalogues and Sagem's market share in this region increased from 0.4% to 2.3%
in the twelve months to the third quarter of 2004.

To develop its activity in Brazil, Sagem will open a factory in Brazil in the first quarter of 2005. This plant
will supply Gradiente in the Brazilian market and Brightstar for certain South American markets.

The development of the product range is based on a platform strategy that enables Sagem to adapt any
model to the operators' needs and to the country in which it will marketed.

Sagem is also developing key technology for the future. Third-generation phones are undergoing
interoperability tests and their launch on the market is scheduled for the third quarter of 2005. EDGE multimedia
products will become available in the second half of 2005 to cater for the expected growth in demand for these
products in coming years. Sagem was also one of the first European manufacturers to receive NTT DoCoMo
certification for i-mode products. Going by the customer bases of the i-mode Alliance operators, more than
70 million people already use this technology, with more than three million users outside Japan.
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Sales of modules for use in mobile phones are decreasing and are now limited to just two customers, one of
which is the Chinese company Bird. Module sales have been replaced by sales of component packs (RFD)
including a user's licence for card diagrams and software. Several products incorporating a Sagem machine-to-
machine wireless communication system have been launched. In 2005, Sagem will focus module sales on the
Data and Machine-to-Machine wireless communication markets.

Growth will be focused on two areas in 2005:

- strengthening strategic partnerships with major global operators such as Vodafone, Orange, T-Mobile,
TIM and Telefonica through the supply of customised and exclusive products;

- ongoing expansion in new strong-growth countries such as the US, India and Russia through local
partners that can facilitate Sagem's entry into the market (like Gradiente in Brazil and Brightstar in South

America, which represented 16% of the group's mobile phone sales in 2004).

Sagem's goal is to continue, in a profitable manner, to increase its share of the world mobile phone market
in 2005. :

The main competitors are Nokia, Motorola, Samsung, Siemens, Sony Ericsson, LG and Sharp for mobile phones,
and Wavecom, Siemens, Philips and Sony Ericsson for modules.
RESIDENTIAL TERMINALS AND BROADBAND COMMUNICATIONS

2004 turnover came to €1,131.5 million compared with €1,016.3 million in 2003, corresponding to growth
of 11.3%. International sales accounted for 39.8% of turnover.

Operating income amounted to €45.5 million in 2004, or 4% of turnover.

Turnover

€ million , 2004, [ 2003 2002

Terminals and Internet 616.1] 54.5% 606.9] 29.0% 6152] 34.9%
5154 455% 409.4| 19.5% 4711 26.7%
1,131.5] 100.0% 1,016.3] 100.0% 1,086.3| 100.0%

Terminal and Internet turnover came to €616.1 million in 2004, up by 1.5% compared with €606.9 million
the previous year. ‘

International sales, mainly in Europe, accounted for 42.6% of turnover.

Sales of fax and multifunctional terminals remained high, at around 1 million units. New products
integrating new functions (MMS or photo printing on multifunctional terminals) were launched and the range of
laser terminals was extended. Sagem continued its marketing thrust, concluding an agreement with Xerox under
which Xerox will sell Sagem terminals under its own brand name. Growth in the installed base has boosted
demand for consumables, manufactured notably by a joint venture between Sagem and Dai Nippon Printing.

This partnership was extended in 2004 to consumables for photo printers. The global photo printer market
has strong growth potential in view of the growing sales of digital cameras and camera-phones. A new range of
thermal dye sublimation printers was launched in 2004 (Photoeasy 255). This product has been included in
telecom operators' product catalogues and was available at France Telecom's sales outlets in 2004.
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The lift in fixed-line telecommunications services in Western Europe and the appearance of new
functionalities for DECT-compliant telephones, equivalent to those of mobile phones (SIM card reader enabling
the transfer of the telephone number directory, colour screen display) resulted in strong growth in sales volumes,
with more than 1.4 million units sold.

2005 will see the launch of high-definition digital television in Europe, notably in France. In 2004, Sagem
continued to increase its penetration among European distributors and launched two new high-definition flat
screens, Axium 27 and Axium 45. The range will be increased to at least six models in 2005.

France Telecom has chosen Sagem to supply the set-top boxes for its broadband digital TV offer "ma ligne
TV".

Sagem markets a large range of digital TV set-top boxes, with or without hard disks, for free and pay TV.
In the UK, Sagem'’s set-top boxes have proved very popular and a new product integrating a photo memory card
reader has been launched. Sagem also markets DTT set-top boxes in Germany, Sweden and Italy. A double tuner
set-top box for cable TV has been launched in France and high definition terminals are at the demonstration
phase at Noos. Sagem will be ready to deliver the first Mpeg 4 set-top boxes (simple and high definition) in
2005. A set-top box that complies with the Mhp standard for Italy will be delivered at the beginning of 2005.

The main competitors are:

Mulitifunctional Terminals: Hewlett Packard, Brother, Canon, Panasonic, Samsung, Sharp, and Ricoh.
DECT: Philips, Siemens, Atiinks, Suncorp, and Panasonic.

Photo printers: HP, Epson, Canon, Kodak, and Sanyo.

Set-top boxes: Thomson Multimedia, Pace, Nokia, and Samsung.

NETWORKS

Turnover came to €515.4 million in 2004 compared with €409.4 million in 2003, corresponding to growth
of 25.9%. International sales represented 36.3% of turnover.

The launch of new services that consume more bandwidth on ADSL and UMTS mobile phone networks
has boosted growth in the European and global broadband markets. The division benefited from these good
market conditions in 2004. The market for entry-level modems stabilised while residential broadband offers with
high added value recorded strong growth. These are adapted to added value services such as digital television,
Internet voice transmission and high-speed data transmission (up to 8 megabytes).

The increase in the number of broadband subscribers and the development of high added value services has
prompted operators to invest in increasing their capacity, the more so in that new services that consume
bandwidth will continue to develop, thus generating an increase in average revenue per user. A second factor
driving investment in networks is technology rupture resulting from the switchover from SDH technology to
Ethernet. To accompany this changeover, Sagem is planning to set up a Research & Development company in
partnership with a Chinese company, Harbour Networks, which is well positioned in its market. Sagem

continued with the development of a specific distribution network in Europe, setting up a marketing subsidiary in
Poland.

The main competitors are Alcatel, Lucent, Thomson Multimedia, Siemens and Ericsson.
Given the situation of global excess capacity, the production capacity of the cable plant was adjusted and
targeted investments were made to upgrade machinery. Sagem managed to keep sales volumes stable thanks to a

significant increase in sales of industrial cables.

The main competitors are Nexans, Pirelli, ABB and Draka.
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DEFENCE AND SECURITY

The Defence and Security division recorded turnover of €1,161.6 million in 2004, up by 7.2% compared
with €1,083.4 million in 2003. International sales accounted for 52.3% of turnover.

Operating income came to €91.8 million in 2004, i.e. 7.9% of turnover, compared with €78.8 million the

previous year.

Breakdown of turnover by activity:

004 2003 Sl 12002 T
878.9 75.7% 7394 68.2% 655.01 65.6%

282.6 24.3% 3440 31.8% 3434 | 34.4%

1,161.5] 100.0% 1,083.4) 100.0% 998.4] 100.0%

AEROSPACE AND DEFENCE

Sagem ranks among the twenty largeét European companies in the defence sector and among the top five in
defence electronics.

Sagem has a strong position in inertial navigation systems (leader in Europe and number three worldwide),
in helicopter flight controls (world leader), space optics (world leader), optronic systems (European leader),
tactical UAV systems (European leader) and cockpit information systems (A 380).

Turnover was up by 18.9% to €878.9 million in 2004, compared with €739.4 million in 2003.
Sagem won several contracts in the context of major infantry soldier systems programmes.

In March 2004, the French army procurement agency, DGA (Délégation Générale pour I'Armement)
awarded Sagem a €796 million contract for the development, manufacturing and mass production of the FELIN
soldier system (Fantassin a Equipements et Liaisons Intégrées) which will equip the French infantry as from
2007. Between now and the end of 2008, two thirds of the French Army's infantry units will be equipped. The
French system, FELIN, is the first soldier combat system to be put into operation by an army of an EU member
state.

One of the most significant recent technological breakthroughs has been the increased use of radio
communication in the defence sector, with broadband RHD, UAV transmission, cellular radio for the FELIN
programme and the use of network technology applied to aeronautical information systems (NSS system for the
A 380) or the SITEL —SIT programme.

The FELIN system is designed for integration into the battlefield management system being developed by
Sagem and Cap Gemini under the SITEL programme. This programme is aimed at generalising the use of
information systems at elementary army unit levels. The upgradeable design of the FELIN system should enable
it to be integrated at a later date into the BOA project (Bulle Opérationnelle Aéroterrestre — literally, aero
terrestrial operational cell) for which a consortium composed of Thales, Giat Industries, and Sagem is preparing
the demonstrator, in anticipation for the French Army Land Forces' future combat system.

For its part, SDTI, the interim tactical UAV system supplied to the French Land Forces has proved its
operational efficiency, reliability and aptitude to be used safely within a controlled air space.

Anticipating future defence needs, Sagem, Rheinmetall Defence Electronics and Bell Helicopter Textron
have come to a strategic agreement for marketing vertical takeoff UAVs to European armies. The agreement is
designed to increase interoperability between the systems presently used by their UAVs and ensure the new
system's compatibility with the UAV infrastructure of NATO and of other European armies. A cooperation
agreement for the development of EUROMALE UAVs was also signed with EADS in June. Under this
agreement, Sagem will be responsible for technical aspects relating to sighting and air/ground data links, useful
optronics load and interoperability functions between the future EUROMALE system and the existing systems:
SDTI (France) and SPERWER used by the land forces of five other European countries.
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-In optronics, deliveries of MATIS thermal imaging cameras are growing. Vectronix has won a contract to
supply the US Army with vector binoculars and the development of a new line of multifunctional binoculars is
continuing.

Sagem also intends to strengthen its position in cyphering and information system security in both the
civilian and military markets. In this respect, the creation in 2004 of the European Defence Agency, which will
finance R&D programmes in the area of security technology, opens up significant growth prospects. Sagem is a
forerunner in this field and is the project leader for the European aircraft security programme (SAFEE). UAVs
form part of the priority programmes announced, which is an area in which Sagem has a strong position in
Europe.

Lastly, in the context of the Laser MegaJoule simulation programme, Sagem was involved in setting up a
manufacturing unit that will eventually employ 150 people at the Giat Industries site in Tarbes.

With regard to the aircraft modernisation programmes, the Venezuelan, Egyptian and Pakistani
programmes continued.

Sagem also obtained several significant orders for inertial navigation systems for various aircraft (Mig 29,
Sukhoi, Hawk, etc), thus boosting the production plan for the coming months; demand for vibrating gyroscopes
continued to grow, prompting the group to increase production capacity for inertial navigation systems using
this technology, which will be fitted in AASM.

Deliveries of NH90 helicopter navigation systems rose in 2004 while deliveries of M51 strategic missile
guiding centres continued. New orders were taken for MICA missile seekers and equipment for RAFALE
aircraft, notably with an order for 59 Rafale F-3 at the end of the year. The DGA's choice of standard F3 for the
RAFALE confirms its choice of Sagem to supply integrated helmet sights. Production has already begun and
mass production is scheduled for 2006.

Lastly, in March 2004, Sagem Avionics Inc took over ARNAV Systems Inc., thus completing Sagem's
aeronautic product offer with LCD screens for cockpits, communications and data processing systems, an

embedded meteorological service and satellite telephone.

On major contracts, billing will be spread over several years as follows:

MICA missile seeker 2005-2007
NH 90 helicopters 2005-2015
Tigre helicopters 2005-2012
AASM (excluding export) 2005-2012
FELIN (excluding export) 2006-2010
Laser Megaloule 2007-2014
Rafale 2005-2015
Aircraft and helicopter retrofitting 2005- beyond 2015
Strategic programmes (MS51, SNLE n° 4, etc.) 2005- beyond 2015

The main competitors are British Aerospace and Thalés in defence electronics, Honeywell and Litton
Industries in inertial navigation, Lockheed Martin and Raytheon in optronics, Thalés, Honeywell, Rockwell
Colins in helicopter flight controls, IAI and Elbit in aircraft and helicopter retrofitting, Teledyne and Allied
Signal in ACMS (Aircraft Condition Monitoring System), IAI in UAV, and Thalés (Felin).
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SECURITY

Sagem is the world leader in biometrics, the French leader and number two in Europe in card systems, the
French leader in payment terminals and the French leader in lottery terminals.

Turnover in 2004 came to €282.7 million compared with €344 million in 2003.

In a background marked by the postponement of major civilian programmes by many government agencies,
Sagem managed to maintain its position as world leader thanks to several contracts obtained notably at the end
of 2004 and very beginning of 2005. First of all, it obtained numerous orders to upgrade or extend existing
systems (France, Germany, UK, Mexico, Australia, Honduras, Poland, Hungary, Botswana and South Africa
with the extension of the existing system, as well as a major contract for the conversion of fingerprint files for
the Department of Home Affairs, etc.).

Moreover, new countries have contracted Sagem for their biometrics systems: Uganda (driving licences),
Malawi (biometrics system for secure bank card issuance), Pakistan (biometrics passports) and, more recently,
Djibouti (police Automated Fingerprint [dentification System — AFIS).

In particular, at the very beginning of 2005, a contract was obtained in partnership with a US company,
TRW, to upgrade the UK police fingerprint identification system (Identl) which is a major global reference.

Also, Sagem’s strategy of appropriating biometrics technology complementary to fingerprint identification
was rewarded with several contracts, such as immigration control in the UK (iris identification) or airport
passenger control in Australia (face identification). The latter system was rolled out very quickly and is now
operational.

In the new secure access market, the acquisition of E-Software (Xelios brand) at the beginning of the year
enabled Sagem to add to its offer in logical access, whereas the rolling out of biometrics control systems for
physical access continued, notably for access to sensitive areas at Aéroport de Paris and recent contracts for
access security at six Moroccan airports and at large French companies.

In the context of the automated road offences penalty programme and following the rollout of the first 100
automated speed control cabins, Sagem was contracted to manufacture and supply 900 speed control cabins over
a period of around two years. At the end of 2004, 400 cabins were in place and undoubtedly contributed to the
decrease in fatal road accidents.

In smartcards, Sagem has entered the Chinese market (40% of the world market for SIM cards), via the
acquisition of a stake in the Chinese company TianYu to develop and market cards, and the creation, in
collaboration with TianYu, of a local manufacturing unit in which Sagem has a majority holding.

In the French market, Sagem strengthened its position in the health sector with a contract to develop the

highly secure interface (mask) for the new Vitale 2 social security card and to produce the last batch of Vitale 1
cards.

Sagem's market share in bankcards grew significantly in 2004. The long-awaited migration to EMV DDA
standards, whose interface was contracted to Sagem, should consolidate its position in 2005, both in France and
abroad (notably in the UK).

This migration is also expected to boost demand for the new generation bank terminals developed by
Sagem Monetel and Sagem Denmark. 2004 was characterised by the growth and consolidation of Sagem's
position both in France, where Monetel has become the leader, and abroad with strong positions in Denmark,
Turkey, South Africa, etc.

The new generation of lottery terminals supplied to La Francaise des Jeux was rolled out successfully and
an additional order was received from the Ontario Lottery.
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The main competitors are Thales, EADS, EDS, Siemens, Unisys, IBM, HP, NEC for the major identity
card and border control programmes, NEC, Motorola and Cogent for fingerprint-based biometrics, Identix,
Viisage, and Cognitec in face-based biometrics, Ingenico, Hypercom, Verifone in POS terminals, Oberthur,

Axalto, Giesecke for smart cards.

4.1.4 Principal business units at end 2004

R&D Centres

Argenteuil, Eragny, Massy, Saint Christophe, Saint
Pierre du Perray, Valence, Velizy

Denmark, Switzerland, Tacoma (US)

The distribution network operates in Europe, Africa and Australia.

France

Montpellier, Poitiers,
Tourcoing

International

Germany, Austria, Brazil, China, Denmark, Spain,
Switzerland, Tunisia

Manufacturing units

Angouléme, Bayonne, Dinan, Dijon, Fougeres,
Lannion, Massy-Palaiseau, Montereau, Montlugon,
Saint-Etienne-du-Rouvray,

The operating units indicated above are those belonging to the Sagem group. The group occasionally employs

sub-contractors.

4.2 Dependence risk

The breakdown of group sales and purchases is such that the group has limited dependence on its main
customers and suppliers. In 2004, the group's 10 largest customers accounted for 40% of consolidated turnover,
the five largest, for 30%, while the largest customer accounted for 10%. The largest outside supplier represented

around 7% of purchases and the top five suppliers represented 24%.

The research and development work on which Sagem's business is based results in the filing of patents to protect

the group's know-how. The licences granted for patents held by the group are not material.

The group is not significantly dependent on any holder of patents or licences, industrial, trade or financial supply
contracts, new manufacturing processes, suppliers or the public authorities.

4.3 Changes in the workforce

. 2004 +1:2003 2002
Management and Engineers 4,687 4,016 3,515
Supervisory staff, 6,036 5,660 5,301
technicians and office: staff
Workers 4,646 4,358 3,087
- Total average. number  of 15,369 14,034 11,903

émployees 5
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R&D staff at end 2004

Industrial relations

Employment

B - R&D staff Total groupiworkforce |- Percentage
2002 F 3,580 12,100 29.6%
2003 o 3,968 14,675 27.0%
2004 | 4,250 15,839 26.8%
Breakdown of workforce by division
Ll Communication | Defence and Security | TOTAL = -
‘France: 5,955 6,311 12,266
Intemational’ - 2,798 775 3,573
iTotal .. 8,753 7,086 15,839

At end 2004, the Sagem group employed a total of 15,839 people, of which 8,427 were management
staff, engineers or technicians, corresponding to a 7.9% increase compared with 2003.

At the same date, Sagem S.A. employed 11,998 people, of whom 98% were in permanent positions.
Of the 239 people employed under fixed-term contracts, 32 were on training contracts and 97 were in

apprenticeship.

Also, Sagem S.A. employed an average of 2,300 temporary workers, mainly at manufacturing units.

Finally, the company took on almost 1,200 trainees.

During the year, Sagem S.A. continued to pursue a dynamic recruitment policy with 1,327 new hires,
bringing the total number of new staff hired over three years to 3,327.

87% of these new jobs were permanent positions and 13% were short-term contracts, including 61
training or apprenticeship contracts. Recruitment concerned Manufacturing (41%), R&D (35%) and head office
sales and marketing staff (24%).

Engineers and management staff accounted for 53% of new hires.

The group's policy of encouraging internal mobility continued in 2004 with 178 transfers from one

group entity to another.

Lastly, during 2004, 678 employees left the group, of whom 28% were laid off.

Work time and work organisation

The average working week varies, depending on the entity, from 35 to 38 hours for staff not employed
on the basis of a fixed remuneration package.

The Group employed 369 part-time workers as at 31 December 2004.

Absence from work concerned sick leave in 68% of cases, matemnity leave in 15%, workplace and
commuting accidents for 5%, authorised leave for 6% and other causes for the remaining 6%.
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Salaries, employee savings and benefits

Sagem S.A. has a global remuneration policy that favours individual performance, staff implication in results
and encourages employee share ownership.

1) Salaries

A company-wide agreement was signed in November 2004 with most of the trade union bodies. This
agreement provided for an average salary rise of 2.5% at 1 January 2005 and a specific career-related rise of
0.5%.

The group's policy of raising the salaries of the lowest wage eamers was continued: steps were taken to
adapt the overall pay scale to take into account the sharp increase in the legal minimum wage.

The average gross monthly salary amounted to €2,939 in 2004, up by 3.9% over 2003.

Total social security charges (employee and employer) amounted to €279 million, or 68% of total payroll
expense. Employers' contributions represented nearly 45% of payroll expenses.

2) Employee savings

Incentive bonuses paid by Sagem in 2004 represented roughly one month of net salary for each beneficiary
(7.3% of gross salary).

The Company Savings Plan also enables the staff to benefit from contributions from Sagem S.A. when the
employee's savings are invested in shares in Sagem or any of its affiliated companies.

Profit sharing
Employee profit sharing in respect of 2004 amounted to €15.5 million, corresponding to 3.82% of total
payroll.

Incentive bonuses
Total incentive bonuses amounted to €11.5 million in 2004, corresponding to 2.82% of payroll.

Employee Savings Plan

Employer contributions to employee savings plans via the Company Investment Fund came to €13.6
million in 2004.

These contributions, depending on their origin (incentive bonuses, voluntary payments) and the
corresponding locked period (5, 7 or 10 years), represent 50% to 150% of the amounts invested by employees.

3) Benefits

Insurance

For several years now, Sagem S.A. has had insurance plans for its entire staff covering the risk of death,
invalidity and disability, and providing complementary health cover.

The Company pays more than 50% of the corresponding premiums, i.e. €9.2 million in 2004.

Complementary pension plans
In 2004, Sagem SA paid €40.9 million in contributions to complementary pension plans.

Training

In 2004, Sagem S.A. dedicated €14.2 million or 3.5% of total payroll costs to professional training,
corresponding to an increase of 25% over 2003.
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Breakdown of training by professional category:
- Workers: 16%

- Technicians and supervisory staff: 46%

- Engineers and management: 38%

In 2004, training focused principally on:

o Industrial and technical training to acquire new skills necessary for developing new products and
enhancing our technical expertise in our core business,

o Computer techniques and advanced programming languages;

o Developing language skills to accompany international expansion;

o Reducing professional and environmental risk.

Equality between men and women

The company agreement signed on 26 November 2004 as part of the annual review contains a section
dealing with professional equality and provides for a certain number of hires aimed at promoting equality.

Safety and working conditions

Hygiene and safety is one of management's constant concerns.

Following the assessment carried out in 2002, management set in place a procedure for assessing
professional risk, a necessary step for implementing preventive and/or corrective measures.

These measures started in 2003 and continued in 2004. Sagem S.A. thus spent €5.6 million on reducing
professional risk and improving working conditions in 2004, 26% more than in 2003.

Major action was taken and resulted in a 25% decrease in the frequency of accidents and a 16%
reduction in their gravity.

Social responsibility

In 2004, Sagem SA took steps to ensure the company's social responsibility, which is a factor of
sustainable development. It has opted to comply with the international SA 8000 standard, which covers social
responsibility issues ranging from non-discrimination to the management system.

This approach will be applied in 2005.

Cultural and social activities
In 2004, Sagem SA spent €10.5 million on cultural and social activities.
It set up a Company Foundation in 2004 with the aim of encouraging, promoting and developing all

types of cultural activities (literature, painting, cinema, theatre, sport, etc.) and more particularly music in all its
forms.

In respect of 2004, €164,173 was allocated to the Company Foundation, of which €30,000
corresponding to the fixed portion and €134,173 for the variable portion.

Subcontracting

In 2004, a total of €76.4 million was paid to outside companies for subcontracted workers.
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4.4. Investment policy
4.4.1 Investments

Total capital expenditure and investment amounted to €120 million in 2004 compared with €92.6 million in 2003
and €61 million in 2002. It corresponded to capital expenditure at the Group's various sites.

4.4.2 Research and Development

Sagem maintains and consolidates its leadership in most of its fields by constantly seeking new competitive
advantages through innovation and technological breakthroughs that enable it to win new markets.

A key factor in successfully anticipating market change is a short development time. Development is an
increasingly essential factor that must be mastered in order to shorten the time to market.

In particular, the capacity to set in place R&D teams rapidly and mobilise the necessary skills within a narrow
timeframe so as to launch projects and solve specific difficulties are essential characteristics of Sagem's R&D
division.

Sagem fosters a culture of excellence in key technologies, such as inertial components, optronics, ciphering,
biometrics, etc. with strong in-house expertise in electronics, optronics, mechanics and application software and
by working with major research bodies in France and abroad.

Over the past three years, the number of Research & Development staff, which represent nearly one third of
Sagem's total workforce, has increased by more than 700 people, i.e. a 20% increase. Over the same period, the
average age of R&D staff, mostly engineers, has declined steadily and was 37 in 2004.

More particularly, in 2004, commercial .successes highlighted Sagem's capacity to make the most of new
technology. Thus, in the audiovisual and printing segments, we can point to imaging technology for flat screen
television sets and digital photo printing: the exceptional quality of the pictures has been universally recognised
by the profession. This was achieved thanks to the high level of cross-disciplinary skills, optimising all the
parameters in the image chain.

With regard to intellectual property rights, Sagem continues to file a large number of patents, more than 110 in
2004, which would place it among the top 15 in France in terms of new patents.
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4.5 Activity of main subsidiaries

€000s (unless otherwise| = ~:Shareholders. . | Net:inicéine (loss)::
SAGEM Communication | Communications 4,686 154,796 649
Austria

SAGEM Communications 4,171 24,407 (33)
Communicaciones Iberica

SAGEM DENMARK Defence & Security 10,551 25,161 2,698
SAGEM Monétel Defence & Security 21,151 51,159 4,952
SAGEM MORPHO Inc | Defence & Security 7,308 29,206 (5,692)
(USA)

SFIM Ind, GmbH Defence & Security 557 6,143 (1,033)
4.6 Risk exposure

4.6.1 Market risk

v CURRENCY RISK

Financial instruments held at 31 December 2004 are intended to hedge the currency risk on trade
receivables and payables as well as on future transactions already known at year end.

The Group's main exposure is to the US dollar and Japanese yen. Its position is summarised in the table
below:

Group

USD million | JPY million
Assets 239.5 4,472.9
Liabilities 148.8 5,721.0
Net balance sheet position 90.7 (1,248.1)
Off balance sheet position 172.8 20,462.9
Net position 263.5 19,214.8

To improve control of its currency risk, the group adopted a new approach at the beginning of 2003 under
which it manages net exposure with only the residual position giving rise to hedging. However, specific hedging
arrangements may be set up at the express request of divisions and after approval by the Finance department.

The finance department centralises all the forecast data at each division relating to incoming and outgoing
funds by currency on a monthly basis. To monitor its currency risk, the Group calculates and updates its
currency positions each month. This information is provided by the information systems in place at the Group,
notably SAP.

On these bases, the finance department determines and implements a currency risk management policy with
hedges covering several months.

Hedging is achieved through forward currency transactions, the purchase of currency options or by taking
out cover with insurance companies, notably Coface.

Lastly, it should be noted that in view of the interesting levels, both on the dollar and the yen, the Group,

which is structurally a buyer of these currencies, has set in place hedges for larger amounts than usual and with
longer maturities.
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v INTEREST RATE RISK

Borrowings
At 31 December 2004, most of the borrowings arranged by the Group through the banking system carried
variable interest rates. Specific hedges using interest rate swaps may be used when appropriate.

The financial instruments held by the Group at 31 December 2004 were taken out to hedge the interest rate
risk on finance leases.

Investments
The Group did not enter into any transactions in the financial instruments market. At 31 December 2004,

nearly all of the Group’s cash was invested in money market instruments.

The nominal value of financial instruments is analysed below by maturity:

(€ million)
31 December 2004
Within 1 1to5 Over 5 Average
Total
year years years fixed rate

Interest rate instruments
Interest rate swaps (lender of variable 46 09 37 6.05%
rates)
Currency instruments
Forward transactions — currencies 337.8 337 .8 - - -
bought
Forward transactions — currencies sold 73.3 733 - - -
Insurance products 22 2.2
v SHARES

The Group did not enter into any transactions in the financial instruments market.

v RISK RELATING TO THE PRICE OF PRECIOUS METALS

The Group has a marginal exposure to risk arising from fluctuations in the prices of copper at its only cable
manufacturing plant. This risk is managed through a pricing policy that integrates changes in copper prices into
the price of cables.

Any decision to hedge the risk is taken on a case-by-case basis.
v  CREDIT RISK

Customers

Given the diversification of its customers and their geographical dispersion, the group has low credit risk
exposure with regard to trade receivables. However, various forms of hedging are used, such as factoring,
finance leasing and insurance (Globalliance).

Investments
Investments (mainly money market and short-term instruments) held in the portfolio are sensitive only to

fluctuations in interest rates.

v CASH MANAGEMENT

As part of its policy of optimising terms with its bankers and controlling market risk, the Group has
implemented a system of centralised cash management.
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4.6.2. Litigation and disputes

MPEG LA

On 3 May 2004 a claim against Sagem was filed with the Dusseldorf court by seven members of the MPEG LA
patent pool. The claim is for a total amount of €27,500,000 in respect of the infringement of the essential patent
rights held by the pool. Sagem considers that only certain of the set-top boxes it manufactures are liable to pay
licence fees, a situation it has never contested. Sagem had requested a licence for these products but the licence
was refused on the grounds that all the set-top boxes manufactured by Sagem should be subject to a licence. At
end 2004, Sagem had booked a provision of €6,000,000 corresponding to the licence fees that it considers it
owes. The parties are currently negotiating with a view to reaching a settlement as soon as possible.

NOKIA
On 16 November 2004, a claim against Sagem was filed with the Hambourg court by Nokia Corporation for
breach of patent rights and unfair competition aimed at prohibiting the marketing of My X5-2 mobile phones in
Germany. The claim concerns an amount of around €2,000,000.
Sagem vigorously denies any breach of patent rights on the grounds of demonstrated existence of prior art and
the original design of the product in question.

To the company's knowledge, there is no other legal dispute, proceedings or exceptional event in progress that
has had or is likely to have a significant impact on the group or the company's activity, earnings, assets or
financial situation.

4.6.3. Industrial and environmental‘risks

Environmental protection is an issue that is both global and local. As an international high technology group,
Sagem's goal is to contribute, through technological innovation, to improving the environmental performances of
its products to the benefit of its customers and employees, and of the general public. It has thus adopted a policy

designed to achieve a steady improvement in the environmental performance of its products, activities and
services.

The Sagem Group undertakes to:

o Comply with applicable environmental legislation.

. Prevent pollution by better control of manufacturing processes and increased awareness of
personnel.

. Implement objectives at its plants relating to the following areas of improvement, adapted to their

activities or products:

Design and manufacture environmentally friendly products by :
§ reducing their weight and energy consumption,

§ removing hazardous substances they may contain,

§ studying recycling possibilities to plan for their end of life,

§ optimising packaging with a view to recycling.

Operate installations so as to economise on natural resources and reduce detrimental
environmental effects as far as possible by:

reducing the consumption of energy and materials,

recycling waste and reducing quantities disposed of,

reducing water consumption and using water more efficiently,

minimising risks by identifying and controlling them,

improving the management of hazardous substances and reducing their utilisation.

W@ W W W

e Train and inform employees to ensure that common goals are achieved.

e Encourage improvement in suppliers whose products or services have significant impact on the
environment.
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Organisation
To achieve its goals, the Sagem group has set up an environmental management system at all its plants.

At group level, global environmental management is supervised by the Manufacturing and Quality
Director.

At local level, the environmental management system, under the authority of the Head of the Quality
Department, operates on the basis of a methodology specified by the Group. The unit's environment
correspondent takes charge of the management system's main operational functions at the site.

The organisation has been strengthened in order to integrate environmental issues at product level. Two
new posts, also under the authority of the Quality Department, have been created:
- the product environment correspondent who trains and assists design staff by providing them with
all the necessary material, and
- the division environment correspondent who verifies that regulatory requirements and those of
customers are taken into account, passed on to designers and implemented by the sales and
marketing staff whenever it is involved.
This network of correspondents is supervised by the Manufacturing and Quality Director.

This organisational structure places environmental issues at the heart of the design, production and
marketing processes.

Scope ‘
The scope of Sagem's activities has remained stable over the past three years. The environmental data
provided includes subsidiaries that are more than 50% owned by the Group.

In a context of strong business growth, the Sagem Group succeeded in reducing all areas of its
environmental impact as described below.

Environmental data

Environmental data from subsidiaries is combined with that of Sagem S.A. Subsidiaries are responsible
for about 4.5% of the Sagem Group's environmental impact.

Energy consumption

The energy consumption of all the Sagem sites amounted to 60,888 TOE (tonnes of oil equivalent), up
by 8% on the previous year, i.e. an increase equivalent to only half the increase in turnover (15%). Electricity is
the prime energy source and represented 83% of total energy consumption. Heating of premises is mainly
provided by natural gas. Hydrocarbons are used less and less for heating and are now reserved for back-up
equipment. The energy impact of transporting goods is not currently taken into account.

2002 2003 2004
Electricity (tonnes of 0il equivalent) 44,973 44,612 47,177
Gas (tonnes of oil equivalent) 9,387 9,718 9,456
Fuel oil (tonnes of oil equivalent) 679 593 601
Total Sagem S.A. (tonnes of oil equivalent) 55,039 54,923 57,234
TOTAL subsidiaries (tonnes of oil equivalent) 2,328 3,654
TOTAL GROUP (tonnes of oil equivalent) 57,251 60,888

Water consumption

Taken altogether, the entities use mainly drinking water. Two sites pump industrial water from rivers
and underground sources.
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2002 2003 2004

Drinking water (m’) 414,203 385,685 403,267
Industrial water (m3) 4,174,219 3,022,405 2,906,200
TOTAL SAGEM SA (m?) 4,588,422 3,408,090 3,309,467
TOTAL subsidiaries (m?) 20,566 34,747
TOTAL (m°) 3,428,656 3,344,214

For some years now, one of the focal points of the Montereau cable plant's environmental policy has been
to reduce the amount of pumped industrial water used for cooling. In 2004 major investments were made in
refrigeration and water recycling equipment.

Water consumption per tonne of cable
manufactured has been reduced by 28% over
the past two years and the new equipment is
expected to reduce consumption by a further
30% in 2005.

2002 2004 2005

Waste
Waste resulting from tertiary and industrial activities is classified into two main categories: ordinary, non-
hazardous waste and other waste, referred to as hazardous industrial waste.

2002 2003 2004
Ordinary waste (tonnes) 11,361 11,081 11,658
Hazardous industrial waste (tonnes) 2,047 2,033 2,277

This waste is processed and disposed of in three ways: recycling, transformation into usable energy and
storage.

2002 2003 2004
Recycling (tonnes) 6,271 6,403 9,380
Transformation into energy (tonnes) 2,980 2,906 2,072
Storage (tonnes) 4,157 3,805 2,483
TOTAL SAGEM SA (tonnes) 13,408 13,114 13,935
TOTAL subsidiaries (tonnes) 545 1021
TOTAL GROUP (tonnes) 13,659 14,957

The increase in production in 2004 was accompanied by an increase in the volume of waste produced,
notably composed of packaging and processing waste.

The steady decrease in transformation for energy and disposal at waste dumps and the increase in recycling
noted in 2002 and 2003 was strongly confirmed in 2004. This improvement, a material result of Sagem’s
environmental policy, has been achieved through the implementation of improvement plans at plants and through
recycling at source and sorting to recover paper, plastics and metals.
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Recycled waste Other waste

2000
The percentage of recycled waste as a
percentage of total waste doubled between
2000 and 2004, from 31% to 67%
2004

Recycling helps reduce the consumption of raw materials and thus contributes to reducing greenhouse
gas emissions.

Discharges to atmosphere (excluding subsidiaries)

2002 2003 2004
Carbon dioxide (tonnes) 24,731 25,244 24,640
Nitrogen oxides (tonnes) 26 26 26
Sulphur oxides (tonnes) 3 3 3

For the most part, these emissions are due to heating. They were calculated on the basis of gas and fuel oil
consumption.

Each plant has an emission-monitoring plan which ensures the optimum performance and emission of
heating systems.

Subsidiaries accounted for 5% of the group's total emissions in 2004.

Other discharges into the atmosphere arise from industrial activities. These concern mainly solvents. Plans
for the management of solvents are being drawn up at the plants concerned. These will enable the plants to
determine the weight of these substances in emissions. Already, cleaning processes in closed or washing circuits

are in operation or being tested at several plants; these help reduce the emission of volatile organic compounds.

Aqueous discharges (excluding subsidiaries)

BOD:s COD SM
Total per day (kg) 14.1 1413 40.1
Total over 250 days (kg) 3,515 35,315 10,028

BOD:s: Biochemical oxygen demand
COD: Chemical oxygen demand
SM: Suspended matter

The majority of Sagem S.A.'s sites and industrial processes have little or no impact on water quality. Only
three sites discharge cooling and processing effluents into the natural environment, under the control of the
relevant administrative authorities and in strict compliance with applicable legislation. Processing effluents that
could represent a risk are discharged into surface water via treatment plants that are constantly monitored. When
this is not the case, they are collected as industrial waste.
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Hazardous substances
For several years, Sagem has implemented a policy aimed at reducing and when possible eliminating the
use of hazardous substances in its manufacturing processes.

The group's Research and Development units are working on the elimination or substitution of hazardous
substances that will be prohibited in 2006 under the European directive on the restriction of the use of hazardous
substances (RoHS) in electrical and electronic equipment.

New RoHS-compliant electronic components are selected, qualified and coded to create a catalogue of
elements that can be used to manufacture new products.

Also, with a view to RoHS compliance, the studies and tests conducted to replace lead brazing have
produced results. The first series of "lead-free" products is being manufactured. Further work is being carried out
to eliminate the use of chromium VI.

Leaving the RoHS directive aside, action to eliminate the use of hazardous substances in the manufacturing
processes has continued. After eliminating the use of trichloroethylene as a cleaning solvent, the new machinery
installed in 2004 enabled the group to eradicate solvents that damage the ozone layer and contribute to global

warming. Research is in progress to replace HCFC cleaning solvents, which are still used in the aerospace
industry.

The replacement of transformers :containing polychlorobiphenyl and polychloroterphenyl by safer
equipment is proceeding according to plan.

Moreover the management and control of hazardous substances will be improved by the setting in place of
an approval procedure which will be added to in 2005 by a procurement authorisation procedure integrated into
the management software.

Environmental certification
Sagem is continuing the deployment of its ISO 14001 certification project. Seventeen of its 20 sites had
obtained certification in 2004 and the project will be completed in 2005.

Moreover, one of its Research & Development units, which had already obtained certification for the
management of its site, obtained ISO 14001 certification for its design process.

The manufacturing plants are certified ISO 14001. These consist of Sagem Communication Austria Gmbh,
CDO in France, Dr Neuhaus Telekommunication Gmbh in Germany, Vectronix AG in Switzerland and more
recently, Sagem Tunisie.

Investment
In 2004, Sagem invested €3.5 million in reducing the environmental impact of its activities, as follows:
- continuing deployment of its ISO 14001 certification project,
- qualification of lead-free electronic card manufacturing processes,
- ground pollution studies,
- prevention of pollution through investments such as the building of a rain water and fire-fighting
reserve at the Fougeres plant, and chemicals storage facilities at Lannion and Montereau,
- improvements to the sanitation system,
- installation of a cooling-water recycling system at the Montereau cable plant.

The campaign to increase the competency of staff responsible for the environment continued in 2004 with
specific training courses in subjects such as:
- familiarity with environmental regulations,
- familiarity with ISO 14001 standards,
- implementation of a management system,
- eco-design. ‘
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Guarantees and provisions
Sagem has set in place an environmental risk assessment and prevention plan. This enables it to prevent and
limit the consequences of any environmental accident that could occur.

No provision was set aside for environmental risk in 2004 and Sagem did not pay any compensation
resulting from a court decision relating to the environment.

An insurance policy has been taken out to cover any financial consequences that might result from Sagem's
liability in the event of environmental damage.

4.6.4. Insurance

The Group implements an active risk management strategy thanks to industrial risk reporting tools, both for
material damage and civil liability.

This strategy is based on the following:

- apolicy of prevention and protection for employees and third parties,

- apolicy of prevention and protection of industrial sites designed to reduce the scope and frequency of fire,
environmental and safety hazards,

- prevention of risk from product-related liability,

- aglobal risk-financing policy based on both containing risk and transferring it to insurers.

The main accidental risks to which the group is exposed — material damages and the resulting operating losses,
civil liability, product-related liability, transport, management liability — are covered by a global multi-risk
annual insurance programme. This insurance cover is taken out with first-rate insurance companies. Thanks to its
efforts in terms of risk prevention, the Group was able to obtain a significant reduction in premiums in 2004, i.e.
0.2% of 2004 turnover.

Total civil liability insurance cover amounts to €150 million through four policies. The total amount covered in
material damages and loss of earnings is €3.2 billion.

The deductible amounts to €200,000 for material damages and €1,000,000 for civil liability.

The Group's insurance cover compares well with that of similar-sized companies in terms of both the type and
amount of cover.

The insurance programme covers Group operations and activities throughout the world but Sagem also takes out
local insurance policies for specific risk or when required by local regulations.
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Financial information

5.1 Consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2004-2003-2002
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(in €'000)

Year ended 31 December

Tumover

Other operating revenues
Material and services costs
Personnel expenses

Taxes and duties

Gross operating income
Provision write-backs and other operating revenues
Depreciation and amortisation
Provisions

Other operating expenses
Operating income

Net financial income

Pre-tax income on ordinary activities of consolidated companies

Exceptional items

Corporation tax

Net income of consolidated companies

Goodwill amortisation

Net income before minority interest

Minority interests

Net income - Group share

Earnings per share (in €) (1)

2004 2003 2002
3,570,181 3,180,440 2,763,298
100,626 82,173 (43,826

(2,500,356 (2,222,587 (1,766,475
(745,129 (681,069 (610,148
(56,059) (54,643 (61,040
369,263 304,314 281,809)
136,308 140,387 89,407
(83,712 (76,638 (74,820
(121,877 (122,165 (124,171
(94,259 (77,408 (42,175
205,723 168,490 130,050
5,729 3,124 1,951
211,452 171,614 132,001
(11,512 16,937 (14,359
(57,699 (61,789 (34,631)
142,241 126,762 83,011
(8,079 (7,466 (6,109)
134,162 119,296 716,902
(1 (@17 (58)
134,173 119,713 76,960
075 0.61 0.37

(1) There being no dilutive instruments, earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are the same

2002 and 2003 earnings per share have been adjusted to reflect the 5 to | share split carried out in 2004.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(in €'000)

Year ended 31 December 2004 2003
Operating cash flow
Net income 134,162 119,296
Goodwill amortisation 8,079 7,466
Net income of consolidated companies 142,241 126,762
Elimination of items with no impact on cash or not related to the ordinary activities
- Depreciation and amortisation 83,938 77,939
- Provisions (3) 3,940 (16,994)
- Change in deferred taxes (3,960) (3,600)
- Capital gains on disposals, net of taxes (785) (18,076)
- Exceptional items (120) (3,428)
Cash flow from operating activities of consolidated companies 225,254 162,603
Change in operating working capital requirements (38,796) 94,074
Net cash flow from operating activities 186,458 256,677
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of tangible and intangible fixed assets (120,019) (92,614)
Increase in long-term investments (88,522) (151,257)
Disposals of fixed assets, net of tax 12,961 108,075
Change in working capital requirements related to investing activities 13,309 (33,114)
Cash in subsidiaries acquired or sold 3,043 4,037
Net cash flow from investing activities (179,228) (164,873)
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders of the consolidating company (32,811 (28,866)
Proceeds from loan issues 11,310 46,599
Loan repayments (164,946) (100,956)
Net cash flow from financing activities (186,447) (83,223)
Impact of changes in exchange rates (264) (1,997
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (1) (179,481) 6,584
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 589,925 583,341
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (2) 410,444 589,925
(1) Change in net cash position (25,845) 60,941
(2) Marketable securities 377,246 599,554
Less: own shares (share options allocated) (61,738) (75,666)
Cash 95,367 66,553
Bank overdrafts (431) (516)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 410,444 589,925

(3) Excluding provisions against current assets
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P {*) The SAGEM share is a carnponent stock of the S8F 120, Euronext 100, IT CAC 50 and D Stoxx indices.
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2) ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

2.1 - Accounting principles

The accounting principles used comply with applicable French regulations, in particular Regulation 99-02 on the
preparation of consolidated accounts issued by the Comité de la Réglementation Comptable (CRC), the French
accounting standards body.

2.2 - Consolidation methods and application of CRC 99-02

2.2.1 - Consolidation scope

Companies that are not significant in terms of their contribution to consolidated figures (turnover, net attributable
profit, shareholders' equity, balance sheet total), and particularly in terms of future development, are excluded
from the consolidation scope.

Companies over which the parent company exercises exclusive contro! are consolidated using the full method.
Jointly-owned companies are consolidated using the proportional method.

Changes in the consolidation scope during 2004, and their impact on the accounts, are described in note 4.

2.2.2 - Consolidation adjustments

Consolidation adjustments (in particular concerning regulated provisions, investment grants etc.) comply with the
requirements of Regulation 99-02.

2.2.3 - Translation of the financial statements of foreign companies

As a rule, the financial statements of foreign companies are translated as follows:

- balance sheet items are translated at the closing rate of exchange;

- income statement items are translated at the average exchange rate for the year;

- differences arising from the use of different exchange rates are recognised in shareholders’ equity.

2.2.4 - Financial year end of consolidated companies

All consolidated companies have a 31 December year-end.

2.2. 5 - Application of the methods recommended in paragraph 300 of CRC Regulation 99-02
Insofar as they are applicable, the Group applies the methods recommended in paragraph 300 of CRC Regulation
99-02.

2.3 - Valuation rules and methods
2.3.1 — Changes in valuation rules

e As from 1 January 2004, Sagem decided to extend the amortisation period for software from one year to three or
five years depending on the case. This change in the amortisation period better reflects the actual useful life of
software. Its useful life has lengthened as the result of increasing complexity, which has led to a more progressive
rollout, particularly in the case of integrated software. The change in the amortisation period applied to software is
considered as a change in valuation estimates with a prospective impact on earnings under the provisions of CNC
97-06. The impact of extending the amortisation period from one year to three to five years depending on each case
added €3.9 million to operating income in 2004.

e  Concerning the determination of the cost price of inventories and work in progress, these no longer include certain
costs as from 2004. The impact was a decrease in operating income of €3.4 million.

e  These two changes in valuation methods had a positive impact of €0.5 million on operating income.

53




2.3.2 - Amortisation of goodwill on acquisition

Goodwill on acquisition is amortised using the straight-line method over a maximum of twenty years. When
appropriate, goodwill may be subject to an exceptional write-down.
Acquisitions have not given rise to any negative goodwill.

2.3.3 - Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are recorded at cost.

They comprise mainly:

- patents and licenses, which are amortised over the period for which they are legally protected or their actual
useful life if shorter;

- application software, which is amortised over three to five years.

Research and Development expenses are not capitalised.

2.3.4 - Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are recorded at cost if purchased for valuable consideration, or at production cost (which
does not include financial expenses) if produced by the company.
Assets made available under finance leases are recorded on the balance sheet.
Fixed assets acquired prior to 1 January 1977 were revalued pursuant to the opportunity given in 1976 to
reappraise assets. The effect of this revaluation has been maintained in the consolidated financial statements
since that date.
Fixed assets (including those made available under finance leases) are depreciated using the straight-line
method or the reducing balance method over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- buildings: 20 to 40 years;

- industrial plant and equipment: 3 to 6 years and 8 months;

- other tangible fixed assets: 3 to 10 years.

2.3.5 - Long-term investments
Long-term investments are recorded at cost. When their balance sheet value, estimated as their share of net
assets and on the basis of their estimated future profitability or useful value, is lower than the gross book value
as defined above, a provision for diminution in value is recorded. Nonetheless, this principle may not be
applied when the diminution in value does not appear to be lasting in the light of current or future economic
and financial conditions.
2.3.6 - Inventories and work in progress
Raw materials and other supplies are valued using the weighted average cost method. Manufactured goods and
work in progress are valued at the lower of production cost or net realisable value. Accordingly, provision is
made for all losses as soon as they are identified. A provision is made for slow-moving inventories.

2.3.7 - Receivables and payables

Receivables and payables are recorded at their nominal value.
A provision is recorded when the estimated realisable value of receivables is less than their book value.

2.3.8 - Foreign currency-denominated receivables and payables
Foreign currency amounts are converted at the exchange rates ruling on 31 December. If these amounts have
not been hedged, translation differences are dealt with in the income statement. When hedged, translation
differences are reported as debit or credit translation adjustments in the balance sheet.

2.3.9 - Cash

Foreign currency-denominated cash balances and borrowings are converted at the exchange rates ruling on
31 December. Translation differences are recorded in financial income and expenses in the income statement.

2.3.10 - Marketable securities

Marketable securities are recorded at cost. A provision for depreciation is recorded when their balance sheet
value, which is a function of their useful value and their probable negotiable value, is lower than cost.
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Own shares held in treasury are recorded at cost. They are valued at the lower of cost or the average share price
in the month preceding the year-end. A provision for depreciation is recorded if the average share price is lower
than cost. When these shares are allotted in connection with a specific share option plan, and it is likely that
these options will be exercised, a calculation is performed for each individual plan. A provision for liability is
booked when the option exercise price is lower than the net book value thus determined.

2.3.11 - Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions are recorded to cover all liabilities and charges incurred during the current or a previous year. The
Group complies with the requirements of CRC Regulation 2000-06 on accounting for liabilities.

Provisions in respect of employee-related obligations

Benefits provided to employees in connection with defined benefits and similar plans on their retirement and
other long-term benefits give rise to balance sheet provisions that are determined in accordance with the
projected unit credit actuarial method.

Actuarial differences on the valuation of post-employment benefits are recognised in the income statement over
the remaining vesting period of the plans concerned in accordance with the "corridor" method.

The impact of the increase in the length of service resulting from the Fillon Law (also referred to as the "Fillon
effect”) was considered not to be material in light of the local agreement signed at the level of the Paris region
on 19 December 2003, under which it was agreed to leave the retirement age at 60 provided that offsetting
recruitments were made.

Provisions in respect of customer warranties arising from legal or contractual obligations or commercial
practice are generally evaluated statistically.

2.3.12 - Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes are calculated on timing differences between the value of assets and liabilities for accounting
and taxation purposes.

All deferred tax liabilities are recognised. By contrast, only those deferred tax assets whose recovery is
considered reasonably certain are recognised pursuant to the principle of prudence.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method, by applying the latest tax rate voted as at the balance
sheet date to the timing difference in the year in which they will reverse. The impact of changes in tax rates is
recognised in the income statement;

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are discounted by reference to the year in which they are expected to reverse.
A discount rate of 4.3% was used in 2003 and 2004.

2.3.13 - Turnover

case

As a rule, turnover is recognised either on delivery in the case of goods or on the transfer of ownership in the

of studies. Turnover and income on long-term contracts are accounted for in accordance with the percentage-
of-completion method.

2.3.14 - Exceptional items

The definition of exceptional items used is that contained in the French regulations. Exceptional items
comprise, in particular, capital gains and losses on disposals and restructuring charges of an exceptional nature.

2.3.15 - Method of calculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the group's share of net income by the number of shares in
issue. Only those Sagem SA shares held in treasury by group subsidiaries, and deducted from shareholders’
equity in the consolidated balance sheet, have been excluded from the number of shares in issue used as the
basis for the calculation.

Due to the absence of dilutive instruments, earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are the same.

55




3) CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

Main consolidated companies:

2004 2003 Consolidation Comments Location Siren % %
number
method * held interest
SAGEM SA SAGEM SA FM Paris (France) 562 082 909 100 100
SAGEM MONETEL SAGEM MONETEL M Valence (France) | 442 508 271 100 100
SAGEM PARTICIPATIONS FM Incorporated on | Paris (France) 452 676 182 100 100
March 2004
CONFIDENCE FM First consolidated on Paris (France) 404 401 887 100 100
| January 2004
Eurofog Eurofog ™M Massy (France) | 340 574 540 6591 65.91
POSITIVE FM First consolidated on | Antony (France) | 339 650 335 100 100
1 January 2004
CDO SAS CDO SAS PM Dinan (France) | 448 897 405 76.65 76.65
SOFRADIR SOFRADIR PM Chatenay Malabry | 334 835 709 40 40
(France)
ULIS ULIS PM Veurey Voroize | 440 508 331 40 34.01
(France)
SILEC SILEC M Paris (France) | 390 654 192 100 100
SPTHD FM First consolidated on Pau (France) 450 100 862 100 100
1 January 2004
E-SOFTWARE M First consolidated on Valenciennes 437782 535 100 100
i 1 April 2004 {France)
SAGEM Comunicaciones Ibérica SAGEM Comunicaciones Ibérica FM Spain 100 100
SAGEM AUSTRALASIA Pty Lid SAGEM AUSTRALASIA Pty Ltd M Australia 100 100
Dr Neuhaus Teiekommunikation Gmbh Dr Neuhaus Telekommunikation Gmbh FM Germany 99.2 99.2
SAGEM MAGYARORSZAG SAGEM MAGYARORSZAG FM Hungary 100 100
SAGEM AVIONICS, Inc SAGEM AVIONICS, Inc Us 100 100
SFIM Industries Deutschland Gmbh SFIM Industries Deutschland Gmbh ™M Germany 100 100
SAGEM-MORPHO Inc. SAGEM-MORPHO Inc. M us 100 100
SAGEM Denmark A/S SAGEM Denmark A/S M Denmark 100 100
SAGEM Sccurity International Trading Co Lid ™M 5 China 100 100
Wuhan Tianyu Information Industry Co, Ltd PM First consolidated on China 3335 3335
1 October 2004
Wuhan Sagem Tianyu Electronics Co, Ltd M First cansolidated on China 100 73.34
1 November 2004
SAGEM Communicagoes Lida FM First consolidated on Brazil 100 100
1 January 2004
SAGEM Communication Austria GmbH SAGEM Communication Austria GmbH FM Austria 100 100
SAGEM Communication Germany GmbH SAGEM Communication Germany GmbH FM Germany 100 100
SAGEM Communication UK Ltd SAGEM Communication UK Ltd M UK 100 100
SAGEM Communication ITALIA Srl SAGEM Communication ITALIA Srl FM ftaly 100 100
SAGEM Communication CZ Sro SAGEM Communication CZ Sro ™M Czech Republic 100 100
SAGEM Communication BENELUX BV SAGEM Communication BENELUX BV ™M Netherlands 100 100
SAGEM Communication POLAND Sp Zo.o SAGEM Communication POLAND Sp Zo.o FM Poland 100 100
SAGEM Industria ¢ Comercio de Comunicacoes LDA ™M First consolidated on Portugal 100 100
1 January 2004
Ningbo Bird Sagem Electronics Co Ltd Ningbo Bird Sagem Electronics Co Ltd PM China 50 50
SAGEM Tunisic SAGEM Tunisie ™M Tunisia 100 100
Vectronix AG Vectronix AG FM Switzerland 100 160
Vectronix Inc. Vectronix Inc. M us 100 100
SAGEM Networks Poland FM First consolidated on Poland 68 68
1 March 2004

* FM: Consolidated under the full method
PM: Consolidated under the proportional method

Impact of changes in the consolidation scope (in € million):

The changes in the consolidation scope are described in the "Comments" column in the table above. The impact of
these changes on turnover in 2004 was of around 0.3% and had no material impact on earnings. The impact on
"gross” goodwill was of €10.8 million (see note 4.1) and had no material impact on other balance sheet items.
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4) NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AND INCOME STATEMENT

4.1 - Goodwill on acquisition (in €’000)

The amounts concerned are as follows:

Opening balance Increase Decrease Change Amortisation | Closing balance

SFIM 24816 (1,710) 23,106
SAT/SILEC 33,735 (4,034) 29,701
FAX PHILIPS 3,155 (1,000) (288) 1,867
MONETEL 805 92) 713
VECTRONIX 24,165 40 (1,269) 22,936
ULIS (a subsidiary of SOFRADIR) 214 (43) 171
POSITIVE 3,660 (366) 3,294
E-SOFTWARE 1,965 (147) 1,818
WUHAN TIANYU

INFORMATION INDUSTRY 5,200 (130) 5,070
TOTAL 86,890 10,825 (1,000) 40 (8,079) 88,676

There have been no events likely to require impairment tests to be carried out with regard to goodwill arising before
2004. These goodwill amounts concern activities that are currently profitable and have already been partially amortised.

4.2 - Intangible fixed assets (in €°000)

Opening | Additions at cost | Disposals Other Closing
balance | Amortisation and movements | balance
write downs *
Gross book value 60,074 7,833 (4,778) 500 63,629
Amortisation and write-downs 46,579 3,950 (3,749) 371 47,151
Net book value 13,495 3,883 (1,029) 129 16,478
* Mainly due to changes in the consolidation scope
Additions consist mainly of software.
Intangible fixed assets - breakdown by type (in €'000)
Gross book | Amortisation and | Net book value at | Net book value at
value at 31 write-downs 31 December 31 December
December 2004 2003
2004
Concessions, patents and licences 58,380 44,883 13,497 10,932
Advances and payments on account 33 33 646
Other 5,216 2,268 2,948 1,917
TOTAL 63,629 47,151 16,478 13,495
4.3 - Tangible fixed assets (in €’000)
Opening | Additions at cost
balance | Amortisation and | Disposals Other Closing
write-downs movements balance
*
Gross book value 855,787 112,186 (54,883) 3,277 916,367
Depreciation and write-downs 609,633 80,043 (51,412) (1,085) 637,179
Net book value 246,154 32,143 (3,471) 4,362 279,188

* Mainly due to changes in the consolidation scope

Additions consist mainly of equipment and tooling.
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Tangible fixed assets - breakdown by type (in €7000)

Gross book | Depreciation | Netbook | ofw assets Net book
value at 31 and value at 31 made value at 31
available
under finance
December write-downs | December leases December
2004 2004 2003
Land 41,255 8,158 33,097 604 32,930
Buildings 256,436 166,198 90,238 21,245 88,159
Plant, equipment and tooling 509,564 412,504 97,060 0 78,160
Other tangible fixed assets 109,112 50319 58,793 5,981 46,905
TOTAL 916,367 637,179 279,188 27,830 246,154
4.4 - Long-term investments (in €'000)
Gross book Write-downs Net book Net book
value at 31 value at 31 value at 3]
December December December
2004 2004 2003
Participating interests 9,840 2,860 6,980 7,358
Other long-term investments 12,866 859 12,007 13,056
TOTAL 22,706 3,719 18,987 20,414
Other long-term investments include receivables and deposits amounting to €5,396 thousand, of which €4,686 with a maturity of more than one
year.
Opening Additions (*) Disposals (*) Other movements | Closing balance
balance *)
Gross book value 24,502 88,522 (75,735) (14,583) 22,706
Write-downs 4,088 160 P10 (318) 3,719
Net book value 20,414 88,362 (75,524) (14,265) 18,987
(*) o/w own shares 73,708 (73,708) 0

Non-consolidated participating interests

In relation to the main indicators used by the Group, all non-consolidated participating interests that could be
included in the consolidation scope represent less than 0.1% of turnover, 0.1% of shareholders' equity, 0.1% of total
assets and 0.1% of net income. The companies concerned have net cash equivalent to less than 0.1% of the net cash

position reported by the Group.

4.5 - Inventories and work in progress (in €'000)

Gross book value at Provisions Net book value at 31 | Net book value at 31

31 December 2004 December 2004 December 2003
Raw materials 243,215 41,425 201,790 151,475
Work in progress 297,452 35,108 262,344 248,301
Intermediate and finished products 214,711 28323 186,388 135,391
Total 755,378 104,856 650,522 535,167
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4.6 - Receivables

Breakdown by type (in €'000)

Gross book value at Provisions Net book value at | Net book value at

31 December 2004 31 December 2004 | 31 December 2003
Trade receivables 1,280,852 51,325 1,229,527 1,196,039
Advances and payments on account 52,113 52,113 56,580
Other receivables 84,914 10,193 74,721 57,878
Deferred tax assets 36,706 36,706 32,784
Prepayments and accrued income 27,914 27,914 17,570
Sub-total 201,647 10,193 191,454 164,812
TOTAL 1,482,499 61,518 1,420,981 1,360,851

Breakdown by residual maturity (in €'000)
Total Due within 1 year | Due in more than |

year

Receivables

1,420,981

1,397,327

23,654

Other receivables (gross book value of €84,914 thousand at 31 December 2004) comprise tax receivables,
VAT receivables, receivables under factoring arrangements and miscellaneous receivables. The provisions
(€10,193 thousand at 31 December 2004) concern receivables under factoring arrangements and

miscellaneous receivables.

Professional receivables accepted from customers with sound guarantees were ceded to credit institutions in
2004. At 31 December 2004, the receivables concerned amounted to €88.7 million.

4.7 - Bills of exchange included in the balance sheet

(in €'000) 31 December 31 December
2004 2003
Trade receivables 55,503 64,290
Cash (bills of exchange presented for collection) 29,670 16,031
Trade payables 95,271 124,804
4.8 - Marketable securities(in €'000)
Gross book Provisions Net book value|Net book value
value at 31 at 31 at 31
December December December
2004 2004 2003
Money market securities 313,406 2 313,404 505,568
Own shares (for share options already allocated) 77,612 15,874 61,738 75,666
Own shares (other) 2,195 91 2,104 18,320
393,213 15,967 377,246 599,554
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4.9 - Capital of the parent company

905,229 shares were cancelled by decision of the Executive Board on 19 October 2004.
The General Meeting of 20 December 2004 decided to divide the face value of each share by five.

On completion of these transactions, the capital amounted to €35,500,000, represented by 177,500,000 shares with a
face value of €0.20 each.

4.10 — Provisions (in €'000)

Opening | Set aside | Write-backs | Write-backs -|Other movements| Closing
balance - amounts | amounts not |(including effects| balance
utilised utilised | of changes in the
consolidation
scope)
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Retirement indemnities 48,743 4,474 431 (15%5) 52,631
Other long-term benefits 8,701 597 457 2 8,843
Customer warranties 63,102 15,960 7,318 37 71,707
Charges on contracts 102,922 15,886 22,641 1,330 94,837
Provisions for contracts 9,517 7,386 2,282 14,621
Provisions for deferred tax 87 87
Other 34,596 19,188 22,431 1,229 (1,282) 28,842
267,581 63,578 55,560 2,559 (1,472) 271,568
. Provisions for diminution in value
Intangible fixed assets 4,104 130 145 4119
Tangible fixed assets 746 41 112 634 2) 39
Long-term investments 4,088 (108) 211 (50) 3,719
Inventories and work in progress 94,338 20,617 9,081 1,244 226 104,856
Trade receivables 73,948 44,563 64,779 3,495 1,088 51,325
Other receivables 11,813 3,093 3,982 597 (134) 10,193
Marketable securities : 13,279 2,686 2 15,967
| 202,316 70,892 78,295 5,970 1,275 190,218
Total 469,897} 134,470 133,855 8,529 (197) 461,786
Reconciliation with income statement: |
Operating items ‘ 121,877 122,830 4,053
Financial items 2,645 3,830
Exceptional items 9,859 7,121 4,476
Corporation tax 89 74
134,470 133,855 8,529

4.11 - Provisions for retirement indemnities and similar benefits

/ Sagem complies with CNC circular n® 2003-R.01 of 1 April 2003 relating to the accounting and valuation rules to be
. applied to obligations in respect of retirement and other benefits.

A. Definition of plans

Plans set up to cover obligations towards the staff in respect of retirement and other long-term benefits are
either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

These plans are characterised by payments being made to bodies that free the employer from any future
obligation. Accordingly, these plans do not give rise to any actuarial liability.

Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans giving rise to the payment of post-employment benefits correspond to:
» Plans applicable to French companies for the payment of retirement indemnities to their employees;

* Various internal defined benefit plans in force at European subsidiaries, notably in Germany,
Switzerland and Austria.
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Other long-term benefits paid to employees under defined benefit plans correspond mainly to long-service
awards, loyalty bonuses and anniversary payments.
Defined benefit plans are sometimes covered by pension or similar funds that are subject to a periodic

actuarial valuation by independent actuaries. The value of these funds is deducted from amounts reported as a

liability.

B. Analysis of provisions

These provisions are recorded as provisions for liabilities and charges (see note 4.10):

Change
(in €'000) 31 December 2004 | 31 December 2003 |  2004/2003
M (2) (3)=(-2)
Obligations towards employees in respect of:
Post-employment benefits 52,631 48,743 3,888
Other long-term benefits 8,843 8,701 142
Total 61,474 57,444 4,030

C. Actuarial assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used by the French companies are summarised in the table below:

Assumption 2004 2003
Discount rate 5.5% 4.82%
Retirement age 60 60
Projected retum on plan assets N/A N/A
Annual increase in salaries 2.5% - 3% 2.5% - 3%
Staff tunover 1%t0 5.5% 1% to 4.50%

D. Analysis of provisions relating to post-employment benefits

Amounts recorded by way of provisions in respect of post-employment benefits are analysed below:

(in €'000)

Fair value of plan assets

Net obligation
Deferred actuarial gains (losses)

Total post-employment benefits

Net amount recorded on the balance sheet for the French companies
Liabilities in respect of the European subsidiaries

Present value of obligation (retirement indemnities in the case of French companies)

31 December 2004 | 31 December 2003
47,867 44,203

N/A N/A

47,867 44,203

(907) (711)

46,960 43,492

5,671 5,251

52,631 48,743
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Movements in the net amounts reported on the balance sheet are analysed below :

(in €'000) 31 December 2004 | 31 December 2003
Opening balance 48,743 75,312
Impact of change in accounting method on the 2003 opening balance (27,943)
Reclassification as a provision relating to other long-term benefits (571)
Restated opening balance 48,743 46,798
Service cost and interest cost 5,138 4,082
Benefits paid (1,095) (4.242)
Translation adjustments on foreign plans 19 (144)
Additional liabilities relating to acquisitions 2,150
Other movements (174) 99
Closing balance as reported on the balance sheet 52,631 48,743
Service cost and interest cost were recorded as operating charges and are analysed below:
(in €'000) 2004 2003
Service costs 2,628 2,082
Interest cost 2,510 2,000
Actual gains (losses) recognised in the income statement
Charge for the year 5,138 4,082
E. Analysis of provisions relating to other long-term benefits
Amounts recorded by way of a liability and the net charge for the year are analysed below:

Change
(in €'000) 31 December 2004 | 31 December 2003 2004/2003
Present value of obligations 8,843 8,701
Fair value of plan assets N/A N/A
Net amount recorded on the balance sheet 8,843 8,701 142
Charge for the year 140 579
Other changes 2
TOTAL 142 579
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4.12 - Depreciation, amortisation and provisions relating to fixed assets (in €'000)

Depreciation and | Depreciation and Provisions TOTAL
amortisation amortisation (operating)
(operating) (exceptional)
Intangible fixed assets 3,950 3,950
Tangible fixed assets 79,763 226 54 80,043
TOTAL 83,713 226 54 83,993
4.13 - Liabilities
Breakdown by type and maturity (in €'000)
Total Less than 1 year 1to S years Over 5 years
Loans and other amounts due to credit institutions 5,360 3,230 2,085 45
Finance lease obligations 19,209 5,667 10,079 3,463
Other loans and borrowings 41,425 6,212 11,564 23,649
Sub-total - Loans and other borrowings 65,994 15,109 23,728 27,157
Trade payables 792,780 792,725 55
Advances and payments on account from customers 344316 344,316
Tax and social security 188,424 183,306 5,118
Other payables, accruals and deferred income 74,665 74,605 60
TOTAL 1,466,179 1,410,061 28,961 27,157
Breakdown of loans and other borrowings by type of interest rate (in €'000)
- Variable interest rate 29,449
- Fixed interest rate 36,545
65,994
Breakdown of loans and other borrowings by currency (in €'000)
- euros 64,392
- Other 1,602
65,994
4.14 - Personnel expenses
Average number of employees
2004 2003
Management and engineers 4,687 4,016
Supervisory staff, technicians and office staff 6,036 5,660
Workers 4,646 4,358
Total average number of employees 15,369 14,034
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4.15 - Provision write-backs and other operating revenues

In 2004, this item comprised provision write-backs of €126,883 thousand (2003: €133,330 thousand) and
miscellaneous revenues of €9,425 thousand (2003: €7,057 thousand).

4.16 - Other operating expenses

In 2004, other operating expenses consisted mainly of license fees of €71,196 thousand (2003: €54,167 thousand)
and losses on defaulting receivables of €22,151 thousand (2003: € 22,046 thousand).

4.17 - Net financial income

Breakdown by nature (in €'000)

FINANCIAL INCOME

Income from marketable securities and long-term receivables 287
Other interest and similar income 2,371
Provision write-backs 3,830
Foreign exchange gains 40,362
Net profit on the sale of marketable securities 10,007
56,857
FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Provisions 2,644
Interest payable and similar charges 9,356
Foreign exchange losses 39,128
Net loss on the sale of marketable securities 0
51,128
NET FINANCIAL INCOME 5,729

Interest payable includes €958 thousand in respect of finance leases.
Translation differences recognised in net financial income represent a net charge of €851 thousand.

4.18 - Exceptional items

Breakdown by nature (in €'000)

EXCEPTIONAL INCOME
From revenue transactions 3,598
From capital transactions 6913
Provision write-backs 11,597
22,108
EXCEPTIONAL CHARGES
On revenue transactions 15,094
On capital transactions 8,439
Depreciation and amortisation 228
Provisions 9,859
33,620
NET EXCEPTIONAL INCOME (11,512)

Charges on revenue transactions consist mainly of restructuring charges and charges relating to the Mobile Phones
business decided previously, as do provision write-backs. Provisions booked relate mainly to provisions for
contracts.
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4.19 - Corporation tax

4.19.1 - Breakdown of corporation tax (in €’000)

2004 2003
Current tax charge * 61,659 65,389
Deferred tax charge (3,960) (3,600)
Total 57,699 61,789
* of which tax on ordinary activities 61,771 89,295

4.19.2 - Reconciliation of actual tax charge and theoretical tax charge (in €’000)

Current tax charge

Pre-tax income of consolidated companies
Effective tax rate

Tax charge based on the statutory tax rate in France

Impact of changes in the consolidation scope
Impact of deferred tax assets not recognised*
Impact of deferred taxes (including discounting)
Tax credits, differences in tax rate and other items

TOTAL

Exceptional tax on special reserves for long-term capital gains

2004 2003

57,699 61,789
199,940 188,551
28.9% 32.8%
70,839 35.43% 66,804 35.43%

4,987 2.5%
(1,215) (0.6%)
(6,995) (3.5%) 2,141 1.1%
(358) (0.2%) (3,020) (1.6%)
(10,774) (5.4%) (2,921) (1.5%)
57,699 28.9% 61,789 32.8%

* deferred tax assets not previously recorded, booked during the year or corresponding to tax losses, minus deferred tax assets originating during

the financial year but not recorded.

4.19.3 - Deferred tax assets not recognised because collection is not considered probable at 31

December 2004 (in €'000, not discounted)

Tax losses carried forward 3,013
Timing differences 810
TOTAL 3,823

4.19.4 - Discounting

The effect of discounting deferred taxes was a charge of €1,021 thousand in 2004 compared with a charge of €1,379

thousand in 2003.

4.19.5 - Change in deferred tax assets and liabilities (in €'000)

At 31 Recognised in Other movements At 31
December 2003 the income (changes in December 2004
consolidation,
statement translation adjustments)
Tax losses carried forward 3,112 (238) (146) 2,728
Timing differences and consolidation adjustments 29,672 4,198 21 33,891
Deferred taxes reported on the balance sheet 32,784 3,960 (125) 36,619

65




4.20 - Earnings per share

2004 2003
proforma *
Number of shares * (a) 177,500,000 182,026,145
Number of own shares held in treasury * (b) 0 316,760
Number of shares other than own shares held in treasury * (c =a - b) 177,500,000 181,709,385
Weighted average number of shares in issue (excluding own shares held in 179,860,639 196,275,095
treasury) (c")
Closing share price (in €)* (d) 15.68 16.99
Total market capitalisation (in €m) 2,783 3,093
(e=axd)
Market capitalisation excluding own shares held in treasury 2783 3,087
(in€m) (f=cxd)
Group share of net income (in €m) (g) 134.2 119.7
Earnings per share (in€) (h=g/c") 0.75 0.61
Price/earnings multiple (i=f/g) 20.7 25.8
* 2003 figures adjusted to take into account the five to one share split carried out in 2004
5) OTHER INFORMATION
5.1 — Sector data
Turnover (in €'000)

By activity 2004 2003 By geographical area 2004 2003
Communications 2,408,613 2,097,070|International (*) 1,911,690 1,721,864
Defence and Security 1,161,568 1,083,370|France 1,658,491 1,458,576

3,570,181 3,180,440 3,570,181 3,180,440
* Europe: 59%; Asia/Australasia: 19%,; Africa: 7%, North and South America: 15%
Tangible and intangible fixed assets (as a % of total)
By activity 2004 By geographical area 2004
Communications 49% International 9%
Defence and Security 51% France N%
100% 100%
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Operating income (in € million)

2004 2003
Communications 1139 89.7
Defence and Security 91.8 78.8
TOTAL 205.7 168.5

5.2 — Off-balance sheet commitments

Market risk
The Group did not enter into any transactions involving financial instruments except in a few isolated cases when

arranging specific hedging to protect against identified risks. The Group uses financial instruments to manage and
reduce its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

Currency risk

Financial instruments held at 31 December 2004 were intended to hedge the currency risk on trade receivables and
payables as well as on future transactions already known at the year end.

The Group's main exposures are to the US dollar and Japanese yen and are summarised in the table below:

At 31 December 2004 US dollar Japanese yen

(million) (million)
Assets 239.5 44729
Liabilities 148.8 5,721.0
Net balance sheet position 90.7 (1,248.1)
Net off-balance sheet position 172.8 20,462.9
Net overall position 263.5 19,214.8

To improve control of its currency risk, since the beginning of 2003 the Group has adopted a new approach under
which it manages net exposures, with only the residual position giving rise to hedging. However, at the express
request of divisions and after approval by the Finance department, specific hedges may be entered into.

Hedging is achieved through forward currency transactions, the purchase of currency options or taking out cover
with insurance companies, notably Coface.

To monitor its currency risk, the Group calculates and updates its currency positions each month. This information is
provided by the information systems in place at the Group, notably SAP.

Lastly, it should be noted that in view of the present attractive levels, both on the dollar and the yen, the Group,
which is structurally a buyer of these currencies, has set in place hedges for larger amounts than usual and with
longer maturities.

Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2004, most of the borrowings arranged by the Group through the banking system carried variable
interest rates. Specific hedges using interest rate swaps may be used when appropriate.

All financial instruments held by the Group at 31 December 2004 were taken out to hedge the interest rate risk on
finance leases.
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The Group did not enter into any transactions in the financial instruments market. At 31 December 2004, nearly all
of the Group’s cash was invested in money market instruments.

The nominal value by maturity of the financial instruments is analysed below.

At 31 December 2004 (in € million)
TOTAL Within 1 1to 5 Over 5 Average

year years years fixed rate
Interest rate instruments
Interest rate swaps (lender of variable rates) 4.6 0.9 3.7 - 6.05 %
Currency instruments
Forward transactions — currencies bought ‘ 337.8 337.8 - - .
Forward transactions — currencies sold 73.3 73.3 - - -
Insurance policies 2.2 2.2 - - -

. Shares

The Group did not enter into any transactions in the financial instruments market.

Risk relating to the price of precious metals
The Group has a marginal exposure to risk arising from fluctuations in the prices of copper at its only cable

manufacturing plant. This risk is managed through a pricing policy that integrates changes in copper prices into the
price of cables.

Any decision to hedge the risk is taken on a case-by-case basis.

Credit risk
Given the diversification of its customers and their geographical dispersion, the Group has low credit risk exposure
with regard to amounts receivable. However, various forms of hedging are used such as factoring, finance leasing

and insurance (Globalliance).

Investment securities (mainly money market and short-term instruments) held in portfolio are sensitive only to
fluctuations in interest rates.

' Cash management

As part of its policy of optimising terms with its bankers and controlling market risk, the Group has implemented a
system of centralised cash management.

Contractual obligations (in €'000)

Total Ageing of payments by maturity
Within 1 year | 1to 5 years | Over 5§
years
Long-term debt reported on the balance sheet (*) 65,994 15,109 23,728 27,157
* Of which finance lease obligations 19,209 5,667 10,079 3,463
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Other off-balance sheet commitments (in €'000)

Total Ageing of payments by maturity
Within 1 year| 1 to 5 years | Over 5 years

Guarantees and other commercial commitments * 184,140 97,902 76,557 9,681

* including completion guarantees and bonding

On 12 March 2004, Sagem Avionics, inc. based in Texas acquired the assets of Arnav Systems, inc. based in
Puyallup, Washington.

Payment made in 2004 in connection with this transaction came to 1,703 million dollars. Further payments will be
made over the next six years depending on products sold. These payments represent an off balance sheet

commitment estimated at 600,000 dollars, i.e. less than 500,000 euros.

5.3 — Working capital requirements (in €’000)

2004 2003 Change in working capital
requirements
BALANCE SHEET

Inventories and work in progress 650,522 535,167 115,355
Trade receivables 1,229,527 1,196,039 33,488
Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income 191,454 164,812 26,642
Share options ( included in marketable securities) 61,738 75,666 (13,928)
Trade payables (792,780) (717,506) (75,274)
Other payables, accruals and deferred income (607,405) (547,515) (59,890)

733,056 706,663 26,393

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Change in deferred taxes (3,960)
Change relating to operating activities (38,796)
Change relating to investing activities 13,309 (29,447)
Other changes (consolidation scope, translation differences) 3,054

5.4 - SAGEM / SNECMA merger project

On 29 October 2004 Sagem and SNECMA announced their plan to merge.

This merger reflects the two companies' shared conviction that demand for electronics technology in the civil and
military aerospace industry will accelerate over the next few years.

The new group will be a major player in the aerospace, defence, telecommunications and electronic sectors with a
solid and well-balanced portfolio of activities, competitive at world level and well-positioned in very robust markets.
The diversity and balance of its businesses, through their complementary business cycles, will give the new group
greater financial stability, reduced exposure to the dollar and increased capacity for growth.

The merger will be carried out in two stages:

At the end of December 2004, Sagem made a public offer for all the shares issued by SNECMA, i.e. 270,092,310
shares with a face value of €1 each. The main offer consists of a share exchange offer and is accompanied by a share
purchase offer (Information Memorandum filed with the AMF under number 05 - 017 on 17 January 2005).

As its main offer to SNECMA's shareholders, Sagem is offering to exchange SNECMA shares for shares in Sagem
on the basis of 15 new Sagem shares to be issued for 13 SNECMA shares, and, as a subsidiary offer, Sagem is
offering to buy SNECMA shares at a price of €20 per share within a global limit of 62,500,000 SNECMA shares.
The Sagem shares delivered in exchange for SNECMA shares tendered to the offer will be issued by decision of the
Executive Board based on the powers delegated to it by the General Meeting of shareholders on 20 December 2004.
The financing of the subsidiary purchase offer (capped at €1.25 billion) is ensured through a credit line of
€1.295 billion arranged with seven French and international banks.

Subject to the success of this offer, the General Meetings of the shareholders of Sagem and SNECMA called to
approve the merger will be held at the end of May 2005 at the latest.
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The merger parity proposed will be identical to the exchange parity of the public offer, except in the event of the
occurrence, after the offer filing date, of an internal or external event with a significant impact on the value of Sagem
and/or SNECMA requiring a revision of the terms of the merger.
Pursuant to the provisions of Law 86-912 of 6 August 1986 relating to privatisation, the transfer to private ownership
of the majority of the capital of SNECMA may only be carried out if the French shareholdings and transfer
commission, Commission des Participations et des Transferts (CPT), approves the conditions for the transfer and the
choice of buyer. The State's decision to tender its shares in SNECMA to the offer, and the terms, must be confirmed
by an Order of the Minister for the Economy before the closing date of the public offer.

5.5 — Environmental issues

Sagem did not book any provision for environmental risk in 2004.

Breakdown of environmental expense by area:

Prevention of air pollution and greenhouse gas emissions
Waste water management
Waste management

Treatment and protection of underground and surface
water

Noise and vibration control
Other

Operating expense

Investments

Charges Expenses capitalised
(€'000) (€'000)
1,195
937
1,255 81
148 1,286
66
224
1,627 3,565
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Constantin Associés Deloitte & Associés
26, rue de Marignan 185, avenue Charles-de-Gaulle
75008 PARIS 92200 NEUILLY-SUR-SEINE

SAGEM SA

Société Anonyme

Le Ponant de Paris
27, rue Leblanc
75015 PARIS

Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2004

In accordance with our appointment as statutory auditors by your Annual Stockholders' Meeting, we have audited the
accompanying consolidated financial statements of SAGEM SA for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Executive Board. Our role is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

1. Opinion on the consolidated financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position and the assets and
liabilities of the Group as at December 31, 2004 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance

with the accounting principles generally accepted in France.

II. Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L.225-235 of the French Commercial Code relating to the justification of
our assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters:

Note 1.1 of the notes to the financial statements describes the changes in accounting estimates with respect to the
amortization period for software and the determination of the cost price for finished products and work-in-progress
(WIP). :

As part of our assessment of the accounting policies implemented by your Company, we have verified the merits of such
changes and their presentation in the notes.

The assessments on these matters were performed in the context of our audit approach for the consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to enable us to express our opinion in the first part of this report.
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IIl. Specific procedure

In accordance with professional standards applicable in France, we have also verified the information given in the group
management’s report. We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated
financial statements.

Furthermore, we draw your attention to the section on “Transition to I[FRS” in the Executive Board’s management
report as well as the section on “Accounting environment” in part “II — Internal control “procedures implemented” in the
report of the Supervisory Board’s Chairman on internal control procedures, which presents the progress made on the
IFRS transition project and describes the main non quantified differences between French GAAP and IFRS which will
impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements starting from fiscal year 2005.

Paris and Neuilly-sur-Seine, February 28, 2005
The Statutory Auditors

Constantin Associés Deloitte & Associés

Jean-Paul SEGURET Philippe BATTISTI Jean-Paul PICARD

This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report signed and issued in the French language and is provided solely for the
convenience of English speaking readers. The statutory auditors’ report includes information specifically required by French law in all audit reports,
whether qualified or not, and this is presented below the opinion on the consolidated financial statements. This information includes an explanatory
paragraph discussing the auditors’ assessments of certain significant accounting and auditing matters. These assessments were considered for the
purpose of issuing an audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole and not to provide separate assurance on individual
account captions or on information taken outside of the consolidated financial statements.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards applicable in France.
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5.2 Extract from the parent company financial statements for 2004-2003-2002

BALANCE SHEET
(in €°000)
IASSETS 2004 2003 2002
At 31 December
IFIXED ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets 8,536 7,758 7,519
[Tangible fixed assets 211,466 179,207 147,869
ILong-term investments 347,650 340,330 243,889
FIXED ASSETS 567,652 527,295 399,277,
ICURRENT ASSETS
Inventories and work in progress 594,082 498,709 405,853
[Receivables 1,348,381 1,304,314 1,321,281
[Marketable securities and cash 201,915 409,240 177,218
CURRENT ASSETS 2,144,378 2,212,263 1,904,352
TOTAL ASSETS 2,712,030 2,739,558 2,303,629
ILIABILITIES 2004 2003 2002
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,067,443 1,065,011 738,678
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES 263,213 265,404 314,474
LIABILITIES 1,381,374 1,409,143 1,250,477
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,712,030 2,739,558 2,303,629
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INCOME STATEMENT
(in €'000)

Turnover

Gross operating income

Operating income (loss)

Net financial income (expense)

Pre-tax income (loss) on ordinary activities

Exceptional items

Corporation tax and employee profit-sharing

Net income

2004

3,450,944

336,545

197,127

(5,342)

191,785

(14,439)

(67,290)

110,056

2003

3,029,391

280,372

163,634

51,885

215,519

18,937

(80,133)

154,323

2002

2,642,404

246,555

114,387

(24,469)

89,918

(48,167)

2,418

44,169
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Shareholders' equity

905,229 shares were cancelled by decision of the Executive Board on 19 October 2004.

The General Meeting of 20 December 2004 decided to divide the face value of each share by five. On completion of
these transactions, the capital amounted to €35,500,000 euros, represented by 177,500,000 shares with a face value of
€0.20 each

Changes in shareholders' equity (in thousands of euros):

Opening Appropriation Increases Decreases Other movements | Closing
balance of 2003 income balance
Share capital 36,405 905 (3) 35,500
Additional paid-in capital 163,366 163,366
Revaluation reserve (1) 1,474 1,474
Legal reserve 3,641 3,641
Regulated reserves 501,988 501,988
Other reserves (4) 156,745 164,000 72,802 (3) 247943
Retained eamings 44,268 (42,488) 4,987 (5) (3,207)
2003 net income 154,323 (121,512) 32,811 (2) 0
2004 net income 110,056 110,056
Regulated provisions 2,801 5,160 1,279 6,682
1,065,011 0 115,216 112,784 0 1,067,443
(1) Revaluation reserve:
Reserve from revaluation of land in
1977 1,474 1,474
1,474 1,474

(2) Dividends paid

(3) Cancellation of 905,229 shares for 73,707

(4) o/w reserve for own shares 79,807
(5) Following the amended Finance Law for 2004 relating to the exceptional tax on

the special reserve for long-term capital gains and the recommendation of the emergency committee of the
French accounting standards body, Conseil National de la Comptabilité,
dated 2 February 2005, this amount has been transferred to tax liabilities.
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Capital

Capital and additional paid-in capital

(in €'000)

At 1 January 1998
1998 capital increase
2000 capital increase

2000 adjustment to capital on conversion of the
shares’ nominal value into euro

2001 capital reduction following the
cancellation of 1,654,646 ordinary shares

2002 capital reduction following the
cancellation of 191,526 ordinary shares

2003

Conversion of 8,973,360 non-voting preference
shares into 7,691,448 ordinary shares

Capital reduction following the cancellation of
1,462,448 ordinary shares

One-for six bonus issue

Creation of 15,616 shares in connection

with the merger by absorption of Coficem
Cancellation of the Sagem shares held

by Coficem

Cancellation of the Sagem shares held by
Sagem International

2004

Capital reduction following the cancellation of
905,229 ordinary shares

Capital

30,400
1,692
6,418
(619)

(1,655)

(192)

(1,282)

(1,462)
5,550

15,616
(16,922)

(1,139)

(905)

35,500

—

Additional
paid-in
capital

79,923
76,895

(19,966)

1,282

101,800
(74,000)

(93,642)
91,074

163,366

(merger)

Information relating to share options is provided in the Special Report of the Executive Board.

Composition: 177,500,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of €0.20 € each
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
(in €

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
SHARE CAPITAL AT THE YEAR END

Share capital

(Number of ordinary shares in issue
Adjusted number of ordinary shares (1)}

INumber of non-voting preference shares in issue
Adjusted number of non-voting preference shares (1)

Total number of shares in issue
Adjusted total number of shares (1)

Maximum number of shares that could be issued:
- on conversion of bonds
- on exercise of subscription rights

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

‘Turnover (net of taxes)

Corporation tax

Employee profit-sharing for the year

Income distributed by way of dividend

EA

NGS PER SHARE

provisions
- on number of shares in issue

- on adjusted number of shares (1)

- on number of shares in issue
- on adjusted number of shares (1)

(Net dividend paid or proposed:
a) Ordinary shares

- on number of shares in issue

- on adjusted number of shares (1}
b) Non-voting preference shares

- on number of shares in issue

- on adjusted number of shares (1)
PERSONNEL

Average number of employees during the year

Salaries and wages paid for the year

Payroll-related charges for the year (payroll taxes, company benefits, etc.)

Income before tax, employee profit-sharing, depreciation, amortisation and provisions

Income after tax, employee profit-sharing, depreciation, amortisation and provisions

Income after tax and employee profit-sharing, but before depreciation, amortisation and

Income after tax, employee profit-sharing, depreciation, amortisation and provisions

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
37,890,522 36,235,676 36,044,360 36,405,229 35,500,000
28,917,162 27,262,516 27,071,000 36,405,229] 177,500,000

168,683,445| 159,031,340} 157,914,165 182,026,145 177,500,000

8,973,360 8,973,360 8,973,360 0 0
52,344,600 52,344,600 52,344,600 0 0
37,890,522 36,235,676 36,044,360 36,405,229] 177,500,000

221,028,045| 211,375,940| 210,258,765| 182,026,145| 177,500,000
4,183,802,877( 2,939,793,431| 2,642,403,798] 3,029,390,741] 3,450,944,596
180,657,732} 131,592,431 54,015,274] 146,500,005| 238,577,114,
42,122,950 (36,691,893) (2,418,074} 61,533,173 51,820,536

5,212,612 0 0 18,600,000 15,470,000

2,482,066 4,796,315 44,168,6231 154,322,999| 110,055,539
23,631,649 22,638,862 31,286,203 34,220,915 91,746,509

(2)
3.7% 4.64 1.57 1.83 0.96]
0.65 0.80 0.27 0.37 0.96]
0.07 0.13 123 4.24 0.62
0.01 0.02 0.21 0.85 0.62
0.60 0.60 0.90 0.94 0.22
0.10 0.10 0.15 0.19 0.22
0.70 0.70 - -
0.12 0.12 - -
14,055 13,321 10,998 11,050 11,780
441,502,023 423,892,597 371,639,524} 383,948,446 422,760,011
228,054,136f 201,441,677 187,896,640 193,807,406| 215,406,137

{1) Data adjusted to take account of the allocation of one bonus share for every six shares held, decided by the General Meeting of 18 December 2003 and the share split decided

by the General Meeting of 20 December 2004,

{2) The amount was calculated on the basis of 417,029,585 shares, i.e. the maximum number of shares making up the capital of Sagem if the offer for SNECMA is successful and

following the merger of SNECMA with Sagem S.A.
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Constantin Associés Deloitte & Associés
26, rue de Marignan 185, avenue Charles-de-Gaulle
75008 PARIS 92200 NEUILLY-SUR-SEINE

SAGEM SA

Société Anonyme

Le Ponant de Paris
27, rue Leblanc
75015 PARIS

Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2004

In accordance with our appointment as statutory auditors by your Annual Stockholders' Meeting, we hereby
report to you, for the year ended December 31, 2004, on:

- the audit of the accompanying financial statements of SAGEM SA (the “Company”);
- the justification of our assessments;

- the specific procedures and disclosures required by law.

These financial statements have been approved by the Executive Board. Our role is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

I. Opinion on the financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position and the assets and
liabilities of the Company, as at December 31, 2004, and of the results of its operations for the year then ended
in accordance with French accounting regulations.

II. Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L.225-235 of the French Commercial Code relating to the
justification of our assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters:

Note 1.1 of the notes to the financial statements describes the changes in accounting estimates with respect to the
amortization period for software and the determination of the cost price for finished products and work-in-
progress (WIP).

As part of our assessment of the accounting policies implemented by your Company, we have verified the merits
of such changes and their presentation in the notes.
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The assessments on these matters were performed in the context of our audit approach for the financial
statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to enable us to express our opinion in the first part of this
report.

1. Specific procedures and disclosures

We have also performed the other procedures required by law in accordance with professional standards
applicable in France.

We have no matters to report regarding the fair presentation and the consistency with the financial statements of
the information given in the management report of the Executive Board, and in the documents addressed to the
shareholders with respect to the financial position and the financial statements.

Pursuant to the law, we have verified that the report of the Executive Board contains the appropriate disclosures
as to the acquisition of participating and controlling interests and as to the percentage interests and votes held by
stockholders.

Paris and Neuilly-sur-Seine, February 28, 2005
The Statutory Auditors

Constantin Associés Deloitte & Associés

Jean-Paul SEGURET Philippe BATTISTI ~ Jean-Paul PICARD

This is a free transtation into English of the statutory auditors’ report signed and issued in the French language and is provided solely for the convenience of English speaking readers. The
statutory auditors’ report includes information specifically required by French law in all audit reports, whether qualified or not, and this is presented below the opinion on the financial
statements. This information includes an explanatory paragraph di ing the auditors’ of certain significant accounting and auditing matters. These assessments were
considered for the purpose of issuing an audit opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole and not to provide separate assurance on individual account captions or on information
taken outside of the financial statements.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards applicable in France.
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Differences between the accounting principles used for the preparation of the parent company and consolidated
financial statements:

Differences exist between the accounting principles used in the company financial statements and those used in

the consolidated financial statements resulting from the application of the methods recommended in paragraph

300 of CRC Regulation 99-02, in particular requirements relating to:

- finance leases, which are recorded on the consolidated balance sheet; and

- translation differences on unhedged foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

There are also differences that arise because of the application of methods specific to consolidation, more

particularly:

- entries recorded for purely taxation purposes, which are reversed on consolidation;

- deferred tax, which is recognised only in the consolidated financial statements; and

- goodwill on acquisition, which is recognised and amortised only in the consolidated financial statements.

*kk

In accordance with existing accounting standards, the presentation of the financial statements does not omit
material off balance sheet commitments.
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5.3 Fees paid to the statutory auditors and members of their firms by the group

Years covered (1} :

en miltiers d'euros

Deloitte et Associés

Constantin Associés

Alain Lainé

Amount % Amount % Amount %
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Audit
B Audit work,
Certification, Examination of
company and consolidated
financial statements (2) 970 1364 88% 91% 342 0 100% 0% 0 17 0% 100%
B Oher worh
Due diligence
Other 18 1 1% 0%
18 1 1% 0%
Sub-total 988 1365 89% % 342 0 100% 0% 0 17 0% 100%
Other services
Legal, tax, labour-related 87 131 8% 9%
Other 31 11 3% 0%
Sub-total 118 142 1% 9%
TOTAL 1106 1507 100% 100% 342 0 100% 0% 0 17 0% 100%

(1) Relating to services in respect of the 2004 and 2003 financial years and recognised in the income statement
{2) Including services provided by independent experts or network experts at the request of the statory auditors in the framework
of the certification of the financial statements
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5.4 Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Listed European companies must adopt [FRS as from 20035, and present the 2004 figures for the purpose of
comparison.

5.4.1 Main qualitative differences

The main qualitative differences between the accounting principles currently applied by the Sagem
group and IFRS applicable in 2005 are as follows:

e Development expenses that are currently expensed will, if they comply with TAS 38 criteria for
intangible assets, be recorded under assets and amortised over the life of the corresponding products. This will
result in an increase in intangible fixed assets and shareholders' equity in Sagem's opening balance under IFRS.
The impact of retrospective application will be assessed to the best of our ability.

e Goodwill on acquisition will no longer be amortised but will be subject to a mandatory annual
impairment test. In accordance with the option offered by IFRS 1, the group has decided not to restate business
combinations that occurred prior to 1 January 2004.

¢ Own shares that are currently recorded under marketable securities will have to be deducted from
shareholders' equity under IFRS.

e Share purchase options allotted by the Group to certain employees will be expensed over the period of
employee eligibility. Only the stock option plans issued after 7 November 2002 and whose rights had not been
acquired as at 1 January 2005 will be restated. This concerns the April 2003 and April 2004 plans. This
restatement will have no impact on the Group's shareholders' equity.

¢ The presentation of the financial statements will be modified to comply with the provisions of IAS 1.
The balance sheet presentation will distinguish between current items and non-current items. In the income
statement, certain items recorded up to now under exceptional charges or income will be reclassified under
operating income or financial revenues.

e Deferred tax, which is currently discounted to its net present value by reference to the year when it is
expected to reverse, will have to be recorded for its non-discounted amount under IFRS; in addition, some
netting off will no longer be authorised under the new standards.

¢ Tangible fixed assets composed of items with materially different useful lives will be systematically
broken down so as to enable each item to be depreciated over its estimated useful life. These rules will become a
requirement under French GAAP starting in 2005 when CRC 2002-10 comes into force.

e The actuarial differences at 31 December 2003 relating to post-employment benefit obligations will be
wiped out in accordance with the possibility offered under IFRS 1. The Group decided to apply the
recommendations of CNC Regulation 2003-R.01 on accounting for pension and other post-employment benefits
as from 1 January 2003. These recommendations comply fully with the requirements of IAS 19.

e The Group has opted for first adoption of IAS 39 as from 1 January 2005. At the Group's present scope,
the impact of recording derivative financial instruments at their fair value (forward purchase or sale of foreign
currencies, interest rate swaps, etc.) is not material. There are no composite financial instruments such as bonds
redeemable in shares or bonds redeemable in new shares.

The above information is based on IFRS adopted or in the process of being adopted by the European

Commission as at the date of this report but does not take into account any changes that may come into effect
before the closing date of the 2005 financial year.
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5.4.2 Synopsis of main differences and expected impact

To summarise, the main differences are as follows:

POSITIVE ff there is an increase
1. Re.search and Developme‘nt exgenses {IAS 38 - IAS 3€6): POSITIVE in view of the retroactive in costs to be cagxtal!sed (higher None
44 Devi costs are if they meet the relevant nalure of expenses capitalised than amortisation) .
g criteria s P NEGATIVE if there is a decrease
3] ar in the event of impairement
E 2. Goodwill and busi binations (IFRS 3) :
‘g Goodwill amortisation replaced by mandatory annual impairment - POSITIVE if no impairment None
8 test
e
o "
& 3. Financial instruments (IAS 32 and IAS 39): Own
g shares to be deducted from cash and shareholders' equity NEGATIVE N/A NEGATIVE
=
4. Stock options (IFRS 2) :
Stock options to be recognised under costs NEGATIF None
4 |5. Deferred tax {IAS 12): Not POSITIVE : increase in net B None
discounted and no netting off deferred tax assets
8
Q
8 POSITIVE : if the depreciation POSITIVE and then None
2 6. Tangible fixed assets {IAS 16 - IAS 36): A . .
=5 period is longer than the actual | NEGATIVE untif depreciation
o Breakdown of tangible assets by component, impairment life of th t - NEGATIVE i has b letel itt
g recorded if the net book value Is higher than the collectable value fe ot the asset ; ) " n as been completely written
2 the opposite side off
2
C]
2 7. Actuarial differences on employee benefits (IAS 19): Lo
@ B -
- Set at 0 in the opening balance NEGATIVE : Not significant None
8. Financial instruments (IAS 32 - IAS 39): Recognition I
Not significant None
of derivative instruments at fair value
No composite instruments such as bonds redeemable in shares and
bends redeemable in new shares

5.4.3 Other information

Training has been given and information systems and procedures have been adapted to meet the

requirements of the new accounting standards.

5.4.4 Project to merge with SNECMA and timetable for transition to IFRS

The merger project underway with SNECMA will require the harmonisation of IFRS regulations at both

groups, prior to any disclosures. Harmonisation work is currently in progress, and could result in other
differences in addition to those described above.

In view of the merger project with SNECMA, it has been decided not to present any quantitative data in the
2004 annual report. This data will be published once the harmonisation work is complete and before the first
interim financial report for 2005 at the latest.
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6 Corporate governance
6.1. Composition and operation of the Executive and Supervisory Boards

6.1.0 Composition of the Executive and Supervisory Boards
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e  Supervisory Board at 31 December 2004

Number of | - Ages
shares held | - Dite on which COMPANIES IN WHICH THE MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD ARE
Name First name as at end term of office MANAGERS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OR BOARD MEMBERS
2004 ends (8)
- Board fees (9)
) . Sagem S.A. - Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Colaiacovo Mario 385,000 63 . SAS Club Sagem - Chairman
: AGI\:‘I;OW . Member of the Board of Directors of:
*CDR
*SNECMA
*MMA Vie et IARD
*Groupe Credit-Mutuel (CIC Finance - CIC Capital Développement- Banque
Transatlantique)
H-Q)-6)-@—6)
. Sagem SA — Vice Chairman of Supervisory Board
Lauvergeon Anne 360 AGI:iSZO(W ¢ Areva- Chairman of the Executive Board.
14 . Cogema ~Chief Executive Officer
. Member of the Board of Directors of:
oSuez
e Total
e Areva T&D Holding SA
. Areva's permanent representative on the Board of Directors of FCI
=6
. BNP Paribas — Chief Operating Officer
Chodron De Courcel  Georges 100 55 . Member of the Board of Directors of:
AGM 2009 « Alstorm
0 *Bouygues
»Nexans
. Lagardére: Member of Supervisory Board
U]
. . Banque Lazard: Managing Partner.
De COMBRET Frangois 5830 AGI\?’ZOO? s Member of the Board of Directors of:
14 sBouygues Telecom
eRenault
#Fonds Partenaires Gestion
o [nstitut Pasteur.
(- (3)y—(6)
Dupuy Armand 64,190 56 . Sagem SA: Director, Research and Development
AGM 2007 ®
30
Guena Yves 100 85 0
AGM 2009
0
Lagarde Xavier 129,925 57 . Sagem SA.: Director, Manufacturing and Quality
AGM 2007 )
30
i . Confédération Nationale du Crédit Mutuel: Chief Executive Officer
Lucas Michel s &52007 e Caisse Centrale du Crédit Mutuel: Chief Executive Officer
AG 15 . Groupe de Crédit Mutue) Centre Est Europe: Chief Executive Officer
. Assurances du Crédit Mutuel: Chief Executive Officer
3 CIC: Chairman of the Executive Board
@-@-6
Rouanne Guy 319,00 68 %)
AGM 2007
27
Sevian Patrick 41,780 47 . Sagem SA: Director, Networks Division
AGM 2009 (@)
0
Toussan Michel 165,660 65
AGM 2007 @—6
34
Vatier Bernard 1,050 57 . Lawyer, former Chairman of the Bar Association
AGM 2007 @-(3)-6
35

(1) Strategic Committee (set up 2002) — (2} Supervisory Board members Selection Board known as the Selection Committee (set up in 2001)
(3) Remuneration and Options Committee (set up in 2002) — (4) Audit Committec (set up in 2002),

{5) Appointed at Combined O&EGM in April 2001

{6) Provisionally appointed in 2002, appointment ratified at Combined O&EGM in April 2003

(7) Appointed at Combined O&EGM in April 2004

(8) The composition of the Supervisory Board will change following Sagem's takeover of SNECMA

(9) for 2003, paid in 2004 (in thousands of €}
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e Executive Board at 31 December 2004

Age
NAME FIRST NAME 8 COMPANIES IN WHICH THE MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD ARE
Date on which term of MANAGERS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OR BOARD MEMBERS
office ends (4)
44 o .
Olivier Grégoire AGM 2005 . Sagem: Chairman of the Executive Board
. Imerys: Member of the Supervisory Board
. Wendel Investissement: member of the Board of Directors
m
45 . . o
Buffenoir Thierry AGM 2005 . Director, Mobile Phones Division
Paccard Jacques 60 . Director, Aerospace and Defence Division
AGM 200§ (8]
Penalver Georges AGI\?IgZOOS . Director, Internet and Terminals Division and European Sales and Marketing Division
[¢))
Philippe Hervé 47 . Chief Financial Officer
AGM 2005 . NRJ: Member of the Supervisory Board
Q@

(1)  Appointed by Supervisory Board in April 2001
(2)  Appointed by Supervisory Board in April 2003
(3)  Appointed by Supervisory Board in February 2004

Q)

e Management committee

Grégoire Olivier

Thierry Buffenoir

Dominique Castera

Armand Dupuy
Francis Gaillard
Jean-Paul Jainsky
Pascal Labarthe
Xavier Lagarde
Jacques Paccard
Georges Penalver
Hervé Philippe

Patrick Sevian

The composition of the Executive Board will change following Sagem's takeover of SNECMA

Chairman of the Executive Board
Director, Mobile Telephone Division
Director, Human Resources

Director, Research and Development
Chief Administrative Officer

Director, Security Division

Purchasing Director

Director, Manufacturing and Quality
Director, Defence and Security Division
Director, Internet and Terminals Division
Chief Financial Officer

Director, Networks Division
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6.1.1. Operation of the Executive and Supervisory Boards

6.1.1.1 Executive Board

The Company is managed by an Executive Board under the supervision of the Supervisory Board. The
Supervisory Board determines how many people shall sit on the Executive Board, although the maximum
number of members is seven. Members of the Executive Board may but need not be shareholders, but they must
be natural persons.

The members of the Executive Board are appointed by the Supervisory Board. They may be removed from
office by the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders or by the Supervisory Board. Employment contracts any
members of the Executive Board may have with the Company shall not be terminated when they are removed
from the Executive Board.

Members of the Executive Board are appointed for a four-year term, after which the entire Board will be
renewed, in other words after the Annual General Meeting held in the fourth year after their appointment.
Members of the Executive Board may be re-appointed.

Nobody aged over 66 may be appointed to the Executive Board. Any members of the Board in office shall be
deemed to have resigned at the end of the financial year in which they reach this age.

The Supervisory Board shall elect one of the members of the Executive Board as Chairman. The Chairman of the
Executive Board will represent the Company in its dealings with third parties. The Supervisory Board may
change the Chairman of the Executive Board as and when it sees fit.

All deeds and documents executed by the Chairman of the Executive Board shall validly bind the Company vis-
a-vis third parties.

The Executive Board shall meet as and when dictated by the Company's interests. Meetings will be called by the
Board Chairman or at least half of the members, and shall be held at the registered office or in any other place
stated in the notice of the meeting. The agenda will be determined at the meeting. The Chairman of the
Executive Board shall chair meetings. The Executive Board will appoint a secretary, who may but need not be a
member of the Board.

The Executive Board's decisions must be approved by a majority of its members, and voting by proxy is not
authorised. The Chairman shall have the casting vote in the event of a tie. Decisions shall be recorded in minutes
drawn up in a special minutes book and signed by the members of the Board who attended the meeting.

The Executive Board is vested with the broadest powers to act in all circumstances in the Company’s name with
regard to third parties, within the scope of the Company’s objects and subject to those expressly reserved by law
to the Supervisory Board and to meetings of shareholders.

However, the following decisions by the Executive Board shall be subject to the prior authorisation of the

Supervisory Board:

- issues of any kinds of investment securities that are liable to entail a change in the share capital,

- major decisions to establish operations abroad, directly by the establishment of companies, or through direct
or indirect subsidiaries or by the acquisition of interests, or decisions to close down said operations.

- major operations that are liable to affect the Group’s strategy and to change its financial structure or the
scope of its operations.

Assessment of the significant nature of the decision or transaction is the responsibility of the Executive Board.

The Executive Board shall obtain authorisation from the Supervisory Board for the following transactions

whenever such a transaction exceeds an amount of forty million euro:

- purchase or sale of property,

- acquisition or disposal of interests in any existing or future company, involving the creation of any
company, group or institution, subscriptions to any issue of shares, ownership rights or bonds, apart from
cash transactions,

- any exchange, with or without all balancing cash adjustments, relating to assets or securities, apart from
cash transactions,

- inthe event of any dispute, signature of any agreement and transaction, acceptance of any settlement,

- collateral on the company’s assets
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Likewise, the Executive Board shall obtain authorisation from the Supervisory Board for the following
transactions whenever such a transaction exceeds an amount of one hundred and fifty million euro:

- the granting or contracting of any loan, credit and advance,

- the acquisition or disposal of any receivable, by any means.

Likewise, the Executive Board shall obtain the authorisation of the Supervisory Board whenever it provides a
surety bond, endorsement or financial guarantee in the Company's name that exceeds the global limit or
maximum amount set per authorised commitment by the Supervisory Board each year.

It shall report to the Supervisory Board once a year on the use made of such authorisations.

The Executive Board shall convene all General Meetings of Shareholders, draw up the agendas for said meetings
and implement their decisions.

The Executive Board shall submit a report to the Supervisory Board once a month. Within three months
following the closing of each financial year, it shall submit the company and consolidated financial statements as
well as the management report that will be submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders called to approve
the financial statements for the year under review.

Lastly, the Executive Board must forward the projected management documents and related reports to the
Supervisory Board within eight days of their being drawn up.

6.1.1.2 Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board determines the method and amount of remuneration for each of the members of the
Executive Board, and sets the number and terms of share subscription or purchase options that may be granted to
them.

The Executive Board is supervised by a Supervisory Board composed of at least three members and no more
than eighteen members, subject to any special exceptions to this rule allowed in the context of a merger.
Members may include representatives of employee shareholders and the representatives of the State appointed
pursuant to Article 12 of the Act of 25 July 1949. Members’ may be natural persons or legal entities, but must be
shareholders. Members are appointed by the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders, which may remove
them from office at any time.

Legal entities appointed to the Supervisory Board must appoint a permanent representative, who shall be bound
by the same terms and obligations as if he were a member of the Board in a personal capacity.

Whenever a legal entity dismisses its permanent representative, it must immediately appoint a replacement. This
rule also applies in the event of the death or resignation of a permanent representative.

Members of the Supervisory Board may not sit on the Executive Board. Any members of the Supervisory Board
who are appointed to the Executive Board will forfeit their seat on the Supervisory Board when they accept the
seat on the Executive Board.

Members of the Supervisory Board other than representatives of the State must each own at least twenty ordinary
shares during their term of office. All such shares are registered shares.

Members of the Supervisory Board are appointed for a term of six years, subject to the provisions relating to
renewal and the limitations set forth below:

No more than one-third of the members of the Supervisory Board in office may be aged over 70, rounded up to
the next whole number of members.

? In addition to those members appointed pursuant to the law, the agreement signed on 21/12/2004 grants the State a right fo have a non-voting representative on Sagem's Supervisory Board
(cf. §3.2.1.7)
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If this limit is exceeded, the Supervisory Board shall select the members who shall be deemed to have resigned,
on the understanding that those members holding or who have held the office of Chairman of the Supervisory
Board or Vice Chairman shall be the last to resign.

In the event one-third of the members of the Supervisory Board are aged over 70 and all of them have held the
office of Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board, the eldest of them shall be deemed to have
resigned.

Compliance or non-compliance with the maximum limit of one-third of the members of the Supervisory Board
aged over 70 shall be assessed and recorded once a year at the last meeting of the Supervisory Board held in the
calendar year. At this meeting, the Board shall select the member or members who shall be deemed to have
resigned with effect on 31 December of the current year and, if necessary, shall provisionally appoint new
members to replace the outgoing members, with effect from | January of the following year.

Such new members shall only be appointed for the remainder of their predecessors' term of office.
They may be re-appointed, subject to compliance with the foregoing rules on age limits.

The Supervisory Board shall elect a Chairman and a Vice Chairman from those of its members who are natural
persons, with the duty of calling and chairing meetings. They shall be appointed for their terms of office as
members of the Supervisory Board.

The Board shall determine their remuneration, as applicable.

The Chairman shall inform the statutory auditors of any agreements entered into between the Company and a
member of the Executive Board or a member of the Supervisory Board and, more generally, of any agreement of
the type referred to in Article L. 225-86 of the Commercial Code.

The appointments of the Chairman and Vice Chairman shall end no later than at the close of the first Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders to be held after they reach the maximum age limit specified in Article 24 (70).
However, at the Board meeting held after said General Meeting the Supervisory Board may extend said age limit
once or more than once, for a maximum of three years in total.

The Board may also appoint a secretary, who may but need not be a shareholder.

Duties and powers of the Supervisory Board

1. The Supervisory Board exercises permanent supervision over the Company’s management by the Executive
Board in accordance with Article L. 225-68 of the Commercial Code. In this respect, it shall conduct any
verification and controls it deems appropriate and may obtain the disclosure of any document it considers
useful for the fulfilment of its duties.

2. The Supervisory Board may, within the limits that it sets, authorise the Executive Board, with the right to
delegate, to sell property, sell participating interests in whole or in part, and provide security, surety bonds,

endorsements and guarantees in the Company’s name.

The Company cannot invoke lack of authorisation with regard to third parties, unless the Company can
prove that third parties had knowledge thereof or could not be unaware thereof.

3. It authorises the agreements provided for under Article L. 225-86 of the Commercial Code.

4. It shall submit its comments on the Executive Board’s report and on the annual financial statements to the
Annual Ordinary General Meeting.

5. Tt shall decide on the transfer of the registered office in the same French département’ or in a neighbouring
département, provided that such decision is ratified by the next Ordinary General Meeting.

6. The Supervisory Board may grant one or more of its members all special mandates for one or more specific
purposes.

*Translator’s note : administrative division of territory in France

91




Non-voting members of the Board ("Censeurs")

The Supervisory Board may appoint a maximum of two non-voting members of the Board (censeurs) chosen for
their expertise, who must be natural persons and who may but need not be shareholders. These non-voting
members shall advise and inform the Supervisory Board. They shall attend meetings of the Supervisory Board in
an advisory capacity, and may not be represented if they are unable to attend.

They are bound by the same confidentiality obligations as other members of the Supervisory Board.
They shall be appointed for four years.

The age limit for non-voting members is 66. Any non-voting member who reaches this age shall be deemed to
have resigned.

Non-voting members may receive remuneration, to be drawn from the board fees allocated to members of the
Supervisory Board.

6.1.1.3 Report by the Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Ladies and gentlemen,

In accordance with Article L. 225-68 of the Commercial Code, I will now report to you on the preparation and
organisation of the Supervisory Board's work and on the internal control procedures implemented by the
Company. This report describes internal control procedures in use within Sagem SA during the 2004 financial
year.

Since it was set up in 2001 and 2002, following the change of the Company’s legal form to that of a Company
with an Executive Board and a Supervisory Board, the Supervisory Board of Sagem S.A. has established four
committees (Strategic Committee, Remuneration and Options Committee, Audit committee, Supervisory Board
Members Selection Committee). As from the beginning of May 2002, its operation is governed by internal rules
that incorporate most of the recommendations on corporate governance.

A memorandum intended for the group's corporate officers sets forth the legal rules and AMF recommendations
governing the ownership, purchase and disposal of Sagem S.A. securities.

I. PREPARATION AND ORGANISATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD'S WORK

SUPERVISORY BOARD
Members (at 31.12.2004)

The Supervisory Board has 12 members with an average age of 60 years.

The Supervisory Board followed the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF report of October 2003 and
reviewed the situation of each of its members in the light of the independence criteria defined in the
aforementioned report.

The Supervisory Board decided that Mrs Lauvergeon and Messrs Chodron de Courcel, de Combret, Guena,
Lucas and Vatier should be regarded as independent members of the Supervisory Board. Thus, 6 of the 12

members of the Supervisory Board are independent and they represent more than one third of the members of the
Board.

Members of the Supervisory Board

Members of the Supervisory Board each own at least 20 shares, in a personal capacity, in accordance with the
Articles of Association. Each member of the Supervisory Board of Sagem S.A. must refrain from trading in the
shares of companies in respect of which they have insider information.

Officers and any person or entity with whom they are closely related must declare any trading in Sagem SA
shares, in accordance with the Monetary and Financial Code (Article L. 621-18-2) and the AMF's General
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Regulations (Articles 222-14 and 222-15). The AMF has also recommended that Sagem should publish a half-
yearly report on trading in Sagem shares by corporate officers.

Operation of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board shall be convened by any means, in accordance with the law, the Articles of Association
and the internal rules. It shall meet at least four times a year; in particular, to approve the company and
consolidated financial statements and to review the quarterly report of the Executive Committee. At least once a
year, an item on the agenda is devoted to assessing the operation of the Board.

Likewise, it shall deliberate on risks of any kind to which the Company is exposed.

Each member shall be provided with the information he needs to carry out his assignment, in particular, to
prepare each Board meeting.

Moreover, each member of the Supervisory Board shall be provided with all relevant information on major
events for the Company.

Each member of the Supervisory Board may, where appropriate, ask for the training he needs to carry out his
mandate.

Powers of the Supervisory Board

The Company’s Articles of Association and the internal rules of the Supervisory Board stipulate that the prior
authorisation of the Supervisory Board is required for the following decisions:

- issue of any kind of investment securities liable to entail a change in the share capital,

- major decisions to establish operations abroad, directly by the establishment of companies, or through direct
or indirect subsidiaries or by the acquisition of interests, or decisions to close down said operations.

- major operations that are liable to affect the Group’s strategy and to change its financial structure or the
scope of its operations.

The assessment of the significant nature of the decision or transaction is the responsibility of the Executive

Board, regardless of the amounts in question.

Moreover, the authorisation of the Supervisory Board is required for the following transactions whenever such a
transaction exceeds an amount of €40 million (capped at €20 million until the General Meeting held on 20
December 2004 which increased the limit in view of the planned merger with SNECMA):

- purchase or sale of property,

- acquisition or disposal of interests in any existing or future company, involving the creation of any
company, group or institution, subscriptions to any issue of shares, ownership rights or bonds, apart from
cash transactions,

- any exchange, with or without all balancing cash adjustments, relating to assets or securities, apart from
cash transactions,

- inthe event of any dispute, signature of any agreement and transaction, acceptance of any settlement,

Likewise, the authorisation of the Supervisory Board is required for the following transactions whenever such a
transaction exceeds an amount of €150 million (capped at €100 million until the general meeting held on 20
December 2004 which increased the limit in view of the planned merger with SNECMA):

- the granting or contracting of any loan, credit and advance,
- the acquisition or disposal of any receivable, by any means.

Likewise, the authorisation of the Supervisory Board is required for any surety bond, endorsement or financial
guarantee issued in the Company's name that exceeds the global limit or maximum amount set by the
Supervisory Board per authorised commitment each year. For 2004, this limit was €150 million.

The Executive Board shall submit a progress report on the Company to the Supervisory Board at least once a

quarter. It shall also submit, within three months following the closing of each financial year, the company and
consolidated financial statements, the management report to the General Meeting of Shareholders called to
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approve the financial statements for the year under review and the press release on the results to the Supervisory
Board for verification and control.

Lastly, the budgets for the current year are submitted to the Supervisory Board at the first meeting of the year. It
shall be informed of any revisions thereof made during the year.

The Board shall set the remuneration of corporate officers.

Activity of the Board in 2004

The Supervisory Board held 7 meetings in 2004.
The attendance rate at Supervisory Board meetings was 88%.

The Board approved the 2003 company financial statements as well as the quarterly and half yearly financial
statements and devoted the first meeting of 2005 to a review of the 2004 company financial statements and the
2005 budget.

The Board deliberated on planned financial transactions, such as the merger with SNECMA.

Review of the operation of the Supervisory Board

The operation of the Supervisory Board was reviewed with the help of Mr Vatier, Chairman of the Bar Council,
who was designated by the Supervisory Board for that purpose. He asked all Board members for their opinion of
the operation of the Board and their suggestions for improvement. Mr Vatier presented his findings to the
Supervisory Board meeting of 5 February 2004.

SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES
The Supervisory Board may set up one or more special committees.

The Board's internal rules provide for decisions in certain fields to be prepared by special Committees composed
of members of the Supervisory Board, appointed by the Board for this purpose. These special committees review
the matters within their remit and submit their opinions and proposals to the Board. There are four Committees:
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Options Committee, the Supervisory Board Members Selection
Committee and the Strategic Committee. Written minutes are drawn up for the meetings of each of said
Committees. The term of office of members of special committees coincides with their term of office as member
of the Supervisory Board and may be renewed when their term of office as member of the Supervisory Board is
renewed.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition and responsibilities

The Audit Committee is comprised of 3 members, Messrs Mario Colaiacovo, Chairman of said Committee,
Michel Toussan and Michel Lucas, and has the following assignments:

a) in the scope of the review of accounting and financial documents:

- to review the draft half-yearly and annual company and consolidated financial statements prepared by
the financial department before these are submitted to the Supervisory Board and, in particular, to review any
changes to accounting methods and rules applied in preparing the financial statements,

- to review the financial documents issued by the Company at the time of drawing up the annual financial
statements and if need be to express an opinion thereon,

- to oversee the quality of procedures to ensure compliance with stock market regulations,

- to review draft financial statements for the requirements of special transactions, such as contributions,
mergers, payment of interim dividends, etc. made necessary by market transactions,

- to review the authorisation requests submitted by the Executive Board to the Supervisory Board in
connection with major purchases or disposals and capital increases.

94




b) In the scope of the internal and external audit of the Company:

- to review proposals to appoint statutory auditors of the Company and their remuneration,
- to review each year with the statutory auditors:
P their audit plan and conclusions,
P their recommendations.
- to review the follow up of recommendations made by the statutory auditors.
- to assess, with the Administrative Department, the group's internal control systems,
- to review, with the Administrative Department, objectives, work schedule and plans of action in the
field of internal control:
» the findings of their audit and actions,
P their recommendations and the follow up given thereto,
- to review the programme and the results of the internal audit to check that the procedures used to draw
up the Company’s financial statements give a fair view of the Company and comply with accounting rules,
- to assess the reliability of the systems and procedures used to prepare the financial statements and the
validity of decisions taken for the treatment of major transactions,
- to review the reporting of accounting information from foreign subsidiaries.

Activity of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee met four times in 2004. The attendance rate of its members at meeting was 92%
in 2004.

The Chairman of the Committee reported to the Supervisory Board on the Committee’s work.

Each time the financial statements are drawn up, the Committee listens to the Statutory Auditors, after
the presentation of the financial statements and of risks made by the Financial Department and the presentation
of internal audit procedures by the Administrative Department.

The Statutory Auditors attend meetings of the Audit Committee, unless the Committee decides
otherwise.

During 2004, the Committee reviewed the draft annual and half-yearly consolidated financial statements
before they were submitted to the Supervisory Board and expressed its opinion on said financial statements. In
particular, it checked that provisions were adequate in relation to the main risks identified. It closely monitors the
change in overheads.

The Group’s balance sheet and off-balance sheet structure were presented to the Committee.

At its first meeting held on 14 February 2005, the Audit Committee heard the Chief Financial Officer's
presentation of the Company’s global risk management policy. Mapping of the group's risks is currently
underway and several meetings have been held within Sagem's operational divisions and with the Financial

Risks and Operations department. This should enable us to map risks for all the operational divisions by the end
of 2005.

Risk mapping for the functional departments was summarised at a meeting of the Executive Board, and
the main potential risks were identified and ranked. The biggest risks envisaged are those related to product
quality, failure of key suppliers, and potentially serious law suits against the group.

The group plans to implement a plan for monitoring the main risks, with the aim of improving risk
management.
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REMUNERATION AND OPTIONS COMMITTEE

Composition and responsibilities

Composed of three members, Messrs. Mario Colaiacovo, Chairman, Bemnard Vatier and Frangois de
Combret, the Remuneration Committee:

- proposes to the Supervisory Board the criteria for setting the remuneration of Board members, including
benefits in kind, health or retirement benefits and remuneration of any kind received from any of the companies
of the Group. It oversees application of said criteria, in particular, with regard to calculating the variable part,

- informs the Supervisory Board of the policy for allocating stock options and gives an opinion on the list
of beneficiaries,

- is informed of the Group’s remuneration policy, in particular, in respect of the top executives.

Activity of the Remuneration and Options Committee

The Remuneration Committee met five times in 2004. The attendance rate of its members was 100%.

SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS SELECTION COMMITTEE

Composition and responsibilities

The Committee is comprised of the Chairman of the Supérvisory Board, Mr Mario Colaiacovo and
Messrs Bernard Vatier and Michel Lucas, and is chaired by Mr Mario Colaiacovo. The Committee is responsible
for making proposals to the Supervisory Board on the appointment of members and on the replacement of
corporate officers, in particular, in the event of an unforeseen vacancy.

The Selection Committee prepares issues related to corporate governance for review by the Supervisory
Board. It conducts the assessment of the Supervisory Board. It makes a proposal to the Supervisory Board on the
presentation of its members in the annual report and in particular, proposes the list of independent members.

It makes all proposals relating to the composition of the Board. The Chairman of the Selection
Committee is informed prior to the appointment of any member of the Group’s Management Committee.

Activity of the Selection Committee

The Selection Committee held two meetings in 2004, which were attended by all its members.

The Committee discussed the composition of the Board and how it should develop in the future, in
particular, in the light of the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF report.

STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

Composition and responsibilities

This committee has three members: Mr Mario Colaiacovo, Chairman, Mrs Anne Lauvergeon and Mr
Francois de Combret. The Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing any investments and
divestments planned by the Company that could have a major impact on the Company in terms of external and
internal expansion. Meetings are called by the Chairman of the Supervisory Board or by half of its members.

The Chairman of the Executive Board attends this Committee’s meetings.
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Activity of the Strategic Committee

This Committee met three times in 2004, with an attendance rate of 100%, and it has already met in
2005 to review various projects.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Company’s financial statements are jointly audited and certified by Deloitte & Associés,
represented by Messrs Picard and Battisti, and by Constantin Associés, represented by Mr Seguret.

The Statutory Auditors were appointed for six years by the General Meeting of 21 April 2004.

Their terms of office end at the close of the General Meeting scheduled in 2010.

II. EXISTING INTERNAL CONTROL PROCEDURES

General Internal Control Environment

a) External factors

In view of the areas in which its technologies are used (defence, avionics, telecommunications, etc.) and
the high profile of its customers (army, government, operators, etc.), Sagem is used to operating in a regulated
and controlled environment, and to meeting high standards of quality and compliance as regards technical
aspects (certification, customer quality audits) and business aspects (export licences, cost of public contracts).
Sagem was quick to organise its activities in such a way as to successfully meet these requirements, namely by
implementing sophisticated quality control procedures.

b) Internal factors

Internal "quality" manuals cover all aspects of research, procurement, manufacture and in many cases
sales and marketing and business management, defining the group's objectives and standards of quality. Group
methodology, which is usually based on the organisation of operations and the pooling of tasks, responsibilities
and decisions within multidisciplinary teams composed of the so-called "three partners", namely product,
research and production managers, also contributes to developing a culture of staff involvement and collegiality
within Sagem which increases the effectiveness of controls and fosters responsible behaviour. The number of
employees who hold shares in the Company is another important factor in staff motivation.

¢) Accounting environment

In addition to the applicable accounting and financial regulations, Sagem complies with the chart of
accounts for the aeronautics and aerospace industries. Furthermore, the policy of frequent reporting facilitates
permanent control of the quality of the accounts and the reliability of forecasts.

The SAP R/3 system's financial applications keep track of all automated accounting processes.
Preparations for the application of IFRS as from the 2005 financial year at all entities consolidated by Sagem as
at 31.12.04 also provided an opportunity to conduct a thorough review of the accounting rules and methods used,
and to inform subsidiaries of the internal rules, of IFRS rules and the options chosen for adoption of IFRS within
the group, and to organise training for them.

Organisation — Who is involved in Internal Control?

a) General internal control: organisation, main players, role

Sagem's organisation is based on the separation of management tasks, on the one hand, and supervisory
and strategic validation tasks, on the other hand, and also on the principle that operational units are given a large
degree of autonomy, counterbalanced by the setting of objectives and the monitoring of results and operations.
Operational units are backed up by functional departments which define processes and/or draft operating rules
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and standards, are involved in the allocation of resources, and which contribute their expertise in the prevention,
control and management of risks and the creation of synergies.

Internal control is essentially the responsibility of:

Steering: the Supervisory Board authorises the group strategy proposed by the Executive Board. The
Executive Board implements the authorised strategy and determines the general operational objectives
and allocates the resources. The Management Committee coordinates implementation of decisions by
the Executive Board. The heads of the various Divisions and Subsidiaries pass these decisions down
through their structures and verify implementation.

Operations and their supervision: the Divisions/Activities, which have authority over the various
Centres, Subsidiaries and foreign Establishments, and whose work methods are based on the "three
partners” structure already discussed.

Support: the functional departments in that they define the scope of action, delegate actions to
operational entities, verify proper performance of tasks, recommend steering tools and processing tools
and encourage pooling of good practices, methods and procedures.

The Finance Department is responsible for detecting asset risks (protection of resources and financial
transactions, security of assets, insurance, etc.) and protecting the company against these risks,
regulatory watch (legal, tax, etc.), and protecting the corporate image (institutional and financial
communication). Through the foregoing and its role in the execution of financial operations and
transactions, its purpose is to guarantee the security of the company’s financial operations;

The Administrative Department is responsible for control and analysis (management and budget
controls, analysis of operational performance, audits) and develops and manages the related processes
for circulating information and documenting control procedures (management and reporting
applications, budget and reporting procedures, auxiliary and cost accounting). This is a key tool for
detecting risks inherent in achieving objectives.

b) Accounting and financial controls: organisation, main players, roles

The accounting function is organised according to the type of data processed:

tasks pertaining to everyday, recurrent operations (purchases, production, sales, personnel, banks, etc.)
are highly automated and usually carried out at source, in a decentralised manner (in the centre, division
or subsidiary); ‘

assessments and estimates for accounting purposes are carried out by the person or department which
knows most about the operations, risks and related factors and has the best understanding of the
financial implications. Accordingly, these tasks are usually delegated to the management departments in
the centres, divisions or subsidiaries;

lastly, the centralisation and consolidation of data and the preparation of summary statements, as well as
accounts entries, are the responsibility of the Company and Consolidated Accounts Department, which
also manages the chart of accounts, drafis the accounting rules and methods and monitors
implementation thereof.

¢) Independent controls and assignments

Independent controls of the internal control procedures and their effectiveness are performed by:

the Supervisory Board's Audit Committee, which hears the statutory auditors’ report on their
assignment, examines the financial statements and accounting procedures presented by the Executive
Board and management and also looks at how they were prepared, as well as examining operational and
risk control procedures;

the statutory auditors, who organise interim reviews as part of their assignment to verify and audit the
company and consolidated financial statements. The purpose of the interim reviews is to assess the
reliability of the procedures implemented in the various cycles involved in preparing accounting and
financial information.
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In addition to controls by the foregoing, an Internal Audit Department was set up in 2002 within the
Administrative Department and its role was reinforced in 2004. A Charter defines its responsibilities, which
include the development of a cyclical control programme for group Centres and Subsidiaries and, after reviewing
their operations, files, accounting and financial information and internal control procedures, it recommends ways
of improving corporate governance, security and the effectiveness of processes (in particular, accounting and
financial processes), or of further protecting the company's assets and improving compliance with regulations
and rules of conduct.

General internal control procedures

a) Control of regulatory risks

Legal risks relating to commercial regulations and French company law are monitored by the Legal
Department through its standards and legislation watch. The Legal Department is organised according to areas of
expertise. Each specific field of legislation (labour law, products, the environment, accounts, tax, etc.) is
monitored by a specialist team, and information is circulated to the operational units.

b) Control of risks relating to confidentiality

Policies exist to ensure the confidentiality of information communicated both internally and externalty.
Information is protected directly through restricted access, while the security of the computer system also plays a
key role in protecting information and knowledge (networks, applications and data are protected against failures
or hacking).

¢) Control of accounting risks

Accounting risks are assessed at various levels: the risks of errors or omissions in processing
information are monitored through the procedures designed to detect problems, consistency checks, and regular
analyses and checks of supporting documents. The risk of unreliability arising from inappropriate estimates or
valuations is reduced by the policy of frequent and regular account cut-offs and by predefined calculation
methods that allow the personalisation, based on semi-automatic costings, of the most significant estimates and
valuations.

d) Investment controls

Strategic investments and investments necessary to achieve objectives set are the subject of centralised
controls and a centralised authorisation procedure.

Plans to acquire companies or businesses must be approved by the Executive Board and the more
important acquisitions will also be reviewed and assessed by the Strategic Committee before being presented to
the Supervisory Board for approval. The originators of the proposed acquisition and the support functions are
responsible for completion of the acquisition on the approved terms and for monitoring the legal and financial
consequences.

A new procedure was introduced in 2004 for the selection and authorisation of industrial investments,
adding the preparation of long-term investment plans to the traditional signature circuits. Above a set amount,
projects must be authorised by the Executive Board.

¢) Control of commitments

The company's financial commitments must comply with the limitations specified in the Articles of
Association and need to be approved by the Supervisory Board on an annual basis or as and when they arise.

The rule for contractual commitments is that all contracts must be reviewed or drafted by a lawyer
during the negotiations conducted by operational staff. Division heads have been delegated authority to sign
contracts subject to predefined limitations as regards their type, term and the amount involved. The person who
negotiates a contract is responsible for monitoring execution of the contract and the fulfilment of all contractual
obligations.
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The Group policy on purchasing is based on selection and accreditation processes for suppliers and the
definition of needs based on programmes and projects, together with an expense authorisation procedure that
involves different levels of authorisation depending on the type of commitment. The amount of commitments,
terms and actual expenditure is also controlled in the general supervision, management control, accounting and
payment processes.

f) Operational controls

The operational departments are free to organise and conduct their operations as they see fit within the
limits of the delegations granted and the objectives assigned. Because of the diversity of the group's activities,
customised internal control systems are used to control operations. Line management is responsible for such
internal controls, which consist of mechanisms for circulating instructions, methods, appropriate indicators for
monitoring business and results, procedures for delegating authority, and the corresponding supervision.

Operational controls are based on the three main components of management control: budget
procedures, reporting procedures and budget control.

g) Controlling subsidiaries (operational, financial, legal)

Sagem is usually the majority shareholder of a subsidiary, or jointly manages and governs the company.
Decisions to acquire controlling interests or holdings in companies, or to acquire business branches, by
subsidiaries must be approved by Sagem SA in the same way as direct investments by the parent company.

Operational subsidiaries are placed under the responsibility and control of a Division/Activity, which is
responsible for introducing and implementing group standards as regards the organisation of internal control and
compliance with procedures.

The initial operational control of the subsidiaries is the role of the Divisions/Activities through
supervision of rules on delegation of authority established with the subsidiary's management. Internal limitations
on the powers of legal representatives, compatible with their management functions and with the applicable
regulations are being drawn up at subsidiaries.

As well as reporting to the Divisions/Activities and to group internal management control, subsidiaries
must also report to the relevant Head Office departments. The subsidiary's management and the
Division/Activity to which it reports must comply with a dedicated budget control procedure, under the same
conditions and with the same operational monitoring objectives as described above for Divisions/Activities.

The group procedure introduced by the Audit Department for the 2003 financial statements consisting
of the issue of letters of confirmation at year-end by the individuals responsible for the operations and finances
of consolidated subsidiaries was extended in 2004 to cover internal control procedures and the security and
compliance of operations in 2004, Together with internal and external audits, this procedures forms part of the
internal processes for financial control and approval of the subsidiaries' financial statements.

h) Combating fraud

In addition to the policy for selecting partners (suppliers, service providers, customers, banks, etc.),
external fraud is prevented by vigilant monitoring of bank transactions and payments. Bank transactions are
protected by various technological safeguards and the use of secure data transmission systems. Manual and
automated procedures for preventing forgery of cheques or other banking instructions are also implemented.

The prevention of internal fraud and the prevention and detection of collusion to defraud relies on the
careful selection and regular turnover of people in potentially sensitive positions, the pooling of tasks, and a
combination of supervisory methods using different control techniques (control by line management, joint
controls, etc.) adapted to the particular context.

i) Risk mapping

In 2004, Sagem, through the Financial Risks and Operations Department, initiated a formal process of
systematically mapping its risks with the contribution of "owners" and managers of the risks. The aim is to
gradually extend this risk mapping to all its activities, and then to update it regularly, so that managers can
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modify their control and protection solutions as necessary and those responsible for controls can better assess the
relevance and efficiency of the internal control procedures.

Internal control procedures relating to the preparation and processing of accounting and financial
information

a) Company financial statements

The frequency of the accounting cut-offs introduced in the reporting procedure discussed above, and the
identical accounting and management reporting sources, means that two departments collaborate very closely in
the preparation of the annual financial statements: the Company and Consolidated Accounting Department
standardises, plans, centralises and reviews upstream accounting work in order to check its reliability and
uniformity; the Management Control Department coordinates the timing, sequence and execution of accounts
closing operations and monitors feedback of information from the operational entities' management control
departments, in particular their operating figures.

Periodic cut-offs for reporting and budget control purposes, and the statutory auditors' review of the
quarterly statements, mean that analyses and assessments are made throughout the year which contribute to the
efficiency of the annual accounts closing process.

b) Consolidated financial statements

The subsidiaries' reporting procedures mean that summary reports that take into account the
subsidiaries' contribution to turnover and operating results are prepared frequently. The accounts are matched
and fully consolidated at the end of each quarter at the least.

Accounts are consolidated using one of the top software applications currently available, which is also
used by most of the consolidated subsidiaries.

Control of the consolidation process relies to a large extent on the controls of financial data described in
the section on controls of subsidiaries, and in particular on internal and external audits. In particular, for the
purposes of the annual accounts consolidation, the Group's statutory auditors coordinate local auditors so as to
carry out local audits and communicate the findings within a schedule that is compatible with Sagem S.A.'s
accounts cut-off date and the time needed to prepare its financial statements.

c) Preparation, adoption and approval of annual financial statements

Draft company financial statements are reviewed actively and thoroughly by the Financial and
Administrative Departments.

The Executive Board then examines the financial statements and interviews any relevant individuals
before deciding to adopt the statements and submit them to the Supervisory Board for approval.

The Supervisory Board's Audit Committee meets shortly before the Board meeting, inviting the
Financial and Administrative Directors and the statutory auditors to provide explanations and report on controls
made in the course of their audit, respectively. The Supervisory Board then votes on the financial statements, as
presented.

The calling of the General Meeting of Shareholders signals the end of the process. Information on the
annual financial statements is displayed on the institutional web site and communicated in a press release before
the shareholders are asked to approve the financial statements.
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6.1.1.4 Statury auditors’ report, prepared in accordance with article L.225-235 of the Commercial Code,
on the report prepared by the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, en the internal control procedures
relating to the preparation and processing of financial and accounting information

Constantin Associés Deloitte & Associés
26, rue de Marignan 185, avenue Charles-de-Gaulle
75008 PARIS 92200 NEUILLY-SUR-SEINE

SAGEM SA

Société Anonyme

Le Ponant de Paris
27, rue Leblanc
75015 PARIS

Statutory auditors’ report,
prepared in accordance with article L.225-235 of the Commercial Code,
on the report prepared by the Chairman of the Supervisory Board
of SAGEM SA, on the internal control procedures relating to the
preparation and processing of financial and accounting information

For the year ended December 31, 2004

In our capacity as statutory auditors of SAGEM SA (the “Company”), and in accordance with article L.225-235
of the French Commercial Code, we report to you on the report prepared by the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of your Company in accordance with article L.225-68 of the Commercial Code for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

It is the Chairman of the Supervisory Board to give an account, in his report, notably of the conditions in which
the tasks of the Supervisory Board are prepared and organized and the internal control procedures in place within
the Company.

It is our responsibility to report to you our observations on the information set out in the Chairman’s report
concerning the internal control procedures relating to the preparation and processing of financial and accounting
information.
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We performed our procedures in accordance with professional guidelines applicable in France. These require us

to perform procedures to assess the fairness of the information set out in the Chairman’s report on the internal

control procedures relating to the preparation and processing of financial and accounting information. These
procedures notably consisted of:

- obtaining an understanding of the objectives and general organization of internal control, as well as the
internal control procedures relating to the preparation and processing of financial and accounting
information, as set out in the Chairman’s report;

- obtaining an understanding of the work performed to support the information given in the report.

On the basis of these procedures, we have no matters to report in connection with the description of the internal
control procedures relating to the preparation and processing of financial and accounting information, contained
in the Chairman of the Supervisory Board’s report, prepared in accordance with article L.225-68 of the
Commercial Code.

Paris and Neuilly-sur-Seine, February 28, 2005
The Statutory Auditors

Constantin Associés Deloitte & Associés

Jean-Paul SEGURET Philippe BATTISTI Jean-Paul PICARD

This is a free translation into English of a report issued in the French language and is provided solely for the convenience of English speaking readers. This report should be read in
conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards applicable in France.
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6.1.1.5 Trading in Company shares by corporate officers or individuals or legal entities with whom they
are closely related

DECLARATION BY THE CORPORATE OFFICERS OF SAGEM S.A. OF TRADING IN THE COMPANY'S
SECURITIES DURING 2004

GROSS FLOWS * POSITIONS OPEN on the last day of the financial year
Purchase Sale Buy positions Sell positions
Number of corporate 8 2 None None
officers concerned
Call bought None |Call sold None
Number of securities 53,968 11,456  |Put sold None  |Put bought None
[Forward purchases  None [Forward sales None
Weighted average price 56.39 90.81

* including purchases made upon exercise of purchase options and sales to finance said purchases

6.2. Remuneration of corporate officers

6.2.0. Remuneration of corporate officers

Members of the Supervisory Board bodies were allocated board fees of 300,000 euros in 2004 ) for their
responsibilities in controlled companies.

In 2004 the global amount of gross remuneration of the ten best paid members amounted to 1,909,000 euros
®for the fixed portion and 1,054,000 euros! for the variable portion.

Remuneration paid in 2004 to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, (1), the Vice Chairman of the Supervisory
Board (2) and the Chairman of the Executive Board (3), and to four members of the Executive Board: Mr
Buffenoir (4), Mr Paccard (5) Mr Penalver (6) and Mr Philippe (7):

(in thousands of euros)

Remuneration paid by the Company

1) 2) (€)) @ (5) 6) )

Fixed portion (**)750 60 537 142 224 162 137
Variable portion 162 16 374 85 117 57 41
Benefits in kind 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Remuneration paid by controlled companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Benefits in kind received from controlled companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Board fees 42 34 0 0 0 0 0

(*) versus respectively in 2003: 229, 1,818 and 1,092 thousand euros

(**) same amount in 2003, of which €64,000 was paid in 2004

Three members of the Supervisory Board received a salary in 2004 in their capacity as Sagem SA employees: Mr Lagarde (fixed: one
hundred and forty-five thousand euros; variable: ninety thousand euros; board fees: thirty thousand euros), Mr. Dupuy (fixed: one hundred
and forty-eight thousand euros; variable: ninety-one thousand euros; board fees: thirty thousand euros), Mr Sevian (fixed: one hundred and
thirty-six thousand euros; variable: fifty-three thousand euros).

The variable portion of the remuneration of corporate officers is calculated based on the achievement of
objectives set at the beginning of the year. The corporate officers receive a portion of the remuneration based on
the achievement of global objectives (for instance, level of turnover, operating income, operating assets, etc.)
and a portion based on the achievement of individual objectives in their particular area of responsibility.
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6.2.1 Purchase options

6.2.1.1 Summary table

Record of the allocation of share purchase options

INFORMATION ON SUBSCRIPTION OR PURCHASE OPTIONS

1998 Plan 2000 Plan 2001 Plan 2002 Plan 2003 Plan 2004 Plan
Date of the Meeting 19/05/1998 10/05/2000 24/04/2001 17/05/2002 23/04/2003 21/04/2004
Date of the Executive Board 19/05/1998 10/05/2000 24/04/2001 17/05/2002 23/04/2003 21/04/2004
meeting (Board of Directors
meeting prior to 24 April 2001)
Total number of shares that may 265,500 219,240 230,000 200,000 180,000 150,000
be bought
of which:
Number
- corporate officers 39,900 20,580 64,634 47,133 36,167 39,000
(global information)
Number
- first ten employee allottees 85,050 47,460 35,000 37,334 32,667 25,000
(global information)
Starting date for the exercise of 19/05/2001 10/05/2004 24/04/2003 17/05/2004 23/04/2005 21/04/2008
options
Date of expiry 19/05/2005 10/05/2006 24/04/2006 17/05/2007 23/04/2008 21/04/2009
Purchase price 931 50.24 20.51 10.29 10.63 17.26
Methods of exercise (when the
plan has several tranches)
Number of shares bought by 79,560 9,838
allottees at 31/12/2004
0 0 0 0 0 0
Share purchase options cancelled
during the year
Remaining share purchase 133,474 32,340 267,448 219,122 210,087 150,000
options
667,370 161,700 1,337,240 1,095,610 1,050,435 750,000

Share purchase options remaining
after division of par value*

* division of share par value by five, approved by Combined OZEGM on 20 December 2004

NB: these are exclusively share purchase options
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6.2.1.2 Purchase options granted to each corporate officer and options exercised by them

The table below shows the number, expiry dates and prices of the share options granted to each of the corporate
officers by the Company during the past year for duties and responsibilities discharged within the Company, and
provides information on the exercise of options and on the ten Company employees (excluding corporate
officers) who received the greatest number of share purchase options and purchased the greatest number of
shares. Note that the companies affiliated to Sagem SA. do not grant share purchase options. Neither Sagem SA.
nor its affiliated companies have granted share subscription options.

Allocation and exercise of share subscription or purchase options in 2004
Number of shares adjusted to reflect the division of the par value

SHARE SUBSCRIPTION OR PURCHASE OPTIONS

GRANTED TO EACH CORPORATE OFFICER AND |  Number of Price Expiry dates of Plan
OPTIONS EXERCISED BY THE LATTER options allocated P
shares subscribed
or bought
. Options granted during the year to each corporate officer by
the issuer and by any company included in the option
lallocation scope
Olivier Grégoire 50,000 17.26| 21/04/2009 2004
[Paccard Jacques 25,0004 17.26 21/04/2009; 20041
[Penalver Georges 25,000 17.26] 21/04/2009 2004]
[Buffenoir Thierry 25,000 17.26) 21/04/2009 2004
Philippe Hervé 17,5001 17.26 21/04/2009 2004
‘Dupuy Armand 17,500 17.26 21/04/2009, 2004
iLagarde Xavier 17,500 17.26] 21/04/2009] 2004
Sevian Patrick 17,500, 17.26| 21/04/2009; 2004
. Options exercised during the year by each corporate officer
Colaiacovo Mario 35,000 9.31 24/03/2004) 1998
Dupuy Armand 26,250 9.31 24/03/2004] 1998
Dupuy Armand 21,000 9.53 14/09/2004] 1999
iLagarde Xavier 31,500 9.53 14/09/2004; 1999
Paccard Jacques 31,500 9.53 14/09/2004 1999
IPenalver Georges 31,5004 9.53 14/09/2004 1999
iPhilippe Hervé 31,500 9.53] 14/09/2004 1999
Sevian Patrick 31,500 9.53) 14/09/2004; 1999]
ALLOCATION AND EXERCISE OF SHARE Weishted average
SUBSCRIPTION OR PURCHASE OPTIONS TO Number of & ce 8 Plan Plan
EMPLOYEES NOT HOLDING A CORPORATE OFFICE [options allocated P
shares subscribed
or bought
. Options granted during the year by the issuer or any
company included in the option allocation scope to the ten
lemployees of the issuer and any company included in said
iscope with the highest number of options thus granted
IEMPLOYEES NOT HOLDING CORPORATE OFFICE 125,000 17.26 2004
. Options held on the issuer and the companies mentioned
labove, exercised, during the year, by the ten employees of
the issuer and said companies with the highest number of
loptions thus bought or subscribed
[EMPLOYEES NOT HOLDING CORPORATE OFFICE 136,500 9.31 1998
EMPLOYEES NOT HOLDING CORPORATE OFFICE 92,000 9.53 1999

NB: These are exclusively share purchase options
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6.2.2. Regulated agreements

Two agreements were signed on 21 December 2004 in connection with the planned merger with SNECMA, in
accordance with the regulations on privatisations. The agreements were authorised by Sagem's Supervisory
Board on 20 December 2004, which was necessary because of the involvement of Mr Colaiacovo, a corporate
officer in both companies. The first, called "industrial, commercial and financial cooperation agreement” was
signed by Sagem and SNECMA (and a notice was published in the Journal Officiel [official gazette] on 2
December 2004). The second was signed by the State, Sagem and SNECMA and concerned strategic defence
assets and subsidiaries and was designed to protect national interests and preserve national independence (cf.
§3.2.1.7 of this report).

6.2.3. Loans and guarantees granted to corporate officers

None

6.3. Employee profit sharing schemes

63.1. Employee profit sharing and incentive plans

6.3.1.1 Incentive plan

Signed in 1987, the current incentive plan was renewed for the last time on 29 March 2002. It established an
incentive plan calculated, for each calendar half-year, on the basis of growth in operating income and on the
operating income achieved by the Company. The amount is capped at 5% of the payroll expense for the half year
of calculation.

The profit-related bonus is paid to employees who have been on the Company’s payroll for three months or more
in proportion to the remuneration received by employees for the period of calculation. The amounts to be paid
are determined on a six-monthly basis.

Employees have three possibilities for the appropriation of amounts:
- pay the profit bonus to the InterFund Company Mutual Fund which is mainly comprised of Sagem and
Club Sagem securities
- receive the profit-related bonus
- pay the profit-related bonus into a multi-company mutua! fund with a balanced and diversified
investment policy, focused mainly on money market investments.

Results of incentive plan since 2000:

Reference year Amounts (€ million) % of payroll expense
2000 6.8 1.57%
2001 0.0 0.00%
2002 15.2 4.23%
2003 10.7 2.89%
2004 11.5 2.82%

6.3.1.2 Profit sharing agreement:
Sagem introduced the profit sharing scheme in1969 and the last addendum was signed on 26 June 1995.
The profit-related bonus is paid to employees who have been on the Company’s payroll for three months or more

in proportion to the remuneration received by employees for the period of calculation, within the limits of the
maximum amount set by law.
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Employees have three possibilities for the appropriation of amounts:
- pay the profit-related bonus to the InterFund Company Mutual Fund which is mainly comprised of

Sagem and Club Sagem securities
- receive the profit-related bonus

- pay the profit-related bonus into a multi-company mutual fund with a balanced and diversified
investment policy, focused mainly on money market investments.

Results of profit sharing plan since 2000

Reference year

I

Amounts (million of €)

% of the payroll expense

2000 52 1.22%
2001 0.0 0.00%
2002 0.0 0.00%
2003 18.5 5.03%
2004 15.5 3.82%

6.3.2. Options granted to the ten Company employees (excluding corporate officers) who
received the greatest number of share purchase options and options exercised by the ten
Company employees who thus purchased the greatest number of shares.

See table set out in 6.2.1.2
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7. Recent developments and prospects for the future
7.1 Recent developments

7.1.0. SAGEM - SNECMA merger

On 29 October 2004 Sagem and SNECMA announced a plan to merge.

7.1.0.1. Reasons for the merger

This merger project reflects the two companies' shared conviction that demand for electronics technology in the
civil and military aerospace industry will accelerate over the next few years.

The two groups will be merged to create a major player in the high technology sector.

This merger, by applying Sagem's expertise in electronics to the aeronautical equipment markets in which
SNECMA operates, will enable the new group to become a world leader in onboard electronics for aircraft and
helicopters. This is a fast-growing world market, with a high level of technology, in which Sagem’'s R&D teams
combined with SNECMA's strong marketing position should enable the group to take a significant position.

The new group, with a total workforce of over 54,000, will be a leader in high-tech electronics and mechanics,
with a global presence in four business areas:

- Propulsion,

- Aerospace equipment,

- Telecommunications,

- Defence and Security.

The logic behind this business combination relates to five main objectives:
- achieving critical mass in global markets;
- strengthening the capacity for innovation;
- taking positions in three markets with distinct economic cycles;
- creating new markets by incorporating electronic products into aeronautical equipment and
systems;
- astrong employee shareholder base.

7.1.0.2 Terms and conditions of the transaction
s  Public offer

Sagem has made a public offer for all the shares issued by SNECMA, i.e. 270,092,310 shares with a par value of
€1 each. The main offer consists of a share exchange offer and is accompanied by a subsidiary public offer for
tender (Information Memorandum filed with the AMF under number 05 - 017 on 17 January 2005).

As its main offer to SNECMA's shareholders, Sagem is offering to exchange SNECMA shares for shares in
Sagem on the basis of 15 new Sagem shares to be issued for 13 SNECMA shares (Main Offer).

As a subsidiary offer, Sagem is offering to buy SNECMA shares at a price of €20 per share within a global limit
of 62,500,000 SNECMA shares (Subsidiary Offer).

SNECMA shareholders may tender their shares to either the Main Offer or the Subsidiary Offer, or they may
combine the Main and Subsidiary Offers.
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s  Merger

A project to merge SNECMA through absorption by Sagem will be submitted to the shareholders of Sagem and
SNECMA.

The merger parity proposed will be identical to the exchange parity of the public offer, except in the event of the
occurrence, after the offer filing date, of an internal or external event with a significant impact on the value of
Sagem and/or SNECMA thus requiring the revision of the terms and conditions of the merger.

Subject to the offer being successful, the General Meetings of the shareholders of Sagem and SNECMA called to
approve the merger will be held by the end of May 2005 at the latest.

Note that by decision dated 9 December 2004 (Décision et Information n°204C1502), the AMF decided that it
was not necessary for Sagem to file a public buyout offer for SNECMA shares based on the provisions of Article
236-6 of the AMF's General Regulations in the event of the Merger being carried out.

¢ Financing of the operation

The Sagem shares delivered in exchange for SNECMA shares tendered to the offer will be issued by decision of
the Executive Board (or of its Chairman if the Board uses its powers of delegation) based on the powers
delegated to it by the General Meeting of 20 December 2004.

The financing of the subsidiary purchase offer (capped at €1.25 billion) is ensured through a credit line of
€1.295 billion arranged with seven French and international banks.

*  Authorisation

On 17 February 2005, the French shareholdings and transfer commission, Commission des Participations et des

Transferts (CPT) approved the project to merge Sagem and SNECMA and the financial terms and conditions of
the merger.

A Ministerial Order dated 17 February 2005 and published in the Official Journal on 19 February 2005,
establishes the terms and conditions for the transfer from public to private ownership of the majority of the
capital of SNECMA. The State will tender 145,687,168 SNECMA shares to the subsidiary purchase offer. In
view of the cap set on the subsidiary offer (62,500,000 SNECMA shares), the shares tendered by the State to the
Subsidiary Offer will be subject to a proportional reduction and the shares that cannot be sold in the context of
the subsidiary offer will be deemed to have been tendered to the main share exchange offer (on a basis of 13
SNECMA shares for 15 Sagem shares).

7.1.1 Organisation and functioning of the new group

Following the merger, Sagem, which will head the new group, will change its name. In this respect, the General
Meeting of Sagem shareholders called to approve the merger will decide on the company's change of name.

As soon as the planned merger has taken place, the new group will adopt an organisation by business line. The
group's operating subsidiaries, characterised by a good market/product fit, will be organised in four business
divisions: Propulsion, Aerospace equipment, Defence and Security and Telecommunications, the management of
the former SNECMA group subsidiaries will remain unchanged.

The spinning off into subsidiaries of Sagem's operating activities will be carried out at the same time as the
merger and by the end of 2005 at the latest. SNECMA's operating activities are already carried out by
subsidiaries and organised by business line in the Propulsion and Equipment divisions.
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7.1.1.1 Corporate governance

The entity formed by the merger of SNECMA and Sagem will continue to be a limited company with an
Executive Board and a Supervisory Board.

With a view to the merger, the General Meeting of Sagem shareholders held on 20 December 2004 amended
Sagem's Memorandum and Articles of Association so as to adapt them to the size of the new entity, notably with
regard to the thresholds above which the transactions referred to in the said Articles of Association require prior
authorisation from the Supervisory Board.

The General Meeting of 20 December 2004 also approved, subject to the successful outcome of the Offer, and
with effect from the settlement/delivery date, the following changes in the composition of the Supervisory Board
and the Executive Board.

Supervisory Board

Sagem's Supervisory Board shall, subject to the successful outcome of the Offer, and with effect from the
settlement/delivery date, and as long as the post merger share ownership structure undergoes no significant
changes, be composed of 18 members, appointed for a term of six financial years, as follows:
§ 4 members from SNECMA's present Board of Directors,
§ 5 members representing the State, whether members of SNECMA's present Board of Directors or not,
appointed by the State under the provisions of Article 12 of the Law of 25 July 1949,
§ 9 members from Sagem's present Supervisory Board.

To this end, after noting the resignations of all the members of the present Supervisory Board, the General
Meeting of 20 December 2004 appointed, subject to the successful outcome of the Offer, and with effect from
the settlement/delivery date, and for a term of six financial years, the following people to the Supervisory Board:

Mario Colaiacovo;
Frangois de Combret;
Armand Dupuy;
Yves Guéna;

Xavier Lagarde;
Anne Lauvergeon;
Michel Lucas;
Michel Toussan;
Bernard Vatier;
Jean-Marc Fornéri;
Shemaya Lévy;
Dominique Paris; and
Jean Rannou.
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Also, on the same occasion, the General Meeting noted that five additional members would be appointed to the
Supervisory Board by the State (by Ministerial Order) under the applicable regulations thus bringing the number
of Supervisory Board members to 18. The State has informed SNECMA and Sagem that, subject to the
successful outcome of the Offer, and with effect from the settlement/delivery date, it intends to appoint Messrs
Moraillon, Wachenheim, Jost, Penne and Leclercq to the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board shall include, among its 18 members, two members representing the employee
shareholders and proposed by the body representing the company's employee shareholders, with one member
chosen from Sagem's present Supervisory Board and one member chosen from SNECMA's present Board of
Directors. The Supervisory Board shall make every effort to ensure that the appointments of the two members
representing the employee shareholders take place within one year from the date of the merger.
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Mario Colaiacovo will be the Chairman of the Supervisory Board. Board decisions will be taken by a majority of
the members present or represented. In the case of an even number of votes, the Chairman shall have the casting
vote.

In the event of any significant change in the company's ownership, the composition of the Supervisory Board
will be adjusted accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of the Law of 25 July 1949.

Dominique Noguera (Sagem) will be responsible for the Secretariat of the Supervisory Board

Supervisory Board Committees

Sagem and SNECMA have agreed that four committees will be set up within the Supervisory Board of Sagem as
from the Offer settlement/delivery date: an audit committee, a strategic committee, an appointments committee
and a remuneration committee.

Non-voting members of the Board ("Censeurs")

The General Meeting of Sagem's shareholders on 20 December 2005 amended the Articles of Association to
enable the Supervisory Board to appoint a college of non-voting board members (censeurs) composed of at least
two people chosen for their expertise, who may but need not be shareholders. These non-voting members shall
advise and inform the Supervisory Board. They shall attend meetings of the Supervisory Board in an advisory
capacity, and may not be represented if they are unable to attend.

Sagem and SNECMA intend to appoint Georges Chodron de Courcel and Patrice Durand as non-voting members
of the Board with effect from the Offer settlement/delivery date.

Executive Board

Subject to the success of the offer, and with effect from the settlement delivery date, the present members of
Sagem's Executive Board will resign. The accounting cut-off date and publication of the respective financial
statements of the two companies for the financial year ended 31 December 2004 is scheduled for 16 February
2005, i.e. before the settlement/delivery date.

As from the settlement/delivery date, and as soon as Sagem's present Executive Board has presented Sagem's

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2004 to the Supervisory Board, the Executive Board of
Sagem will be as follows’:

§ Jean-Paul Béchat, Chairman (SNECMA)
§ Yves Imbert (SNECMA)
§ Grégoire Olivier (Sagem)

® Each person's name is followed by the name of the entity to which they belong (Sagem or Snecma).
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The Executive Board will be supported by the following central functions:

W wn W W
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Aerospace Propulsion Division:
Aerospace Equipment:

Defence & Security Division:
Telecommunications Division:

Corporate and Institutional:

Assisted by * Human Resources:

¢ Corporate Communications:

Economic and Finance:
Assisted by e Finance Department:
* Management Control:

* Mergers - Acquisitions:
General Secretariat:
Assisted by e Legal:

e Audit and Internal control:

Quality:

Research and Technology:

Industry and Information Technology:
International:

Progress Action:

Jean-Paul Herteman (SNECMA)
Dominique Hédon (SNECMA)
Jacques Paccard (Sagem)
Grégoire Olivier (Sagem)

Dominique-Jean Chertier (SNECMA)
Dominique Castera (Sagem)

Frangoise Descheemaeker (SNECMA)
Noél Gauthier (SNECMA)

Hervé Philippe (Sagem)

Francis Gaillard (Sagem) and Pierre-Jean Flores

(SNECMA)

Bernard Lebrun (SNECMA)
Alain Marcheteau (SNECMA)
Bruno Giuliani (SNECMA)
Jacques Jacob (SNECMA)

Xavier Lagarde (Sagem)
Armand Dupuy (Sagem)
Jean-Michel Clin (SNECMA)
Frangois Courtot (SNECMA)
Gérard Le Page (SNECMA)

7.1.1.2 Impact of the takeover on Sagem's capital and voting rights

Based on the terms of the offer and assuming the following (see section 1.9.5.1 of the Information Memorandum
filed under no. 05-017) :
The tender by the State to the Subsidiary Offer of a number of shares representing around 54% of
SNECMA's capital, the number of SNECMA shares tendered to the Subsidiary Offer being subject to

§

§

§
§

If the public offer is successful, the State has stated its intention of implementing, before the merger, a share

reduction;

100% of SNECMA shares held by the public tendered to the Subsidiary Offer, the number of
SNECMA shares tendered to the Subsidiary Offer being subject to reduction;
own shares held by SNECMA are tendered to the Main Offer;

a subscription rate of 50% for the Offer Reserved for Employees;

ownership offer for employees and former employees of the SNECMA group.
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7.1.1.3 Breakdown of Sagem's capital and voting rights following the merger

Chart based on the assumptions described above

, 33.6%
Other % 23.5%

shareholders

% of capital % of voting rights

FCPE = Company Mutual Fund

7.1.2  Strategy of the new group (see section 1.1.3 of the Information Memorandum filed
under no. 05-017)

The merger of Sagem and SNECMA will create a new group and will be based on the following strategic
orientations:

Consolidate and develop leading positions in all its business lines:

- through continuous efforts in research and development to ensure the technological independence of the
new group and mastery of cutting-edge skills;

- by applying the high-tech skills thus acquired to products and systems for robust markets offering a
good outlook for profitable growth;

- by managing the entire life cycle of its products, from conception through to maintenance;

- by consolidating the existing partnerships;

- byremaining open to new partnerships, if these are compatible with existing partnerships;

- by strengthening ties with customers by setting up strategically located operations;

- by winning, alone or in partnership, significant parts of all major new programmes in the aerospace,
defence/security and telecommunications sectors;

- by continuing to develop a large system manager capacity in the aerospace sector so as to present
customers with a coherent global offer;

- by continuing to examine selective acquisition opportunities with even greater resources.

Increase the new group's ability to adapt to business cycles:

- by constantly adjusting its size and industrial organisation;

- by continuing to develop service and maintenance activities;

- by preserving a business portfolio of activities with different and complementary life cycles: civil
aerospace, defence/security, and telecommunications, with each activity able to develop more strongly
thanks to the support of a global company.
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Improve financial performances:

- by leaning on the growth in the installed bases in the aerospace, telecommunications and
defence/security sectors to increase the weight of high-margin activities {spare parts, etc.);

- by stepping up ongoing progress initiatives;

- by constantly seeking technological, industrial, commercial and financial synergies within the new
group;

- by using every reasonable means of reducing the impact of exchange rate fluctuations;

- by setting in place a strengthened structure enabling the group to exercise even stricter control over all
the economic and financial parameters.

Encouraging employee share ownership and the creation of a stable share ownership structure:

- by providing all the shareholders with regular and reliable financial information and ensuring them an
attractive return on investment;

- by a policy designed to encourage employee share ownership, which is the guarantee of a dynamic and
enterprising corporate culture.

7.1.3 Expected financial advantages

The merger logic and strategic direction of the new group as described above will enable industrial and
commercial synergies to be generated as well as synergies at administrative and procurement (excluding
production) levels.

At the same time as the expected synergies, the new group will benefit from an improved business balance,
reduced exposure to currency risk and a stronger stockmarket status.

(a) Synergies (see section 1.1.2.2.(a) of the Information Memorandum filed under no. 05-017)

The excellent fit between SNECMA and Sagem will enable the new group to generate significant and
lasting synergies.

These synergies consist of two types:

§ short-term synergies, i.e. which can be implemented and measured by 2008 at the latest;

§ medium-to-long-term synergies, resulting principally from the enhancement of the product range and
the offer of new generations of products and services that meet customers' (aircraft manufacturers,
airlines) needs for future programmes; in view of the development and qualification cycle of
aeronautic products, these benefits will not feed through until after 2008. These synergies, although
already partly identified, have not been included in the analysis below.

For the purpose of estimating these synergies, SNECMA and Sagem formed 15 mixed teams composed of
managers of operating units in each group. In its respective field, each team identified (i) internal productivity
gains, (i) procurement savings and (#ii) the prospects of new markets resulting from the merger.

Only the data confirmed by the teams was used. Consequently the synergies listed are an initial base. Further
work will open possibilities in two directions:

§ examine initial synergies in greater depth;

§ seek new synergies other than those identified by the initial 15 teams.
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All the work carried out was reviewed by Roland Berger Strategy Consultants, an international firm specialised
in defence and aerospace and which has already completed numerous assignments for both groups. This firm
participated in the work carried out by the 15 teams, conducted interviews and compared the results with its in-
house benchmarks for mergers-acquisitions and with its own in-depth knowledge of both groups. Its findings
amply confirm the expected gains listed below.

Source of synergies

The productivity gains result from sharing best practices, optimising research and development resources,
pooling resources and the cross utilisation of know-how. The following examples are given by way of
illustration:

§ at industrial and commercial level: improved management of electronics in SNECMA's products
(optimisation of research work, better handling of obsolescence issues by pooling requalifications for
programmes common to the two groups or by optimising safety reserves, etc.); utilising SNECMA's
expertise in aerodynamics, thermodynamics and fluid mechanics at Sagem's UAV units, counterparty
management, etc.;

§ at administrative level: information systems, the pooling and streamlining of support functions within
the new group.

Savings at procurement level result from price benchmarking on the best terms obtained from suppliers,
globalisation of volumes, reducing the number of suppliers, and standardisation of specifications. For purchases
excluding production, an improvement in procedures has been systematically sought. The following examples
are given by way of illustration:
§ at industrial and commercial level: electronic components, concentration and redistribution of
subcontracted studies, small mechanical parts, logistics;
§ at the level of purchases excluding production: buildings maintenance, office supplies, service
providers (telephone, consulting, IT services, etc.) ;
§ at administrative level: optimisation of geographic presence, grouping of IT management centres.

The increase in turnover results from:

§ pooling sales forces whose global presence is highly complementary, which immediately offers
access to a larger client base for existing products; this effect comes into play essentially for the sale
of Sagem products already on the shelves through SNECMA's network (flight control systems,
instrument panels, ACMS, UAV, etc.)

§ an increase in the use of electronics in certain aeronautic equipment which will thus reach the market
sooner: this concerns mainly the development of equipment with a view to an "all electric" aircraft
(brake control systems, thrust reversers, landing systems, etc.);

§ a stronger commercial offer, with the good fit between the two groups enabling the new group to
offer optimum solutions to its customers; this concerns principally modemisation and repairs;

§ SNECMA's growing presence in the world aerospace market, thus facilitating the sale of Sagem
products in the civil aerospace market.

In summary, the gains expected in 2008 are estimated at between €163 million and €205 million of
EBITA".

These gains can be grouped under three broad functional headings as follows:

Type of activity Estimated synergies in 2008 (€ million)
Industrial and commercial activities 88to 119
Purchases excluding production 40 to 51
Administration around 35

!9 EBITA: Eamings before interest, taxes and amentisation (operating profit before goodwill but afier employee profit sharing).
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The schedule for completion of the measures required to generate these synergies and the expected impact in the
new group's accounts are shown in the charts below.

Synergies Snecma-Sagem
completed actions (locked-in gains)

250 =
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O maximum
minimum |
S —
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2005 2006 2007 2008

Note: a gain is deemed to be locked-in in the year in which all the measures that
will generate the gain are completed (example: signature of a purchase contract at
a lower price).

Actions completed in 2006 will represent 80% of total gains expected in 2008.

Synergies Snecma-Sagem 7
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Half of the gains expected out to 2008 will show up in EBITA for the 2006 financial year.
These synergies are independent from the progress plans regularly implemented by the various companies. In

this respect, the plan currently underway at SNECMA is aimed at achieving savings of around €500 million by
2008.

The auditors have not expressed an opinion or given any undertaking as to the reliability of the information
relating to synergies provided above. They decline any responsibility relating to the said information, which does
not constitute forecast data.

(b) Reduced exposure to currency risk

SNECMA is exposed to changes in the dollar exchange rate, which is the reference currency in the aerospace
market, whereas its cost base, despite an already significant international presence, continues to be mainly in
euros. For its part, Sagem's telecommunications business buys more components in dollars and yens than it
generates turnover in these currencies, and thus complements SNECMA. The planned merger will thus
automatically reduce the exposure to currency risk of the new entity compared with the combined exposure of
the two groups taken separately.
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35%

(0.4)

(9%)

® Snecma Sagem 2 Snecma + Sagem

In view of the symmetrical positions described above, the new group formed by the merger of SNECMA and
Sagem will have a net dollar exposure representing only 16% of estimated proforma 2004 turnover, i.e. nearly
half that of SNECMA taken on its own.

(c) A stronger stockmarhket status

The new group will enjoy greater stockmarket visibility thanks to greater trading volumes and liquidity,
increased coverage by analysts and the likelihood of the new group being included in certain indices: its market
capitalisation, liquidity and industrial profile should qualify it for inclusion in the CAC 40 index.

7.1.4 Accounting methods applied to the operation (see section 1.8 of the Information
Memorandum filed under no. 05-017)

In the 2005 financial statements, the public offer and merger will be accounted for according to IFRS with, in
particular, the reassessment under IFRS 3 of all the assets and liabilities of the acquired company, SNECMA.

The Sagem and SNECMA business combination, in the context of the proforma financial statements, is
accounted for according to French generally accepted accounting principles based on the historical financial
statements.

The acquisition cost shall be equal to the fair value of the shares issued by Sagem in exchange for SNECMA
shares tendered to the Main Offer, along with an additional maximum cost of €1,250 million relating to the
Subsidiary Offer (assuming oversubscription of the subsidiary offer).

The proforma consolidated financial statements of the future group therefore comprise the following:

- The assets and liabilities of the Sagem group recorded and valued at their historical book value prior to the
business combination, and

- the assets and liabilities of the SNECMA group incorporated in the consolidated financial statements of the
new group, the surplus acquisition cost corresponding to Sagem's share of the historical value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of SNECMA being accounted for in accordance with the applicable accounting principles.
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7.1.5 Impact of the offer on Sagem's earnings and financial results and on the consolidated
financial statements (see section 1.9 of the Information Memorandum filed under no. 05-017)

7.1.5.1 Introduction to the combined proforma financial statements

The combined proforma financial statements, presented in a summary form and not audited (the Proforma
Financial Statements) have been prepared according to French generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
under the responsibility of the Chairman of the Executive Board of Sagem. They are designed to reflect, for
indicative purposes only, the financial situation, assets and results of the combined Sagem/SNECMA group
without preliminary allocation of the acquisition costs to identifiable assets and liabilities and as though the
merger had been carried out on 1 January 2003, i.e. the first day of the oldest financial period presented.

These Proforma Financial Statements can not be representative of the results and financial situation of the
combined activities of Sagem and SNECMA that might have resulted from the merger being carried out at the
date taken as the basis for preparing these statements. Neither do they provide any indication of the future results
or financial situation of the combined activities. The proforma financial data does not integrate any effect arising
from the consolidation of SNECMA's assets and liabilities at their fair value within the combined group, nor the
effects of any of the synergies expected nor the costs of implementing these synergies. Lastly, it does not take
into account the changes in accounting methods linked to first time adoption of IFRS as from 1 January 2005.

7.1.5.2 Proforma summary financial statements

o  Proforma summary balance sheet as at 30 June 2004

SAGEM - SNECMA - Proforma
. - Historical - Historical - | adjustements -
Combined balance sheet at 30 June 2004 (€ million) French GAAP | French GAAP | French GAAP
(1) ) (not audited)
Goodwill {(of which GW on first consolidation) 86 707 300
Intangible assets 15 285
Tangible assets 279 1141

Long-term investments 21

FIXEDASSETS ... ..

Inventories and work in progress 712 2088
Receivables 1223 2809
Marketable securities, cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT ASSETS

TOTALASSETS |

Share capital 36 270
Additional paid-in capital, reserves and other

Income (loss

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY . ‘ 17l . -
Minority Interests 1 94
PROVISIONS 267 1295
Borrowings 64 1370

Received on account
Trade payables and other liabilities
LIABILITIES

{1) Not audited but submitted to a limited review
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¢ Proforma summary income statement as at 30 June 2004

Depreciation and pr0w5|

NET FINANCIAL REVENUE CHARGES
ORDINARY INCOME .
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

SAGEM - SNECMA - Proforma
. - Historical - Historical - | adjustements -
Combined statement at 30 June 2004 (€ million) French GAAP | French GAAP | French GAAP
1) (1) (not audited)
Turn over 1663 3274 0]
Other income and operating expenses 56 122 0
Purchases consumed -1182 -1 803 0
Pesonnel expenses -368 -1126 0} -
Taxes and duties -72 0
0 gt
g

Corporation tax
NET INCOME OF CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES .
Share of income of companies consolidated under the equity method
Goodwill amortisation
CONSOLIDATED NETINCOME |+
Minority interests
NET.INCOME L
(1) Not audited but submitted to a hmned review

¢  Summary proforma combined income statement for 2003

OPERATINGINCOME. = =
NET FINANCIAL REVENUE CHARGES
ORDINARY INCOME e
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

we
SR

Depreciation and Erovisions

SAGEM - SNECMA - Proforma

. s Historical - Historical - | adjustements -

Combined statement at 31 December 2004 (€ million) French GAAP | French GAAP | French GAAP
{1) (1) (not audited)

Tum over 3180 6431
Other income and operating expenses 12 74
Purchases consumed -2222 -3582
Pesonnel expenses -681 -1987
Taxes and duties -55 -142

Corporation tax
NET INCOME OF CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES

Goodwill amortisation

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME
Minority interests
NET INCOME

(1) Not audited but submitted to a limited review

Share of income of companies consolidated under the equity method‘ =
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¢ Notes to the summary combined preforma financial statements
Historical data used to prepare the Proforma Financial Statements

The Proforma Financial Statements including the balance sheet as at 30 June 2004 and the income

statements as at 31 December 2003 and 30 June 2004 have been prepared based on:

§ The summary interim consolidated financial statements of the Sagem group relating to the period
from 1 January 2004 to 30 June 2004, prepared under the responsibility of the Chairman of the
Executive Board according to French accounting principles. These financial statements were
submitted to a limited review by the audit firms Deloitte & Associés and Constantin Associés
according to the professional standards applicable in France and did not give rise to any qualification
or observation;

§ The interim consolidated financial statements of the SNECMA group for the period from 1 January
2004 to 30 June 2004, prepared under the responsibility of the Chairman of the Board of Directors
according to French accounting principles. These financial statements were submitted to a limited
review by the audit firms Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Mazars & Guérard according to the
professional standards applicable in France and did not give rise to any qualification or observation;

§ The consolidated financial statements of the Sagem group for the financial year ended 31 December
2003, prepared by the Executive Board according to French accounting principles as presented in the
Reference Document registered with the AMF on 6 April 2004 under no. R.04-048. These financial
statements were audited by the audit firms Calan Ramolino & Associés and Alain Lainé according to
the professional standards applicable in France and were certified without qualifications but with the
following observations relating to:

§ the change in the accounting method resulting from early application, as from 1 January 2003, of
the recommendations of CNC regulation no. 2003-R.01 of 1 April 2003 relating to the
accounting and valuation rules applicable to pension and similar obligations;

§ the change in the presentation in the income statement of joint advertising expenses incurred
with mobile telephone operators, which are now deducted from consolidated turnover.

§ The consolidated financial statements of the SNECMA group for the financial year ended 31
December 2003, prepared by the Board of Directors in accordance with French accounting principles,
as presented in the base document registered with the AMF on 4 May 2004 under no. 1.04-072. These
financial statements were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Mazars & Guérard according to
the professional standards applicable in France and were certified without qualifications or
observations.

Accounting principles used for the preparation of the Proforma Financial Statements

The historical financial statements used as the basis for preparing the Proforma Financial Statements were
prepared according to French accounting principles as described in the notes to the financial statements of
Sagem and SNECMA for the year ended 31 December 2003.

However, an examination of the accounting principles and methods applied has enabled us to identify, on

a number of precise points, differences in the accounting methods used by the two groups in the following

areas:

§ The discounting of deferred tax, which is carried out at the Sagem group level but not at the
SNECMA group level;

§ The capitalisation of development expenses for certain products at SNECMA which is not the case at
Sagem;

§ The early application by Sagem, as from 1 January 2003, of the recommendations of CNC regulation
no. 2003-R.01 of 1 April 2003 relating to the accounting and valuation rules applicable to pension
and similar obligations, which was not applied in full by the SNECMA group until 30 June 2004.

No restatement for harmonisation purposes was made in the preparation of the Proforma Financial
Statements given the insignificant effect of these differences at the level of the new group's proforma
shareholders' equity.

In terms of the presentation of the summary financial statements (balance sheet and income statement)
there are no differences between Sagem and SNECMA.

Lastly, these financial statements are presented after the merger of Sagem and SNECMA.
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Basis for the preparation of the Proforma Financial Statements

Acquisition costs

The acquisition cost shall be equal to the sum of:

§ The cost of the Subsidiary Offer (assumed to be oversubscribed);

§ The market value of the Sagem shares used in the principal share exchange offer, valued based on the
average share price in November 2004 adjusted by the division of the par value by five;

§ The costs directly linked to the acquisition, net of tax, have not been taken into account at this stage.

Number of SNECMA shares in issue at 30 November 2004 ) 270,092,310
Cancellation of treasury shares held by SNECMA (2,824,560)
Number of shares concerned by the Subsidiary Offer (62,500,000)
Theoretical number of SNECMA shares concerned by the Main Offer (1) 204,767,750
Share exchange ratio (15 Sagem shares for 13 SNECMA shares) (2) 0.8666

Theoretical number of Sagem shares issued to remunerate SNECMA
shareholders (3) = (1)/(2)

236,270,481
Average closing price of Sagem share in November 2004 adjusted to take
account of the division of the par value by five (4) 14.006
Estimated fair value of Sagem shares issued as part of the capital increase
to remunerate SNECMA shareholders (5)=(3)*(4) €3,309 million
Maximum cost of Subsidiary Offer (6) €1,250 million
Costs directly linked to acquisition (7) Not estimated
Estimated acquisition cost (5)+(6)+(7) €4,559 million

The actual date for fixing the value of the shares will be the settlement/delivery date of the Sagem shares
issued in the context of the Main Offer. A rise or fall of €1 in the share price, relative to the price used for
preparing the Proforma Financial Statements could lead to an increase or decrease in the acquisition cost
and in goodwill on first consolidation of €236 million, and annual amortisation of goodwill on first
consolidation could increase or decrease by €11.8 million.

Goodwill on first consolidation

The goodwill on first consolidation before allocation of the acquisition costs to identifiable assets and
liabilities amounts to €4,008 million for adjusted net assets of €551 million for the SNECMA group.

No preliminary attribution of acquisition costs was carried in the preparation of the Proforma Financial
Statements as the attribution according to French accounting principles would not be representative of that
which will be carried out in 2005 under IAS/IFRS; as a convention, this goodwill on first consolidation is
amortised in the Proforma Financial Statements over a period of 20 years.

Book value of net assets acquired €1.258 million

Cancellation of goodwill (€707 million)

Adjusted value of net assets acquired €551 million

Estimated acquisition cost €4,559 million

Goodwill on first consolidation before attribution of acquisition

cost to identifiable assets and liabilities €4,008 million

Goodwill on first consolidation recorded in the proforma

balance sheet as at 30 June 2004, taking into account

amortisation as from 1 January 2003 €3,708 million
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The main SNECMA consolidated balance sheet headings that will be affected by the imputation of
acquisition costs to identifiable assets and liabilities are as follows:

Intangible assets (order book, customer relations, etc.);

Research & development;

Inventories;

Effect of deferred tax on imputation to assets and liabilities thus identified;

Financial instruments.

W@ W W

Cost of financing the Subsidiary Offer

The amount paid in the context of the Subsidiary Offer of a maximum amount of €1,250 million will be ensured
by a credit line arranged with seven French and international banks. The Proforma Financial Statements
therefore include the interest expenses, net of tax, that would have resulted since 1 January 2003 on a proforma
basis; these have been estimated at a normative rate of 3.5% resulting in interest expenses of respectively
€46 million in 2003 and €24 million in the first half of 2004. This charge has given rise to the taking into
account of a tax effect calculated on the basis of a 35% tax rate.

Intra-group transactions

Given the non-material nature of intra-group transactions between the Sagem and SNECMA groups, these were
not eliminated for the preparation of the Proforma Financial Statements.

Changes in the consolidation scope

The Proforma Financial Statements do not include any changes in the consolidation scope of the Sagem and
SNECMA groups since 30 June 2004 and do not integrate any future changes in the consolidation scope arising
from internal reorganisation or acquisitions already announced.

Details of proforma adjustments

The following adjustments were made in respect of the Proforma Financial Statements:

(a)  Elimination of historical goodwill recorded in SNECMA's consolidated financial statements, and of
the corresponding amortisation charges, for the following amounts:

e €707 million in net value in the proforma balance sheet as at 30 June 2004;
o €24 million of goodwill amortisation in the proforma income statement for the first half of 2004
and €48 million in the 2003 proforma income statement.

(b) Recognition of goodwill on first consolidation, before imputation of the acquisition cost to
identifiable assets and liabilities, for a gross amount at 30 June 2004 of €4,008 million and for a net
amount of €3,708 million; the corresponding amortisation charge amounts to €100 million in the
income statement for the first half of 2004 and to €200 million in the income statement for 2003.

(c¢) The taking into account of the borrowings resulting from the cash offer (€1,250 million) and
interest thereon. Interest expense was calculated at a normative rate of 3.5% resulting in an interest
expense of €46 million in the proforma income statement for 2003 and an expense of €24 million in
the income statement for the first half of 2004; this expense was adjusted for a tax effect calculated
based on a rate of 35%, corresponding to a reduction in tax of €16 million in 2003 and €8 million in
the first half of 2004.

(d)  Adjustments in shareholders' equity as follows:
¢ Cancellation of the historical net assets of the SNECMA group (decrease of €1,258 million)

* Taking into account of increase in Sagem's capital (increase of €3,309 million)
¢ Goodwill amortisation (decrease of €300 million)
¢ Adjustment for the cost of additional borrowings (decrease of €46 million)
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7.1.5.3 Significant differences between French GAAP and IAS/IFRS

The Proforma Financial Statements have been prepared according to French GAAP, these differ in some aspects
from the IAS/IFRS standards that apply as from 1 January 2005. These differences relate mainly to the
following:

§ Application of IAS 39 in respect of foreign exchange hedges: recognised in the balance sheet using the
cash-flow hedge method for valuing hedging instruments that are currently recorded under off balance
sheet items (SNECMA),

§ Tangible assets: revaluation of land and buildings, on the one hand, and recording of fixed assets by
component and revision of certain depreciation periods, on the other (SNECMA and SAGEM);

§ Capitalisation of development and research expenses: obligation to capitalise the totality of
development expenses when these meet six precise criteria (SAGEM);

§ Goodwill on acquisition, which will no longer be amortised, but will be subject to an annual impairment
test (SAGEM and SNECMA);

§ Stock options: recording under expenses of the value of the options allocated and cancellation of own
shares currently recorded in the balance sheet under marketable securities (SAGEM);

§ The accounting, according to IAS 19, of pension funds and similar obligations, currently recorded under
off balance sheet items (SNECMA).

7.1.5.4. Earnings per share

In the Proforma Financial Statements, as the merger is supposed to have taken place at 1 January 2003, earnings
per share have been calculated based on net income divided by the number of shares making up the capital of
Sagem (after the five to one share split decided by the General Meeting of Sagem shareholders on 20 December
2004 and the various legal operations).

At 31 December 2003,

Proforma earnings per share: €120 million divided by 417,029,585 = €0.29 per share

Proforma net income before goodwill: €327 million divided by 417,029,585 = €0.78 per share

Proforma net income before goodwill and exceptional items (based on the respective implicit tax rate for each
company): €346 million divided by 417,029,585 = €0.83 per share.

Accretive impact on proforma net earnings per share based on group share of net income before goodwill and
exceptional items " the operation results in a 27% increase in net earnings per Sagem share.

™ The accretive impact can only be assessed based on earnings excluding any non-recurrent items.

At 30 June 2004,

Proforma earnings per share: €93 million divided by 417,029,585 = €0.22 per share

Proforma net income before goodwill: €198 million divided by 417,029,585 = €0. 47 per share

Proforma net income before goodwill and exceptional items (based on the respective implicit tax rate for each
company): €206 million divided by 417,029,585 = €0.49 per share.

7.1.5.5 Net assets per share

In the Proforma Financial Statements, as the merger is supposed to have taken place at 1 January 2003, net assets
per share have been calculated based on net assets divided by the number of shares making up the capital of
Sagem following the five to one share split decided by the General Meeting of Sagem shareholders on 20

December 2004 and the various legal operations.

At 30 June 2004,
Proforma net assets per share: €4,180 million divided by 417,029,585 = €10.02 per share
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7.2 Outlook

¢ Press release dated 16 February 2005

Grégoire Olivier, chairman of the Executive Board, declared during the Supervisory Board meeting that he
expected growth to continue in both the Defence and Security and Communications businesses in 2005. Sagem
expects the offer for SNECMA to be successful and lead to a proposal for the merger of the two groups being
submitted to the Shareholders' General Meetings in May. The merger would create a global high-technology
group.

¢ Additional information released during the presentation of the 2004 results of both groups
(17 February 2005)

Income statement: additional key figures for 2004 (preliminary, not audited)

In€million” 7 0 [ L2003 0 2004
Turnover 9,611 10,382
Operating income 644 717
Net income, Group share 288 368"

™ earnings before goodwill and theoretical interest expenses on the debt generated in 2005 in connection with the subsidiary cash offer and

taking into account the capital gain on the sale of Gemplus shares (€14 million after tax) reincorporated in Sagem's net income
@ earnings before goodwill and theoretical interest expenses on the debt generated in 2005 by the subsidiary offer

2004 Balance sheet (€ million): additional key figures for 2004 (preliminary, not audited)

( T ACTIF& o ... PASSH: - i L
Fixed assets 6,149 | Shareholders' equity 4,686“)
Provisions for risk and 1,657
charges
Payments on account 465
Current assets 7,074 | Net borrowings 754@
Current liabilities 5,661
Fotalassets: L 13023 [ Total liabilities: 13,223,

) Shareholders' equity includes unallocated goodwill determined on the basis of an acquisition price based on the Sagem share price used in
the Information Memorandum for the public offer

@ This amount includes €1,250 million designed to finance the offer in 2005. The actual net cash position at 31 December 2004 was of €496
million

Objectives for 2005 (preliminary, not audited)

Before taking into account the impact of transition to IFRS and excluding goodwill (allocated to asset headings
such as inventories or intangible assets) generated by the business combination, the new group's business
objectives for 2005 (based on a hedged exchange rate of €1 = USD1.05 and constant consolidation scope) are as
follows:

- Continuing growth in turnover
- A stable operating margin
- Anincrease in net income

¢ Indicative timetable for the Offer

23 February 2005 Closing date of Offer

7 March 2005 Results of Offer

17 March 2005 Settlement/delivery and first quote for Sagem shares delivered in the context of the share
exchange offer

Payment of an interim dividend of €0.10 per Sagem share (see section 3.5)

Combined Ordinary and Extraordinary General Meeting of Sagem shareholders called to
approve the 2004 financial statements, the spinning off of Sagem'’s activities into three
divisions and the merger with SNECMA

May 2005
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In this corporate information document, unless otherwise provided, ‘“‘Company” solely refers to Snecma,
whereas “Snecma” and “Group’ shall refer to the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries.

This corporate information document contains certain statements concerning Snecma’s objectives, particularly
with respect to sections 4.1.2 “Strategy” and 5.1.13 “Objectives”. These statements are often identified by the
use of the future or conditional tenses and forward-looking terminology such as “thinks”, “expects”, ‘“‘should”,
“anticipates”, ‘“believes” or ‘“could”. This information is not historical data and must not be interpreted as
guarantees that the facts and figures will materialize or that the objectives shall be achieved. Due to their nature,
these objectives may not be attained and the projections upon which they are based may prove to be erroneous.
In addition, this corporate information document contains statements with respect to markets where Snecma
conducts business. This information is based on studies carried out by third parties. Due to the rapidly changing
environment of the aeronautical industry, it is possible that this information may prove erroneous and no longer
up-to-date. Snecma’s business, could, as a result, differ materially from that described in this corporate
information document and the statements or information contained therein could prove erroneous. Accordingly,
Snecma is under no obligation to provide updated information, subject to applicable regulations and, in particular,
Articles 222-1 to 222-11 of the AMF’s General Regulations.

The forward-looking statements contained in this corporate information document also concern known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause Snecma’s future results, performances and output
to differ materially from the formulated and suggested objectives. These factors may include changes in the
economic and business conditions, exchange rates and the factors described in section 4.13 “Risk Factors”.




CHAPTER 1 PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CORPORATE INFORMATION DOCUMENT
AND STATUTORY AUDITORS

1.1 PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CORPORATE INFORMATION DOCUMENT

Mr. Jean-Paul Béchat
Snecma Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

1.2 CERTIFICATION OF THE PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CORPORATE INFORMATION
DOCUMENT

“To my knowledge, the information presented in this corporate information document fairly reflects the current
situation and includes all information necessary for investors’ understanding of the assets, activities, financial
condition, results and future prospects of the Company and its subsidiaries. No material aspects of such
information have been omitted.”

Mr. Jean-Paul Béchat
Snecma Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

1.3 STATUTORY AUDITORS
1.3.1 Incumbent statutory auditors

Deloitte et Associés
185, avenue Charles de Gaulle, 92200 Neuilly-sur-Seine,
represented by Mr. Jean-Paul Picard and Mr. Jean-Marc Lumet

Appointed by shareholder resolution at the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held on May 11, 1999 for a period of
six fiscal years expiring following the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held to adopt the Company accounts for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2004.

Mazars & Guérard
Le Vinci 4, allée de 1’ Arche, 92300 La Défense
represented by Mr. Michel Rosse and Mr. Jean-Marc Deslandes

Appointed by shareholder resolution at the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held on May 11, 1999 for a period of
six fiscal years expiring following the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held to adopt the Company accounts for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2004.

1.3.2 Alternate statutory auditor

Mr. Alain Vincent
64, rue du Rocher, 75008 Paris

Partner at Ernst & Young Audit.

Appointed by shareholder resolution at the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held on May 26, 1993. The most
recent renewal for a period of six fiscal years was approved during the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held on
May 11, 1999. This renewed term shall expire following the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held to adopt the
Company accounts for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004.

1.3.3 Attestation of the statutory auditors

As statutory auditors of Snecma and in accordance with AMF (Autorité des Marchés Financiers — French
Securities Regulator) General Regulations (Article 211-5-2, Book II) and professional standards applicable in
France, we have performed certain procedures on information contained in this corporate information document
(document de référence) relating to the financial situation and the historical financial statements of the Company.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Snecma is responsible for the preparation of the corporate
information document. Our responsibility is to report on the fairness of the information presented in the corporate
information document relating to the financial situation and the financial statements.

‘We have conducted our work in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. Those standards
require that we assess the fairness of the information presented relating to the financial situation and the financial
statements and its consistency with the financial statements on which we have issued a report. Our procedures
also include reading the other information contained in the corporate information document in order to identify
material inconsistencies with the information relating to the financial situation and the financial statements and to
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report any apparent material misstatement of facts that we may have found in reading the other information based
on our general knowledge of the Company obtained during the course of our engagement, specifying that this
corporate information document does not include any selected prospective data.

We have audited in accordance with professional standards applicable in France the individual company financial
statements and the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, as
approved by the Board of Directors, and expressed an unqualified opinion on such financial statements. We
mentioned the following comments in our reports:

¢ with respect to 2004, a comment concerning the change in accounting and valuation methods applicable
to pensions and other post-employment benefits; and

* with respect to 2002, a comment concerning the change in accounting method for recording repayable
advances (consolidated financial statements);

On the basis of our procedures, we have no comment to make as to the fair presentation of the information
concerning Snecma’s financial position and financial statements, as set forth in this corporate information
document.

Neuilly-sur-Seine and La Défense,
March 25, 2005

The Statutory Auditors
MAZARS & GUERARD DELOITTE & ASSOCIES

Michel Rosse Jean-Marc Deslandes Jean-Paul Picard Jean-Marc Lumet

This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ attestation and is provided solely for the
convenience of English-speaking readers. The statutory auditors’ reports on the individual company financial
statements and consolidated financial statements, referred to in this attestation, include information specifically
required by French law in all audit reports, whether qualified or not, and this is presented after the opinion on the
financial statements. This information includes explanatory paragraphs discussing the auditors’ assessments of
certain significant accounting and auditing matters. These assessments were considered for the purpose of
issuing an audit opinion on the individual company financial statements and consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole and not to provide separate assurance on individual account captions or on information taken
outside of the individual company financial statements and consolidated financial statements. This attestation
should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with French law and professional auditing
standards applicable in France.

Supplementary information:
The corporate information document includes:

Appendix 1: the statutory auditors’ reports on the individual company financial statements and the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 (presented on pages 130 and 123 of the corporate
information document, respectively), including explanatory paragraphs discussing auditors’ assessments pursuant
to Article L 225-235 of the French Commercial Code.

Appendix 2: the statutory auditors’ report, prepared in accordance with the last paragraph of Article L. 225-235
of the French Commercial Code (page 140 of the corporate information document), on the report prepared by the
Chairman of the Board of Directors, with respect to the internal control procedures for the preparation and
treatment of financial and accounting information.




1.4 INVESTOR RELATIONS OFFICERS

Mr. Noél Gauthier

Senior Vice-President — Economic and Financial Affairs
Telephone: 01.40.60.83.32

Fax: 01.40.60.83.92

E-mail: noel.gauthier@snecma.fr

Mrs. Frangoise Descheemaeker
Vice-President — Communication
Telephone: 01.40.60.81.06

Fax: 01.40.60.84.87

E-mail: francoise.descheemaeker @snecma.fr
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CHAPTER 2 ADMISSION TO TRADING ON THE EURONEXT PARIS S.A. PREMIER MARCHE

Not applicable.
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CHAPTER 3 GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE COMPANY AND ITS SHARE
CAPITAL

3.1 GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE COMPANY
3.1.1 Company name and registered office
The Company name is: Snecma.

The registered office is located at: 2, boulevard du Général Martial Valin, 75015 Paris.

3.1.2 Legal form and governing law

Snecma is a limited liability company (société anonyme) with a Board of Directors, governed notably by the
provisions of Book II of the French Commercial Code and Decree No. 67-236 of March 23, 1967 on commercial
companies.

In addition, because of the nature of its activities, Snecma is subject to specific provisions. In particular, pursuant
to Article L. 151-3 of the French Monetary and Financial Code and Decree No. 2003-196 of March 7, 2003 on
financial relations with entities abroad, the crossing by foreign companies or non-French residents of a
cumulative threshold of 33.33% of the share capital or voting rights of a company with operations in the defense
sector, or by a company that researches, manufactures or sells arms or weapons materials must first be approved
by the French State.

3.1.3 Date of incorporation and term (Article 5 of the Articles)

Snecma was incorporated on July 4, 1905. The Company’s term, which was fifty years commencing on the date
of incorporation, was extended to June 16, 2054 by resolution of the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting held on
June 13, 1955,

3.1.4 Corporate purpose (Article 2 of the Articles)
The Company shall have the following purpose, both in France and abroad:

* direct and indirect participation in any and all financial, commercial and industrial transactions,
including through incorporation of companies, capital contribution and financing, by subscription or
redemption of securities, shares or units, through merger, alliance, acquisition of interest in a legal entity,
whether by joint venture or otherwise, and through management of a securities portfolio;

* any activities, products and services in connection with the engine and mechanical equipment industries,
including, but not limited to, aircraft and airborne systems, and the use of any processes, machinery,
equipment and devices related to propulsion, through any form whatsoever, and any devices producing
or using energy in any form or any equipment designed for such devices or user systems; and

* generally, any industrial, commercial, financial, personal or real property transactions, in addition to
providing any services indirectly or directly related to the foregoing which are likely to favor the growth
or expansion of the Company, without exception or reserve, both on its own behalf and on behalf of third
parties, or jointly, in any form whatsoever, including the incorporation of companies, capital contribu-
tion, financing, subscription or purchase of securities, shares or units, merger, joint venture, alliance,
investment or by any other method.

3.1.5 Commercial registry, APE code

The Company is registered with the Registre du Commerce et des Sociétés de Paris (Paris Commercial and
Corporate Registry) under No. 562 111 997.

Its APE code is 741 J — Corporate administration.

3.1.6 Access to legal documents

Any legal documents concerning the Company to be made available to shareholders in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations may be consulted at the registered office, located at 2, boulevard du Général
Martial Valin, 75015 Paris.
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3.1.7 Fiscal year

Each fiscal year consists of a 12-month period, commencing on January 1 and ending on the following
December 31.

3.1.8 Distribution of earnings (Articles 43 and 44 of the Articles)

Earnings for the fiscal year include net proceeds for the period, less overheads and other expenses of the
Company, including any depreciation charges and provisions deemed necessary by the Board of Directors.

A withholding of at least 5% must be made on the fiscal year’s earnings, reduced where applicable by deferred
losses, for allocation to the statutory reserve fund (réserve légale). This withholding ceases to be mandatory when
the statutory reserve fund reaches an amount equal to one-tenth of the share capital.

Distributable earnings are equal to earnings for the period, less losses carried-forward and amounts allocated to
reserves created pursuant to law and the Articles, plus carried-forward earnings.

Furthermore, at a shareholders’ meeting, the shareholders may resolve to distribute sums from available reserves.
In such an event, the resolution shall detail the reserve line items from which the proceeds shall be distributed.
However, dividends shall be distributed first out of any distributable earnings for the relevant period.

Dividends are paid annually, at the times and places determined by the Board of Directors, but in no event later
than nine months following the end of the relevant fiscal year. Dividends, including interim dividends, may be
paid in shares.

Share dividends are validly paid to the owner of the shares.

3.1.9 Shareholders’ meetings

3.19.1 Convening, admission terms and conditions and voting rights (Articles 28, 29 and 32 of the
Articles)

Shareholders’ meetings must be convened pursuant to the prevailing laws and regulations applicable to the
Company.

Shareholders’ meetings shall be held at the registered office of the Company or at any other place indicated in the
notice of meeting.

Each shareholder, without regard to the number of shares held, is entitled to attend shareholders’ meetings and to
vote on resolutions, either in person or by proxy, subject to:

— for holders of registered shares, entry in the Company’s share register at least five days prior to the date
of the relevant shareholders’ meeting;

— for holders of bearer shares, the filing, five days prior to the date of the shareholders’ meeting, at the
place indicated in the notice of meeting, of a certificate issued by an authorized broker, certifying that
the relevant shares shall be held in escrow from the date of deposit until the day following the relevant
shareholders’ meeting.

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, reduce the aforementioned limitation period for share ownership and
allow shareholders who do not come within the limitation period described above to attend meetings.

Shareholders may vote by correspondence or by proxy in compliance with applicable law. The French State must
be represented by a person appointed for such purpose and corporate entities must be represented by a person
duly authorized for such purpose, without any requirement that such person be a shareholder of the Company.

Shareholders who are not French residents may be represented at the meeting by any party acting on their behalf
pursuant to a general power of attorney for the management of securities, provided that, at the time of opening its
account with the Company or the financial institution holding the account, such representative, in compliance
with applicable law and regulations, expressly states that it is acting in its capacity as an intermediary, holding
securities for third parties. The Company may require that the intermediary referred to in the preceding section
provide the list of shareholders it is representing whose voting rights are to be exercised at such meeting. The
vote or power exercised by any intermediary who has not reported its status in compliance with applicable law,
regulations or the Articles, or who has not disclosed the identity of beneficial shareholders, cannot be taken into
account.
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Shareholders may, subject to applicable law and regulations, send their proxy forms and votes by correspondence
for any shareholders’ meeting, either by regular mail, or, where approved by the Board of Directors and published
in the notice of meeting, by fax or electronic mail.

Shareholders may also, subject to applicable law and regulations, attend meetings by videoconference or by
electronic telecommunication, where approved by the Board of Directors and published in the notice of meeting.
Such shareholders are considered present at the meeting for the purposes of calculating quorum and majority
requirements.

3.1.9.2 Double voting rights

None.

3.1.9.3 Restrictions on voting rights

None.

3.1.10 Corporate thresholds (Article 11A of the Articles)

Any individual or corporate entity, acting alone or jointly, who directly or indirectly becomes the holder of shares
representing 1% of the share capital or voting rights must, within five days of the acquisition of shares causing
such person to attain or exceed such threshold, send a notice to the Company by registered letter with return
receipt at the registered office, stating the aggregate number of shares and voting rights owned, in addition to the
aggregate number of convertible, exchangeable or redeemable securities and voting rights attached thereto.

Such disclosure shall be required pursuant to the preceding section each time that holdings in the share capital or
voting rights are either increased or reduced by 1%.

In the event of failure to fulfill the foregoing disclosure requirement, and if requested at a shareholders’ meeting
by one or more shareholders holding at least 2% of the share capital and voting rights, shares exceeding the
fraction which should have been disclosed may be stripped of their voting rights in compliance with applicable
law.

This provision is in addition to the laws and regulations governing disclosure of corporate thresholds.

3.1.11 Identification of holders of bearer shares and foreign shareholders (Article 11B of the Articles)

For the purpose of identifying holders of bearer shares, the Company may, subject to applicable law and
regulations, request at any time, at its own expense, that the relevant central depository for financial instruments
provide the individual or corporate name, nationality, date of birth or incorporation and the address of any holder
of shares or securities conferring, whether or not immediately, voting rights at shareholders’ meetings, in addition
to the number of securities held by each of them and any restrictions applicable thereto.

Based on the list provided to the Company by the relevant central depository for financial instruments, the
Company may ask such agent or the listed persons who, in the Company’s view, may be acting on behalf of
foreign security holders, for the information referred to in the preceding section concerning security holders.

The Company may also require, at any time, that any intermediary acting on behalf of third party owners of
registered shares residing abroad disclose the identity of such security holders.

The Company may, if it is of the view that certain holders of either registered or bearer securities hold such
securities on behalf of third parties, require that such holders disclose the identity of the relevant third parties in
compliance with the foregoing terms and conditions.

Following such information requests, the Company may require any corporate entity holding shares in the
Company representing more than 2.5% of the share capital or voting rights to disclose the identity of any person
holding, directly or indirectly, more than one-third of the share capital or voting rights of such corporate entity
exercised at such entity’s shareholders’ meetings.

Where the person has been requested to provide such information and fails to do so within the statutory and
regulatory time limitations or discloses inaccurate or incomplete information, with respect to itself or to the
beneficial owners of such securities, the shares or securities granting immediate or future access to the share
capital and which are inscribed in the name of such intermediary shall be stripped of voting rights at any
shareholders’ meeting held prior to the disclosure thereof, and dividend payments shall be deferred until such
date.
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Furthermore, where the intermediary knowingly breaches such provisions, the relevant court in the jurisdiction
where the Company has its registered office may, upon request by the Company or one or more shareholders
holding at least 5% of the share capital, prohibit such holder from exercising voting rights or receiving dividends
on such shares, in whole or in part, for a maximum period of five years.

3.2 GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE SHARE CAPITAL
3.2.1 Rights attached to shares

Each share entitles the holder to earnings, corporate assets and the liquidation surplus in a proportion equal to the
fraction of share capital it represents, subject, where applicable, to special rights attached to preferred shares and
taking into account share capital that has been redeemed and/or fully paid up.

Any shares which comprise or shall comprise the share capital will be deemed to rank pari passu at all times with
respect to tax charges. Consequently, any taxes and duties which, for any reason, further to redemption of shares,
become payable on only some of the shares, either during the corporate term or upon winding-up of the
Company, shall be charged to all the shares comprising the share capital such that all current or future
shareholders shall be entitled to the same benefits and proceeds, while taking into account the non-redeemed
nominal value of the shares and the rights of different classes of shares.

Shareholders shall only be liable up to the nominal value of the shares they hold.

Each time the accumulation of several shares is necessary to exercise any right, in cases of exchange,
consolidation or granting of shares, or further to any increase or reduction in the share capital, whether or not
caused by losses, merger or other company reorganization, the owners of single shares, or uneven lots, may only

exercise such rights in the event they combine and, where applicable, purchase or sell the necessary shares or
rights to make up a round lot.

The rights and obligations attached to the share shall attach irrespective of the holder. Holding of a share shall be
deemed consent to the Company Articles and resolutions adopted by the shareholders’ meeting.

3.2.2 Types and registration of shares — Disposal and transfer of shares
Company shares may be held in bearer or registered form at the owner’s discretion.

Shares are represented by book entries pursuant to terms and conditions provided by applicable law and
regulations.

Title to Company shares shall be evidenced by a book entry in the shareholdérs’ name either:
¢ with any accredited intermediary of their choice, for bearer shares; or

¢ with the Company or any authorized representative for standard registered shares (nominatif pur) or,
where preferred, with any accredited intermediary of its choice and with the Company or its duly
authorized representative, for administered registered shares.

For securities where the owner is not a French resident, any accredited intermediary may request their registration
in his name on behalf of such owner. The registered accredited intermediary, at the time of opening its account,
shall be required to report that it is acting as an intermediary holding securities for the benefit of third parties.

All shares of the Company are freely negotiable and transferable.

3.2.3 Share capital
As of the filing date of this corporate information document, the share capital of the Company is €270,092,310.
The share capital is made up of 270,092,310 shares with a nominal value of €1 each.

All shares of the Company are of the same class and have been fully subscribed and paid up.

3.2.4 Changes in share capital — Share payment

Subject to statutory provisions applicable to the Company with respect to payment of the share capital, the share
capital may be increased or decreased, in one or several transactions, subject to applicable laws and regulations.
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3.2.5 Securities providing access to the share capital

As of the filing date of this corporate information document, no marketable securities that could in the future lead
to the creation of new shares had been issued (see section 3.2.7 on the authorizations to issue such securities).

3.2.6 Trading by the Company in its own shares

The ordinary shareholders’ meeting of May 25, 2004 approved a Company share buyback program pursuant to
Article L. 225-209 et seq. of the French Commercial Code.

3.2.7 Authorizations to increase the share capital

The following table summarizes the authorizations to increase the share capital granted to the Company’s Board
of Directors by the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of May 25, 2004. These authorizations are detailed in
sections 3.2.7.1 to 3.2.7.4 below.

Maximum nominal increase Term of the
Nature of the transaction in the share capital authorization

Issue of securities granting immediate or future access to share

capital, with or without shareholders’ pre-emptive rights

(see section 3.2.7.1) ...ttt €30 million 26 months”
Issue of securities granting immediate or future access to share

capital in cases of exchange offers initiated by the Company

(s€€ SeCHON 3.2.7.2) o\ et €30 million® 26 months'”
Capital increase by capitalization of reserves, earnings or

premiums (see section 3.2.7.3) ... ... .. i €10 million 26 months"
Capital increase for the benefit of employee members of a

savings plan (see section 3.2.7.4) . ... it €5 million 5 years)

(1) As of May 25, 2004.

(2) This maximum shall apply jointly with the maximum set by the previous authorization (see section 3.2.7.1 below).

3.2.7.1 Issue of shares and securities granting access to share capital of the Company, with or without
shareholders’ pre-emptive rights

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of May 25, 2004 granted the Board of Directors, for a twenty-six month
period commencing the date of the meeting, the powers necessary to issue, in one or several transactions, at its
discretion, in France or abroad, in the amounts and at the times it will decide, in euros, foreign currencies or any
other currency unit determined with reference to several currencies, with or without premiums:

* shares; and/or

* marketable securities granting entitlement by conversion, exchange, redemption, presentation of a
warrant or any other lawful transaction, to the allotment, at any time or at set dates, of issued securities
representing a fraction of the Company’s share capital, including unattached warrants to subscribe for
new shares (or where necessary existing shares) issued at no charge (solely in cases of maintaining
shareholder pre-emptive rights) or for valuable consideration,

with or without shareholders’ pre-emptive rights.

The maximum capital increase, immediately or at a future date, resulting from all issues thus carried out shall be
the nominal amount of €30 million, provided that:

(i)  within such maximum,

* the issue of preferred shares, either with or without voting rights, shall not result in an increase of the
share capital in an aggregate nominal amount exceeding €15 million;

» the issue of investment certificates (certificats d’investissement), either with or without priority rights,
shall not result in an increase of the share capital in an aggregate nominal amount exceeding €15 million;

e the aggregate nominal amount of an increase in the share capital resulting from the exercise of
unattached warrants to subscribe for new shares shall not exceed €30 million; and
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(ii)  the aforementioned limitations shall be determined without taking into account the nominal value of
securities to be issued, pursuant to adjustments required by law in order to safeguard the rights of holders
of securities (including unattached warrants to subscribe for new shares) granting future access to the share
capital of the Company.

Securities issued in the aforementioned manner, granting access to the share capital of the Company, may be
comprised of debt securities or be associated with the issue of such securities, or allow their issuance as
intermediate securities. They may take the form of perpetual or fixed-term subordinated securities or non-
subordinated securities, to be issued in France or abroad, in euro or in non-euro foreign currencies, or in any other
currency unit determined by reference to several currencies. The maximum nominal amount of debt securities
thus issued may not exceed €400 million or its equivalent value on the date of the decision for issuance, such
amount being independent of the amount of debt securities issued which do not give access to the capital and
whose issue is authorized by the ordinary shareholders’ meeting described in section 3.2.8 below. They may be
subject to fixed or floating interest rates, with or without capitalization, to repayment, with or without premium,
or amortization, using any method, and the securities may, furthermore, be purchased on the stock exchange or be
subject to offers to purchase or exchange by the Company.

The authorization thus granted to the Board of Directors:

¢ shall automatically result in a waiver by existing shareholders of their pre-emptive rights to shares in
favor of these securities holders; and

* shall automatically result in an express waiver by existing shareholders of their pre-emptive rights to
shares to which convertible bond holders are entitled, and to shares to which holders of unattached
warrants to subscribe for new shares are entitled.

In the case of issues with shareholders’ pre-emptive rights:

* if statutory subscriptions and, where applicable, non-statutory subscriptions do not absorb the entire
issue, the Board of Directors may, in the order it deems appropriate, either limit the issue to the amount
of subscriptions received, in compliance with applicable law, provided that at least three-quarters of the
issue has been subscribed, or freely distribute all or part of the unsubscribed securities, or offer them for
sale to the public;

¢ for the free allotment of unattached warrants or shares to holders of old shares, the Board of Directors
may decide that fractional allotment rights are not negotiable and that the corresponding rights will be
sold, the proceeds being allocated to holders of rights no later than 30 days after the registration in their
account of the whole number of warrants allocated; and

* the amount due to the Company immediately or at a later date for each of the shares issued or to be
issued in connection with the aforementioned authorization, after taking into account, for the issue of
unattached warrants, the issue price of such warrants, will be at least equal to the nominal value of the
share on the date of issue of such securities.

In the case of issues without shareholders’ pre-emptive rights:

» if the issues take place on the French market, the Board of Directors may grant shareholders priority
rights to subscribe for shares, warrants or securities issued within a period and under the terms and
conditions to be set by the Board for the entire issue or a portion thereof. This non-negotiable priority
right will be exercised in proportion to the number of shares held by each shareholder. Shares, warrants
or securities that are not subscribed pursuant to these rights shall be subject to a public offering in France
or abroad; and

¢ the amount due to the Company immediately or at a later date for each of the shares issued or to be
issued in connection with the aforementioned authorization, after taking into account, for the issue of
unattached warrants, the issue price of such warrants, will be at least equal to the minimum value set by
the applicable law at the time this authorization is used, currently the Company’s average share price
over 10 consecutive trading days selected from the 20 most recent trading days preceding the start of the
issue, after any adjustment to take into account a difference in the dividend due date.

3.2.7.2 Issue of shares and securities granting access to share capital in cases of exchange offers
initiated by the Company

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of May 25, 2004 granted the Board of Directors, for a twenty-six month
period commencing the date of the meeting, the powers necessary to issue, at its discretion, subject to the terms
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and conditions applicable to the issue of shares and securities granting access to the share capital of the Company
without pre-emptive rights as described in section 3.2.7.1 above, securities, including unattached warrants to
subscribe for new shares (or where necessary existing shares), granting immediate or future access to a fraction of
the share capital of the Company, in consideration for securities tendered in any exchange offer made by the
Company for securities of another company listed on any of the regulated markets referred to in Article
L. 225-148 of the French Commercial Code and decide, as necessary, to revoke for the benefit of holders of such
securities, the shareholders’ pre-emptive right to such shares and securities.

The maximum nominal capital increase, immediately or in the future, resulting from issues carried out pursuant
to such delegation was set at €30 million, noting that this maximum shall apply jointly with the maximum amount
set for the issue of shares and securities granting access to the share capital of the Company, as described in
section 3.2.7.1 above.

3.2.7.3 Share capital increase by capitalization of reserves, earnings or premiums

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of May 25, 2004 granted the Board of Directors, for a twenty-six month
period commencing the date of the meeting, the powers necessary to increase the share capital, in one or several
transactions, at its discretion, in the amounts and at the times it will decide, by capitalization of reserves, earnings
or premiums or other amounts that may be capitalized, through the issue of new ordinary shares, an increase in
the nominal value of shares making up the share capital, or the simultaneous use of both procedures.

The aforementioned issue of new shares or increase in the nominal value of shares shall not result in an increase
of the share capital in an aggregate nominal amount which exceeds €10 million, determined independently of the
maximum limit for share capital increases that may be realized pursuant to the authorizations described in
sections 3.2.7.1 and 3.2.7.2 above.

For share capital increases in the form of bonus share allotments, the fractional allotment rights remaining after
the allotment of the new shares due to each shareholder will not be negotiable and will be settled in cash.
Accordingly, the new shares corresponding to the fractional rights will be sold and the net proceeds will be
allocated on a prorated basis to holders of rights no later than 30 days after the registration in their account of the
number of new shares allotted.

3.2.7.4 Share capital increase for the benefit of employee members of a savings plan

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of May 25, 2004, granted the Board of Directors, for a five-year period
commencing the date of this meeting, the powers necessary to increase the share capital, in one or several
transactions, at its discretion, in the amounts and at the times it will decide, by the issue of shares or other
securities granting access to the share capital of the Company and reserved for members of a corporate savings
plan (plan d’épargne d’entreprise) of the Company and French or foreign affiliates as defined by Article
L. 225-180 of the French Commercial Code and Article L. 444-3 of the French Labor Code.

The maximum limit for share capital increases, immediately or in the future, resulting from issues carried out
pursuant to this delegation was set at a nominal amount of €5 million, determined independently of the maximum
limit for share capital increases that may be realized pursuant to the authorizations described in sections 3.2.7.1,
3.2.7.2 and 3.2.7.3 above.

As the Company’ shares are now traded on a regulated market, the subscription price of shares issued pursuant to
this delegation shall not be less than 20% and 30%, respectively, of the average opening price of the Company’s
share on the Euronext Paris Premier Marché during the twenty trading days immediately preceding the decision
of the Board of Directors setting the opening date for subscriptions, depending on whether the shares thus
subscribed, directly or indirectly, shall be held in escrow for a period of less than ten years or for a period equal
to or exceeding ten years. However, the Board of Directors may reduce the aforementioned discount, if it deems
opportune, in particular to limit the discount granted to 15% of the listed share price on the day of the decision
setting the opening date for subscriptions, subject to legal and regulatory restrictions, so as to consider, inter alia,
legal, accounting, tax and social regimes applicable locally. The Board of Directors may also replace the entire
discount or a portion thereof by allotting shares or other securities.

3.2.8 Issue of bonds, debentures and other securities granting similar debt claims against the
Company

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of May 25, 2004, granted the Board of Directors, for a five-year period
commencing the date of this meeting, the powers necessary to proceed in one or several transactions, at its
discretion in the amounts and at the times it will decide, in France or abroad, with the issue of bonds or
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debentures, or any other debt securities granting similar debt claims against the Company in the same issue, with
or without warrants attached conferring entitlement to the allotment, purchase or subscription of other bonds,
debentures or securities granting similar debt claims against the Company. These securities may take the form of
perpetual or fixed-term subordinated securities or non-subordinated securities.

The maximum nominal amount of all the aforementioned securities to be issued may not exceed €600 million, or
its equivalent in any of the national subdivisions of the euro, in non-euro foreign currencies or any other currency
unit determined with reference to several currencies, noting that such maximum nominal amount shall apply
globally to other bonds or debentures and other debt securities issued upon or after the exercise of warrants, but
that such amount shall not include redemption premiums, if any.

3.29 Change in share capital over the last five years

Nominal
Number increase in Share
of shares  the share  premium S ive of Total b Nominal
D_alf Transaction issued capital per share Total share premium share capital of shares value
Balance sheet as of
December 31, 1998. . .. FRF 2,787,378,593.45 FRF 1,800,615,400 18,006,154 FRF 100
OSM of May 2, 2000 .... Partial absorption — — — FRF 0 FRF 1,800,615,400 18,006,154 FRF 100
of losses carried
forward
ESM of December 19,
2000 (effective
January 1, 2001) ...... Conversion of share — —_ — €0 €270,092,310 18,006,154 €15
capital into euro (after share capital :
reduction of
€4,409,738.15)

ESM of October 5, 2001 Share split - — —_ €0 €270,092,31 270,092,310 €1

OSM = Ordinary shareholders’ meeting

ESM = Extraordinary shareholders’ meeting

3.3 SHARE OWNERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS
3.3.1 Current share ownership and voting rights

The following table sets forth the share ownership and voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2004 of
this corporate document.

Shares Voting rights

Shareholders Number % Number %

French State .......... ... ... ... . . . .. 168,061,366 62.2 168,061,366 62.9
Private investors ............c.c. it 85,067,010 31.5 85,067,010 31.8
Employees . ........... . 9,453,231 35 9,453,231 35
United Technologies™ .. ... ... ... ... ............. 4,672,935 1.7 4,672,935 1.7
Directors 13,208 n.m. 13,208 n.m.
Treasury shares® . ........ ... . ... ... ..., 2,824,560 1.0 — —
Total. ... .. 270,092,310 100.00 267,267,750 100.00

(1) United Technologies Corp. is a U.S. supplier of high technology products for the aviation, aerospace and construction industries. Its
relations with the Group, through its division, Pratt & Whitney, are described in Chapter 4.

(2) Shares held by Lexvall 2, subsidiary of the Company. n.m.: Not material,

Each share grants entitlement to one vote. There is no limit to the number of votes available to each shareholder.
There are no double voting rights.

In accordance with the law, there are no voting rights for treasury shares.
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3.3.2 Changes in the share ownership and voting rights over the last three years

The following table sets forth changes in share ownership and voting rights over the last three years:

Position as of Position as of Position as of
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
% of  Number of % of % of % of % of % of
Number of  share voting voting Number of share voting Number of share voting
Shareholder shares capital rights rights shares capital rights shares capital rights
French State............... 168,061,366 622 168,061,366  62.9 262,593,675 9722 9825 262,593,675 97.22 9825
United Technologies ........ 4,672,935 1.7 4,672,935 1.7 4,672,935 1.73 175 4,672,935 1.73 1.75
Treasury shares™........... 2,824,560 1.0 — — 2,824560 1.05 — 2,824,560  1.05 —
Directors 13,208 n.m. 13,208 n.m. 135 n.m. n.m. 135 n.s. n.s.
Employees ................ 9,453,231 35 9,453,231 3.5
Private investors............ 85,067,010 315 85,067,010 318
Miscellaneous shareholders. . . 1,005 nm.  nm 1,005 nm  nm
Total ..................... 270,092,310 100.00 267,267,750 100.00 270,092,310 100.00 100.00 270,092,310 100.00 100.00

(1) Shares held by Lexvall 2, subsidiary of the Company.
n.m.: Not material.

3.3.3 Information on the Company’s share capital transactions over the last three years

The following table sets forth the Company’s share capital transactions over the last three years until the date of
the filing of this corporate information document.

% of share Average unit % of share
capital held Number of price of % of share  capital held
Name of Position of before the Date of the Nature of the shares shares capital after the
shareholder shareholder  transaction transaction transaction acquired acquired acquired transaction
Lexvall 2.... Subsidiary 0.98 October 25, 2002 Acquisition 174,510 €192 0.07 1.05
99.7% held (Transferor:
by Snecma Mr. Jean-Paul
Béchat)

3.3.4 Shareholders’ agreements

None.

3.3.5 Pledge of Company shares

None.

3.3.6 Group organization chart

See below.

3.4 SNECMA SHARE PRICE TRENDS BETWEEN JUNE 18, 2004 AND DECEMBER 31, 2004

Snecma shares (ISIN code FR0005328747, mnemonic SCA) are traded on the Euronext Paris S.A. Premier
Marché since June 18, 2004 and are eligible for deferred settlement.

The Snecma share is included in the SFB 120 and Euronext 100 indices.

3.4.1 Financial instruments not traded on a regulated market

None.
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3.5 DIVIDENDS
3.5.1 Dividends paid in respect of the last five years

Year Total number of shares Net dividend per share Payment date

1999 . i 18,006,154 €2.29 (FRF 15) June 15, 2000
2000 ... 18,006,154 €5.34 (FRF 35) May 15, 2001
2000 .o 270,092,3107 €0.36 May 14, 2002
2002 .. 270,092,310 €0.12 May 13, 2003
2003 . 270,092,310 €0.21 May 11, 2004

(*) After 15 for 1 share split on October 5, 2001.

3.5.2 Dividend distribution policy

The dividend distribution policy is decided by the Board of Directors. The Board may take into account, inter
alia, the operating results and the financial position of the Company, in addition to the dividend policies of major
French and international companies engaged in the same business. However, the Company cannot guarantee the
dividend amount which may be paid with respect to a particular period.

3.5.3 Prescription period

Dividends which have not been claimed within five years from their payment date shall revert to the French State.
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Simplified Organization Chart
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4 INFORMATION CONCERNING SNECMA'’S BUSINESS
4.1 GROUP PROFILE

Snecma is an integrated aerospace group which produces engines and equipment for three major markets: civil
aviation, military aviation and space. With consolidated sales of 6,812 million euros in 2004, it is one of the
world’s four leading aircraft engine manufacturers in terms of published sales figures for the period, and one of
the top three rocket engine manufacturers. At December 31, 2004, the Group had nearly 39,900 employees. It is
organized in two complementary branches: Propulsion and Equipment. The associated maintenance, repair and
overhaul (MRO) services are intégrated within each branch. In 2004, Snecma generated over 70% of its
consolidated sales through exports. Furthermore, about 37.5% of this total was generated by support services,
including spare parts, maintenance, repair and overhaul, and customer support.

For 2004, the Group’s consolidated sales by geographic region were as follows:
» Europe (with a significant share outside France): 54%
¢ United States: 28%
¢ Asia: 9%
* Rest of the World: 9%

The Group’s Propulsion branch designs, develops, produces and markets propulsion systems for a wide range of
applications: commercial aircraft, military transport, training and combat aircraft, civil and military helicopters,
tactical missiles, UAVs, launch vehicles and ballistic missiles, satellites and space vehicles. In 2004, the
Propulsion branch accounted for 63% (4,523 million euros) of the Group’s consolidated sales, before elimination
of inter-branch sales.

Snecma considers that it holds leadership positions in today’s aviation propulsion market, largely through its
association with General Electric (United States), a world-leader in the production of engines for mainline jets
(over 100 seats) (source: Client Aviation System Enquiry-CASE, January 2005). The Group also considers itself
to be a world leader in turbine engines for civil and military helicopters.

The Group’s Equipment branch designs, develops, produces and markets landing and braking systems, engine
nacelles, thrust reversers, power transmissions and control systems, electrical wiring systems, electrical motors,
connectors, ventilation and filtering systems. In 2004, the Equipment branch accounted for 37% (2,628 million
euros) of the Group’s consolidated sales, before elimination of inter-branch sales.

Snecma is among the world leaders in landing gear, wheels, carbon brakes and associated systems, nacelles,
thrust reversers and aircraft wiring.

The Group’s development depends on strong alliances with other engine manufacturers, primarily with General
Electric for CFM56 engines, a family of engines developing 18,500 to 34,000 pounds of thrust that power
mainline jets (over 100 seats). In addition, Snecma teams up with Rolls-Royce on helicopter turbine engines, with
Avio and SNPE on rocket propulsion, and with various airlines for MRO services.

4.1.1 History

The Company was originally created in 1945 upon the nationalization of Gnome et Rhéne and the acquisition of
other companies reaching back to the birth of aviation, including the “‘Groupe d’Etudes de Moteurs & Huile
Lourde”, “Moteurs Lorraine’” and Renault aircraft engines.

From the outset, Snecma developed its own jet engines, in particular for Dassault Aviation’s combat aircraft, such
as the Mystere, Etendard and Mirage.

In 1968, Snecma took control of Hispano-Suiza, making it heir to two of the world’s oldest aircraft engine
manufacturers (Gnome was founded in 1905). Piston engines made by Gnome et Rhone and Hispano-Suiza
powered military aircraft made by Europe’s major aircraft manufacturers during the first world war, and a number
of European aircraft between the two world wars, setting many records. They also powered most French military
aircraft in service at the outbreak of the second world war, including Morane, Dewoitine, Bloch and Bréguet.

In 1974, Snecma formed a major alliance with General Electric to produce the CFM56 family of engines for
commercial jetliners, most notably the Boeing 737 and the Airbus A320 family.

In addition, from the outset, Snecma engines have powered all Ariane launch vehicles, as well as the strategic
missiles in France’s nuclear deterrent force.
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Snecma has gradually extended its scope of business by successively entering the areas of engine power
transmissions, landing gear, wheels, brakes and associated systems, nacelles and thrust reversers, helicopter
turbines, wiring systems and engine maintenance, repair and overhaul services. Because of the strong synergies
between its engine and mechanical equipment activities, Snecma is developing a strategy of grouping its
equipment and repair businesses, to counter cycles and fluctuations in the aviation industry. The main stages in
this growth were the acquisition of a controlling interest in Hispano-Suiza, the link-ups with Messier starting in
1971 and with Dowty starting in 1994, the acquisition of a controlling interest in the Société Européenne de
Propulsion (SEP) in 1985, and the acquisitions of Labinal’s aviation business and Hurel-Dubois in 2000.

Snecma’s businesses and organizational structure were consolidated in 2001 and 2002. In particular, the nacelle
business was bolstered through the creation of Hurel-Hispano in 2001 and Snecma’s acquisition in early 2002 of
Airbus Industrie’s 50% stake in their joint subsidiary Aircelle, giving it 100% of the company. In addition, the
landing system support network was consolidated by the creation of Messier Services and the transfer of various
product lines from Labinal to Messier-Bugatti to rationalize the equipment business. Labinal is now focused on
electrical wiring and engineering services. Hispano-Suiza has integrated Snecma Moteurs’ former Snecma
Control Systems division, enabling it to offer a complete integrated range of engine equipment. The Snecma
Group continued consolidating its businesses in 2003, as Labinal purchased Boeing’s wiring production plant in
Corinth, Texas, and signed a long-term supply agreement with Boeing, while Hispano-Suiza and BAE Systems
Controls created the Fadec International joint venture to handle the design, production, sale and support of full
authority digital engine control systems for high-power commercial jet engines. In March 2004, Snecma sold its
subsidiary Cinch SA, specialized in connectors for the auto industry, to the American group Molex.

Over the years Snecma has undergone a major transition, from an engine manufacturer for primarily military
markets to an aerospace propulsion and equipment group with a majority of its sales generated by the civil
aviation sector (approximately 77% of consolidated sales in 2004).

The slowdown in the civil aviation market in the early 1990s led to major losses for Snecma. This was followed
by a recovery, which, coupled with restructuring and recovery initiatives launched by new corporate management
since 1996, significantly improved the Group’s earnings at the end of the 1990s, as well as in 2000 and 2001.
From 2001 to 2003, during a cyclical downward trend, exacerbated by the events of September 11, 2001, then the
Iraq war and the SARS epidemic in Asia, the Group’s business has proved resilient. Sales decreased only about
6% during this period, and in 2004 returned to virtually the same level as 2001.

The French State conducted an initial public offering (IPO) of Snecma shares in 2004, reducing its stake from
97.2% to 62.2%. The Snecma share was listed on the First Market of Euronext Paris in June. In October 2004,
Snecma and Sagem announced their plan to merge, giving birth in May 2005 to a global technology leader with
four core businesses: aircraft equipment, defense and security, propulsion and telecommunications.

4.1.2 Strategy

The Group’s strategy is based on the following general objectives:

Consolidate or develop leadership positions in all businesses, by:

¢ drawing on a continuous effort in research and development to ensure both the technological
independence of the Group and its state-of-the-art expertise;

* consolidating its leadership in the engine market for mainline jets (over 100 seats), within the scope of
its partnership with General Electric;

* pursuing an active partnership policy in other areas of its business, such as the partnership with NPO
Saturn for the Russian Regional Jet engine, the partnership with Rolls-Royce, MTU Aero Engines and
ITP for the A400M engine, the partnership with Rolls-Royce for the Tiger and NH90 helicopter turbine
engines, and the partnership with BAE Systems for commercial engine FADEC units;

* winning, alone or through partnerships, significant shares of major new aviation programs;
* strengthening relationships with customers by setting up owned operations in selected locations;

* bolstering its position as a large-scale systems integrator, in order to provide its clients with
comprehensive, coherent solutions;

¢ continuing to meticulously examine all advantageous external growth opportunities.
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Enhance the Group’s ability to adapt to aviation industry cycles, by:
e continuously adjusting the Group’s size and industrial organization;
* further developing its service and MRO businesses;
* maintaining a significant position in the defense and space markets, which are not subject to the same
cycles as civil aviation.
Improve financial performance, by:

* drawing on the development of its installed base of engines and equipment to increase its share of higher
margin activities, such as spare parts;

* increasing the focus on general progress initiatives — part of the Group-wide Action V business
improvement initiative — concerning productivity, the shortening of development and production cycles,
and the purchasing policy;

» continuously developing technological, industrial and commercial synergies between the different
businesses of the Group;

* exercising rigorous control over all economic and financial aspects.

4.1.3 Economic environment and outlook

The Group is developing its core businesses as an engine and equipment manufacturer in the civil aviation,
defense and space sectors. In 2004, these three sectors accounted for approximately 72%, 23% and 5% of
consolidated sales, respectively.

4.1.3.1 Civil aviation

The civil aviation sector comprises both airplanes and helicopters. The market for civil aircraft includes four
unequal segments:

* commercial aircraft with more than 100 seats (mainline jets);
* regional transport aircraft (less than 100 seats);

* business aircraft;

* light aviation aircraft.

Snecma is currently primarily an engine supplier to the first segment, and an equipment supplier to the first three
segments. However, it is worth noting that Snecma is in the process of taking full control of SMA, a small
company (about 60 employees) that develops, produces and sells engines for light aircraft, which was previously
equally-controlled by EADS, Renault and Snecma.

¢ Mainline jets and regional transport
Trends in air transport

Civil aviation is a global market. Its outlook depends heavily on the projected growth in world air traffic, which
has mainly been driven by the following factors:

* Economic growth: for example, during the period 1985-2004, air traffic showed average annual growth
of 4.7% in terms of revenue passenger kilometers (number of passengers carried multiplied by the
number of kilometers traveled by each passenger) (source: ICAQ, January 2005). Over the same period,
worldwide GDP grew by 3.3% (source: International Monetary Fund).

* Liberalization of air transport, which has led to increased competition between airlines, mainly due to
the development of low-cost carriers, and a resulting continuous pressure on prices, especially in the
United States and Europe.

* Lower fares, made possible by the introduction of more economical aircraft, as well as higher airline
productivity.

¢ Improvement in networks, based on the opening of new lines and the creation of hub airports. The main
factors behind the improvement in networks have been lower fares, an improved offering by manufactur-
ers, and changes in the regulatory environment.
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* Product innovation, including the introduction of widebody jets and higher-performance aircraft, which
permits enhanced services coupled with lower fares.

However, in recent years the positive effect of these underlying trends was negatively impacted by exceptional
events. In 2003, the Iraq war and the SARS epidemic had a major impact on the sector, which was still suffering
from the consequences of the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001. According to provisional figures from the
International Air Transport Association (IATA), in a December 2004 study, international passenger traffic grew
14% in 2004 compared to 2003 (it had decreased 2.4% in 2003, compared to 2002).

The following graph summarizes changes in global GDP and passenger traffic since 1980 (total civil aviation
passenger traffic, excluding CIS, measured in passenger-kilometers and given as a percentage), with an estimation
for 2005 (source: historical data, OECD for GDP and ICAO for traffic; predictions, OECD June 2004 for GDP,
ICAQ December 2004 for 2004 traffic and September 2004 for 2005 traffic prediction).
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Aircraft industry

Changes in air transport over the last 20 years have had a major influence on the aircraft manufacturing industry.
The main trends were as follows:

* The steady growth in air traffic over this period required a constant increase in fleets, with the exception
of measures taken by airlines to adapt capacity to the exceptional events of 2001 and 2003. These events
led to a downturn in these airlines’ economic position, and aircraft deliveries therefore decreased.

* . Fleet aging and obsolescence also gave rise to a need for replacement aircraft, a trend that has been
amplified by the fact that environmental regulations (noise, pollution, etc.) are increasingly strict. For
example, the virtual banning of older generation aircraft — which produce a high level of noise
pollution — led airlines in the West to replace these aircraft with more recent models. New standards are
now being drawn up. In the medium term they could heighten aircraft constraints and lead to new
replacement needs.

e The airlines’ demand for increased aircraft standardization has led them to restructure their fleets around
a limited number of models, in order to reduce operating costs (training, spare parts, etc.).

¢ The rise in jet fuel prices — or at least the uncertainty about future price trends — is also a factor in
accelerating the replacement of fuel-hungry older models.

¢ Airline profitability also impacts aircraft demand, due to the significant investments required.

All of these aspects have significant influence on aircraft supply and demand. Airframe, engine and equipment
manufacturers must offer products that meet customer needs in terms of cost, performance and environmental
regulations. These needs can change over time. For example, deliveries during the 1990s fluctuated, with a drop at
the beginning of the decade followed by a recovery during the second half of the 1990s. Beyond this cycle,
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however, over a longer period, the commercial aircraft construction industry has experienced largely positive
growth as shown by aircraft deliveries by ten-year period for the last four decades.

The following table shows delivery trends for aircraft, excluding regional aircraft, over the last 40 years (source:
Airline Monitor, May 2003)

1963-1972 1973-1982 1983-1992 1993-2002

Number of aircraft deliveries ......................... 3,616 | 3,273 5,105 8,090

Outlook

According to IATA, the aggregate net loss of airlines worldwide (including 280 airlines) amounted to $35 billion
since September 2001 (December 2004 study). In 2004, the eleven major U.S. airlines recorded an aggregate net
loss for the year of $9.16 billion, compared with a loss of $2.35 billion in 2003.

l

Boeing, in a study carried out in June 2003, estimated that the exceptional events of 2001 and 2003
(September 11, 2001, the Iraq war, the SARS epidemic) will have a negative impact for several years, but will not
significantly alter long-term trends in the global economy and market forecasts. Boeing estimated that, all in all,
air traffic in 2022 will be 5% less than what it would have been had these exceptional events not occurred.
However, in its 2004 study (Boeing 2004 CMO), Boeing predicts average annual growth in passenger traffic over
the next 20 years of 5.2%, based on global economic growth of 3%. 1

The situation in the aviation sector will remain fragile, while alrlmes recover from the consequences of the
various events since 2001.

Snecma believes that the renewed development of air transport should have a favorable impact on the aircraft
industry in general, impacting original equipment, as well as maintena:hce, repair and overhaul (MRO) services.
The Group believes that growth in the original equipment sector will b]‘e driven by the economy and the airlines’
replacement requirements and financial condition. The MRO sector should be positively affected by the growth in
the installed base of aircraft, which generates more recurring income. \

* Outlook for aircraft construction and the aircraft engine sector

Assuming average annual worldwide GDP growth of 3% over the next 20 years, as indicated above, the Boeing
study released in July 2004 forecasts 5.2% average annual growth in|passenger traffic over this same 20-year
period. According to Boeing, this growth should result in the worldwide airline fieet more than doubling by 2023,
from 16,168 aircraft in 2003 (including both regional jets and commercial jets with over 90 seats), to 34,764
aircraft in 2023. On this basis and taking into account aircraft retired from service, this should result in the
delivery of 24,993 new aircraft. i

|
I

The study forecast the following changes over the same period, broken down by type of aircraft:

Deliveries
2003 Fleet 2023 Fleet 2004-2023

|
Boeing forecasts (passenger & cargo) 1
Airlines only !

Regional transports (less than 90 seats) . ........................ ‘ . 2,245 5773 4,286
Single-aisle (90-240 seats). . ......cvtien i . 9,050 18,953 17,714
Widebody (over 240 seats) ........... . oo . 3,107 6,582 5,269
Cargo aircraft . . ... ... L 1,766 3,456 724
TOtAl v ottt .. 16,168 34,764 24,993

In a January-February 2004 study, The Airline Monitor predicted 5.3% ,javerage annual growth in passenger traffic
for the period 2004-2023. On this basis, The Airline Monitor estimated that airlines and other operators will
deploy a fleet of 33,192 aircraft in 2023, with the delivery of 23,050 {aircraft.

In an October 2004 study (Airbus GMF 2004-2023), Airbus predihted average annual growth of 5.3% in
passenger traffic for the period 2004-2023. On this basis, Airbus estimated that some 16,601 new aircraft with
over 100 seats should enter service by 2023, bringing the worldwide fleet for this type of aircraft from 10,838 at

year-end 2003 to 21,759 at year-end 2023. 1

The breakdown of this market by number of engines refiects both aircraft configuration (two engines on short/
medium-haul aircraft and two or four engines on long-haul aircraft),f and the outlook for each of the aircraft

|
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operating in these segments. It should also be noted that twin-engine aircraft may compete against four-engine
aircraft, as is the case of the Boeing 777 versus the Airbus A340, forlexample.

¢ Service market outlook

In its April 2004 study, ““The outlook of commercial MRO through 2013”, AeroStrategy estimated that the MRO
(maintenance, repair and overhaul) market for commercial aircraft total:ed $35.8 billion in 2004 and should grow
to $60 billion in 2013, equal to an annual average increase of 5.3%. Within the MRO market, engine maintenance
represents about 35% of the total.

Snecma believes that the favorable outlook for this activity, especially for CFM56 engines, as well as the spare
parts supply business, is due to the steady increase in fleets deploye]d by airlines. This is due in tumn to the
increase in the number of aircraft (because of traffic growth), the increase in the CFMS56’s share of the installed
base, and the natural aging of this fleet. The recovery in aviation businFss in 2004 also saw an increase of about
4% in the number of CFM56 flight-hours worldwide (to 31.5 million hours), and an increase of about 10% in the
number of CFM56 shop visits.

In the MRO market, equipment suppliers and engine manufacturers are|facing competition from third-party parts
manufacturers (having received Parts Manufacturer Approval, or PMA). To receive flightworthiness approval,
aircraft engines and spare parts must be certified by the relevant aviation authorities. Spare parts for engines, and
to a lesser degree for equipment, manufactured by third-party compe:mies, have been certified by the Federal
Aviation Administration (FAA) of the United States. Their use in airspaces other than those governed by the FAA
requires authorization from other aviation authorities. These “PMA” parts (or repair of parts under DER,
i.e., approved by a Design Engineering Representative) are not tested’ and approved according to the complete
procedures of the manufacturer of the propulsion system. According to a study by AeroStrategy, the market share
for PMA parts not approved by the manufacturer could reach 3 to 4% of the total number of aircraft spare parts in
2008. Under these conditions, Snecma continues to maintain the opereJlblhty and airworthiness conditions of its

engines and equipment to the very highest standards.

|
|
|
i

The business aviation sector showed strong growth at the end of the 199‘05, driven by global economic growth, the
fast-paced development of fractional ownership and the introduction of ‘new models. The result was a lowering of
barriers for this type of transportation, and therefore an expanded potemlal market. However, the sector remains
subject to general economic conditions: !

A study published by the Teal Group in 2003 forecast a market for 6,"075 new aircraft during 2003-2012, for a
total of $89 billion, 25% higher than the previous period of 1993-20q2.

¢ Business aviation

¢ Civil helicopters
The civil helicopter market is less affected by GDP trends than the civil airplane market, because of the diversity
of helicopter users and customer segmentation. Demand is generated by corporate and some individual
customers, the offshore oil sector, public and state agency services (police, emergency medical services, fire-
fighters, civil security) and a wide range of operators, especially for aerial photography, construction and

agriculture. ‘

|
According to a study by Jane’s Information Group in September 2003 summarizing the predictions of several
civil helicopter market participants and observers, the market should be relatively stable over the period
2003-2011, with average growth of less than 3% per year. The study highlighted the uncertain economy, the
reduction in the number of heliports, restrictions concerning the use qf airspace, and growing opposition to the
noise generated by helicopters. According to the study, North America and Europe account for 70% of the
market. In the United States, the market is affected by the budget restrictions of police forces and emergency
medical services. Furthermore, equipment replacement in the offshore oil sector, the other traditional outlet for
ctvil helicopters, is dependent on trends in this business.

The main manufacturers in this market are AgustaWestland and Eurocopter in Europe, and Bell Helicopters, MD
Helicopters and Sikorsky in the United States.
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4.1.3.2 Military aviation
The military aviation sector can be divided into four unequal segments:
* heavy combat aircraft;
¢ light combat and training aircraft;
* military transports;
* military helicopters.
Snecma participates in all four market segments, as a supplier of both|engines and equipment.
The military aircraft and equipment market has several specific characteristics. While some markets are open to
foreign manufacturers, they are still subject to a policy of preference for national “champions”.
¢ Heavy combat aircraft

Following strong growth during the period 1975-1990, the heavy| combat aircraft market experienced a
considerable slowdown against the backdrop of shifting intemational‘ relations following the fall of the iron
curtain. Snecma believes that the market is once again starting to open up due to aging fleets, especially in
countries with the ability to buy so-called fourth-generation aircraft: M1rage 2000-9, Rafale, Eurofighter, F-16

Block 60.

The September 11 attacks, the conflict in Afghanistan and the war in Iraq have generated an increase in military
orders in the United States. In Europe, however, most military orders have been postponed due to budgetary
restrictions. France does not reflect this trend, since its military spending bill for 2003-2008 provides for a
significant budget increase, allowing current orders to be consolidated,

In a study from April 2003, Forecast International predicted that the replacement of heavy combat aircraft fleets
should lead to an increase in production, reaching 3,038 aircraft durinjg the period 2003-2012.

The main manufacturers of heavy combat aircraft are:

‘ i
¢ United States: Boeing, for the F/A-18 and F-15, and Lockheed/Martin, for the F-16 and the USAF’s new
F/A-22 Raptor fighter (in collaboration with Boeing), and also selected for the future Joint Strike Fighter
(JSF), or F-35.

* Europe: Dassault Aviation, for the Rafale and Mirage 2000; ‘Saab along with BAE Systems, for the
Gripen; and the Eurofighter consortium, comprising BAE Systems EADS and Finmeccanica/Alenia, for
the Typhoon. !

* Russia: Sukhoi, for the Su-27, Su-30 and numerous denvatlves, and RAC MiG, for the MiG-29 and
derivatives. .‘

» Light combat and training aircraft ‘
According to the same study by Forecast International, the training aircraft market should increase. A total of
1,398 jet training and light combat aircraft should be produced over tbe period 2003-2012.

* Military transport aircraft 1
In a study dated October 2003, Forecast International predicted that 1about 882 new military transport aircraft
would be produced over the period 2003-2012. From 2003 to 2007, 408 aircraft should enter service, with
another 474 following during 2008-2012. According to Forecast Intematlonal this total breaks down as follows
for the period 2003-2012.

[ Number of
Type of military transport ‘ aircraft
Less than 20,000 pounds payload capacity .............cooiiii i, 141
Medium capacity (20,000 to 80,000 pounds). ............o...... looi L 268
Large capacity (over 80,000 pounds) TN N 473

The military transport sector is dominated by heavy transports, which should account for 88.5% of all revenues in
this sector over the next ten years, according to Forecast International (October 2003). Historically, this sector has
been influenced by U.S. budgetary decisions, leading to a predommance of American manufacturers and aircraft,
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including the Boeing C-17 and the Lockheed Martin C-130 Herqu]es. European military transport fleet
replacement, especially with the new A400M, should open new growtl‘l possibilities.

l
¢ Military helicopters

The demand for new military helicopters is primarily determined by budgetary considerations, the need to replace
aging fleets and strategic considerations. According to Snecma, the inﬂroduction of new-generation helicopters,
such as the Tiger and NH90, should help stimulate demand for militarjy helicopters in the near future.

\
A report by Jane’s Information Group in September 2003 cites forecast$ by Rolls-Royce that predict the delivery

of 5,246 military helicopters for the period 2003-2012. J

The main military helicopter manufacturers supplying the world marl!et are located in the United States (Bell
Helicopter, Boeing and Sikorsky) and Europe (AgustaWestland, a subsidiary of Finmeccanica, and Eurocopter).
There are also a certain number of national manufacturers in ex-Soviet states that compete within their respective
markets. The military market is highly coveted, but it is difficult for forelgn manufacturers to bid on national
requests for proposals, for reasons of national security, politics and long-established relationships.

|

4.1.3.3 Space

Snecma’s activities in the space propulsion sector concern two distinct market segments: launch vehicle
propulsion and, to a lesser degree, satellite propulsion. ]\

The world’s three leading launch service providers are Arianespace, Bloeing and Lockheed Martin. Alone or as
part of consortiums with several Eastern European countries, including Russia, they accounted for virtually all
launches in recent years. China, Japan and India, which call on domestlc launcher technology and experience, are
not providers of commercial launch services, but are striving to beconlle such providers.

Launch service providers have had to adapt their offering to meet chaﬁging market requirements, especially the
launch of increasingly heavy satellites into geostationary orbit. The Group believes that this trend now seems to
be stabilizing at satellites around 4 to 5 metric tons for most of the market. However, additional launch
requirements are being confirmed for large satellites in the over S-metﬁc—ton class, and smaller satellites of less
than 3 metric tons. In addition to the diversity of services offered and competition on prices, the reliability of the

launch service provider is a major factor in the competitive marketplace.
|

4.2 PROPULSION BRANCH /‘

In 2004, the Propulsion branch contributed 63% (4,523 million euros) ;of the Group’s consolidated sales, before
elimination of inter-branch sales (see paragraph 5.1.5.1 below for sales‘after elimination of inter-branch sales). It
designs, develops, produces and markets a wide range of aircraft and rocket engines for commercial aircraft,
military transport, training and combat aircraft, civil and military hFIicopters, launch vehicles, ballistic and
tactical missiles. Commercial aircraft propulsion accounted for about|58% of the branch’s sales in 2004, after
elimination of inter-branch sales, with rocket propulsion for launchers and ballistic missiles accounting for about
12%, military aircraft propulsion about 18% and helicopter propulsmn about 12%. Snecma’s powerplants range
from the 8 grams of thrust developed by plasma thrusters for satellites, ‘to solid rocket motors for launch vehicles
developing nearly 1.5 million pounds of thrust. The Propulsion branch also includes the sale of spare parts, and
engine maintenance, repair and overhaul (MRO) services. 1
|

The main companies in this branch are:
* Snecma Moteurs: engines for civil and military aircraft, rocket engines.

* Snecma Propulsion Solide: solid rocket motors for launcm vehicles, tactical and ballistic missiles;
thermostructural composites. ‘

* Turbomeca: turbine engines for civil and military helicopters, engines for training aircraft and tactical

missiles, land and marine turbines, MRO. !
* Techspace Aero: modules and equipment for aircraft and rocket engines, engine test stands, MRO.

* Microturbo: jet engines for tactical missiles and target drones, auxiliary power units, air starters.

. . . . . | -
* Snecma Services: aircraft engine maintenance, repair and ovgrhaul MRO) services.
|
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4.2.1 Snecma Moteurs: aircraft and rocket engines ]‘
Snecma Moteurs encompasses most of the Group’s operations in civil and military aircraft propulsion, as well as
rocket engines for launch vehicles. Through their joint company CFM International, Snecma Moteurs and
General Electric are the world’s leading suppliers of aircraft engines m their thrust class, with 14,617 CFM56
engines in service as of December 31, 2004, out of a total of 25,475 engmes in the 15,000 to 45,000-pound-thrust
class (source: Snecma and CASE, January 2004). Snecma conmders} itself to be the second leading rocket
propulsion company worldwide in terms of sales, covering both solid propulsion (with Snecma Propulsion
Solide) and liquid propulsion (through Snecma Moteurs).

Snecma Moteurs contributed 2,943 million euros to the Group’s conso}lidated sales and accounted for 65.4% of
the Propulsion branch’s consolidated sales in 2004, after elimination of inter-branch sales. This figure includes
the Snecma Group’s share generated by CFM International S.A., CFM International Inc. and SES (Shannon

Engine Support) (see 5.2.5.1.C).

4.2.1.1 Commercial aircraft engines
Market and competition

In the mainline jet market (over 100 seats), engine manufacturers market their engines to the two main airframe
manufacturers, Airbus and Boeing, and to airlines or aircraft leasing firms. The sale of new engines for a given
model stretches over 10 to 15 years, with spare parts being distributed up to 40 years after service entry of the
first engine.

Each engine is developed according to the type of aircraft it will \power, in conjunction with the aircraft
manufacturer. In most cases, the aircraft is sold with a choice of two engine types. In this case, the engine
manufacturers chosen as preferred suppliers, for example CFM International for the CFM56-5A and -5B on the

Airbus A320, must market their product to the aircraft buyer so as to be; chosen to equip their aircraft. An aircraft
manufacturer may also decide to offer a single engine type, if it deems that the choice of a single supply source

will be well received by the market, as is the case with Boeing, which]' chose the CFMS56-7 as the single source
engine on its current generation 737 twinjets. Lastly, engine manufactlllrers also market their engines to airlines
and leasing firms by offering a retrofit, i.e., replacing existing engines with their engines.

Once sold, the engine generates significant recurring business through spare parts and MRO services. Spare parts
are mainly supplied directly by the engine manufacturer. Spare parts b“usiness volume, which primarily depends
on the size of the fleet in service, is a critical factor in determining the profitability of an engine program. Engine
manufacturers sometimes face increasing competition from other parts manufacturers that hold Parts Manufac-
turer Approval (PMA) authorization from the U.S. Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) (see 4.1.3.1., service
market outlook). |

J
The engine manufacturer provides after-sales services: MRO services may be provided by the engine manufac-

turer, by repair shops that are either independent or associated with an qir]ine or other engine manufacturer, or by
the user itself. Since engine manufacturers operate in both the spare; parts and MRO markets, they can offer
customers long-term support contracts with a full range of services. This trend is developing in response to
growing demand from customers and users. Snecma’s own a1rcraft‘ engine service business is described in
paragraph 4.2.6 below. |

The mainline jet engine market can be divided into two segments: ‘

|

* Engines developing 18,000 to 45,000 pounds of thrust that p0\§ver single-aisle mainline jets, in particular
the Boeing 737 and the Airbus A320 family, as well as the four-engine Airbus A340-300 widebody jet
(two aisles). As of December 31, 2004, this segment counted an in-service fleet of 25,475 engines, with
932 delivered during the year 2004 (source: CASE, January 2005 and Snecma). Snecma Moteurs is
present in this market via CFM International, an equal joint 'venture of Snecma Moteurs and General
Electric Aircraft Engines. CFM International’s main competitor in this segment is the IAE consortium,
formed by Pratt & Whitney (United States), Rolls-Royce (Umted Kingdom), MTU Aero Engines
(Germany) and the Japanese Aircraft Engine Company (JAEC) In 2004, CFMS6 engines accounted for
about 72% of the engines delivered and about 62% of the engmes ordered in this segment (source:
CASE, January 2005 and Snecma). }

* Engines developing more than 45,000 pounds of thrust thatf power most widebody four-engine jets,
especially the Boeing 747 and the Airbus A340-500 and A340-600, as well as the widebody twin-engine
aircraft Airbus A300, A310 and A330, and the Boeing 777 land 767. As of December 31, 2004, this
segment had a fleet of 11,715 engines in service, with 358 qngines delivered during the year (source:
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J
CASE, January 2005 and Snecma). Snecma Moteurs operates m this market segment through its stakes
in General Electric engine programs. The competitors are Rollls Royce and Pratt & Whitney. In 2004,
General Electric accounted for about 40% of the engines delivered in this segment (source: CASE,

January 2005 and Snecma).

Through CFM International, its equal alliance with General Electric: (see ““CFM International agreements”

below), and stakes in various General Electric engine programs, Sne;cma Moteurs is currently present in the
mainline jet propulsion market (for commercial aircraft with over 100 seats). This is currently the largest market

CASE, January 2005 and Snecma).

In addition, Snecma Moteurs continues to pursue its objective of entering the market for regional aircraft engines.
This market currently represents an in-service fleet of about 6,500 a1rcraft The SaM146 propulsion system,
offered jointly by Snecma Moteurs and NPO Saturn, was selected by Sukhoi and approved by the Russian
government as powerplant for the Russian Regional Jet (RRI), now being launched. A Memorandum of
Understanding was signed to this effect with Sukhoi and NPO Saturn in April 2003. Sibir (Siberia Airlines), the
second largest Russian airline, signed a letter of intent to order 50 airc;:raft, along with 10 on option.

1

1
Alliances and partnerships ;
Given the technological, cost and development time challenges invol\)ed as well as the uncertain commercial
success of any engine program, engine manufacturers tend to form alhances or partnerships over and above the
usual subcontracting arrangements. This approach is designed to combme the best technological skills and pool
the risks inherent in program development. Four major players form the hubs of these partnerships and alliances,
General Electric, Pratt & Whitney, Rolls-Royce and Snecma. This is a major characteristic of the commercial
aircraft engine sector. Partnerships or alliances are created for the 1ength of a program, which may stretch over
several decades, including the development and marketing of new verslons of the initial engine. The collabora-
tions may involve equal alliances between two or more prime contractors, such as CFM International or IAE, or a
minority stake in a program managed by one or several prime céntractors (a “risk and revenue sharing
participant’). 1
The latter type of agreement generally provides for the participant t‘o supply certain engine parts. Unlike a
traditional supplier, who receives a sales price for each part dehveredJ the risk and revenue sharing participant
receives a share of the sales revenues determined at the outset accordmg to its negotiated share in the program.
The risk and revenue sharing participant pays a fee to the engine prime contractor for its services for program
management and customer relationships. This means that the participant has a stake in the engine’s commercial
success, as well as the sales terms offered to the buyer, and the risk of program failure during the development
and production phase. The risk and revenue sharing participant may also take part in development activities. If
this is not the case, the participant pays the prime contractor for these activities (in cash or through work
performed), in proportion to its share of the program, and also contnbutes to the engine’s certification costs for
the different aircraft it will power. The participant is also responsible for financing the tooling needed. The risk
and revenue sharing participant supplies spare parts for the parts of the engine under its responsibility and
receives either a sales price for these parts or a fixed-price payment in re]at1on to its participation, depending on
the situation.

For mainline jet engines, Snecma develops, produces and markets its products either through an equal alliance
with General Electric (CFM International), or through risk and revenue sharing participant type agreements. As
indicated below, its main partner is General Electric, and its largest program is the CFM56. Snecma estimates
that about 34% of current sales are related to programs carried out in} conjunction with General Electric.

|

For regional aircraft engines, Snecma, as indicated below, has formed an equal alliance with Russian engine
manufacturer NPO Saturn.
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Products

| Thrust range

Engine (pounds)

o SaAMIA6 Y 14,000 — 17,500
O CEMSE o e 18,500 — 34,000
o CF6-80 and GEnx . ..o 50,000 — 72,000
o GPT000 70,000 — 85,000

o GEOO. ... 76,000 — 115,300

(1) Under development

* CFM56

The CFMS56 family, which accounts for a majority of the sales of Snecma Moteurs, is developed, produced and
marketed by CFM International, within the scope of equal collaborati?n agreements with General Electric. The
family comprises models with thrust ranging from 18,500 to 34,000 pounds. A detailed description of the terms
of these agreements can be found in the section “CFM International Agreements™ below.

Snecma Moteurs is responsible for the development and production of the low-pressure part of the engine, the
power transmission units, and certain major subassemblies, 1nclud1ng the lubrication system, fuel system and
electrical wiring. General Electric is in charge of the development and productlon of the high-pressure part of the
engine (core engine) and the control system. Snecma and General Electric share on an equal basis in the
assembly, acceptance testing and monitoring of engine integration in the nacelle, splitting major responsibility for
a given engine model according to proximity of the aircraft manufac}turer customer (Snecma Moteurs for all
Airbus applications, General Electric for Boeing applications). This approach strives to minimize overall costs,

while maintaining the principle of equality. 1

Over half of all mainline jets (over 100 seats) delivered in the last ﬁfte‘jen years are powered by CFMS56 engines
(source: CASE, January 2005 and Snecma). As of December 31, 2004, CFM International had 413 customers and
users worldwide, and an in-service fleet of 14,617 engines. At the same’ date it had a backlog of 2,100 engines on
order.
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The following graph summarizes the annual proportion of CFMS56 engines delivered in relation to the total
number of jet engines delivered in the 18,000 to 45,000 Ib thrust range, |for the period 1988-2004 (source: CASE
January 2005 and Snecma).
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With the delivery of the first CFM56 engines in 1982, Snecma Moteufrs and General Electric achieved a major
advance in technology, cutting fuel consumption by 20% compared with the then-current generation of engines
(source: Jane’s Information Group, 1996). The Snecma Group believes!that the reliability of the CFM56, as well
as its low operating costs, are major competitive advantages. CFM56 engines offer one of the highest on-wing
rates (without removal for servicing) in the industry: original equipmedt CFM56-3 and -5A models, for example,
average 18,000 to 20,000 hours on-wing from service entry, depending on the model. The Group believes that
this endurance translates into resale value for the CFMS56 and is a competitive advantage.
|

CFM International has successively developed different versions of the CFM56 to meet the needs of aircraft
manufacturers and their customers: 1

* CFM56-2, which marked the introduction of the CFMS56 in tﬁe early 1980s, as a reengining option for
the DC-8. It develops 22,000 to 24,000 pounds of thrust.i As of December 31, 2004, there were
524 CFM56-2 engines in service (excluding military applications) on 105 aircraft deployed by
18 operators (source: CWC* CFM/Snecma). ‘

¢ The CFMS56-3 family is the sole source powerplant for thE second-generation Boeing 737 twinjet
(737-300, -400 and -500), which entered service in 1984. It dei,velops 18,500 to 23,500 pounds of thrust.
As of December 31, 2004, there were 4,498 CFM56-3 engines in service on 1,969 aircraft deployed by
178 operators (source: CWC* CFM/Snecma). !

* The CFM56-5A and -5B models, developing 21,600 to 33,000 pounds of thrust, power the entire range
of Airbus single-aisle, twin-engine aircraft: A318, A319,} A320 and A321. According to CFM
International, these engines hold 55% of the market for these aircraft, based on cumulative firm orders
since the launch of the CFM56-5A in 1988, ahead of their mam competitor, which has 44.1% of the
market. As of December 31, 2004, there were 2,948 CFM56-5A and -5B engines in service on

|
1,362 aircraft deployed by 97 operators (source: CWC* CFM/Snecma).

* (CWC: Customer Web Center)
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¢ The CFMS56-7 entered service in 1997, taking over for the CFM56 3, since it powers — still as sole
source powerplant — the third generation of the Boeing 737 (737 600, -700, -800 and -900). It develops
19,500 to 27,300 pounds of thrust. As of December 31, 2004 there were 3,445 CFMS56-7 engines in
service on 1,624 aircraft deployed by 146 operators (source: CWC* CFM/Snecma), excluding military
applications under development or in the process of certification.

* The CFM56-5C is the most powerful engine in this family. Entering service in 1993, it is the exclusive
powerplant of the Airbus A340-200 and -300 four-engine long} -haul jetliners. There are several versions
of this engine, developing from 31,200 to 34,000 pounds of thrust As of December 31, 2004, there were
1,068 CFM56-5C engines in service on 233 Airbus A340s deployed by 38 operators (source: CWC*
CFM/Snecma). A new version of the CFM56-5C, called the CFM56 5C/P, for an upgraded version of
the A340-300, has been certified and entered service in November 2003. It provides lower fuel

consumptlon and maintenance costs. ‘

\
EE— \
* CWC: Customer Web Center J

Looking ahead, Snecma Moteurs and General Electric launched a research and technology program for the
CFM56 in 1998, called TECHS6, designed to allow partners to anticipate and meet probable customer
requirements for improved performance, operating costs and env1ronmental friendliness (in terms of fuel
consumption, noise, pollution, etc.). Results to date are in line with objectives for 2010. Certain advanced
technologies developed by this program will be introduced as of 2007 }m the CFM56-7 and CFM56-5B engines
that power the current Boeing 737 and Airbus A320 families, respectively. Looking beyond this program, CFM is
gearing up for the launch of a new technology program that aims to meet the requirements of aircraft
manufacturers for the replacement of the current single-aisle 737 and A320 families, possibly towards 2012. The
modular design of the CFM56 allows for new technologies incorporatefd in either derivative versions or a brand-
new engine (six-stage high-pressure compressor, combustor, high-pressure turbine and low-pressure turbine).

In addition to the CFM International alliance, Snecma Moteurs is a risk and revenue sharing participant in many
other programs. Its minority stakes in these programs concern engine modules and subassemblies with
technologies understood and applied by Snecma Moteurs.

+ CFo-80

Snecma Moteurs is associated in General Electric’s CF6-80 engine program (50,000 to 72,000 pounds of thrust),
as a risk and revenue sharing participant with a 10% stake in the CF6- 80C2 and a 19.4% stake in the CF6-80E1.
Snecma Moteurs produces the components under its responsibility. Tl}e CF6-80 range entered service in 1985,
and powers the Airbus A300-600 and the Boeing 747, 767 and MD-11. As of December 31, 2004, there were
over 4,000 CF6-80 engines in service with 140 customers and users, a‘nd 124 CF6-80 engines were delivered in
2004. The improved CF6-80E1 A3 version, rated at 72,000 pounds of thrust, enhances the performance of the

Airbus A330-200 and A330-300.

* GE90

Snecma Moteurs is a risk and revenue sharing participant in the General Electric GE90-94B engine (76,000 to
94,000 pounds of thrust), with a 23.5% stake in the program. Enterlr]1g service in 1995, the GE90 powers the
twin-engine widebody Boeing 777-200 and -200ER aircraft. As of December 31, 2004, there were
353 GE90-94B engines in service with 16 customers and users. Snecma Moteurs designs, develops and produces
the components under its responsibility, in particular most of the high-pressure compressor. A total of
23 GE90-94B engines were delivered in 2004.

The Boeing 777-300ER, with the GE90-115B (115,300 pounds of thrust) as sole source powerplant, entered
service in May 2004 with the launch customers Air France, Japan Airlines and All Nippon Airways (ANA). At
December 31, 2004, ten Boeing 777-300ERs were in service. Snecma Moteurs has a 23.7% stake in this program,
expanding its position in the high-thrust commercial engine market. Thirty-five GE90-115B engines were

produced in 2004,

*  GP7000

Snecma Moteurs also strengthened its presence in the high-thrust alrcraft engine market in 2000 by taking a role
as a risk and revenue sharing participant in the GP7000 engine (70, OOO to 85,000 pounds of thrust). The GP7000
program is conducted by the Engine Alliance, a 50/50 joint ventute between General Electric and Pratt &
Whitney. Snecma Moteurs signed a Memorandum of Understanding with General Electric in November 2000,
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giving it 20% of General Electric’s share of the program. Snecma Moteu}rs, which is most notably in charge of the
high-pressure compressor, will also participate in development, produc}ion and support services for all versions
of this engine. Techspace Aero is also a risk and revenue sharing participant in this program, with a 15% share in

Pratt & Whitney’s part of the program (see paragraph 4.2.4 below).

The GP7200 is on offer to airlines, in competition with the Rolls-Royce Trent 900, for the new A380 super-
jumbo quadjet now under development by Airbus. The A380 should ent:er revenue service in 2006. The GP7200,
slated for certification in 2005, has been chosen by Air France, Fedex, Emirates and ILFC (International Lease
Finance Corporation), for a total of 67 firm airplane orders at the lend of 2004, equaling firm orders for

approximately 300 engines (source: Engine Alliance)

* SaM146

Snecma Moteurs has teamed up with Russian engine manufacturer NPQ Saturn to develop, produce and market
an engine in the 14,000 to 17,500-pound-thrust range for regional transport aircraft. This engine was selected by
Sukhoi, and has received the authorization of the Russian government|to power the new Russian Regional Jet,
now being launched.

Major airlines have indicated a keen interest in this new engine. The goal is for aircraft certification by Russian
authorities at the end of 2007, followed six months later by Western authorities’ certification.

The collaboration with engine-maker NPO Saturn is based on several entities: in July 2004, the two partners
created an equally-owned management entity for the SaM146 program}‘. Called PowerlJet, this joint venture is in
charge of all SaM146 program aspects: design, production, marketing and support. PowerJet has two operating
units, one in France and the other in Russia. Italian engine-maker Avio joined this program in 2004 as a risk and
revenue sharing participant, with a stake of 8.8%. “

NPO Saturn and Snecma Moteurs are also setting up the joint companyiVolgAero to produce components for the
SaM146, as well as parts and assemblies for other engines producedi by the two parent companies. The two

partners will create an open-air test cell to carry out performance andicertification tests for the SaM146.

|

* Spare parts J

|
Snecma Moteurs produces spare parts for engine components under its responsibility. Its spare parts business
represents a recurring revenue stream which is key to the proﬁtabilit)% of an engine program. Industry experts
generally consider that the revenues generated by the sale of spare parts over the life of a commercial jet engine
are equivalent to the engine’s original sale price. Furthermore, this business generates higher margins than those
on the sale of new engines. The spare parts volume increases with the size of the fleet and its age. The sale of

spare parts is a key factor in the profitability of the Propulsion branchf.
An engine begins to consume spare parts in significant amounts after atJout five to eight years, and continues over
a lifespan which may reach 20 to 30 years. Engine manufacturers hol@ a major share of the spare parts supply
market. There were 14,617 CFM56 engines in service as of December 31, 2004, and deliveries have gone from
1,080 in 1999, to 1,021 in 2000, 1,044 in 2001, 750 in 2002, 702 in 2003 and 728 in 2004. This means that the
fleet of engines over five years old should naturally grow over the coming years, with an analogous increase in
spare parts sales. The sale and distribution of spare parts is handled either directly by the engine manufacturer
partners in each program, or as part of maintenance operations by MRd companies such as Snecma Services (see

4.2.6 below). 3

|
In this area, in the U.S. market Snecma is facing increasing competitioh from parts manufacturers holding PMA
(Parts Manufacturer Approval) authorization from the Federal Aviation Administration (see 4.1.3.1, service

market outlook). The Group’s response to this competition is based on the following:

* innovation and quality, to offer users original parts guaranteed by Snecma;
|

i
* the development of long-term maintenance contracts, in which spare parts will necessarily be Snecma
parts;

» if applicable, the filing of patents and counterfeiting suits against third-party manufacturers of such parts.
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Industrial and commercial organization

The product has a very long life cycle. In general, the different periods involved are as follows:
* Two to four years to develop and certify an engine;
* 12 months to manufacture it;

* 10 to 15 years of sales of new engines; it is also common to develop successive derivatives of a given
engine for some 20 years;

* Over 40 years for the complete cycle, including sale of spareparts and engines and support services.

For the program shares under its responsibility, Snecma Moteurs either} calls on traditional subcontractors, or on
second-tier risk and revenue sharing participants. !

Snecma Moteurs and General Electric have formed several equally:owned subsidiaries to produce specific
equipment items for their joint programs:

¢ Famat (Fabrications Mécaniques de 1’ Atlantique), in Saint-Nazaire, which manufactures large mechani-
cally-welded casings for CFM56, CF6-80 and GE90 engines.

* CFan, in Texas, which manufactures the composite fan blades for different versions of the GE90.

In addition, Snecma Moteurs calls on subsidiaries in the Equipment branch, primarily Hispano-Suiza, which
develops and produces power transmission systems and control equipment for the CFM36, as well as the control
system for the SaM146. \

|
CFM International agreements |
In 1974, Snecma signed an agreement with General Electric for the désign, manufacture and marketing, on an
equal basis, of a family of jet engines developing 18,500 to 34,000 pounds of thrust. Two equally-owned
marketing companies were created, CFM International S.A., a French société anonyme, and CFM International
Inc., a U.S.-registered company. These two companies are commonly! denominated “CFM International”. The
following paragraphs describe the main terms in the collaboration agr?ement.

CFM International is founded on the principle of an equal split of tasks and revenues. All sales are made by one
or the other of the two joint companies, CFM International S.A. and CFM International Inc. The sales proceeds
are paid to Snecma Moteurs and General Electric, following a split which varies slightly depending on the type of
engine, but which remains based on the principle of equality. Thfe collaboration agreement sets out the
responsibilities of Snecma and General Electric in the design and prdduction of CFMS56 engines. Snecma and
General Electric aim for a balanced sharing of tasks, based on a preliminary determination of set values.
Development, production and support costs remain the responsibility of the respective participants, who generate
their own margins according to their productivity and profitability. Each of the partners is responsible for the
supply of spare parts on the sections of the engine for which they are responsible. Each partner receives the sale
price for this part. Compensation is regularly adjusted to take account of the difference in consumption rates of
spare parts produced by General Electric and Snecma. If new engine tybes are developed within this family, such
agreements provide for possible adjustments in the workshare split to| maintain the principle of equality.

!

Snecma and General Electric remain equally responsible for expense$ related to the warranties, discounts and
other promotions required for the marketing of CFM56 engines by CFM International. The two partners share on
an equal basis, regardless of who is responsible, all consequences in regards to the customer that could arise from
an engine incident. All damage, claims, penalties or other expenses resulting from a claim expressed by a third-
party related to the use of the engines, or spare parts, or a contract signed by CFM International with a third
party, in particular due to the application of the warranty clauses that it may contain, will be covered equally by
Snecma and General Electric.

l

CFM International S.A. and CFM International Inc. have the same stn;lcture and the same management. Snecma
and General Electric each designates the same number of representatives on the board of directors of the two
companies, which in turn elects a single chairman to manage the join;t companies.

The collaboration agreement, which originally terminated on December 31, 1990, was extended until Decem-
ber 31, 2015. Beyond that time, the two parties remain committed to|each other so long as a commitment to a
customer is applicable. If one party were to withdraw from the agreement, the other party may decide to continue
the program in progress, and demand that the withdrawing party execute certain obligations, in particular the
continuation for a reasonable period of its responsibilities in the design and production of CFM56 engines, the
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procurement of rights and licenses for the duration of the program, anc\l technical assistance. Neither party may
withdraw with the objective of developing an engine that would compete with CFM56 engines.

In addition, Snecma and General Electric have extended their collabogation by signing, in 1993, an agreement
concerning the development of any new engine in the 18,500 to 50,000-pound-thrust range, based on the same
principle of equality. If one of the two parties decides to produce and m%arket such an engine, it must propose that
the other party participate in the program, which would then fall within the scope of application of the 1974
agreement. In case of refusal of this proposal, the first party is free to launch such an engine, either alone or in
collaboration with another party. This agreement, initially for a perlod of 10 years, was extended until 2013.

4.2.1.2 Military Aircraft Engines l

Market {]

Growth in the military aircraft market is currently weak. In the Umted States, this market was worth a total of
$40 billion in 2003, compared to $38 billion in 2002 (source: AIA/Aerospace Industries Association). In Europe,
the market grew to 11.2 billion euros in 2003, compared to 8.5 billion euros in 2002 (source: ASD/AeroSpace &
Defence Industries Association of Europe); this growth is primarily dl}xe to the start of Eurofighter deliveries.

Governments are the customers in military markets, although the purchaising responsibility for military equipment
may be split between various public agencies and air forces. Customerg choose aircraft according to their overall
qualities, especially avionics, propulsion and weapon systems. In general, military aircraft are offered by the
manufacturer with a single engine type. However, for transport aircraft and, to a lesser extent, training and
combat aircraft, engine manufacturers can offer users a reengining package during modemization or fleet renewal
programs. The military market is characterized by the importance of national independence and diplomatic
considerations. ]

The Snecma Group operates in all three segments of this market {— combat aircraft, training aircraft and
transport/patrol aircraft engines — mainly through Snecma Moteurs. Turbomeca (Larzac and Adour engines),
Techspace Aero (engine components and lubrication systems) and Hispano-Suiza (control systems and engine

equipment) also participate in this market. i

|
Most manufacturers of commercial aircraft engines also make militajry aircraft engines, to leverage technical
synergies between the two sectors. For the combat aircraft market, the main U.S. engines are the Pratt & Whitney
F100 and the General Electric F110, F404 and F414, which mainly!power the F-15, F-16 and F-18 combat
aircraft. Pratt & Whitney and General Electric are also developing engines for the Joint Strike Fighter (JSF), the
future American combat aircraft, respectively the F135 (basic engine) and the F136 (alternative engine, in

collaboration with Rolls-Royce). ‘i

In Europe, products on offer mainly comprise the Snecma M53 and M88, powering the Dassault Aviation Mirage
2000 and Rafale, respectively, and the EJ-200 for the Eurofighter Typhoon combat aircraft. The EJ-200 is
developed by Eurojet, a European consortium comprising Rolls- Royce (U.K.), MTU Aero Engines (Germany),
Avio (Italy) and Industria de Turbo Propulsores (ITP, Spain). Swedlsh company Saab has also developed the
Gripen fighter, powered by the F404-RM12, built by Volvo Aero Corporatlon under license from General
Electric. In Russia, the two combat aircraft manufacturers are Sukhoi, which makes the Su-27 as well as a
number of derivatives, up to the Su-35, and RAC MiG, formerly the Mikoyan design bureau, which builds the
MiG-29 and derivatives (including the MiG-29SMT). The two main famihes of Russian combat aircraft engines
are the Klimov RD-33, which powers the MiG-29, and the Lyulka- Satum AL-31, which powers the Sukhoi 27
and 30. !

The choice of engines for training aircraft is very diversified, since thei‘se engines could have been developed for

business aircraft (Falcon, Learjet, etc.). The primary engine suppliers iii this market are Snecma, with the Larzac
and Adour (the latter in partnership with Rolls-Royce), in North America Pratt & Whitney (JT-15D, PW500 and
PW300 families) and Honeywell (TFE731 family and F124), and in the United Kingdom Rolls-Royce (Viper).
The Russian government and engine manufacturers have shown a strong commitment to establishing a presence
in this segment (NPO Saturn AL-55, Soyuz RD-1700 and Salyut Al 222) in both export and domestic markets,

for future training aircraft Yak-130 and MiG-AT. i

Military transport/patrol aircraft engines are mainly from the U.S:, with the Rolls-Royce North America
(formerly Allison) T56 and AE2100 turboprops, which power the L,iockheed Martin C-130 Hercules military
transport. The Rolls-Royce Tyne, powerplant of the Transall C-160|and Breguet Atlantique, is no longer in
production. A new entry in this market is the TP400 for Europe’s planned A400M military transport. Snecma is
involved in this engine through the Europrop International (EPI) consortium. The CFMS56 powers military
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versions of the Boeing 707 airframe (CFMS56-2), and will also powler military versions of the Boeing 737

(CEM56-7): the 737 MMA (Multimission Maritime Aircraft) and the [737 Wedgetail (detection and command
aircraft),

According to its estimates and based on sales, Snecma is the second leadmg supplier of military jet engines in
Europe, and number four worldwide. 1

As for commercial aircraft engines, the technological challenges, cost z}md long development cycles for military
engines encourage manufacturers to form alliances or risk and revenue sharing agreements.
|

Products

As of December 31, 2004, engines made by the Snecma Group (Snecma Moteurs, plus Turbomeca for the Larzac
and Adour engines) powered aircraft deployed by about 50 armed forces around the world, with more than 7,300
engines in service. In terms of the number of Snecma engines, the distribution of customers was as follows: North
America 28%, France 23%, rest of Europe 15.5%, Africa/Middle Eastl 15.5%, Asia 15%, South America 3%.

* Combat aircraft jet engines
|
e Atar: Developing 45 to 70 kN of thrust, Atar engines power several types of Dassault Aviation combat

aircraft, including the Super-Etendard and the Mirage III, IV V, F1 and 50 family. Out of 3,451
produced since service entry in 1961, more than 1,300 are stlll in service in 19 countries.

*  MS53: Developing 95 kN of thrust with afterburner, the M53 entered service in 1984. It powers Dassault
Aviation’s Mirage 2000, with about 660 in service in eight countries. To satisfy the evolving needs of its
customers, Snecma is now studying a mid-life upgrade for (the MS53, especially its control system.
Dubbed the M53-P3, this engine project is now on offer to several customers.

* MS88: The latest member of Snecma Moteurs’ combat enginé family, the M88 (75 kN of thrust with
afterburner) powers the Dassault Aviation Rafale multirole ﬁgﬁter. It features latest-generation technolo-
gies such as powder metallurgy, single-crystal alloys and, composite materials. The M88-2 was
developed for France. The Stage 1 version was qualified in 1996, while the Stage 4 version, offering
significantly extended lifespans for the most highly loaded' parts of the core and afterburner, was
qualified in December 2001. The first production-standard Rafales have been operational since early
2001 at the Landivisiau naval air base and on the Charles de Gaulle aircraft carrier. The first Rafales for
the French air force were delivered in November 2004.

At December 31, 2004, a total of 75 production-standard M88 engihes had been delivered to French armed
forces. In October 2004, the French government awarded Snecma Moteurs an additional order for 138 M88-2
engines (including a firm order for an initial batch of 40) to power 59 Rafale fighters, including spare engines.

The Rafale is on offer for several export contracts, in particular for Smgapore for which a decision is expected in
2005.
l

The “ECO’’ demonstration program was started in 2004 to decrease ov]erall cost of ownership of the M88, based

on longer lifespan for hot parts. It also aims to demonstrate the ab111ty\to eventually increase the engine’s thrust

rating to 90 kN to meet export requirements. The first of the two engmes covered by this two and a half year
program made its first ground test at the end of 2004. J

|

* Training aircraft jet engines |

* Larzac: Developing 14 kN of thrust, the Larzac was developed and is produced jointly by Snecma
Moteurs (23%), Turbomeca (29%; Turbomeca was not part of the Snecma Group when the engine was
developed), MTU Aero Engines (23%), Rolls-Royce Deutschland (22%), and European accessory
manufacturers for the remaining 3%. Snecma Moteurs and Turbomeca formed the GRTS consortium to
handle this program. The Larzac powers the Alpha Jet trainers built by Dassault Aviation and Dornier.
Out of 1,235 engines produced since service entry in 1979, over 800 are still deployed in 12 countries.
The Larzac passed the mark of 3 million flight-hours in 2003. The Larzac also powers the Russian
MiG-AT twin-engine advanced trainer (three aircraft flying) land India’s single-engine HIJT-36 trainer
(two prototypes flying). In addition, discussions are now underfway to use this engine on the Chinese K-8
trainer. Although not currently in production, the Larzac offe:rs both thrust increase and modernization
potential which would enable it to meet any requirements of| these new applications.

* Adour: Rated at 37 kN of thrust (with afterburner) for the J aguar, and 29 kN (without afterburner) in its
latest version for the Hawk, the Adour was developed and produced by RRTM (Rolls-Royce Turbomeca

|
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Ltd.), a partnership between Turbomeca and Rolls-Royce. Designed to power support and attack aircraft,
it mainly equips the Dassault Aviation/BAE Systems Jaglilar, the BAE Systems Hawk and the
Boeing T45A Goshawk. Out of 2,830 engines produced since service entry in 1973, over 1,600 were still

deployed in 22 countries at December 31, 2004.

¢ Transport and patrol aircraft engines

¢  CFM56-2: The CFM56-2 turbofan, developing 98 to 107 kN of thrust, has been used on various military
aircraft derived from the Boeing 707 airframe since 1984: jtransport, KC-135 in-flight tankers and
surveillance aircraft, such as the RC135, E-3 and E-6 AWACS. As of December 31, 2004, there were
2,131 CFM56-2 engines in service on 503 aircraft deployed bly seven air forces worldwide.

* CFM56-7B: In addition to the commercial version of the engine, the CFM56-7B also powers C-40
transport aircraft for the U.S. Navy (military version of the B%)eing 737 transport) and the Boeing 737
AEW&C (Airborne Early Warning & Control). In June 2004, the CFM56-7B was also chosen to power
the future Boeing 737 MMA (Multimission Maritime Alrcraft)] intended to replace the Lockheed Martin

P3-Orion maritime patrol aircraft currently deployed by the U S. Navy.

¢ Tyne turboprop: The Tyne turboprop engine, developing 4,5510 kW of power, was developed by Rolls-
Royce, and was produced under license by Snecma (57%), MIU Aero Engines (20%) and Rolls-Royce
(23%). 1t powers the Transall C-160 transport and Breguet Atlantic and Atlantique 2 maritime patrol
aircraft. Out of 945 engines built since service entry in 1968}, some 800 were still deployed in seven
countries as of December 31, 2003. Maintenance of these engines is a significant business for the
Snecma Group. |

¢ TP400 turboprop: The TP400-D6 turboprop, rated at 10,000 fshaft horsepower, was selected by Airbus
Military in May 2003 for Europe’s future A400M military transport, against the competing Pratt &
Whitney Canada engine. The TP400-D6 is being developed ]by four European engine manufacturers
through the Europrop International (EPI) joint venture: Snecma (32.2%), Rolls-Royce (25%), MTU
Aero Engines (22.2%), and ITP (20.6%). This brand-new engme was designed from the ground up to
meet Airbus Military’s specifications for the A400M. Snecma Moteurs is responsible for the design and
production of the hottest parts of the engine, the combustor and high-pressure turbine. Hispano-Suiza
designs and produces most of the control system and assoc;ated equipment, and Techspace Aero is
responsible for the lubrication system, components, assembly and development tests. The first engine is
scheduled to start ground tests in late August 2005, and certification is planned for the end of 2007. To
date, 180 of these four-engine aircraft have been ordered by the seven launch countries (Germany,
France, Spain, U.K., Turkey, Belgium and Luxembourg), and other countries, such as South Africa, have
shown an interest. {
¢ Spare parts j
Spare parts supply and MRO services generally represent from 60 to 80% of the value of a military aircraft
engine. See paragraphs 4.2.3 and 4.2.6 below for a description of spare parts supply and MRO services for
military engines.

1
Industrial organization |
The product has a very long life cycle. The different periods invo]veJ are as follows:
* Four to five years to develop and certify an engine;
* 18 to 24 months to manufacture it;

* 20 to 25 years of sales of new engines;

¢ Over 40 years for the complete cycle, including sale of spare parts and support services.

Snecma Moteurs itself is responsible for most of the design, development and production work on its military
engines. It calls on subcontractors for certain design and productionjoperations, but prudently because of the
high-technology expertise required and the strategic nature of milit?ry business. Within the Group, Snecma
Moteurs’ main suppliers are Hispano-Suiza, Snecma Propulsion Solide and Messier-Bugatti.

Joint military engine programs are rarer than in the civil sector, but t]he trend is for an increase in this type of
arrangement. The latest and most emblematic example is the TP400 program, in which Snecma Moteurs is
participating in program management through the EPI (Europrop International) joint venture, along with Rolls-

|
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Royce, MTU Aero Engines and ITP. From the industrial standpoint, Snecma Moteurs, Hispano-Suiza and
Techspace Aero are linked to EPI through a joint supply contract.

Snecma Moteurs and Rolls-Royce have established a joint subsidiary tg lay the groundwork for next-generation
French-British military engines. This company received a contract from| the British Ministry of Defense to study
concepts for unmanned aerial vehicle (UAV) engines.

4.2.1.3 Space
* Space propulsion

Market and competition

Snecma Moteurs, the main engine manufacturer for the Ariane launcher, considers that it is the world’s second
leading producer of liquid-propellant rocket engines for launchers‘ in terms of sales, following Boeing-
Rocketdyne of the United States. Arianespace, the marketing compapy for Ariane, launched 20 commercial
satellites in the 2002-2004 period, accounting for 42% of the world m‘arket (source: Arianespace).

Since 2001, the launch services market has been in a critical situation, céused by the crisis in the telecommunica-
tions market and the advent of cheap Russian launchers. This competition not only affects Ariane, but also the
Delta IV and Atlas 5 launchers in the American Evolved Expendable Launch Vehicle (EELV) program. It has led
Boeing and Lockheed Martin to mainly use their own launchers, the‘i Delta IV and Atlas 5, respectively, for
U.S. Department of Defense applications, while favoring launchers from their business alliances, the Ukrainian
Zenit and Russian Proton, respectively, for commercial satellite launct%es.

1

In Europe, the weak government market means that independent European access to space depends on the
success of Arianespace in commercial markets. Fierce competition on le"iunch prices and a reduced Ariane launch
rate led to operating losses at Arianespace in 2000, 2001 and 2002, threatening the company’s long-term survival
and the businesses of the manufacturers involved in launcher production Under these conditions, the govern-
ments of countries belonging to the European Space Agency (ESA) and‘mdustry have taken measures to preserve
guaranteed access to space and achieve cost-effective production of Anane 5, while improving competitiveness to
place it on an even footing with competitors. Measures applied include a capital injection in Arianespace (carried
out in December 2004), reductions in production costs through higher productivity, industrial restructuring, and a
program implemented by ESA called European Guaranteed Access toiSpace (EGAS), which enables financing
certain fixed costs, and guarantees the possibility of using Ariane 5 at the best market price for European
government applications. The service entry in 2005 of Ariane 5 ECA, the most powerful version of this launcher,
will enable a return to the dual launch policy, thus decreasing launch costs.

Snecma Moteurs considers that it is the second largest European SQpplier of liquid propulsion systems for
satellites, after EADS, and that it is first in electric propulsion. It is a}so a major player in space mechanisms.

In October 2004, Sne